
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

PERFORMANCE AND CONTRACT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

TUESDAY 12TH MAY, 2015 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4BQ 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF PERFORMANCE AND CONTRACT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
(Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Anthony Finn 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Sury Khatri 
 

Councillors 
 

Geof Cooke 
Alison Cornelius 
Kathy Levine 
 

John Marshall 
Arjun Mittra 
Ammar Naqvi 
Reema Patel 
 

Shimon Ryde 
Vacancy 
 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Councillor Paul Edwards 
Councillor Dr Devra Kay  
 

Councillor Alison Moore 
Councillor Caroline Stock  

Councillor Gabriel Rozenberg  
Councillor Lisa Rutter  

 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Charlwood – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Service contact: Sarah Koniarski 020 8359 7574 sarah.koniarski@barnet.gov.uk 

 
Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 

1 - 4 

2.   Absence of Members  
 

 

3.   Declarations of Members Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and 
Non-Pecuniary Interests  
 

 

4.   Public Questions and Comments (if any)  
 

 

5.   Members Item - Councillor  Patel - Councils Key Performance 
Indicators  
 

5 - 8 

6.   Members Item - Councillor Cooke - Customer Complaint  
 

9 - 24 

7.   Quarter Four and Year End 2014/15 Monitoring Report  
 

25 - 186 

8.   Corporate Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy  
 

 

9.   Committee Forward Work Programme  
 

 

10.   Any Other Items that the Chairman Decides are Urgent  
 

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Sarah Koniarski 
020 8359 7574 sarah.koniarski@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing difficulties who have a 
text phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee 
Rooms also have induction loops. 

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed 
custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 



 
 
 

 

    

 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
Decisions of the Performance and Contract Management Committee 

 
11 February 2015 

 
Members Present: 

 
Councillor Anthony Finn (Chairman) 

Councillor Sury Khatri (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillor Geof Cooke 
Councillor Alison Cornelius 
Councillor Kathy Levine 
Councillor John Marshall 
 

Councillor Arjun Mittra 
Councillor Ammar Naqvi 
Councillor Reema Patel 
Councillor Shimon Ryde 
 

 
Apologies for Absence: 

 
Councillor Daniel Seal  

 
 

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the last meeting be agreed as a correct record subject 
to noting the following amendments for accuracy: 
 

• Item 9 – Quarter 2 Monitoring Report 
 Councillor Seal, not Councillor Davey had left the meeting 
 

• Item 10 – Committee Forward Work Programme 
 Members Items had been agenda item 7, not 6. 
 

2. ABSENCE OF MEMBERS  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Daniel Seal, who was substituted 
for by Councillor Lisa Rutter. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND 
NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 
Councillor John Marshall declared a non-pecuniary interest in relation to agenda item 8 
(Quarter 3 Monitoring Report 2014/15) by virtue of being a director of Barnet Homes. 
 
Councillor Arjun Mittra declared non-pecuniary interests in relation to agenda item 8 
(Quarter 3 Monitoring Report 2014/15) by virtue of being a Barnet Home tenant. In 
addition, his mother owned a nursery and he may have had questions in relation to early 
years provision. 
 
Councillor Shimon Ryde declared a non-pecuniary interest in relation to agenda item 8 
(Quarter 3 Monitoring Report 2014/15) by virtue of being a governor at an LEA school. 
 
During the course of the meeting Councillor Arjun Mittra declared a non-pecuniary 
interest in relation to agenda item 7 (Client/Contract Management Arrangements) by 
virtue of his membership of a trades’ union. 

AGENDA ITEM 1

1



 

2 

 
4. REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY)  

 
There were none. 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS (IF ANY)  
 
A public comment was received from Mr John Dix.  
 
Details of the questions asked, together with the published answers were provided with 
the agenda papers and circulated at the meeting. Verbal responses were given to 
supplementary questions at the meeting. 
 

6. MEMBERS' ITEMS (IF ANY)  
 
There were none.  
 

7. CLIENTING/CONTRACT MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS  
 
At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr Philip Hamberger, Partnership Relationship 
Manager, introduced the report which provided an overview of the clienting and contract 
management arrangements in operation across the council contracts within the 
committee’s remit and set out how performance was monitored and challenged. The 
report also presented the annual review of the Customer and Support Group (CSG) and 
Re. 
 
The committee considered and commented on the report and asked detailed questions 
which were responded to by officers and contractors. Mr John Hooton, the Deputy Chief 
Operating Officer, undertook to coordinate a response to the independent article and to 
circulate it to the committee. In response to questions from the committee, he clarified 
that the £1.2m procurement savings referred to in the CSG annual report were 
predominantly due to large contracts.  
 
RESOLVED - That the report be noted. 
 

8. QUARTER 3 MONITORING REPORT 2014/15  
 
At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr John Hooton, the Deputy Chief Operating Officer, 
introduced the report which provided the delivery and financial performance of both 
contracted and non-contracted services.  
 
Councillor Kathy Levine MOVED the following motion which was seconded by Councillor 
Geof Cooke: 
 
“That the Performance and Contract Management Committee request that the Children, 
Education, Libraries and Safeguarding Committee consider how the council could 
mitigate the risk of looking after two year olds and assist in increasing the uptake of the 
nursery places offer, while also assessing whether further work could be initiated to 
assist in increasing capacity”. 
 
The motion was agreed unanimously. 
 

2



 

3 

RESOLVED – That the Performance and Contract Management Committee request 
that the Children, Education, Libraries and Safeguarding Committee consider how 
the council could mitigate the risk of looking after two year olds and assist in 
increasing the uptake of the nursery places offer, while also assessing whether 
further work could be initiated to assist in increasing capacity. 
 
Mr Tom Pike, Head of Programmes and Resources, reported a correction to the report in 
that the average time spent in temporary accommodation in quarter 2 was 45.7 weeks 
and in quarter 3 was 50.2 weeks. 
 
RESOLVED - That: 
 
1. the quarter 3 2014/15 revenue budget and capital position contained in 

paragraphs 1.11 and 1.15 of the report be noted; 
 

2. the agency costs for the quarter 3 2014/15, as detailed in paragraph 1.16 of 
the report, be noted; 

 
3. the transformation programme position as at 31 December 2014, as detailed 

in paragraph 1.17 of the report, be noted; 
 
4. the treasury position outlined in paragraph 1.19 of the report be noted; 
 
5. the projected £18,323 capital slippage of the outturn at quarter 3 2014/15, as 

outlined in Appendix C to the report, be noted; 
 
6. the Capita payments outlined in Appendix I to the report be noted; 
 
7. the additional information requested by the committee on 11 November 2014 

and the rationale behind the choice of corporate plan indicators, as outlined 
in Appendix J to the report, be noted. 

 
9. COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  

 
The committee considered the forward work programme and the Chairman indicated that 
suggested changes to key performance indicators be included.  
 
Mr John Hooton, the Deputy Chief Operating Officer, undertook to seek the committee’s 
comments in advance of its next meeting. 
 
RESOLVED - That the report be noted. 
 

10. ANY OTHER ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 
There were no urgent items of business.  
 
As it was the last meeting of the municipal year, however, the Vice Chairman moved a 
vote of thanks to the Chairman, Councillor Anthony Finn, for his chairing of the 
committee. This was supported by members. Councillor Finn made suitable 
acknowledgement. 
 

The meeting finished at 9.58 pm

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 

 
The report informs the Performance and Contract Management Committee of a Member’s 
Item and requests instructions from the Committee. 
 

 

Recommendations  
 
That the Performance and Contract Management Committee’s instructions in 
relation to this Member’s item are requested. 
 

 
  

 

Performance and Contract 
Management Committee 

 
12 May 2015  

Title  
Member’s Item –  Councillor Reema Patel – 
Councils Key Performance Indicators 

Report of Head of Governance 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         None 

Officer Contact Details  
Andrew Charlwood, Head of Governance 
Email: andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk   
Tel: 020 8359 2014 

AGENDA ITEM 5

5



1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 

1.1 Councillor Reema Patel has requested that a Member’s Item be considered 
on the following matter: 
 

1.2 “To ask the Performance & Contract Management Committee to consider Key 
Performance Indicators and the Council’s objectives.” 
 

2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 No recommendations have been made.  The Performance and Contract 
Management Committee are therefore requested to give consideration and 
provide instruction. 
 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 Not applicable.  
 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 Post decision implementation will depend on the decision taken by the 
Committee. 
 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 As and when issues raised through a Member’s Item are progressed, they will 
need to be evaluated against the Corporate Plan and other relevant policies. 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 None in the context of this report. 
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
 
5.3.1 The Council’s Constitution Meeting Procedure Rules (section 6) states  that a 

Member, including appointed substitute Members of a Committee may have 
one item only on an agenda that he/she serves.  Members items must be 
within the term of reference of the decision making body which will consider 
the item.  
 

5.3.2 There are no legal references in the context of this report. 
 
 
 

6



5.4 Risk Management 
 

5.4.1 None in the context of this report.    
 
5.5 Equalities and Diversity  

 
5.5.1 Member’s Items allow Members of a Committee to bring a wide range of 

issues to the attention of a Committee in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution.  All of these issues must be considered for their equalities and 
diversity implications.  
 

5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
 

5.6.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 Email to Governance Service dated 29 April 2015. 
 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 

 
The report informs the Performance and Contract Management Committee of a Member’s 
Item and requests instructions from the Committee. 
 

 

Recommendations  
 
That the Performance and Contract Management Committee’s instructions in 
relation to this Member’s item are requested 
 

 
  

 

Performance and Contract 
Management Committee 

 
12 May 2015  

Title  
Member’s Item – Cllr Geof Cooke – 

Customer Services Performance 

Report of Head of Governance 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         None 

Officer Contact Details  
Andrew Charlwood, Head of Governance 
Email: andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk   
Tel: 020 8359 2014 

AGENDA ITEM 6

9



1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 

1.1 Councillor Geof Cooke has requested that a Member’s Item be considered on 
the following matter: 
 
“The case (see Appendix) illustrates several deficiencies in the service 
residents are receiving from Capita.  Please could a report on what has gone 
wrong and what is being done to correct it be provided as a member’s item on 
the agenda of the Performance and Contract Management committee on 
11/05/15?” 

 

2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 No recommendations have been made.  The Performance and Contract 
Management Committee are therefore requested to give consideration and 
provide instruction. 
 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 Not applicable.  
 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 Post decision implementation will depend on the decision taken by the 
Committee. 
 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 As and when issues raised through a Member’s Item are progressed, they will 
need to be evaluated against the Corporate Plan and other relevant policies. 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 None in the context of this report. 
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
 
5.3.1 The Council’s Constitution Meeting Procedure Rules (section 6) states  that a 

Member, including appointed substitute Members of a Committee may have 
one item only on an agenda that he/she serves.  Members items must be 
within the term of reference of the decision making body which will consider 
the item.  
 

5.3.2 There are no legal references in the context of this report. 

10



5.4 Risk Management 
 

5.4.1 None in the context of this report.    
 
5.5 Equalities and Diversity  

 
5.5.1 Member’s Items allow Members of a Committee to bring a wide range of 

issues to the attention of a Committee in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution.  All of these issues must be considered for their equalities and 
diversity implications.  
 

5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
 

5.6.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 Email to Governance Officer, dated 24 April 2015 
 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



From: ccu

To:

Subject: Re: Re: RE: MY Account query

Date: 20 April 2015 15:06:41

Our Ref:  101000776300

Dear  ,

Thank you for your email.

I am unable to answer your questions as First Contact  is the first point of contact with e-mails going into
the departments within Barnet Borough Council.  I have sent your complaint to the relevant departments
i.e. Council Tax who had the delay in sending it to First Contact ,I then forwarded your query to the
Technical department. who are working on the problems  you have encountered whilst trying to enter your
address.  They will respond to your query/complaint.

If we can be of any further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact us or visit our website:
www.barnet.gov.uk

Yours sincerely

Marian Harvey

Customer and Support Group (CSG)

London Borough of Barnet, North London Business Park, Oakleigh Road South, London N11 1NP

Tel: 0208 359 4600 2000

Barnet Online: www.barnet.gov.uk

CSG is delivered by Capita plc on behalf of London Borough of Barnet.

??please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email?

How would you rate the service provided in this e-mail?  Please click the link below or copy and paste the
web address into your e-mail browser to give us your feedback:
http://email.govmetric.com/default.aspx?organisationid=50&SourceID=978

----- Original Message -----
From:
Sent:  2015-04-17 16:14:14.343
To:  CCU@Barnet.gov.uk
Subject:  Re: RE: MY Account query

13



I listed five questions and three requests and you have ignored them all.

On 17 Apr 2015 3:57 pm, CCU@Barnet.gov.uk wrote:
Our Ref:  101000773680

Dear  ,

Thank you for your email.
I apologise for the delay to you  in our responses to your technical problems with our website.

First Contact recieved your e-mail on the 15th of April and sent it to "the relevant department", which is our
technical team who are trying to resolve the issues with the website. I have forwarded your complaint to
them .

My apologies again,
If we can be of any further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact us or visit our website:
www.barnet.gov.uk<http://www.barnet.gov.uk>

Yours sincerely

Marian Harvey

Customer and Support Group (CSG)

London Borough of Barnet, North London Business Park, Oakleigh Road South, London N11 1NP

Tel: 0208 359 4600 2000

Barnet Online: www.barnet.gov.uk<http://www.barnet.gov.uk>

CSG is delivered by Capita plc on behalf of London Borough of Barnet.

??please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email?

How would you rate the service provided in this e-mail?  Please click the link below or copy and paste the
web address into your e-mail browser to give us your feedback:
http://email.govmetric.com/default.aspx?organisationid=50&SourceID=978

----- Original Message -----
From:
Sent:  2015-04-17 08:07:13.44
To:  CCU@Barnet.gov.uk
Subject:  RE: MY Account query

I am extremely unhappy about the level of service I have received for this call so far, which is no closer to
resolution than when I logged it eleven days ago. The original call was placed on 6 April. 10 days later I
received the email below telling me that the call has now been referred to the relevant department.

I have five questions I expect to be answered;

14



1. Why was it not referred to the relevant department immediately? Referring the call to the correct
department should not take any time at all.
2. Why was the first response I received so ineffectual? I received an email that suggested I take an action
that I had clearly stated had already been taken?
3. I asked to have it escalated in my last email. Why has the call not been escalated?
4. When will this be resolved?
5. When will I be contacted by someone from the "relevant department"?

I have three things that I would like.

- I ask again to have this call escalated.
- Please have a service manager contact me directly by phone
- This is a complaint, and I expect it to be handled as such

-----Original Message-----
From: CCU@Barnet.gov.uk [mailto:CCU@Barnet.gov.uk]
Sent: 16 April 2015 13:51
To: 
Subject: Re: MY Account query

Our Ref: 101000770630

Dear 

Thank you for your e-mail.

Your enquiry has been referred to the relevant department rwegarding setting up your my account.

You should receive a response to your enquiry within 5 working days of us receiving it. If you do not
receive a full response to your enquiry within this period, please contact us and we will endeavour to
resolve the situation.

We hope you find this information helpful and if we can be of any further assistance please do not hesitate
to contact us or visit www.barnet.gov.uk<http://www.barnet.gov.uk> for more information about Council
services.

Yours sincerely

Marian Harvey

15



Customer and Support Group (CSG)

London Borough of Barnet, North London Business Park, Oakleigh Road South, London N11 1NP

Tel: 0208 359 2000

Barnet Online: www.barnet.gov.uk<http://www.barnet.gov.uk>

CSG is delivered by Capita plc on behalf of London Borough of Barnet.

??please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email?

----- Original Message -----
From:  local.taxation@barnet.gov.uk
Sent:  2015-04-15 18:00:13.49
To:  first.contact@barnet.gov.uk
Subject:  MY Account query

FYI please see email below.

Regards

Aneesa Kaduji

To:  "local.taxation@barnet.gov.uk" <local.taxation@barnet.gov.uk>
From: >
Subject: RE: Council Tax Account Reference 
Date:  Fri, 10 Apr 2015 15:07:22 +0000

This does not answer my query at all.

I have tried using just 17 in the box, and I get exactly the same error.

My original description of the problem (below) made it quite clear that I have already done this and that it
did not work.

I can find nothing in the FAQ you pointed me to that is of any assistance.

I reported this on the 6th of April.

16



I am extremely unsatisfied with the quality of your response and with the length of time it took to receive
that response.

Please escalate this issue.

________________________________________
From: local.taxation@barnet.gov.uk [local.taxation@barnet.gov.uk]
Sent: 10 April 2015 16:00
To: 
Subject: Council Tax Account Reference 

Dear Mr ,

Thank you for your email regarding your council tax at the property 

I understand you are having difficulty setting up your online account. Looking at your screenshot, I think
you just need to put 17 in the box for the building number and your postcode in the box below. Don't put
the street name in.. The system will then find the rest of your address just using the house number and the
postcode. The request for a name is for houses which are named rather than numbered.

For any further information, please use the link below to access a list of frequently asked questions and
answers.

https://ask.barnet.gov.uk/citizen/my-account/

I hope this answers your query. If you have any further questions, please contact us by calling 020 8359
2608 or emailing us at local.taxation@barnet.gov.uk.

Yours sincerely,

Benjamin Ashworth

Local Taxation Officer

Barnet Council

__________________________________________________________________________________________

From: >
Subject: Cannot register for council tax onlin
Date:  Mon, 6 Apr 2015 08:23:37 +0000

I have created a MyAccount on barnet.gov.uk

When I try to register for Council tax using my account reference  I get the message "Oops,
something went wrong". See screenshot below.

I get the same result whether I fill in "House/Building number or name" as either "17" or "

Please assist me to get this configured correctly.

[cid:image001.png@01D0704B.5C429570]

This email and any attachments to it are intended solely for the individual to whom it is addressed. It may
contain sensitive or confidential material and should be handled accordingly. However, it is recognised that,
as an intended recipient of this email, you may wish to share it with those who have a legitimate interest in
the contents.

If you have received this email in error and you are not the intended recipient you must not disclose,
distribute, copy or print any of the information contained or attached within it, all copies must be deleted
from your system.  Please notify the sender immediately.

17



Whilst we take reasonable steps to identify software viruses, any attachments to this email may contain
viruses which our anti-virus software has failed to identify. No liability can be accepted, and you should
therefore carry out your own anti-virus checks before opening any documents.

Please note: Information contained in this e-mail may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of
Information Act 2000 or the Environmental Information Regulations 2004.

This email and any attachments to it are intended solely for the individual to whom it is addressed. It may
contain sensitive or confidential material and should be handled accordingly. However, it is recognised that,
as an intended recipient of this email, you may wish to share it with those who have a legitimate interest in
the contents.

If you have received this email in error and you are not the intended recipient you must not disclose,
distribute, copy or print any of the information contained or attached within it, all copies must be deleted
from your system.  Please notify the sender immediately.

Whilst we take reasonable steps to identify software viruses, any attachments to this email may contain
viruses which our anti-virus software has failed to identify. No liability can be accepted, and you should
therefore carry out your own anti-virus checks before opening any documents.

Please note: Information contained in this e-mail may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of
Information Act 2000 or the Environmental Information Regulations 2004.

This email and any attachments to it are intended solely for the individual to whom it is addressed. It may
contain sensitive or confidential material and should be handled accordingly. However, it is recognised that,
as an intended recipient of this email, you may wish to share it with those who have a legitimate interest in
the contents.

If you have received this email in error and you are not the intended recipient you must not disclose,
distribute, copy or print any of the information contained or attached within it, all copies must be deleted
from your system.  Please notify the sender immediately.

Whilst we take reasonable steps to identify software viruses, any attachments to this email may contain
viruses which our anti-virus software has failed to identify. No liability can be accepted, and you should
therefore carry out your own anti-virus checks before opening any documents.

Please note: Information contained in this e-mail may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of
Information Act 2000 or the Environmental Information Regulations 2004.

18



From: ccu

To:

Subject: Re: Re: RE: MY Account query

Date: 20 April 2015 15:06:41

Our Ref:  101000776300

Dear  ,

Thank you for your email.

I am unable to answer your questions as First Contact  is the first point of contact with e-mails going into
the departments within Barnet Borough Council.  I have sent your complaint to the relevant departments
i.e. Council Tax who had the delay in sending it to First Contact ,I then forwarded your query to the
Technical department. who are working on the problems  you have encountered whilst trying to enter your
address.  They will respond to your query/complaint.

If we can be of any further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact us or visit our website:
www.barnet.gov.uk

Yours sincerely

Marian Harvey

Customer and Support Group (CSG)

London Borough of Barnet, North London Business Park, Oakleigh Road South, London N11 1NP

Tel: 0208 359 4600 2000

Barnet Online: www.barnet.gov.uk

CSG is delivered by Capita plc on behalf of London Borough of Barnet.

??please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email?

How would you rate the service provided in this e-mail?  Please click the link below or copy and paste the
web address into your e-mail browser to give us your feedback:
http://email.govmetric.com/default.aspx?organisationid=50&SourceID=978

----- Original Message -----
From:
Sent:  2015-04-17 16:14:14.343
To:  CCU@Barnet.gov.uk
Subject:  Re: RE: MY Account query

19



I listed five questions and three requests and you have ignored them all.

On 17 Apr 2015 3:57 pm, CCU@Barnet.gov.uk wrote:
Our Ref:  101000773680

Dear  ,

Thank you for your email.
I apologise for the delay to you  in our responses to your technical problems with our website.

First Contact recieved your e-mail on the 15th of April and sent it to "the relevant department", which is our
technical team who are trying to resolve the issues with the website. I have forwarded your complaint to
them .

My apologies again,
If we can be of any further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact us or visit our website:
www.barnet.gov.uk<http://www.barnet.gov.uk>

Yours sincerely

Marian Harvey

Customer and Support Group (CSG)

London Borough of Barnet, North London Business Park, Oakleigh Road South, London N11 1NP

Tel: 0208 359 4600 2000

Barnet Online: www.barnet.gov.uk<http://www.barnet.gov.uk>

CSG is delivered by Capita plc on behalf of London Borough of Barnet.

??please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email?

How would you rate the service provided in this e-mail?  Please click the link below or copy and paste the
web address into your e-mail browser to give us your feedback:
http://email.govmetric.com/default.aspx?organisationid=50&SourceID=978

----- Original Message -----
From:
Sent:  2015-04-17 08:07:13.44
To:  CCU@Barnet.gov.uk
Subject:  RE: MY Account query

I am extremely unhappy about the level of service I have received for this call so far, which is no closer to
resolution than when I logged it eleven days ago. The original call was placed on 6 April. 10 days later I
received the email below telling me that the call has now been referred to the relevant department.

I have five questions I expect to be answered;

20



1. Why was it not referred to the relevant department immediately? Referring the call to the correct
department should not take any time at all.
2. Why was the first response I received so ineffectual? I received an email that suggested I take an action
that I had clearly stated had already been taken?
3. I asked to have it escalated in my last email. Why has the call not been escalated?
4. When will this be resolved?
5. When will I be contacted by someone from the "relevant department"?

I have three things that I would like.

- I ask again to have this call escalated.
- Please have a service manager contact me directly by phone
- This is a complaint, and I expect it to be handled as such

-----Original Message-----
From: CCU@Barnet.gov.uk [mailto:CCU@Barnet.gov.uk]
Sent: 16 April 2015 13:51
To: 
Subject: Re: MY Account query

Our Ref: 101000770630

Dear 

Thank you for your e-mail.

Your enquiry has been referred to the relevant department rwegarding setting up your my account.

You should receive a response to your enquiry within 5 working days of us receiving it. If you do not
receive a full response to your enquiry within this period, please contact us and we will endeavour to
resolve the situation.

We hope you find this information helpful and if we can be of any further assistance please do not hesitate
to contact us or visit www.barnet.gov.uk<http://www.barnet.gov.uk> for more information about Council
services.

Yours sincerely

Marian Harvey

21



Customer and Support Group (CSG)

London Borough of Barnet, North London Business Park, Oakleigh Road South, London N11 1NP

Tel: 0208 359 2000

Barnet Online: www.barnet.gov.uk<http://www.barnet.gov.uk>

CSG is delivered by Capita plc on behalf of London Borough of Barnet.

??please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email?

----- Original Message -----
From:  local.taxation@barnet.gov.uk
Sent:  2015-04-15 18:00:13.49
To:  first.contact@barnet.gov.uk
Subject:  MY Account query

FYI please see email below.

Regards

Aneesa Kaduji

To:  "local.taxation@barnet.gov.uk" <local.taxation@barnet.gov.uk>
From: >
Subject: RE: Council Tax Account Reference 
Date:  Fri, 10 Apr 2015 15:07:22 +0000

This does not answer my query at all.

I have tried using just 17 in the box, and I get exactly the same error.

My original description of the problem (below) made it quite clear that I have already done this and that it
did not work.

I can find nothing in the FAQ you pointed me to that is of any assistance.

I reported this on the 6th of April.

22



I am extremely unsatisfied with the quality of your response and with the length of time it took to receive
that response.

Please escalate this issue.

________________________________________
From: local.taxation@barnet.gov.uk [local.taxation@barnet.gov.uk]
Sent: 10 April 2015 16:00
To: 
Subject: Council Tax Account Reference 

Dear Mr ,

Thank you for your email regarding your council tax at the property 

I understand you are having difficulty setting up your online account. Looking at your screenshot, I think
you just need to put 17 in the box for the building number and your postcode in the box below. Don't put
the street name in.. The system will then find the rest of your address just using the house number and the
postcode. The request for a name is for houses which are named rather than numbered.

For any further information, please use the link below to access a list of frequently asked questions and
answers.

https://ask.barnet.gov.uk/citizen/my-account/

I hope this answers your query. If you have any further questions, please contact us by calling 020 8359
2608 or emailing us at local.taxation@barnet.gov.uk.

Yours sincerely,

Benjamin Ashworth

Local Taxation Officer

Barnet Council

__________________________________________________________________________________________

From: >
Subject: Cannot register for council tax onlin
Date:  Mon, 6 Apr 2015 08:23:37 +0000

I have created a MyAccount on barnet.gov.uk

When I try to register for Council tax using my account reference  I get the message "Oops,
something went wrong". See screenshot below.

I get the same result whether I fill in "House/Building number or name" as either "17" or "

Please assist me to get this configured correctly.

[cid:image001.png@01D0704B.5C429570]

This email and any attachments to it are intended solely for the individual to whom it is addressed. It may
contain sensitive or confidential material and should be handled accordingly. However, it is recognised that,
as an intended recipient of this email, you may wish to share it with those who have a legitimate interest in
the contents.

If you have received this email in error and you are not the intended recipient you must not disclose,
distribute, copy or print any of the information contained or attached within it, all copies must be deleted
from your system.  Please notify the sender immediately.

23



Whilst we take reasonable steps to identify software viruses, any attachments to this email may contain
viruses which our anti-virus software has failed to identify. No liability can be accepted, and you should
therefore carry out your own anti-virus checks before opening any documents.

Please note: Information contained in this e-mail may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of
Information Act 2000 or the Environmental Information Regulations 2004.

This email and any attachments to it are intended solely for the individual to whom it is addressed. It may
contain sensitive or confidential material and should be handled accordingly. However, it is recognised that,
as an intended recipient of this email, you may wish to share it with those who have a legitimate interest in
the contents.

If you have received this email in error and you are not the intended recipient you must not disclose,
distribute, copy or print any of the information contained or attached within it, all copies must be deleted
from your system.  Please notify the sender immediately.

Whilst we take reasonable steps to identify software viruses, any attachments to this email may contain
viruses which our anti-virus software has failed to identify. No liability can be accepted, and you should
therefore carry out your own anti-virus checks before opening any documents.

Please note: Information contained in this e-mail may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of
Information Act 2000 or the Environmental Information Regulations 2004.

This email and any attachments to it are intended solely for the individual to whom it is addressed. It may
contain sensitive or confidential material and should be handled accordingly. However, it is recognised that,
as an intended recipient of this email, you may wish to share it with those who have a legitimate interest in
the contents.

If you have received this email in error and you are not the intended recipient you must not disclose,
distribute, copy or print any of the information contained or attached within it, all copies must be deleted
from your system.  Please notify the sender immediately.

Whilst we take reasonable steps to identify software viruses, any attachments to this email may contain
viruses which our anti-virus software has failed to identify. No liability can be accepted, and you should
therefore carry out your own anti-virus checks before opening any documents.

Please note: Information contained in this e-mail may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of
Information Act 2000 or the Environmental Information Regulations 2004.

24



 

 

 

Performance and Contract 

Management Committee 
 

12 May 2015 

Title  
Final Outturn and  Quarter 4 

Performance Monitoring 2014/15 
Report of Chief Operating Officer 
Wards All 
Date added to Forward 

Plan 
1 April 2014 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         

Appendix A Performance Report  

(including performance methodology) 

Appendix B Revenue Monitoring by Delivery Unit 

Appendix C Capital Monitoring Programme Outturn by 

Programme 

Appendix D Capital Programme Funding Adjustments 

Appendix E Transformation Programme 

Appendix F Prudential Indicator Compliance 

Appendix G Investments outstanding as at 31 March 

2015 

Appendix H Corporate Risk Register 

Appendix I Capita Payments 

Appendix J a) Corporate Plan 2015-20 

 b) Corporate Plan 2015-20: Technical 

Annex 
 

Officer Contact Details  

Paul Thorogood – Assistant Director of Finance, CSG 

Finance Service Paul.Thorogood@capita.co.uk  
 

Tom Pike – Head of Programmes and Resources, LBB 

Tom.Pike@barnet.gov.uk  
 

Claire Symonds – Commercial & Customer Services Director, 

LBB Claire.Symonds@barnet.gov.uk 

AGENDA ITEM 7

25



 

Summary 

This report provides the delivery and financial performance of both contracted and non-

contracted services from paragraph 1.6. Additional information on contract performance 

can be located in Appendix A at section 2.5. 

 

The Council’s historic performance can be accessed from www.barnet.gov.uk/performance, 

within this page there is also a link to the quarterly reporting explanatory note. A brief 

methodology explanation is also contained under section 6 of Appendix A.  

 
Delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan 

This is the final time that the council will be reporting against the 2013-2016 Corporate 

Plan. The Corporate Plan sets the strategic objectives for 2013-2016 focusing on three 

main priority areas; promote responsible growth, development and success across the 

borough; support families and individuals that need it, promoting independence, learning 

and wellbeing; and improve the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London 

Borough of Barnet as a place to live, work and study. Targets are in place to encourage 

improvement against these priority areas. 

 

Of the Corporate Plan Indicators (CPIs) that reported in quarter 4, the balance of met and 

missed targets was 72% were rated as green, 4% green amber, 4% red amber and 20% of 

Corporate Plan Indicators were rated as red.  Specific challenges are highlighted below in 

section 1.4.2.    

 

Council agreed the Corporate Plan 2015-20 on the 14 April 2015, this is set out in 

Appendix J. Reporting against the 2015-20 Corporate Plan will commence from Quarter 1 

2015/16 scheduled to report to this committee on the 1 September 2015. 

 

Key Successes 

There are a number of successes to report from quarter 4 of 2014/15, including: increase in 

carers receiving support services from 33.9% to 39.2%; further decrease of the number of 

households in emergency accommodation from 461 to 455; the number of private sector 

lettings achieved for 2014/15 was 392; a total of 389 affordable houses were delivered 

compared to 344 in 2013/14 and a neighbouring borough 2012/13 average of 284; Re 

brought 130 empty properties back into residential use, 30% more than targeted for the 

year; 2.6% of 16-18 year olds were not in education, employment of training in Barnet 

compared to 4.4%; reduction in the number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice 

System aged 10 to 17 from 337 to 282; 515,550 transactions for on-street parking bays and 

124,796 transactions for car parks in Town Centres were completed in quarter 4. 

 

During the quarter the strong performance of the Council’s Troubled Families team was 

recognised as among the best in London. Barnet Homes’ multi-agency Welfare Reform 

Taskforce has helped 183 residents back into work in 2014/15 and prevented 

homelessness for 170 households and was the 4th best performer in London in moving 

clients off the benefit cap. In March 2015, the team also became the provider for personal 

26



 

budgeting and digital inclusion support for Universal Credit claimants from local job centres. 

Brent Cross South procurement process was completed during the quarter with Argent 

Related selected as the preferred bidder. The Government has also earmarked £97 million 

of funding for a new Thameslink station at Brent Cross. 

 

Key Challenges 

There were a number of key challenges in quarter 4 2014/15 that require the council to 

deliver high level improvement plans:   

• The development of an alternative depot remains subject to a tight timescale 

• Early Years places available for eligible two year olds is below 1,284 target with 781 

places available. 

• Use of agency has increased form quarter 3, related to workforce restructures and 

changes taking effect for 1 April; and the sickness absence levels over the past 12 

months average 8.1 days per full-time equivalent.  

• The level of customer experience is below the level expected. Although satisfaction 

levels are high and the launch of the new website, there has been an increase in the 

number of complaints and a reduction in the meeting of service level targets for 

response. 

 

There are also a number of emerging challenges from quarter 4: 

• The outturn of over £1m overspend has largely been due to significant over spends 

in Adults and Communities. Combined with known challenges for 2015-16 savings 

will require additional work to ensure the 2015-16 budget is met. 

• Younger adults in residential and nursing care continued to increase from 306 to 316 

during the quarter, against a 300 target for the year. 

• Waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting was 35.79% against a 40.88% 

target. This refers to the period October – December 2014 and was due to a 

reduction in garden waste combined with a 5% increase in residual (black bin) waste 

compared to the same period last year. 

• Temporary accommodation arrears as percentage of debit were 6.33% against a 

4.60% target; and current arrears as percentage of debit were 3.53% compared to a 

2.83% target.  

• The recent Care Quality Commission review of quality of the support living service 

provided by Your Choice Barnet rated as inadequate. 

 

Delivery performance  

A summary of progress against commissioning priorities is provided in section 1.8, with a 

qualitative view of progress provided by the Council’s Lead Commissioners.  Each Delivery 

Unit also has a set of operational performance indicators – in addition to Corporate Plan 

targets. Across the performance indicators reported in quarter 4, 84.6% are on target. A 

summary of successes and challenges is provided in section 1.8. 

 

The full individual performance reports can be accessed from 

www.barnet.gov.uk/performance with the most recent quarter at 

27



 

www.barnet.gov.uk/currentperformance.  

Contract monitoring 

Detailed assessment of the contracts and Inter Authority Agreements monitored through 

the quarterly monitoring report (Re, CSG, Barnet Homes, Parking & Infrastructure and HB 

Public Law) are outlined in paragraph 1.8 (Delivery Performance) with an overview for each 

contract (including Your Choice Barnet) at Appendix A section 2.5. The full individual 

performance reports can be accessed from www.barnet.gov.uk/performance with the most 

recent quarter at www.barnet.gov.uk/currentperformance.  

 

Customer experience 

In quarter 4, the council achieved 77% satisfaction averaged across all channels and the 

three contact centres.  

 

The new council website was launched on 1 March 2015 – this included the introduction of 

the ‘My Account’ facility for secure transactions. 

 

Performance in resolving complaints within the complaints policy timescales has improved 

to 79%, now just 1% off the corporate target. However, there have been an increasing 

number of Member’s Enquiries; in quarter 4 2013/14, 825 members enquiries were 

received compared to 987 in quarter 4 2014/15. 

 

Programmes 

Brent Cross Cricklewood (BXC) has moved from an amber to green rating, as good 

progress has been made. In particular the BXC South procurement process has 

completed, with the selection of Argent Related as the preferred bidder. Commercial 

documentation for the North has now exchanged and the Government has earmarked 

funding to the amount of £97 million for Thameslink. Granville Road has deteriorated to a 

red rating as the planning permission has been refused.  The Depot relocation project is 

rated as amber owing to the continued tight timescales for delivery. The Education and 

Skills project is rated as amber rated, Competitive Dialogue has been delayed by a month 

and will commence in May, though the project should deliver to agreed timescales.   

 

For the Capital programme two thirds of the projects are green rated. London Academy is 

subject to a detailed review by the Council and the school in order to agree design and 

delivery plan for the next phase, including signature of development agreement.  A number 

of projects have progressed positively, such as practical completion at Copthall. There are 

some time pressures on 2015/16 school construction projects with temporary 

accommodation anticipated at London Academy and Monkfrith.  

 

Budget outturn 

The outturn general fund expenditure (after reserve movements) is £287.491m, which is an 

over spend of £1.079m (0.4%) against the revised budget of £286.412m. The final outturn 

for 2013/14 was an under spend variance of £0.120m. 

 

 

28



 

Investment Performance 

As at 31 March 20154, deposits outstanding were £218.700 million, achieving an average 

annual rate of return of 0.64 per cent against a benchmark average (London Interbank Bid 

Rate - LIBID) of 0.44 per cent.  

 

Capita Payments 

Appendix I outlines the latest payment to Capita, covering the period 1 January to 31 

March 2015. Previous payments were reported to this committee on the 11 February 2015. 

 

This report also provides a summary of benchmarking (section 1.9) and risk (Appendix H). 

 

Recommendations  
1. The Committee is asked to agree the following referrals to other committees: 

 

COMMITTEE REFERRAL 

Policy and Resources To request, as part of the Finance and 

Business Planning report to the July 

meeting, a detailed assessment of the 2015-

16 savings  

Adults and Safeguarding None 

Assets, Regeneration and Growth None 

Children, Education, Libraries and 

Safeguarding 

None 

Community Leadership None 

Environment None 

Housing To note the ongoing pressures in relation to 

housing for relevant service reviews and 

commissions 

General Functions Committee None 

 

The Committee are asked to note that detailed reports on performance challenges outlined 

in this report have already been discussed at relevant committees, specifically: 

• Funded 2 year old places was reported to the Children, Education, Libraries and 

Safeguarding Committee on the 20 April 2015. 

• Your Choice Barnet was discussed at the Adults and Safeguarding Committee on 

the 19 March and 23 April 2015. 

 

2. The Committee is asked to note the quarter 4 2014/15 revenue budget and 

capital position contained in paragraphs 1.11 and 1.15. 

3. The Committee is asked to note the Agency Costs for the quarter 4 2014/15 as 

detailed in paragraph 1.16. 

29



 

4. The Committee is asked to note the Transformation Programme position as at 

the 31 March 2015 as detailed in paragraph 1.17. 

5. The Committee is asked to note the Treasury position outlined in paragraph 

1.19. 

6. The Committee is asked to note the £22.219m capital slippage of the outturn 

for 2014/15, as outlined in Appendix C. 

7. The Committee is asked to note the Capita Payments outlined in Appendix I. 

 

WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  

1.1 This report outlines the quarterly position of the Council’s performance against 

the priorities outlined in the Corporate Plan, the delivery performance of major 

contracts, performance of internal Delivery Units and the budget position. 

 

1.2 The performance of Delivery Units is measured across a number of areas: 

• The Corporate Plan’s measures of success, measured as Corporate 

Plan Indicators – successes and challenges are highlighted in section 

1.4. 

• Commissioning Priorities, the success of activities specified for internal 

Delivery Units to deliver the commissioned priorities – these are 

outlined in section 1.7. 

• Delivery performance indicators which measure the success of the 

delivery of key services – successes and challenges are outlined in 

section 1.8. 

 

1.3 The past three years of performance information is available at: 

www.barnet.gov.uk/performance with the most up-to-date version available 

from www.barnet.gov.uk/currentperformance  

 

1.4 Corporate Plan successes and challenges 

The following is an overview of the successes and challenges across the 

Corporate Plan 2013/16:  

• Promote responsible growth, development and success across the 

borough. 

• Support families and individuals that need it- promoting independence, 

learning and well-being. 

• Improve the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London 

Borough of Barnet as a place to live, work and study. 

 

1.4.1  Successes  

There are a number of successes across Barnet for quarter 4 2014/15, these 

have been highlighted as: 

30



 

• An increase in carers receiving support services, including information 

and advice from 33.9% to 39.2%. 

• The number of households in emergency accommodation continued to 

decrease from 461 to 455 exceeding the 2014/15 target of 500.The 

average length of time in Emergency Temporary Accommodation has 

further increased to 53.3 weeks, from 50.2 in quarter 3. 

• The number of private sector lettings achieved for 2014/15 was 392 

against a target of 315 for year end. 

• Delivery of affordable housing completions has exceeded the 2014/15 

target of 308. A total of 389 affordable houses were delivered 

compared to 344 in 2013/14. 

• Re brought 130 empty properties back into residential use, 30% more 

than targeted for the year. 

• There has been continued good performance in the proportion of 16 to 

18 year olds not in education, employment or training remaining low at 

2.6% compared to 4.4% in our peers. 

• There has been a further reduction in the number of first time entrants 

to the Youth Justice System aged 10 to 17 between October 2013 and 

September 2014 from 337 to 282. 

• A high number of parking transactions were processed in quarter 4 

2014/15 - 515,550 transactions for on-street parking bays and 124,796 

transactions for car parks in Town Centres were completed. 

• The early intervention work of the Council’s troubled families 

programme has been recognised as among the best in London. 

• Barnet Homes’ multi-agency Welfare Reform Taskforce has helped 183 

residents back into work in 2014/15 and prevented homelessness for 

170 households and was the 4th best performer in London in moving 

clients off the benefit cap. In March 2015, the team also became the 

provider for personal budgeting and digital inclusion support for 

Universal Credit claimants from local job centres. 

 

1.4.2  Challenges 

There are a number of new and ongoing challenges in quarter 4 requiring the 

implementation of improvement actions: 

• The development of an alternative depot is progressing with two sites 

under consideration. Timescales remain tight and work is ongoing to 

submit planning applications in the summer 2016. 

• The level of customer experience delivered by the council has not been 

to the level expected. More details can be found in Section 1.8. 

• Significant over spends in Adults and Communities combined with 

known issues with achieving savings for 2015-16 require additional 

work to ensure the 2015-16 budget is met. 

• Agency levels have further increased to 579 people, a 6% increase 

from quarter 3. Spend on agency workers is mitigated through the 

31



 

underspend on the staffing budgets. Work is ongoing to manage and 

plan appropriate agency usage during the large scale transformation of 

the council. The sickness absence levels over the past 12 months 

average 8.1 days per full-time equivalent, higher than the Council 

target of 6 days. This represents a key challenge in service areas 

where absence is high – Street Scene, Education and Skills and Adults 

and Communities in particular. Sickness absence will be closely 

monitored by senior managers in the worst affected areas to mitigate 

the impact on services.  

• Although there has been a reduction in current and temporary 

accommodation arrears, this area remains a challenge for Barnet 

Homes with issues around Housing Benefit and cash collections 

identified and subject to further investigation.  

• Early Years places available for eligible two year olds missed the 1,284 

target with 781 places made available. Work is ongoing to increase the 

demand for places and supply across the borough. A detailed report 

was presented to the Children, Education, Libraries and Safeguarding 

Committee on the 20 April. 

• Your Choice Barnet (YCB), providing Adult Social Care services to the 

council, achieved 55% green ratings of 22 indicators reported. 

Following a review of the Supported Living service by the Care Quality 

Commission (CQC) it was reported to Adults and Safeguarding 

Committee that the Adults and Communities Delivery Unit would 

monitor YCB’s progress against the CQC action plan, announced and 

unannounced visits of all YCB services would take place, and 

additional reviews of service plans will be undertaken.   YCB continue 

to monitor satisfaction; staff turnover is low at 7%. 

 

The following challenges are those that are emerging or have continued to 

decline in quarter 4 2014/15:  

• The number of younger adults in residential and nursing care continued 

to increase from 306 to 316 in quarter 4. 

• Barnet ranked 14 out of 29 boroughs for household waste sent for 

recycling, reuse and composting between October and December 

2014; 35.79% was achieved against a target of 40.88%. 

 

 

1.5 Performance against the Corporate Plan 

Table 1 below provides a breakdown of the RAG rating of the Corporate Plan 

Indicators, expected to report in quarter 4, by each Delivery Unit. 

 

 

 

  

32



 

Table 1: Corporate Plan Indicator by Delivery Unit 

Delivery Unit 

Total no. 

of 

Corporate 

Plan 

indicators 

No. of 

indicators 

expected to 

report in 

Quarter 4 

2014/15 

RAG ratings 

Positive/ 

neutral 

Direction of 

Travel 

Negative 

Direction 

of Travel Green 
Green 

amber 

Red 

amber 
Red 

Adults and 

Communities 
10 10

1
 4 - 1 2 4 3 

Children’s 

Education and 

Skills 

6 0 - - - - - - 

Family 

Services
2
 

5 5 4 - - 1 4 1 

Commissioning 

Group 
1 0 - - - - - - 

Streetscene                              
3 2 1 - - 1 - 1 

Public Health 
4 2 1 - - 1 - 2 

Barnet Homes 
2 2 2 - - - 2 - 

R
e3
 

5 5 4 1 - - 4 1 

Parking and 

Infrastructure 
2 2 2 - - - 2 - 

Total 38 28 
18 

(72%) 

1 

(4%) 

1 

(4%) 

5 

(20%) 
16 7 

 

Of the Corporate Plan Indicators (CPIs) that are reported in quarter 4, the 

balance of met and missed targets was 72% were rated as green, 4% green 

amber, 4% red amber and 20% of Corporate Plan Indicators were rated as 

red.   

The focus of Barnet during 2013/16 Corporate Plan period is to remain an 

attractive and successful London borough where people want to live, become 

an enterprising place and support people that need it. Against the Corporate 

Plan strategic objectives performances on Barnet’s measures of success are: 

• Promoting responsible growth, development and success across the 

borough at 71% success rate. 

• Support families and individuals that need it- promoting independence, 

learning and well-being met 73% of targets. 

                                                           
1 Further investigation into data of three indicators is underway by Department of Health. 
2
 One indicator is for monitoring purposes and has not been RAG rated.  

3
 Two indicator targets are annual and are reported for monitoring purposes quarterly. 

33



 

• Improve satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London 

Borough of Barnet as a place to live, work and study is currently at 60% of 

success measures being met. 

 

See section 2.4 of Appendix A for full detail. 

 

1.6 Delivery Performance 

The quarterly budget and performance monitoring report has previously 

reported only against Corporate Plan Indicators – the measures of success 

against indicators outlined in the Corporate Plan.  

  

In addition to the Corporate Plan Indicators, Delivery Units each have a set of 

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) to measure the success of the delivery of 

key services and Commissioning Priorities. The overall delivery performance 

for quarter 4 2014/15 for each Delivery Unit is outlined in Table 2 below: 

 

Table 2: Delivery Performance Indicators by Delivery Unit 

Delivery Unit 

 

RAG ratings Direction of Travel* 
No. of 

Indicators 

reported Green 
Green 

amber 

Red 

amber 
Red 

Positive/ 

neutral 

DoT 

Negative 

DoT 

Adults and 

Communities 
2 - - 1 1 2 3 

Children’s 

Education and 

Skills 

3 3 - 3 7 4 11
4
 

Family 

Services 
KPIs reported as part of Commissioning Priority Indicators. 

Streetscene                              
KPIs reported as part of internal contract monitoring and Commissioning Priority 

Indicators. 

Public Health 8 - 1 - 6 3 10
5
 

Barnet Homes 9 - - 3 8 4 12 

R
e

 57 - 1 5 40 16 72 

CSG 23 - 1 2 18 4 26 

HB Public Law 13 - - - 8 5 13 

Parking & 

Infrastructure 
11 - 1 2 9 5 14 

Total  126 

(84.6%) 

3 

(2%) 

4 

(2.7%) 

16 

(10.7%) 
97 43 161 

                                                           
4
 Two indicators did not report against a target. 

5
 One indicator has not been RAG rated as it is an end of year target. Public Health will report end of year 

figures in quarter 1 2015/16. 

34



 

*The Direction of Travel indicates the performance compared to the last time it was reported. Various 

KPIs did not report a direction of travel due to reporting for the first time. 

 

The table above illustrates that of the Delivery Performance Indicators 

expected to report in quarter 4 2014/15 – a large majority of indicators met 

their target (84.6%). 

 

The Council uses an escalation approach which highlights where there are 

performance challenges within Delivery Units, whether an internal or external 

Delivery Unit. This approach ensures that the areas are subject to challenge 

and action planning. This approach is also used to highlight the successes 

across the Council. 

 

There are a number of successes across Barnet Delivery Unit KPIs for quarter 

4 2014/15, these have been highlighted as: 

• Gas servicing completions by Barnet Homes achieved a green this 

quarter with an outturn of 100%. 

• Children’s Homes in Barnet both received a ‘Good’ Ofsted inspection; 

Parkfield Children’s Centre also achieved a ‘Good’ Ofsted rating.  

• Number of healthy eating workshops provided in children centres had a 

large increase from 43 to 82 from October 2014 to December 2014. 

• There was a decrease in the percentage of primary school children 

who were persistently absent of 2.1% against a target of 3%. 

• The parking service responded to 100% of complaints within 

timescales. 

• In Revenues and Benefits, the average speed of processing changes 

significantly improved from 9.23 days to 2.83 days. This is compared to 

a Department of Work and Pensions average of 10 days and a target 

of 6 days. 

 

There were also some challenges experienced across Barnet Delivery Unit 

KPIs for quarter 4 2014/15 which include: 

• As at 1 March 2015, temporary accommodation arrears as percentage 

of debit were 6.33% against a 4.60% target; and current arrears as 

percentage of debit were 3.53% compared to a 2.83% target.  

• In Re, challenges have emerged with the timescales for rectifying 

emergency and category 2 highways defects; less than 90% of defects 

were completed on time against a target of 100%. 

• The number of large employers signed up to the healthy workplace 

charter looks unlikely to meet the annual target. Public Health are 

continuing to engage large employers to follow the Council in signing 

up. 

• The percentage of special educational needs statements completed 

within statutory timescales continued to remain below target with 90%. 

35



 

• There is continuing high demand for school places within Barnet, with 

90.2% of parents offered one of their top three preferences for primary 

schools and 88.4% for secondary school, marginally below target. 

• FOIs responded to within timescales by the Parking Services were 

below target this quarter; 82% were responded to on time against a 

target of 100%. 

• CSG have delivered the majority of a plan to improve absence within 

Council Delivery Units, with final outstanding actions on business 

information and management reporting still to be completed at the end 

of March 2015.   

• In March, disaster recovery testing of the Pensions system led to 

duplicate payments made to members of the Pension scheme, 

corrected and resolved by the service provider.  

 

1.7 Commissioning Priorities 

For 2014/15, Lead Commissioners have defined a set of five commissioning 

priorities for each Delivery Unit. Lead Commissioners and Delivery Units have 

agreed a RAG (Red/ Amber/ Green) rating for each Commissioning Priority. 

Table 3 outlines the RAG rating for the Commissioning Priorities by area: 

 

 

Table 3: Commissioning Priorities by Lead Commissioner 

 

A total of 15 out of 25 Commissioning Priorities were achieved a green rating 

in quarter 4 2014/15. Of the indicators that reported, 60% of the RAG ratings 

Lead Commissioner 

 

RAG ratings Direction of Travel^ 

Green Amber Red 
Positive/ 

neutral DoT 

Negative 

DoT 

Later Life (Adults 

and Communities) 
5 - - 5 - 

Schools, Skills and 

Learning (Children’s 

Education and 

Skills) 

1 4 - 4 1 

Family & 

Community 

Wellbeing (Family 

Services) 

3 2 - 4 1 

Environment 

(Streetscene and 

Parking & 

Infrastructure)                             

1 4 - 4 1 

Public Health 

(Public Health) 
5 - - 5 - 

Total 15 10 - 22 3 

36



 

were green with the remainder (40%) rated as Amber (indicating improvement 

required).  

 

Later Life (Adults and Communities) 

At the end of 2014/15, all commissioning priorities in Adults and Communities 

are rated green. Implementation of Care Act and ensuring the relevant 

boards co-ordinate to address violence against women and girls 

remained green. Delivery of health and social care integration; a sufficient 

and quality social care delivery workforce and the new adult social care 

vision all improved from amber to green. The Better Care Fund plan was 

given final approval by NHS England in February and elements of the 

integrated care model are now in operation. A training programme for all staff 

carrying out assessments relating to the Care Act has been rolled out; a 

recruitment drive has been deployed to meet the planned Care Act demand. 

The vision of adult social care has progressed with staged implementation of 

the new ‘front door’ model which will help the service effectively manage 

demand and first point of contact; the offer of enablement services has been 

enhanced; and the development of new models for 0-25 disabilities and 

mental health services continues along with the review of s75 agreement for 

learning disabilities. 

 

Schools, Skills and Learning (Children’s Education and Skills) 

One commissioning priority is rated green relating to the increasing diversity 

of schools through more free schools and expansion of academies. The 

remaining four are rated amber with the preparation of Special Educational 

Needs (SEN) for the changes within the Children and Families Act 

deteriorating from a green to amber over the quarter; this is due to staff 

adapting to the new system resulting in poor processing rates of statements. 

Local Authority monitoring and challenge of all schools remains amber 

until the percentage of good or outstanding schools meets the agreed target; 

the low attainment of looked after children between Key Stage 2 and 4 is the 

main contributor to the amber rating of challenging schools to raise 

attainment of vulnerable pupils; the development of an alternative deliver 

model remains amber as a result of delayed timescales. 

 

Family & Community Wellbeing (Family Services) 

Three out of five commissioning priorities were rated green; the 

transformation programme for social care, placements and permanence 

is green as a result of the completion of the social care restructure; 

implementation of early years continue with a new structure on-schedule to 

go live in April; and the new family support services successfully launch on 

April 1st and a steering group is in place to lead the implementation of the 

vision for early intervention services. Ensuring there is a sufficient budget to 

deliver a safe and quality service post the achievement of savings outlined 

in the priority and spending review moved from a green to amber rating as a 

37



 

result of a model not yet being started. Progress against ensuring the service 

is ‘inspection ready’ remained amber with preparations for a social care 

inspection continuing. Notably the youth offending inspection resulted in the 

youth offending team being rated amongst the best performing in London. 

 

Environment (Street Scene and Parking & Infrastructure) 

One out of five commissioning priorities were rated green at the end of 

2014/15; sustain borough cleanliness remains green with the project on 

track to go live in April and reviews contributing to borough cleanliness are 

underway. Improving the vision for parks deteriorated from a green to amber 

due to delays in producing the proposal for phase 2 of the strategy; the 

council have been ensuring there is widespread engagement in defining the 

scope for this phase. Resident satisfaction with the parking service and a 

co-ordinated customer facing service remained amber with the benefits of 

the implementation of a new system to effectively manage Traffic 

Management Orders not yet being realised; this is expected to contribute to a 

rise in customer satisfaction as a result of improved visibility of parking 

provision and an improved online experience. Work continues to be underway 

on the Waste Strategy, options for further efficiencies of use of fleet and 

increasing commercial waste income are being explored resulting in an amber 

rating for improving the efficiency of collection and disposal services. 

Enhancing passenger transport is rated amber as work continues to deliver 

changes set out in business case. 

 

Public Health (Public Health) 

All Public  Health commissioning priorities remained green at the end of 

2014/15. Progress against ensuring the service is prepared for assuming 

responsibilities for Health Visiting services was made with Barnet being 1 

out of 12 local authorities out of all 152 receiving a growth in funding allocation 

for Health visiting services. The Fit and Active Barnet (FAB) partnership 

board adopted the Sport and Physical Activity (SPA) strategy statement and 

developed a delivery plan; the FAB reference group will ensure that the new 

leisure contract is public health outcomes focused. Health and Social Care 

integration tier 1 plans were finalised and submitted as part of Better Care 

Fund application; a steering group has been established with membership 

from the CCG. Re-procurement of sexual health (GUM) services and the 

Drug and Alcohol service continues with a review underway of the potential 

for Barnet and Harrow health team to lead sexual health commissioning 

support function. Public Heath continue to provide strategic leadership around 

supporting services across the council that influence wider health 

determinants; Barnet has been selected to be the spearhead borough to 

implement a pilot of integrated mental health and employment which is 

intended to extend support to people with lower level mental health needs. 

  

38



 

The full detail can be found in individual Delivery Unit reports on 

www.barnet.gov.uk/performance with the most recent quarter at 

www.barnet.gov.uk/currentperformance.    

 

1.8 Customer experience 

 

Residents’ perception 

Full survey results are available: http://engage.barnet.gov.uk/consultation-

team/residents-perception-survey-autumn-2014  

Details are available for individual Delivery Units reports at 

www.barnet.gov.uk/currentperformance 

 

To further increase transparency of the Council’s performance; each quarter’s 

results are published on the Council’s data portal https://open.barnet.gov.uk/.  
 

Customer Experience report 

In quarter 4, the council maintained high levels of satisfaction for the three call 

centres and two face to face centres, whereas satisfaction with CSG emails 

and the website – the council’s priority channel - continued to be significantly 

below target. CSG’s email and web form responsiveness remains low, which 

will contribute to their low satisfaction ratings. 

The introduction of a new website and My Account facility on 1 March 2015 is 

expected to boost satisfaction ratings this year, but needs to be a continued 

area of focus. 

The new measure of the percentage of customer cases delivered within SLA 

shows there is a gap between the agreed service delivery timescales and 

those actually achieved, but the visibility of this data for the first time will help 

to drive improvement. 

The volume of stage 1 complaints rose by 17%, driven by increases for CSG, 

Barnet Homes and Street Scene, but performance in resolving complaints 

within the complaints policy timescales also improved to 79%, now just 1 

percentage point from the corporate target. 

Finally, 20% of calls to officer desk phones were unanswered in Q4, and 

needs to be improved, particularly by Re. 

 A full report of customer experience is in Appendix A. 

 

1.9 Benchmarking 

Local authorities review and compare performance with other council’s 

through benchmarking of common performance indicators. The Headline 

Report of the Local Government Associations’ (LGA) public benchmarking tool 

– LG Inform – ranks Barnet across 18 service indicators. Barnet was above 

39



 

benchmark in 83% of service indicator (15 out of 18), See appendix A, section 

4 for full details. 

 

The three service indicators highlighted as below benchmark are: 

• Total revenue expenditure on Housing services (GFRA only) per head 

of population (2013/14). Barnet spent £77.01 per head against and 

England average of £56.42. 

• Social care-related quality of life (2013/14). Barnet scored 18.7 

compared to an England average score of 19.0. 

• Overall satisfaction of service users with their care and support 

(2013/14). Across Barnet’s services users, 61.8% were satisfied with 

care and support, compared to an England average of 64.8%. 

 

1.10 Programmes 

 

During 2014/15 the Council had in place eight programme portfolios: the 

Transformation programme, Capital programme, Regeneration programme, 

four Delivery Unit Transformation programmes to achieve changes required 

within their Management Agreements and agreed savings, Unified Reward 

and the Smarter Working programme which seeks to introduction agile 

working practices and more efficient use of office accommodation.   

 

Within the Transformation programme progress has been made across a 

number of projects. The Depot relocation project is rated as amber. Oakleigh 

Road South, and the Winters site adjacent to the former Abbotts Depot have 

had contracts drawn up ready for exchange following Full Council approval on 

the 14th April 2015.  The Education and Skills project is rated as amber rated, 

Competitive Dialogue has been delayed by a month and will commence in 

May though the project should deliver to agreed timescales.   

For the Capital programme two thirds of the projects are green rated. The 

Northway/Fairway is project is red rated due to issue with Kier still not 

providing a proposed solution for the defective gabion wall. The London 

Academy is subject to detailed review by the Council and school to agree 

design and delivery plan for the next phase, including signature of 

development agreement.  A number of projects have progressed positively, 

such as practical completion has taken place at Copthall. There are some 

time pressures on 2015/16 school construction projects with temporary 

accommodation anticipated at London Academy and Monkfrith. 

Within the Regeneration programme there are 12 open projects of which none 

are red-rated. Brent Cross Cricklewood has moved from an amber to green 

rating, as good progress has been made. In particular the Brent Cross South 

procurement process has completed, with the selection of Argent Related as 

the preferred bidder. Commercial documentation for the North now exchanged 

40



 

and the Government has earmarked funding to the amount of £97 million for 

Thameslink. Granville Road has deteriorated to a red rating as the Planning 

Committee refused planning application on 25th February 2015.  

 

1.11 Final outturn revenue monitoring 

Table 4 below provides a summary of the outturn position as at 31 March 

2015. This analysis compares the outturn to the revised budget position. The 

outturn general fund expenditure (after reserve movements) is £287.491m, 

which is an adverse variance of £1.079m (0.4%) against the revised budget of 

£286.412m.  

A breakdown of revenue monitoring by each delivery unit is set out in 

Appendix B and summarised in the table below. 

Table 4: 2014/15 Outturn revenue analysis – Summary 

 
 

Please see table 5 for the impacts to General Fund Balances  

 

Housing Revenue Account 

 

 
 

Please see table 6 for the impacts to the Housing Revenue Account Balances  

Original 

Budget

Revised 

Budget

 Outturn Variation Variation vs 

Revised 

Budget

£000 £000 £000 £000 %

Adults and Communities 89,669 90,746 93,218 2,472 2.7

Assurance 4,005 4,060 4,186 126 3.1

Children's Education 7,069 7,211 7,211 0 0.0

Children's Family Service 48,342 50,436 50,505 69 0.1

Commissioning Group 6,668 7,760 7,760 0 0.0

Streetscene 15,650 15,357 15,399 42 0.3

Commercial - Infrastructure and Parking (1,657) (878) (1,126) (248) 28.2

Public Health 14,302 14,335 14,335 0 0.0

HB Public Law 1,782 1,952 1,883 (69) (3.6)

Housing Needs Resources 3,338 4,833 5,170 337 7.0

Re 767 1,039 1,257 218 21.0

CSG 22,153 23,341 23,341 0 0.0

Central Expenses 74,323 66,220 64,352 (1,868) (2.8)

Service Total 286,412 286,412 287,491 1,079 0.4

Allocations agreed from GF Balances

GF Balances as at 01/04/14 (15,950)

Forecast GF Balances as at 31/03/15 (14,871)

Description

Variations

41



 

Dedicated Schools Grant 

 
 

Please see table 7 for the impacts to the Dedicated Schools Balances.  

 

Directors are accountable for any budget variations within their services and 

the associated responsibility to ensure costs and income are managed within 

agreed budgets. To ensure this is successfully achieved, it is essential that 

Directors develop action plans and monitor against these throughout the 

financial year for all significant emerging variances, with the aim of ensuring 

that overall expenditure is kept within their total budget available. 

 

Impact on Balances 

 

Table 5: General Fund Balances 

        £’000 

          

General Fund Balances brought 

forward 1 April 2014       (15,950) 

Budgeted Use of Balance        0 

Outturn Variation        1,079 

Forecast General Fund Balances 31 

March 2015       (14,871) 

 

The Council’s overall general fund balance position has improved since 

quarter 3 (where the forecast general fund position was reported as 

£14.378m) to an increase in year-end general fund balances of £1.079m to 

£14.871m. This ensures the Council’s General Fund balances are still in the 

region of the recommended limit of £15m. 

Delivery units have been proactively managing the situation through 

formulating and implementing service recovery plans to mitigate adverse 

variances from the previously reported position. The largest contribution to the 

movement from quarter 3 is the increase in outturn expenditure within Adults 

and Communities amounting to £1.615m largely due to additional pressures 

within integrated care. This is netted off against reduced outturn expenditure 

within Commercial – Parking and Infrastructure amounting to £1.130m, largely 

relating to the reduction in bad debt provision charge for the year within the 

Special Parking account and Housing Needs Resources amounting to 

£0.712m due to additional central support to mitigate against increasing 

Temporary Accommodation pressures. Additional details of variances are 

discussed in paragraph 1.11.1 below.  

Original 

Budget

Revised 

Budget

Outturn Variation Variation vs 

Revised 

Budget

£000 £000 £000 £000 %

Dedicated Schools Grant 0 0 (3,511) (3,511) (100.0)

Variations

Description

42



 

 Table 6: Housing Revenue Account Balances 

          £’000 

            

Housing Revenue Account Balances brought 

forward 1 April 2014 
    (14,831) 

In-year surplus          (0.117) 

Forecast Housing Revenue Account 

Balances 31 March 2015 
      (14,948) 

 

 

The in-year Housing Revenue Account (HRA) reserve is increased by 

£0.117m to £14.948m, which will be factored into the 30-year business plan. 

 

 

Table 7: Dedicated Schools Grant Balances 

        £’000 

          

DSG Balances brought forward 1 

April 2014       (3,678) 

Budgeted Use of Balance        2,333 

Outturn Variation        (3,511) 

Forecast DSG Balances 31 March 

2015       (4,856) 

 

There is an under spend on the balanced in year Dedicated Schools Grant 

amounting to £3.511m before transfers to reserves against the  budget which 

was set for the year. 

 

The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) balance at year end is £4.856m. 

 

1.11.1 Commentary for Budget Variances 

 

Adults and Communities 

 

The over spend for Adults and Communities of £2.472m represents 2.7% of 

the delivery unit budget (£90.746m). The key drivers for this variance are as 

follows; 

There are under spends within Community Safety amounting to £0.288m due 

vacancies during the year within the newly implemented contract for the 

provision of CCTV and within Community Well-Being amounting to £0.348m 

as a result of one-off additional funding received for Care Act implementation 

within the year. 

43



 

There is also an under spend within Prevention and Well-Being amounting to 

£1.296m as a consequence of the early achievement of savings on Housing 

related support contracts over and above the MTFS target for 2014/15 (this is 

being used to partially offset MTFS savings pressures within Social Care); and 

additional Public Health funding secured in relation to the provision of Leisure 

Services.  

The under spends are off-set by over spends within Integrated Care – 

Learning Disability and Mental Health amounting to £1.866m. This is primarily 

due to additional pressures resulting from new Ordinary Residence clients and 

an increase in service users with Learning Disabilities compared to the prior 

year. This is largely in relation to transition clients where, over the last four 

years, there have been pressures on the service due to clients transitioning 

over from Children’s services. Adults and Communities do not receive any 

additional demographic growth for the pressure caused by the increase in 

transition clients.  There is also additional pressure due to an increase in MH 

Residential Placements. 

Finally, a £2.550m over spend is reported within Integrated Care – Older 

People and Disabled People. This is due to clients who were self-funders 

whose funds have depleted and are now the responsibility of the Council. The 

number of self-funders who come forward is difficult to predict but the Council 

has a legal duty to support clients unmet eligible needs. EMI Nursing and 

Residential are both areas of pressures within this service, where client 

numbers are increasing reflecting Barnet's increasing older population. The 

£0.800m demographic growth received by Adults and Communities was not 

sufficient to meet these additional demands on the service. 

 

Assurance 

The over spend for Assurance of £0.126m represents 3.1% of the delivery unit 

budget (£4.060m). The over spends largely relates to Assurance Management 

amounting to £0.105m due to unbudgeted charges owing to the departure of 

the Assurance Director within the year and the consequential interim support 

arrangement costs. 

 

  

Children’s Education and Skills 

 

 The Children’s Education and Skills outturn is as per the delivery unit budget 

(£7.211m).  

  

 

  

 

44



 

 Children’s Family Services 

   

 The over spend for Children’s Family Services of £0.069m represents 0.1% of 

the delivery unit budget (£50.463m). 

 

The outturn over spend to budget is the net impact of variances across the 

service. Within the management team there is a £0.575m under spend which 

is largely due to budgets including centrally held inflation monies. 

 There is an over spend of £0.567m within Assessment and Children in Need, 

largely due to over spends within direct payments and respite services and 

agency staff cover for permanent posts, off-set by under spends in short 

breaks resulting in a net over spend position. Within Children’s in Care and 

Provider services there is also an over spend of £0.786m in relation to agency 

cover for permanent posts and also in the Looked After Children's budgets.  

.  

Further, there are under spends within Commissioning and Business 

Improvement service amounting to £0.809m arising from staff vacancies and 

a substitution of funding source and the use of reserves to bring overall 

budgets back in line as per service recovery plans. Within Youth and 

Community services due to further staffing vacancies and sponsorship of 

training courses and further substitution of funding there is an under spend 

amounting to £0.380m.  

Finally, there are over spends within Early Years amounting to £0.342m due 

to pressures on Children Centres spend and over spends within Safe 

Guarding and Quality Assurance amounting to £0.155m due to the use of 

agency cover for permanent posts.  

  

 Commissioning Group 

 

 The Commissioning Group outturn is as per delivery unit budget (£7.760m). 

   

  

 Streetscene 

  

 The over spend for Streetscene of £0.042m represents 0.3% of the delivery 

unit budget (£15.357m).  

 

 Savings have materialised within Transport totalling £0.127m due to a 

reduction in the usage of fuel, materials and general transport usage due to 

service efficiencies. Low fuel inflation also contributed to the saving. 

 

Within the Waste service there are savings of £0.170m due to Trade waste 

income exceeding the budget set due to new business being generated. 

45



 

There is also a small staffing saving realised within domestic refuse 

collections. 

  

 The Mortuary service over spent by £0.117m due to a number of 

transformation costs being incurred ahead of the shared service with LB Brent 

commencing in 2015/16. There were also additional repairs and maintenance 

costs incurred related to keeping the mortuary fit for public use. 

 

 There is also an over spend of £0.103m on Business Improvement due to the 

employment of a consultant and data analyst to contribute to the delivery of 

the street scene efficiencies and service improvements. 

 

 Finally, there is a £0.086m over spend within the Recycling Service due to a 

shortfall in the £1.100m co-mingled recycling income from NLWA which has 

occurred due to reduced prices per tonne (In particular, a 9% price adjustment 

per tonne of waste - £25.00 to £23.71 per tonne). This is managed by the 

North London Waste Authority on behalf of the Council and maximises 

economies of scale for participating authorities. Due to market pressures, this 

income pressure is expected to continue into 2015/16. This has been off-set 

by partly reduced expenditure on supplies and services at the civic amenities 

site.  

 

 

 Commercial – Parking and Infrastructure 

 

The under spend for Commercial – Parking and Infrastructure of £0.248m 

represents 28.2% of the services budget (income of £0.878m).  

Largely due to increased PCN income and a review of the bad debt provision 

charge for the year, the Special Parking Account (SPA) contribution to the 

general fund is now anticipated to be as per budget (£7.311m).   

The under spend within Commercial – Parking and Infrastructure is largely 

due to an under spend of £0.125m within Highways Inspection and 

Maintenance due to staff savings and reduced equipment purchasing within 

the Highways DLO which have aided off-setting a shortfall in sign shop 

income and an under spend of £0.109m within Parking due to increased 

income from increases in the usage of car parks across the borough. 

 

 Public Health 

 

Public Health outturn is as per delivery unit budget (£14.335m).Of the 

£14.335m Public Health budget, £14.044m was spent; with the remaining 

under spend of £0.291m being transferred to the Public Health Reserve to 

meet future commissioning priorities. 

46



 

 

  

 HB Public Law 

 The under spend for Legal Services of £0.069m represents 3.6% of the 

delivery unit budget (£1.952m). As with any income target, this amount is 

based on a number of assumptions and therefore total accuracy cannot be 

predicted. 

 

 

 Housing Needs Resources 

 The over spends for the Housing Needs Resources of £0.337m represents 

7.0% of the delivery unit budget (£4.833m). The variance is due to a 

combination of increasing temporary accommodation demand and private 

rental sector prices leading to a budget pressure. This is despite of a number 

of mitigations implemented by Barnet Homes in 2014/15. Further, there is also 

a shortfall in the budgeted rental income for regeneration buy back properties 

which has increased the over spend. 

 

 Re 

The over spend for Re of £0.218m represents 21.0% of the delivery unit 

budget (£1.039m). The over spend is largely due to a higher than budgeted 

number of TUPE officers being funded from Re's management fee, partly 

addressed by mitigations identified by Re as part of recovery plans. 

 

Customer Support Group (CSG) 

Customer Support Group outturn is as per delivery unit budget (£23.341m). 

 

 

Central Expenses 

 

The under spends for Central Expenses of £1.868m represents 2.8% of the 

budget (£66.620m). The under spend is predominantly relating to less than 

anticipated early retirement costs.   

 

 

  

47



 

1.12 Savings 

 

Table 8: Savings 

 
 

There have been £0.718m of the savings for 2014/15 which have not been 

achieved in the year. The breakdown of savings is outlined in table 9 above.   

 

 

1.13 Provisions 

 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a 

legal or constructive obligation that required settlement by a transfer of 

economic benefits or service potential and a reliable estimate can be made of 

the account of the obligation. For instance, the Council may be involved in a 

court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the 

payment of compensation. 

 

As at the 31 March 2014 the Council held provisions of £10.515m. The level of 

provisions as at the end of the 2014/15 financial year is £10.805m. 

 

Table 9: Provisions 

 
 

2014/15 

MTFS 

savings 

allocation

Acheiveable 

savings

Non-

achievable 

savings

Achieved 

savings

Identified 

savings 

against 

allocation

(£000s) (£000s) (£000s) (£000s) %

Adults and Communities 8,377 7,877 500 7,877 94%

Assurance 40 40 0 40 100%

HNR 55 55 0 55 100%

Commissioning Group 800 800 0 800 100%

CSG 2,393 2,393 0 2,393 100%

Education and Skills 561 561 0 561 100%

Family Services 3,879 3,879 0 3,879 100%

HB Public Law 150 150 0 150 100%

Re 1,355 1,137 218 1,137 84%

Street Scene 1,005 1,005 0 1,005 100%

Commercial (Street Scene) 395 395 0 395 100%

Total 19,010 18,292 718 18,292 96%

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Adults 552 (238) 0 847 1,161

Resources (grant unit) 105 (71) (12) 61 83

Corporate (insurance provisions) 8,850 0 0 0 8,850

Regional Enterprise (RE) 160 0 0 0 160

Commercial 256 0 0 0 256

Childrens 152 (152) 0 245 245

Streetscene 67 (67) 0 50 50

Carbon Reduction Commitment 373 (373) 0 0 0

Total 10,515 (901) (12) 1,203 10,805

Provsions 

carried 

forward 31 

March 2015

Description

Provsions 

brought 

forward 01 

April 2014

2014/15 in-

year 

expenditure

Written back in 

year

New provision 

raised

48



 

 

1.14 Reserves 

 The Council has set aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy 

purposes or to cover contingencies. As at the 31 March 2014 the Council held 

reserves of £91.624m. The outturn level of reserves anticipated to be carried 

forward at 31 March 2015 is £110.274m. 

 

 Table 10: Reserves 

 
 

The largest reserve the Council has is the infrastructure reserve, where 

income is received from new homes bonuses. 

 

 

1.15 2014/15 Outturn Capital Monitoring 

 

The outturn expenditure during 2014/15 on the Council’s capital programme is 

£78.057m, £52.485m of this relates to the general fund programme and 

£25.572m for the HRA capital programme. This is a variance of £24.466m 

against the latest approved budget of £102.522m. The table below 

summarises the expenditure by each service. 

 

  

£000 £000 £000 £000

Central - Capital 81 (1,300) 1,811 592

Central - Financing 2,592 0 0 2,592

Central - Community Infrastructure Levy 992 0 4,323 5,316

Central - Infrastructure 21,572 0 8,417 29,989

Central - Risk 15,500 (6,885) 0 8,615

Central - Service Development 9,577 (15,578) 9,945 3,944

Central - Transformation 11,293 (7,213) 11,000 15,079

Service - Other 12,237 (8,439) 18,490 22,288

Sub total general fund 

earmarked reserves

73,843 (39,415) 53,986 88,415

Service - DSG 3,678 (2,083) 3,124 4,718

Service - Housing Benefit 5,773 0 827 6,600

Service - NLSR 1,228 (450) 16 794

Service - PFI 3,117 0 598 3,715

Service - Street Lighting 1,149 (1,036) 0 113

Service - Section 256 - NHS 

Social Care Funding

1,596 (1,596) 0 0

Service - Public Health 831 0 378 1,209

Special Parking Account (SPA) 409 0 1,527 1,936

Sub total ring fenced reserves 17,782 (5,165) 6,470 19,087

Total all earmarked reserves 91,625 (44,580) 60,456 107,501

Description
Reserves brought 

forward 01 April 2014

Outturn 

Drawdown

New reserves 

raised in-year

Reserves carried 

forward 31 March 

2015

49



 

Table 11: 2014/15 Capital Programme Outturn Position 

 
 

The capital monitoring summary and scheme details by service directorate is 

set out in Appendix C. 

 

Table 13 below analyses the 2014/15 capital programme for the financial 

year. A detailed analysis of changes including additions, deletions and budget 

movements is provided in appendix D.  

 

Table 12: 2014/15 Capital Funding Outturn Changes  

 
 

 

1.15.1  There is a 23.9% reduction in the capital programme at the end of the year, 

with the outturn expenditure being reported at £78.057m against the latest 

budget of £112.522m resulting in a variance for the year amounting to 

£24.466m largely relating to slippage (20.207m).  

 

2014/15 Latest 

Approved Budget
Outturn

Variance from 

Revised Budget

% Variance of 

2014/15 

Approved 

Budget

£000 £000 £000 %

Adults and Communities 2,570                    956              (1,614) (62.8)

Children’s Family Services 1,925                    1,240 (685) (35.6)

Children’s Education and Skills 34,501                   31,183 (3,319) (9.6)

Commissioning Group 2,210                    1,308 (902) (40.8)

Parking 90                         0 (90) (100.0)

Street Scene 3,083                    2,525 (558) (18.1)

Re delivery unit 30,169                   15,272 (14,896) (49.4)

The Barnet Group 155                       1 (154) (99.2)

General Fund Programme 74,704                 52,485 (22,219) (29.7)

HRA 27,819                   25,572 (2,247) (8.1)

Total Capital Programme 102,522               78,057 (24,466) (23.9)

Description

Grants
Contribut

ion

Leaseholder 

Contribution
S106

Capital 

Receipts
MRR RCCO

Capital 

Reserve
Borrowing Total

Adults and 

Communities
350 0 0 0 0 0 0 606 0 956

Children’s family 

services
546 0 0 45 133 0 259 258 0 1,240

Children’s 

education
18,791 143 0 4,594 458 0 3,918 0 3,279 31,183

Commissioning 

Group
0 0 0 0 1,011 0 0 0 297 1,308

Street Scene 479 0 0 270 211 0 323 869 372 2,525

DRS delivery 

unit
7,067 0 0 227 697 0 282 2,431 4,568 15,272

CSG delivery 

unit
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

The Barnet 

Group
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1

Non-HRA Total 27,233 143 0 5,136 2,510 0 4,782 4,166 8,516 52,485

Housing (HRA) 0 0 3,406 0 1,017 21,149 0 0 0 25,572

Grand Total 27,233 143 3,406 5,136 3,527 21,149 4,782 4,166 8,516 78,057

Service

Financing Source

50



 

 The predominant variances for 2014/15 are as follows: 

 

• The total Adults and Community Services programme has under spent by 

£1.614m. This is largely due to a slippage of £1.187m within Investing in 

IT. The predicted budget costs were based on estimates, project costs 

have now been re-profiled to arise in 2015/16 as a result of some delays to 

delivery. Other contributions to the slippage include £0.241m relating to 

Centre for Independent Living due to legalities delaying site access, where 

building costs will now be incurred in 2015/16 and a £0.208m sum now ear 

marked to fund the costs of the Automatic Number Plate Recognition 

(ANPR) within CCTV Installation for cameras as agreed as part of Barnet’s 

CCTV upgrade. Surveys and relevant technical inspections for the 

installation of ANPR have been conducted in 2014/15 and following a 

variation of the existing contract with OCS (the providers) these funds will 

be used to fund the installations and hardware. 

 

• The total Children’s Education and Skills programme has under spent by 

£3.319m. This is composed of slippage on the Permanent Secondary 

Expansion Programme of (0.957m) largely due to Slippage for project 

contingencies pending retentions and closure reports for Christ Hall, 

Compton and Copthall Schools totalling £0.572m and a slippage of 

£0.256m within Oak Lodge Special School due to delays in planning. 

There is a slippage of £0.898m within the Modernisation of Secondary 

Schools Programme due to slippage to retentions still due on various 

projects and SPIR charges yet to be finalised. There is also slippage of 

£0.405m on the Wave 1 projects relating to Whitings Hill and 

Northway/Fairway due to pending closure reports and slippage to cover 

costs dependent on legal advice. Finally, there are slippages on the 

Primary Capital Programme Scheme of £0.508m due to project 

contingencies for defects and within the Infant Free Schools Meals Capital 

Fund of £0.241m due to timing of works. 

  

• The Re delivery unit programme has under spent by £14.896m. This is 

largely due to slippages of £13.042m relating to General Fund 

Regeneration. £7.969m of slippage relates to the BXC Funding for Land 

Acquisition where land purchases have been delayed until 2015-16 and 

£5.000m relates to accounting re-classification associated with the 

Graham Park Regeneration.            

1.15.2 The ‘variance from revised budget’ column in the report is a net figure based 

on slippage (budget required for future financial years), accelerated spend 

(budget required from future years) and under spends.  As an example, a 

budget may be set for a school build but construction may not start until half 

way through the year and is due to continue into future financial years.  As 

construction accounts for the majority of the budget, it needs to be re-profiled 

51



 

(slipped) into the financial year it is required for.  Slippage does not indicate 

an over spend, just a movement of budget into future financial years. 

 

 

1.16 Agency Costs 

 

 The table below details agency staff costs incurred during 2014/15 financial 

year in comparison to 2013/14 financial year. This identifies that agency 

expenditure has reduced by £1.399m from last year.  

 

 The current level of agency usage is consistent with the Council’s strategic 

approach to ensure business critical functions continue to operate and 

perform while going through significant change. This strategic approach 

reflects the Council’s desire to reduce redundancies from the workforce. 

 

Table 14: Agency Costs for 2014/15 

  

 

1.17 Transformation Programme 

 Policy and Resources Committee (2 December 2014) agreed a drawdown of 

£16.1 to support projects and programme to achieve base budget savings of 

£45m, supporting delivering of the Council’s Medium Term Financial 

Strategy.   

During 2014/15, a number of programmes and projects were underway to 

effect service changes, improvements and enable savings.  As at the end of 

2014/15, the variance of project expenditure against budget was £1.633m.    

 

  

2013/14 2014/15

Agency 

Spend

Agency 

Spend

£000 £000

Adults and Communities 4,141 4,587

Assurance 41 128

Barnet Group 0 0

Children's Education 1,445 1,484

Children's Families Service 2,802 3,921

Commercial 0 0

Commissioning Group ** 3,390 3,330

CSG 2,851 11

HRA 226 88

Parking & Infrastructure 0 4

Public Health 0 0

Re 870 0

Schools Direct Management 0 0

Street Scene 1,766 2,579

Total 17,531 16,132

Directorate

52



 

1.18 Write-off’s and Debt Information  

As part of the quarterly monitoring process the Council will now report on all 

scheduled write-offs in excess of £5,000 

 

 Sundry Debt write-offs 

The value of a write off is determined at a debt value as per the Council’s 

financial regulations. Debts under £5,000 are approved by the Director of 

Finance. 

 

Actions taken to recover debt is as per the Council’s Income & Debt 

Management Policy. If an invoice is raised and remains unpaid, “dunning” 

process comes into play as follows:- 

• Level 1 - a reminder is sent after 21 days 

• Level 2 - a final notice is sent after 35 days i.e. a further 14 days 

 

The Income Team will review all Level 2 cases remaining outstanding greater 

than 49 days (allowing a further 14 days to pay after the Final Notice) to 

decide whether the debt recovery should proceed.  

Depending on the type of debt, customer and circumstances consideration of 

the use of debt collectors or issuing proceedings in the County Court is 

considered. Every case is treated individually, hence the circumstances of 

each debt is assessed prior to taking a decision on the recovery of the debt in 

conjunction with the delivery unit. 

Table 15 below analyses the scheduled Sundry debt write-off’s where the 

individual debt level is in excess of £5,000, the aggregate of these write-offs is 

anticipated to total £0.166m. This is as reported in quarter two, no scheduled 

write-offs have been processed since for the year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

53



 

Table 15 – Write-off’s in excess of £5,000  

 
 

  

Customer Name Transacti

on date

Sales 

Office

Description Amount Comments

ROYAL BRITISH LEGION 

NORTH

25-Mar-

2010

COMM Commerci

al Rents

26,250.00 Not gone to Legal. Property Services have 

advised the company is dissolved and do not 

want us to pursue.

Redacted 19-Nov-

2007

ADUL Appointees

hip

31,372.66 Not gone to Legal. Barnet Council is the 

appointee now and the debt relates to suspected 

financial abuse.

Redacted 22-Sep-

2008

ADUL Resident-

DWP 

Payts

6,759.21 Not gone to Legal. Barnet Council became 

appointee prior to death and the debt relates to 

mis-management of finances.

Redacted 24-Apr-

2006

ENVS Works in 

Default

281.38 County Court judgement obtained and referred to 

High Court Sheriffs, but unable to enforce the 

debt.

Redacted 07-Jan-

2008

ENVS Works in 

Default

13,161.38 County Court judgement obtained and referred to 

High Court Sheriffs, but unable to enforce the 

debt.

Redacted 05-Jun-

2009

ADUL Residential 

Write Off

1,577.83 Not gone to Legal. Debtor has passed away, can 

not locate a next of kin and probate searches 

have come back negative.

Redacted 23-Jul-

2012

ADUL Residential 

Write Off

4,378.85 Not gone to Legal. Debtor has deceased, can 

not locate a next of kin and probate searches 

have come back negative.

Redacted 30-Aug-

2011

ADUL Residential 

Write Off

5,446.85 Not gone to Legal. Debtor has passed away, can 

not locate a  next of kin & probate searches 

have come back negative

Redacted 09-Jul-

2010

ADUL Appointees

hip

5,549.25 Not gone to Legal. Barnet Council became 

appointee prior to death and the debt relates to 

mis-management of finances.

Redacted 31-Mar-

2009

ADUL Residential 

Write Off

7,264.73 Not gone to Legal. Debtor has passed away, can 

not locate a next of kin and probate searches 

have come back negative.

Redacted 01-Jun-

2009

ADUL Residential 

Write Off

1,328.68 Not gone to Legal. Debtor has passed away, can 

not locate a next of kin and probate searches 

have come back negative.

Redacted 12-Mar-

2012

ADUL Residential 

Write Off

7,124.38 Not gone to Legal. Customer is paying ongoing 

invoices. This relates to initial charge and proof 

has been received that they do not have the 

means to pay.

Redacted 30-Aug-

2011

ADUL Residential 

Unsecured 

Norwel

5,886.84 Not gone to Legal. Debtor has passed away and 

insufficent funds in estate to pursue.

Redacted 12-Nov-

2012

ADUL Residential 

Write Off

721.08 Not gone to Legal. Debtor has passed away, can 

not locate a next of kin and probate searches 

have come back negative.

Redacted 26-Nov-

2010

ADUL Residential 

Write Off

6,392.75 Not gone to Legal. Debtor has passed away, can 

not locate a next of kin & probate searches have 

come back negative.

Redacted 28-Aug-

2012

ADUL Residential 

Write Off

7,138.01 Not gone to Legal. Debtor has passed away and 

insufficent funds in estate to pursue.

Redacted 28-Aug-

2012

ADUL Residential 

Write Off

16,054.73 Not gone to Legal. Debtor has passed away, can 

not locate a next of kin and probate searches 

have come back negative.

Redacted 18-Dec-

2013

ADUL FC Actuals 

Billing

7,045.00 Not gone to Legal. Debtor has passed away and 

insufficent funds in estate to pursue.

Redacted 02-Jan-

2012

ADUL Residential 

Unsecure

5,362.33 Not gone to Legal. Debtor has passed away and 

insufficent funds in estate to pursue.

Redacted 14-Oct-

2013

ADUL Residential 

Unsecured 

Norwel

6,552.12 Not gone to Legal. Debtor has passed away and 

insufficent funds in estate to pursue.

Total 165,648.06

54



 

Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates 

 

As reported in Quarter 2, Irrecoverable council tax debts of £555,462.43 were 

recommended for write off. The individual debts were all £5,000 or more and 

cover the financial years from 2000/2001 to 2014/2015. 

 

All the debts were in respect of closed accounts. Most were in respect of 

debtors who had absconded, including some who were known to now be 

abroad. Other debts were either individuals subject to bankruptcy, or limited 

companies that had been dissolved, or companies registered abroad. No or 

insufficient monies to clear these debts were yielded (council tax debt does 

not rank as a preferential debt in insolvency proceedings) and no further 

action could be taken. 

 

The breakdown of the value of the Council Tax debts by year was as follows: 

 

  
 

Non-domestic rates totalling £1,150,288.78 were recommended for write off.       

The individual debts were all over £5,000 and cover the financial years 

2005/2006 to 2014/2015. 

 

Attempts to trace absconded debtors included searches of internal systems, 

enquiries made with owners, agents and new occupiers of properties, and 

visit reports by the council’s Enforcement agents. Having regard to cost 

effectiveness, the extent of tracing activity would correspond to the amount of 

individual debts, with a greater number of checks being carried out in respect 

of larger debts. The breakdown of the value of the Business Rates debts by 

Financial Year debt raised Value of debt 

2000/2001 £5,126.40

2001/2002 £3,071.60

2002/2003 £3,698.48

2003/2004 £6,126.42

2004/2005 £14,282.41

2005/2006 £22,236.15

2006/2007 £41,957.06

2007/2008 £59,224.91

2008/2009 £97,228.45

2009/2010 £92,073.63

2010/2011 £86,271.49

2011/2012 £81,061.74

2012/2013 £29,947.31

2013/2014 £12,754.43

2014/2015 £401.95

Grand Total £555,462.43

Sum of Write Off Amount Council Tax

55



 

year is as follows: 

 

 

 Housing 

 The aggregate of the scheduled Housing write-off’s where the individual debt 

level was in excess of £5,000 is £0.267m, with £0.245m relating to the 

General Fund and £0.022m relating to the Housing Revenue Account. 

 

1.19 Treasury Outturn 

 

1.19.1 In compliance with the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice this report provides 

Members with a summary report of the treasury management activity during 

the period to 31 March 2015. The Prudential Indicators have not been 

breached and a prudent approach has been taken in relation to investment 

activity with priority being given to security and liquidity over yield. Further 

details of compliance with prudential indicators are contained in Appendix F.  

 

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to set an Affordable 

Borrowing Limit, irrespective of its indebted status. This is a limit which should 

not be breached.  During the period to 30 September 2014 there were no 

breaches of the Authorised Limit and the Operational Boundary. 

 

The Council’s timeframes and credit criteria for placing cash deposits and the 

parameters for undertaking any further borrowing are set out in the Treasury 

Management Strategy (TMS). The TMS Strategy 2014/15 was approved by 

Council on 5 March 2014 and revised with minor amendments by the approval 

of the 2015-16 TMS on 3 March 2015. The Treasury Management Strategy 

demands regular compliance reporting to this Committee to include an 

analysis of deposits made during the review period. This also reflects good 

practice and will serve to reassure this Committee that all current deposits for 

investment are in line with agreed principles as contained within the corporate 

Treasury Management Strategy. 

Financial year debt raised Value of debt 

2005/2006 £2,034.38

2006/2007 £2,641.30

2007/2008 £4,325.06

2008/2009 £7,376.21

2009/2010 £17,874.97

2010/2011 £136,081.23

2011/2012 £359,106.22

2012/2013 £294,511.28

2013/2014 £169,010.74

2014/2015 £157,327.39

Grand Total £1,150,288.78

Sum of Write Off Amount Business Rates

56



 

 

This report therefore asks the Committee to note the continued cautious 

approach to the current investment strategy: to note also, that as a result of 

considerable stabilisation and in some cases improvement in credit metrics, 

the revised treasury strategy for 2014/15 has extended the maximum duration 

to 10 years with further diversification, albeit with maximum recommended 

duration of deposits for different banks depending on risk assessment.   

 

 

1.19.2 Investment Performance 

 

Investment deposits are managed internally. As at 31 March 20154, deposits 

outstanding were £218.700 million (excluding Icelandic deposits), achieving 

an average annual rate of return of 0.64 per cent (adjusted for Icelandic 

deposits) against a benchmark average (London Interbank Bid Rate - LIBID) 

of 0.44 per cent. General Fund investment income received for 2014/15 was 

£1.392 million. A list of deposits outstanding as at 31 March 2015 is attached 

as Appendix G. 

 

The benchmark, the average 7-day LIBID rate, is provided by the authority’s 

treasury advisors Arlingclose. The LIBID rate is the rate that a Euromarket 

bank is willing to pay to attract a deposit from another Euromarket bank in 

London. 

 

To date the Council has received £10.97 million from the Glitnir Winding- up 

Board with a further.  On 29 January 2015, Urgency Committee approved the 

sale by single price auction of the Council’s remaining interest in the insolvent 

estate of the Icelandic bank Glitnir hf. However the reserve price was not met 

and the Council continues to hold circa £2.5 million held in an illiquid escrow 

account in Icelandic Krónur, because of the Icelandic Government’s currency 

export restrictions. In March 2015, settlement was also reached through the 

LGA on the repayment of £152k arising from an overpayment of the initial 

Glitnir distribution. The Council had previously approved the sale of the 

Landsbanki claim under executive powers by auction in January 2014.  

 

 

1.19.3 Debt Management 

 

The total value of long term loans as at 31 March was £304.08m.  There has 

been no external borrowing in the financial year to date.  The average total 

cost of borrowing for the quarter ending 31 December 2014 was 3.89 per 

cent. 

 

1.19.1 In compliance with the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice this report provides 

57



 

Members with a summary report of the treasury management activity during 

the period to 31 December 2014. The Prudential Indicators have not been 

breached and a prudent approach has been taken in relation to investment 

activity with priority being given to security and liquidity over yield. Further 

details of compliance with prudential indicators are contained in Appendix F.  

 

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to set an Affordable 

Borrowing Limit, irrespective of its indebted status. This is a limit which should 

not be breached.  During the period to 30 September 2014 there were no 

breaches of the Authorised Limit and the Operational Boundary. 

 

The Council’s timeframes and credit criteria for placing cash deposits and the 

parameters for undertaking any further borrowing are set out in the Treasury 

Management Strategy. The Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15 was 

approved by Council on 5 March 2014 and the revised strategy applied with 

immediate effect. The Treasury Management Strategy demands regular 

compliance reporting to this Committee to include an analysis of deposits 

made during the review period. This also reflects good practice and will serve 

to reassure this Committee that all current deposits for investment are in line 

with agreed principles as contained within the corporate Treasury 

Management Strategy. 

 

This report therefore asks the Committee to note the continued cautious 

approach to the current investment strategy: to note also, that as a result of 

considerable stabilisation and in some cases improvement in credit metrics, 

the revised treasury strategy for 2014/15 has extended the maximum duration 

to 10 years with further diversification, albeit with maximum recommended 

duration of deposits for different banks depending on risk assessments.   

 

1.19.2 Investment Performance 

 

Investment deposits are managed internally. As at 31 December 2014, 

deposits outstanding were £208.100m (excluding Icelandic deposits), 

achieving an average annual rate of return of 0.64 per cent (adjusted for 

Icelandic deposits) against a benchmark average (London Interbank Bid Rate 

- LIBID) of 0.35 per cent. A list of deposits outstanding as at 31 December 

2014 is attached as Appendix G. 

 

The benchmark, the average 7-day LIBID rate, is provided by the authority’s 

treasury advisors Arlingclose. The LIBID rate is the rate that a Euromarket 

bank is willing to pay to attract a deposit from another Euromarket bank in 

London. 

 

There have been no Icelandic bank deposit settlements in the quarter ending 

31 December 2014. To date the Council has received £10.970m from the 

58



 

Glitnir Winding- up Board with a further £2.5 million held in an escrow account 

in Icelandic Krónur, because of the Icelandic currency export restrictions. The 

Council approved the sale of the Landsbanki claim under executive powers on 

20 January 2014 and the claim was sold by auction on 30 January 2014. 

Finally, the Urgency Committee approved on the 29th January 2015 that the 

Council proceed with the auctioning of the escrowed balances it has with 

Glitnir on the 10th February 2015. 

 

 

1.19.3 Debt Management 

 

The total value of long term loans as at 31 December 2014 was £304.08m.  

There has been no external borrowing in the financial year to date.  The 

average total cost of borrowing for the quarter ending 31 December 2014 was 

3.89%. 

 

2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

2.1 These recommendations are to allow the Council to meet the budget agreed 

by Council on 4 March 2014. 

 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 

 

3.1 None. 

 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 

 

4.1 None. 

 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  

 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 

 

5.1.1 This report presents the performance of the Council at meeting the measures 

of success for the Corporate Priorities. This report also includes performance 

indicators of the delivery of services by the Council, such as the performance 

levels of contracts, internal Delivery Units and partners. 

 

5.1.2 The past three years of performance information is available at: 

www.barnet.gov.uk/performance 

 

5.1.3 Robust budget and performance monitoring are essential to ensuring that 

there are adequate and appropriately directed resources to support delivery 

and achievement of Council priorities and targets as set out in the Corporate 

59



 

Plan.  In addition, adherence to the Prudential Framework ensures capital 

expenditure plans remain affordable in the longer term and that capital 

resources are maximised. 

 

5.1.4 Relevant Council strategies and policies include the following: 

• Corporate Plan 2013-16; 

• Medium Term Financial Strategy; 

• Treasury Management Strategy; 

• Debt Management Strategy; 

• Insurance Strategy; 

• Risk Management Strategy; and 

• Capital, Assets and Property Strategy. 

 

5.1.5 The priorities of the Council are aligned to the delivery of the Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy. 

 

 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 

Property, Sustainability) 

 

5.2.1 Robust budget and performance monitoring plays an essential part in enabling 

an organisation to deliver its objectives efficiently and effectively.   

 

 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 

 

5.3.1 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 states that: “without prejudice 

to section 111, every local authority shall make arrangements for the proper 

administration of their financial affairs and shall secure that one of their 

officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs”. Section 111 

of the Local Government Act 1972, relates to the subsidiary powers of local 

authorities. 

 

5.3.2 Section 28 of the Local Government Act 2003 (the Act) imposes a statutory 

duty on a billing or major precepting authority to monitor, during the financial 

year, its income and expenditure against the budget calculations. If the 

monitoring establishes that the budgetary situation has deteriorated, the 

authority must take such action as it considers necessary to deal with the 

situation. Definition as to whether there is deterioration in an authority’s 

financial position is set out in sub-section 28(4) of the Act. 

 

5.3.3 The Council’s Constitution, in Part 15 Annex A, Responsibility for Functions, 

states in Annex A the functions of the Performance and Contract Management 

Committee including: 

a) Overall responsibility for quarterly budget monitoring, including 

60



 

monitoring trading position and financial strategy of Council Delivery 

Units. 

b) Monitoring of Performance against targets by Delivery Units and 

Support Groups including Customer Support Group; Re; the Barnet 

Group (Including Barnet Homes and Your Choice Barnet); HB Public 

Law; NSL; Adults and Communities; Family Services; Education and 

Skills; Streetscene; Public Health; Commissioning Group; and 

Assurance 

c) Receive and Scrutinise contract variations and change requests in 

respect of external delivery units. 

d) To make recommendations to Policy and Resources and Theme 

Committees on relevant policy and commissioning implications arising 

from the scrutiny of performance of Delivery Units and External 

Providers. 

e) Specific responsibility for the following function within the Council: 

a. Risk Management 

b. Treasury Management Performance 

f) Approve the Annual Report of the Barnet Group Ltd. 

 

5.3.4 The Council’s Constitution, Part 21, Financial Regulations section 4. 

paragraphs 4.4.9 - 11 state: 

• Allocations from the central contingency relating to planned 

developments will be approved by the Chief Finance Officer (section 

151 officer), in consultation with the Chairman of the Performance and 

Contract Management Committee, following the receipt from a Chief 

Officer of a fully costed proposal to incur expenditure that is in line with 

planned development (including full year effect).  

Where there is a significant increase in the full year effect, the 

contingency allocation must be approved by the Performance and 

Contract Management Committee.  

 

• Allocations from the central contingency for unplanned expenditure, 

including proposals to utilise underspends previously generated within 

the service and returned to central contingency, will be approved by the 

Chief Finance Officer in consultation with the Chairman of Performance 

and Contract Management.  

Where there are competing bids for use of underspends, additional 

income or windfalls previously returned to central contingency, priority 

will be given to the service(s) that generated that return.  

 

• Allocations for unplanned expenditure over £250,000 must be 

approved by Performance and Contract Management Committee. 

 

5.3.5 The Chief Finance Officer (section 151 officer) will report in detail to 

Performance and Contract Management Committee at least four times a year, 

61



 

at the end of each quarter, on the revenue, capital budgets and wider financial 

standing. 

 

5.3.6 The Council’s Constitution, Part 21, Financial Regulations section 4 paragraph 

4.4.3 states amendments to the revenue budget can only be made with 

approval as per the scheme of virement table below:  

  
 

5.4 Risk Management 

 

5.4.1 Various projects within the Council’s revenue budget and capital programme 

are supported by time-limited grants.  Where there are delays to the 

implementation of these projects, there is the risk that the associated grants 

will be lost.  If this occurs either the projects will be aborted or a decision to 

divert resources from other Council priorities will be required. 

 

5.4.2 The revised forecast level of balances needs to be considered in light of the 

risk identified in 5.4.1 above. 

 

5.5 Equalities and Diversity  

 

5.5.1 The Equality Act 2010 requires organisations exercising public functions to  

62



 

demonstrate that due regard has been paid to equalities in: 

• Elimination of unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 

other conduct prohibited by the Equality Act 2010 

• Advancement of equality of opportunity between people from different 

groups  

• Fostering of good relations between people from different groups  

 

5.5.2 The Equality Act 2010 identifies the following protected characteristics: age; 

disability; gender reassignment; marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 

maternity; race; religion or belief; sex and sexual orientation.  . 

 

5.5.3 In order to assist in meeting the duty the council will:  

• Try to understand the diversity of our customers to improve our services 

• Consider the impact of our decisions on different groups to ensure they 

are fair 

• Mainstream equalities into business and financial planning and integrating 

equalities into everything we do. 

• Learn more about Barnet’s diverse communities by engaging with them 

 

This is also what we expect of our partners. 

 

5.5.4 This is set out in the council’s Equalities Policy together with our strategic 

Equalities Objective- as set out in the Corporate Plan - that citizens will be 

treated equally with understanding and respect; have equal opportunities and 

receive quality services provided to best value principles. 

 

5.5.5 Progress against the performance measures we use is published on our 

website at: 

www.barnet.gov.uk/info/200041/equality_and_diversity/224/equality_and_diversity      

 

5.6 Consultation and Engagement 

 

5.6.1 During the process of formulating budget and Corporate Plan proposals for 

2013/14 onwards, three phases of consultation took place: 

• Phase One (October 2012 – November 2012): Residents’ Perception 

telephone survey. 

• Phase two (November 2012 – January 2013): Corporate Plan 

consultation 

• Phase three (October 2012 – January 2013): Finance and business 

planning (including proposed budget) consultation 

 

5.6.2 The results and impact on the Corporate Plan and budget are outlined in the 

Cabinet Report to Committee on the 5 March 2013 (Item 8). 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=162&MId=6629&Ver=4  

 

63



 

 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

6.1 Performance and Contract Management Committee, 11 June 2014 (Decision 

Item 5) – approved Final Outturn and quarter 4 Monitoring Report 2013/14 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=693&MId=7868&Ver=4  

 

6.2 Council, 4 March 2014 (Decision item 2.1) – approved the Business Planning 

2014/15 – 2015/16 report. 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=162&MId=7516&Ver=4 

 

6.3 Policy and Resources Committee, 21 July 2014 (Decision item 5) – approved 

inflation amounts to budgets (total £3.390m) and the £1.4m set aside 

specifically for pressures in Children’s social care budget, this is to be 

transferred from contingency to Family Services. 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=692&MId=7860&Ver=4  

 

  

  

 

 

64



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
: 
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
: 
Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

1
. 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 

1
.1
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 d
a
s
h
b
o
a
rd
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 U
n
it
 

 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

O
v
e
ra
ll 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

ra
ti
n
g
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 

a
ll 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
is
 

q
u
a
rt
e
r 
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t/
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

O
v
e
ra
ll 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
a
ti
n
g
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
ll 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
r 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

th
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 

P
ro
je
c
te
d
 

re
v
e
n
u
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 £
’0
0
0
 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 

re
v
is
e
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
c
tu
a
l 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

£
’0
0
0
  

C
a
p
it
a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 

b
u
d
g
e
te
d
 a
m
o
u
n
t 

a
s
 a
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
e
n
d
 

A
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
  

1
 (
7
) 

3
 (
6
) 

2
,4
7
2
 

(1
,6
1
4
) 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

1
2
6
 

N
/A
 

C
h
il
d
re

n
’s

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 S

k
il
ls

 
N
/A
 

1
.5
 (
9
) 

- 
(3
,3
1
9
) 

F
a
m

il
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

3
 (
5
) 

N
/A
 

6
9
 

(6
8
5
) 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

- 
(9
0
2
) 

S
tr

e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
 (
2
) 

N
/A
 

4
2
 

(5
5
8
) 

P
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

2
 (
2
) 

8
.5
 (
1
4
) 

(2
4
7
) 

(9
0
) 

P
u
b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt
h
 

0
 (
2
) 

7
 (
8
) 

- 
N
/A
 

B
a
rn

e
t 
G

ro
u
p
 

2
 (
2
) 

6
 (
1
2
) 

3
3
7
 

(1
5
4
) 

R
e

 
4
.5
 (
5
) 

5
2
 (
6
3
) 

2
1
8
 

(1
4
,8
9
6
) 

C
S
G

 
N
/A
 

2
8
.5
 (
2
6
) 

- 
N
/A
 

H
B

 P
u
b
li
c
 L

a
w

 
N
/A
 

1
3
 (
1
3
) 

(6
9
) 

N
/A
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

(2
,1
3
1
) 

N
/A
 

T
o
ta

ls
 

3
.5
 

7
.5
 

1
,0
7
9
 

(2
2
,2
1
9
) 

T
h
e
 t
a
b
le

 a
b
o
v
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
D

e
li
v
e
ry

 U
n
it
s
. 
M

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 f
o
r 
c
a
lc

u
la

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
d
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 i
s
 

e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 6

. 
 (
)=

 m
a
x
im

u
m

 p
o
in

ts
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 

65



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

2
. 
W
h
o
le
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 t
a
b
le
s
 

2
.1
 K
e
y
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
  

  

 
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
/0

3
/1

5
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
/1

2
/1

4
 

1
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 
  

 
  

  
(a
) 
B
a
la
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
s
: 

  
 

  
  

  
  
(i
) 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
F
u
n
d
 B
a
la
n
c
e
 

£
'm
 

1
4
.8
7
 

1
4
.3
8
 

  
  
  
(i
i)
 H
R
A
 B
a
la
n
c
e
s
 

£
'm
 

1
2
.0
4
 

1
1
.5
5
 

  
  
  
(i
ii)
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
B
a
la
n
c
e
s
 

£
'm
 

1
3
.2
7
 

1
5
.1
9
 

  
  

  
 

 

  
(b
) 
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 

B
u
d
g
e
t:
 

  
 

 
  

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
: 

  
 

 
  

  
  
(i
) 
O
v
e
rs
p
e
n
d
s
 

£
'm
 

8
.5
7
 

6
.7
1
 

  
  
  
(i
i)
 U
n
d
e
rs
p
e
n
d
s
 

£
'm
 

7
.4
9
 

5
.1
4
 

  
  

  
 

 

2
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 
  

 
 

  
(i
) 
T
o
ta
l 
V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

£
'm
 

2
4
.5
 

1
9
.1
 

  
  

  
 

 

3
 

D
e
b
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

  
 

 

  
(i
) 
T
o
ta
l 
D
e
b
t 
O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
v
e
r 

3
0
 d
a
y
s
 

£
'm
 

7
.1
 

1
1
.5
 

  
(i
) 
T
o
ta
l 
D
e
b
t 
O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
v
e
r 

1
2
 m

o
n
th
s
 

£
'm
 

2
.6
 

4
.2
 

  
(i
iii
) 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 -
 %

 p
a
id
  

%
 

9
6
.3
9
 

8
2
.5
6
 

  
  

  
 

 

4
 

C
re

d
it
o
r 

P
a
y
m

e
n
t 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

  
 

 

  
(i
) 
%
 o
f 
C
re
d
it
o
rs
 p
a
id
 w
it
h
in
 3
0
 

d
a
y
s
 

%
 

9
8
.4
 

9
8
.6
 

 
 

 
 
  

 

2
.2
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
–
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 –

 s
e
e

 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt
 

2
.3
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
–
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 -

 s
e
e

 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt
 

 

 

66



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

2
.4
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 -
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 b
y
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 

T
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
 i

ll
u

s
tr

a
te

s
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 i

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 m
e

a
s

u
re

s
 o

f 
s
u

c
c

e
s
s

 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 o
b

je
c

ti
v
e

s
 o

u
tl

in
e

d
 i

n
 

th
e

 2
0

1
3

/1
6

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
. 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
* 

 
R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
  

N
o
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

to
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

o
f 
M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

G
re
e
n
 

G
re
e
n
 

a
m
b
e
r 

R
e
d
 

a
m
b
e
r 

R
e
d
 

P
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 g
ro
w
th
 

T
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
 w
e
ll-
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
, 
a
tt
ra
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 p
la
c
e
, 
w
it
h
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 

3
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

4
 

7
1
%
 

T
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
 s
tr
o
n
g
 

a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 

2
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
 

T
o
 c
re
a
te
 b
e
tt
e
r 
lif
e
 c
h
a
n
c
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
a
m
il
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
e
d
 i
t,
 

p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
, 

le
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll
 b
e
in
g
 

T
o
 s
u
s
ta
in
 a
 s
tr
o
n
g
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

N
H
S
, 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 c
a
n
 

m
a
in
ta
in
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 

m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

2
 

7
3
%
 

T
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
 s
tr
o
n
g
 

a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 

2
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
 

T
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
, 
a
c
ti
v
e
, 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm

e
d
 o
v
e
r 
5
5
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
s
o
 

th
a
t 
B
a
rn
e
t 
is
 a
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 a
g
e
 w
e
ll 

2
 

0
 

0
 

2
 

4
 

T
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 f
a
m
ily
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 w
e
ll-
 b
e
in
g
 

a
n
d
 c
re
a
te
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
, 
c
o
h
e
s
iv
e
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

3
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t 

a
s
 a
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 l
iv
e
, 
w
o
rk
, 
a
n
d
 

s
tu
d
y
 

T
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
 w
e
ll-
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
, 
a
tt
ra
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 p
la
c
e
, 
w
it
h
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 

2
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

3
 

6
0
%
 

T
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 f
a
m
ily
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 w
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

a
n
d
 c
re
a
te
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
, 
c
o
h
e
s
iv
e
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

1
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

2
 

*S
o
m
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
v
e
rl
a
p
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
, 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
is
 i
s
 a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
ta
te
d
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
n
c
e
. 

T
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 a

b
o

v
e

 i
ll

u
s

tr
a

te
s

 h
o

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 i

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 m
e

a
s

u
re

s
 o

f 
s
u

c
c

e
s
s

 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 o
b

je
c

ti
v
e

s
 

o
u

tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

3
/1

6
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

. 

67



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

2
.4
.1
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

T
h

e
 t

a
b

le
s
 b

e
lo

w
 o

u
tl

in
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 m

e
a
s

u
re

s
 o

f 
s
u

c
c

e
s
s

, 
b

y
 e

a
c

h
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 D
e
li

v
e

ry
 U

n
it

. 
1
. 
A
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

C
P
I 

N
O

 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
d
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
  

M
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
s
 s
e
t 

o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

P
e
ri

o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re

d
 

T
im
e
fr
a
m
e
 

d
a
ta
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 m
o
s
t 

re
le
v
a
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 

le
v
e
l 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

N
u
m

e
ra

to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m

in
a
to

r 
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
th
a
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 

le
v
e
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 
o
u
t 
o
f 

to
ta
l 
fo
r 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

M
o
s
t 
re
c
e
n
t 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
  

A
 

c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o

n
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

fa
r 
th
e
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg
e
t 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 
 

A
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
w
h
e
th
e
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
  

H
o
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 

1
0
0
1
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
e
lig
ib
le
 

a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 

s
e
lf
-d
ir
e
c
te
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

M
a
r 
1
5
 

9
9
.7
%
 

7
5
%
 

2
,6
1
7
 

2
,6
2
7
 

9
9
.3
%
 

3
2
.4
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

8
3
.5
%
 L
A
P
S
 Q
3
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 g
ro
u
p
 

a
v
e
ra
g
e
 

1
0
0
2
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 (
a
n
d
 

n
u
m
b
e
r)
 o
f 
e
lig
ib
le
 

a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 

d
ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 

A
p
r 
1
4
 –
 

M
a
r 
1
4
 

3
1
.1
%
 

3
5
%
 

1
,2
7
3
 

4
,3
2
4
 

2
9
.4
%
 

1
5
.9
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

N
o
n
-c
o
m
p
a
ra
b
le
 l
o
c
a
l 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

Q
tr
. 
3
 r
e
s
u
lt
 

1
2
2
9
/3
9
5
7
 

1
0
0
3
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
a
re
rs
 w
h
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
) 

A
p
r 
1
4
 –
 

M
a
r 
1
5
 

3
3
.9
%
 

3
0
%
 

1
,3
9
4
 

3
,5
5
8
 

3
9
.2
%
 

3
0
.6
%
 

 
Im

p
ro
v
in
g
 

 

N
o
n
-c
o
m
p
a
ra
b
le
 l
o
c
a
l 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

1
0
0
4
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
a
d
u
lt
s
 i
n
 

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
u
rs
in
g
 

c
a
re
 

M
a
r 
1
5
 

3
0
6
 

3
0
0
 

N
/A
 

3
1
6
 

5
.3
%
 

 
W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

 

N
o
n
-c
o
m
p
a
ra
b
le
 l
o
c
a
l 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

1
0
0
5
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 %

 o
f 
o
ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 (
6
5
 a
n
d
 o
v
e
r)
 

w
h
o
 w
e
re
 s
ti
ll 
a
t 
h
o
m
e
 

9
1
 d
a
y
s
 a
ft
e
r 
d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 

fr
o
m
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
in
to
 r
e
-

A
p
r 
1
4
 –
 

M
a
r 
1
5
 

D
a
ta
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
. 

68



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

C
P
I 

N
O

 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
d
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
  

M
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
s
 s
e
t 

o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

P
e
ri

o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re

d
 

T
im
e
fr
a
m
e
 

d
a
ta
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 m
o
s
t 

re
le
v
a
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 

le
v
e
l 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

N
u
m

e
ra

to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m

in
a
to

r 
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
th
a
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 

le
v
e
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 
o
u
t 
o
f 

to
ta
l 
fo
r 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

M
o
s
t 
re
c
e
n
t 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
  

A
 

c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o

n
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

fa
r 
th
e
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg
e
t 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 
 

A
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
w
h
e
th
e
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
  

H
o
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 

e
n
a
b
le
m
e
n
t/
re
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti

o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

1
0
0
6
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 u
s
e
 a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
 c
a
re
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

A
p
r 
1
4
 –
 

M
a
r 
1
5
 

1
0
0
7
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 %

 o
f 
a
d
u
lt
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 w
h
o
 s
a
y
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 

th
e
m
 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe
 a
n
d
 

s
e
c
u
re
 

A
p
r 
1
4
 –
 

M
a
r 
1
5
 

1
0
0
8
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 p
o
lic
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 

a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

M
a
r 
1
4
 

6
8
%
 

7
8
%
 

n
/a
 

7
2
%
 

7
.7
%
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

T
B
C
 

1
0
0
9
 

M
a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

th
e
 r
a
te
 o
f 
p
ro
v
e
n
 a
d
u
lt
 

re
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 

A
p
r 
1
2
 -
 

J
u
n
e
 1
2
 

1
7
.4
%
 

2
2
%
 

n
/a
 

1
7
.4
%
 

 
2
0
.9
%
 

 
Im

p
ro
v
in
g
 

T
B
C
 

1
0
1
0
 

M
a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

b
u
rg
la
ry
 (
p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
) 

D
e
c
 1
3
 -
 

N
o
v
 1
4
 

1
9
.8
 

2
2
 

n
/a
 

1
9
.5
 

1
1
.4
%
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

T
B
C
 

 
2
. 
F
a
m
ily
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

69



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

C
P
I 

N
O

 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
d
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
  

M
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
s
 s
e
t 

o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

P
e
ri

o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re

d
 

T
im
e
fr
a
m
e
 

d
a
ta
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 m
o
s
t 

re
le
v
a
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 

le
v
e
l 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

N
u
m

e
ra

to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m

in
a
to

r 
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
th
a
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 

le
v
e
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 
o
u
t 
o
f 

to
ta
l 
fo
r 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

M
o
s
t 
re
c
e
n
t 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
  

A
 

c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o

n
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

fa
r 
th
e
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg
e
t 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 
 

A
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
w
h
e
th
e
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
  

H
o
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 

3
0
0
2
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

e
a
rl
y
 y
e
a
rs
 p
la
c
e
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
e
lig
ib
le
 

tw
o
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 

J
a
n
 1
5
 -
 

M
a
r 
1
5
 

8
2
0
 

1
2
8
4
 

n
/a
 

7
8
1
 

3
9
.2
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 t
a
k
e
 

u
p
 o
f 
p
la
c
e
s
: 
7
4
6
 (
F
e
b
 

2
0
1
5
) 

3
0
0
5
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 

ti
m
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 a
 c
h
ild
 

e
n
te
ri
n
g
 c
a
re
 a
n
d
 

m
o
v
in
g
 i
n
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 

a
d
o
p
ti
v
e
 f
a
m
ily
, 
fo
r 

a
d
o
p
te
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
 (
d
a
y
s
) 

A
p
r 
1
4
 –
 

M
a
r 
1
5
 

5
9
0
 

5
4
7
 

n
/a
 

4
5
1
 

1
7
.6
%
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

D
fE
 

4
8
7
 

3
0
0
7
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

re
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 

to
 3
6
8
 p
e
r 
1
0
,0
0
0
 o
f 

th
e
 u
n
d
e
r 
1
8
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

A
s
 a
t 
3
1
 

M
a
r 

3
9
2
 

n
/a
 

n
/a
 

3
8
9
.8
 

n
/a
 

n
/a
 

L
A
IT
 

S
N
: 
4
5
9
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
: 
4
6
9
 

E
n
g
la
n
d
: 
5
7
3
 

3
0
0
8
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

fi
rs
t 
ti
m
e
 e
n
tr
a
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S
y
s
te
m
 

a
g
e
d
 1
0
 t
o
 1
7
 

O
c
t 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
4
 

3
3
7
 

3
5
7
 

n
/a
 

2
8
2
 

2
1
%
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
: 
4
8
7
 

E
n
g
la
n
d
: 
4
6
0
 

3
0
0
9
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 i
n
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
r 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

A
s
 a
t 
3
1
 

M
a
r 

6
1
.8
%
 

7
5
%
 

n
/a
 

8
3
.8
%
 

1
1
.7
%
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
: 
6
5
.3
%
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l:
 5
8
.4
%
 

   

70



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

3
. 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 S
k
ill
s
 

N
/A
 

 
4
. 
S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 

C
P
I 

N
O

 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
d
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
  

M
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
s
 s
e
t 

o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

P
e
ri

o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re

d
 

T
im
e
fr
a
m
e
 

d
a
ta
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 m
o
s
t 

re
le
v
a
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 

le
v
e
l 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

N
u
m

e
ra

to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m

in
a
to

r 
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
th
a
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 

le
v
e
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 
o
u
t 
o
f 

to
ta
l 
fo
r 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

M
o
s
t 
re
c
e
n
t 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
  

A
 

c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o

n
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

fa
r 
th
e
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg
e
t 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 
 

A
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
w
h
e
th
e
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
  

H
o
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 

4
0
0
2
 

(a
) 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 w
a
s
te
 s
e
n
t 

fo
r 
re
u
s
e
, 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
o
 4
1
%
 

O
c
t 
1
4
 –
 

D
e
c
 1
4
 

3
9
.4
8
%
 

4
0
.8
8
%
 

1
2
7
,7
4
6
 

3
5
,6
1
1
 

 
3
5
.7
9
%
 

1
2
.5
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

R
a
n
k
e
d
 1
4
th
 o
u
t 
o
f 
2
9
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 (
W
a
s
te
 

D
a
ta
F
lo
w
 e
x
tr
a
c
te
d
 a
s
 

a
t 
1
6
/0
4
/2
0
1
5
) 

 

4
0
0
3
 

L
a
u
n
c
h
in
g
 5
 n
e
w
 

‘A
d
o
p
t 
a
 p
la
c
e
’ 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 a
t 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 

0
1
/0
4
/2
0
1

4
 -
 

3
1
/0
3
/2
0
1

5
  

n
/a
 

5
 

N
/A
 

5
 

0
%
 

N
/A
 

N
o
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 -
 l
o
c
a
l 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

 

 

71



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
5
. 
P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

C
P
I 

N
O

 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
d
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
  

M
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
s
 s
e
t 

o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

P
e
ri

o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re

d
 

T
im
e
fr
a
m
e
 

d
a
ta
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 m
o
s
t 

re
le
v
a
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 

le
v
e
l 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

N
u
m

e
ra

to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m

in
a
to

r 
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
th
a
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 

le
v
e
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 
o
u
t 
o
f 

to
ta
l 
fo
r 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

M
o
s
t 
re
c
e
n
t 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
  

A
 

c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o

n
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

fa
r 
th
e
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg
e
t 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 
 

A
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
w
h
e
th
e
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
  

H
o
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 

2
0
0
1
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 

o
f 
m
o
th
e
rs
 t
h
a
t 
s
m
o
k
e
 

a
t 
ti
m
e
 o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 

O
c
t 
1
4
 –

D
e
c
 1
4
 

2
.9
4
%
 

5
.0
0
%
 

3
7
 

1
,2
5
8
 

2
.9
%
 

4
1
.2
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

6
th
 l
o
w
e
s
t 
in
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 

C
C
G
s
 

2
0
0
3
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

e
lig
ib
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
 N
H
S
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

C
h
e
c
k
 

O
c
t 
- 
D
e
c
 

2
0
1
4
 

1
,9
2
6
 

3
,3
0
0
 

N
/A
 

1
,7
5
0
* 

5
0
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

N
o
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r.
 

*
 D

u
e

 t
o

 i
ss

u
e

s 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
ri

m
 I

T
 s

y
st

e
m

 i
t 

h
a

s 
n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 t

o
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
 a

 c
o

n
fi

rm
e

d
 f

ig
u

re
 t

h
is

 q
u

a
rt

e
r.

  
T

h
e

 f
ig

u
re

 q
u

o
te

d
 i
s 

a
n

 e
st

im
a

te
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 a

cc
e

p
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 a

ct
u

a
l 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 w
il
l 
b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 Q
4

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s 

a
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
is

su
e

. 

 

72



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

6
. 
B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 

C
P
I 

N
O

 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
d
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
  

M
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
s
 s
e
t 

o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

P
e
ri

o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re

d
 

T
im
e
fr
a
m
e
 

d
a
ta
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 m
o
s
t 

re
le
v
a
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 

le
v
e
l 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

N
u
m

e
ra

to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m

in
a
to

r 
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
th
a
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 

le
v
e
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 
o
u
t 
o
f 

to
ta
l 
fo
r 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

M
o
s
t 
re
c
e
n
t 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
  

A
 

c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o

n
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

fa
r 
th
e
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg
e
t 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 
 

A
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
w
h
e
th
e
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
  

H
o
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 

8
0
0
1
 

(a
) 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 i
n
 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 5
0
0
 

A
s
 a
t 
1
 

M
a
rc
h
 1
5
 

4
6
1
 

5
0
0
 

n
/a
 

4
5
5
 

9
%
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

h
ig
h
e
s
t 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 i
n
 

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 

re
m
a
in
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
tt
o
m
 

q
u
a
rt
ile
. 
 T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
 

s
m
a
ll 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 Q
3
 a
n
d
 Q
2
. 

W
h
ile
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll 

s
a
w
 a
 7
%
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

a
n
d
 o
u
te
r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 s
a
w
 

a
 1
0
%
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
, 

B
a
rn
e
t 
s
a
w
 a
 1
0
%
 

d
e
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
. 

(L
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
th
e
 f
ig
u
re
 a
t 

Q
4
 w
a
s
 4
7
1
) 

8
0
0
1
 

(b
)(
i)
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

P
ri
v
a
te
 R
e
n
te
d
 S
e
c
to
r 

le
tt
in
g
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
o
 

3
1
5
  

A
p
r 
1
4
 -

M
a
r 
1
5
 

2
8
0
 

3
1
5
 

n
/a
 

3
9
2
 

2
4
.4
%
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

N
o
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
 

73



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

7
. 
R

e
 

C
P
I 

N
O

 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
d
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
  

M
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
s
 s
e
t 

o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

P
e
ri

o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re

d
 

T
im
e
fr
a
m
e
 

d
a
ta
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 m
o
s
t 

re
le
v
a
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 

le
v
e
l 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

N
u
m

e
ra

to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m

in
a
to

r 
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
th
a
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 

le
v
e
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 
o
u
t 
o
f 

to
ta
l 
fo
r 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

M
o
s
t 
re
c
e
n
t 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
  

A
 

c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o

n
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

fa
r 
th
e
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg
e
t 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 
 

A
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
w
h
e
th
e
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
  

H
o
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 

2
.2
 

N
M
 

M
a
k
e
 S
a
fe
 w
it
h
in
 4
8
 

h
o
u
rs
 a
ll 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

le
v
e
l 
p
o
th
o
le
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

b
y
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
u
b
lic
  
 

J
a
n
 1
5
 -
 

M
a
r 
1
5
 

9
7
.3
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

2
,3
5
6
 

2
,3
8
0
 

 
9
8
.7
%
 

1
.3
%
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r.
  

 

E
H
0
4

A
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
e
m
p
ty
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 

b
a
c
k
 i
n
to
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 

u
s
e
 

A
p
r 
1
4
 -
 

M
a
r 
1
5
 

6
2
4
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

T
a
rg
e
t 

1
0
0
 

n
/a
 

1
3
0
 

3
0
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 t
o
ta
ls
 f
o
r 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
: 
B
re
n
t 
1
4
1
, 

C
a
m
d
e
n
 5
1
8
 E
n
fi
e
ld
 

2
6
4
, 
H
a
rr
o
w
 2
1
4
 

 
L
B
B
 S
u
rv
e
y
: 

E
a
lin
g
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 1
0
6
  

Q
1
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 1
3
 

1
.2
 

N
M
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 C
a
rr
ia
g
e
w
a
y
 

R
e
s
u
rf
a
c
in
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

J
a
n
 1
5
 -
 

M
a
r 
1
5
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

6
 
6
  

1
0
0
%
 

0
%
 

S
a
m
e
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r.
 

1
.3
 

N
M
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 F
o
o
tw
a
y
 

R
e
la
y
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

J
a
n
 1
5
 -
 

M
a
r 
1
5
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

5
 
5
  

1
0
0
%
 

0
%
 

S
a
m
e
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r.
 

74



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

C
P
I 

N
O

 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
d
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
  

M
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
s
 s
e
t 

o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

P
e
ri

o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re

d
 

T
im
e
fr
a
m
e
 

d
a
ta
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 m
o
s
t 

re
le
v
a
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 

le
v
e
l 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

N
u
m

e
ra

to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m

in
a
to

r 
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
th
a
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 

le
v
e
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 
o
u
t 
o
f 

to
ta
l 
fo
r 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

M
o
s
t 
re
c
e
n
t 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
  

A
 

c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o

n
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

fa
r 
th
e
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg
e
t 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 
 

A
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
w
h
e
th
e
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
  

H
o
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 

R
E
G

E
N
K
P

I0
5
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
 

A
p
r 
1
4
 -
 

M
a
r 
1
5
 

3
4
4
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

T
a
rg
e
t 

3
0
8
 

n
/a
 

3
9
8
 

2
9
.2
%
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

D
a
ta
b
a
s
e
: 
B
re
n
t 
2
2
4
, 

C
a
m
d
e
n
 2
9
9
, 
E
n
fi
e
ld
 

2
4
3
, 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 3
6
4
, 

H
a
rr
o
w
 2
9
2
 

 
8
. 
P
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

C
P
I 

N
O

 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
d
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
  

M
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
s
 s
e
t 

o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

P
e
ri

o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re

d
 

T
im
e
fr
a
m
e
 

d
a
ta
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 m
o
s
t 

re
le
v
a
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 

le
v
e
l 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

N
u
m

e
ra

to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m

in
a
to

r 
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
th
a
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 

le
v
e
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 
o
u
t 
o
f 

to
ta
l 
fo
r 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

M
o
s
t 
re
c
e
n
t 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
  

A
 

c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o

n
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

fa
r 
th
e
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg
e
t 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 
 

A
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
w
h
e
th
e
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
  

H
o
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 

4
0
0
4
 

(a
)  

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
s
 (
o
n
-

s
tr
e
e
t)
 i
n
 T
o
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 

 

J
a
n
 1
5
 -
 

M
a
rc
h
 1
5
 

 

4
8
2
,2
7
3
 

 
4
0
5
,5
0
0
 

 
n
/a
 

 
5
1
5
,5
6
0
 

 
2
7
.1
%
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

L
o
c
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r:
 n
o
t 

c
o
m
p
a
ra
b
le
 

75



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

C
P
I 

N
O

 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
d
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
  

M
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
s
 s
e
t 

o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

P
e
ri

o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re

d
 

T
im
e
fr
a
m
e
 

d
a
ta
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 m
o
s
t 

re
le
v
a
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 

le
v
e
l 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

N
u
m

e
ra

to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m

in
a
to

r 
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
th
a
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 

le
v
e
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 
o
u
t 
o
f 

to
ta
l 
fo
r 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

M
o
s
t 
re
c
e
n
t 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
  

A
 

c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o

n
 o
f 
h
o
w
 

fa
r 
th
e
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg
e
t 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 
 

A
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
w
h
e
th
e
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
  

H
o
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 

4
0
0
4
 

(b
)  

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 
c
a
r 
p
a
rk
s
 i
n
 T
o
w
n
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

 

J
a
n
 1
5
 -
 

M
a
rc
h
 1
5
 

 
1
2
1
,4
3
2
 

7
1
,3
0
0
 

n
/a
 

1
2
4
,7
9
6
 

7
5
%
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

L
o
c
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r:
 n
o
t 

c
o
m
p
a
ra
b
le
 

  9
. 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

N
/A

 

2
.5
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
- 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 K
e
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 p
a

g
e

 f
o

r 
d
e

ta
ile

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 w

w
w

.b
a

rn
e

t.
g
o

v
.u

k
/p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

A
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 –
 7
3
%
 o
f 
ta
rg
e
ts
 m
e
t 

(1
1
 o

u
t 
o
f 

1
5
) 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

B
a

rn
e

t 
w

a
s
 f
u

lly
 C

a
re

 A
c
t 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

a
s
 o

f 
1

 A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
5
 a

n
d

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 u
n
d

e
rw

a
y
 f
o

r 
th

e
 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
c
h
a

n
g
e
s
 f

ro
m

 1
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
6

. 

•
 

P
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
 b

y
 t

h
e

 h
o

s
p

it
a

l 
s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
e
a

m
s
 i
s
 k

e
e

p
in

g
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 d

is
c
h
a

rg
e

s
 t

o
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

 –
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e
n

 e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 u

ti
lis

e
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
. 

•
 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 
v
a

s
t 

m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 
2

0
1
4

/1
5

 M
T

F
S

 s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 (

n
o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
) 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

F
re

e
d

o
m

 o
f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 e
v
e

n
t 
 

•
 

L
o

c
a

l 
P

e
n

s
io

n
 B

o
a

rd
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
g
re

e
d
 

•
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 E

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
ir
s
t 

ro
u
n

d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

5
 

76



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

•
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 m
a

p
p

in
g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 g

a
p

s
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

rl
a

p
s
 a

re
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 i
n

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

•
 

P
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 e

le
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

m
o
ti
o

n
 o

f 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
E

le
c
to

ra
l 
R

e
g
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 –
 7
9
%
 o
f 
ta
rg
e
ts
 m
e
t 

(1
1
 o

u
t 

o
f 
1
4
) 

 S
u

c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

B
a

rn
e

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 t
e

a
m

 h
a

v
e

 s
e

c
u

re
d

 £
1
0

0
,0

0
0
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

o
f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

in
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 S
o

la
c
e

’s
 W

o
m

a
n

’s
 A

id
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 w
o

m
a

n
’s

 r
e
fu

g
e

 f
o

r 
6
 w

o
m

e
n
 a

n
d

 8
 c

h
ild

re
n

 w
h

o
 a

re
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 o

f 
d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

. 
  

•
 

B
a

rn
e

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 h

a
s
 s

e
c
u

re
d

 £
7

5
0

,0
0

0
 g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 R

ig
h

t 
to

 B
u

y
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
M

o
b

ili
ty

 F
u

n
d

 t
h
a

t 
w

ill
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 2

5
 q

u
a

lif
y
in

g
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

te
n

a
n

ts
 t

o
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 a
 h

o
m

e
 o

n
 t
h

e
 o

p
e

n
 m

a
rk

e
t 
 

•
 

O
n

e
 o

f 
o
u

r 
fi
rs

t 
fo

rm
e

r 
a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
 f
ro

m
 2

0
1

1
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

h
o

rt
lis

te
d

 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
 e

n
tr

ie
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 2

0
1
5

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 H

e
ro

e
s
 a

w
a

rd
s
 a

s
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 
b

y
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
. 
 T

h
e

s
e

 a
w

a
rd

s
 s

e
e

k
 t
o

 s
h

o
w

 c
a

s
e

 p
e
o

p
le

 d
o

in
g
 e

x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
a

l 
th

in
g
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 w

o
rl

d
. 

C
S
G
 –
 8
8
%
 o
f 
ta
rg
e
ts
 m
e
t 

(2
3
 o

u
t 

o
f 
2
6
) 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

D
u

ri
n

g
 M

a
rc

h
 a

 n
e

w
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 w
a

s
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 f
o
r 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

th
a

t 
fe

a
tu

re
s
 a

n
 e

a
s
ie

r 
w

a
y
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 t
o

 f
in

d
 

o
u

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
ir
 a

re
a
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

p
ro

v
id

e
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 “
M

y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t”
 f
a

c
ili

ty
. 

T
h

is
 a

llo
w

s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 u

s
in

g
 

a
 s

in
g
le

 p
a

s
s
w

o
rd

 t
o
 d

o
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 t
h

in
g
s
 i
n

 a
 s

e
c
u

re
 w

a
y
 a

n
d

 t
ra

c
k
 o

n
 t

h
e

ir
 q

u
e

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o
n

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

o
 

F
in

d
 o

u
t 

a
b

o
u
t 

b
in

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 k

e
e
p

 a
 c

h
e

c
k
 o

n
 a

n
y
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 

o
 

R
e

q
u

e
s
t 

a
n
d

 p
a

y
 f
o

r 
p
a

rk
in

g
 p

e
rm

it
s
 a

n
d
 v

o
u

c
h

e
rs

* 
o

 
J
o

in
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
lib

ra
ry

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

 o
r 

re
n

e
w

 b
o

o
k
s
 a

n
d
 f
ilm

s
* 

o
 

R
e

g
is

te
r 

fo
r 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a
x
, 

c
h

e
c
k
 t

h
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 m

a
k
e
 a

 p
a

y
m

e
n
t*

 
o

 
A

p
p

ly
 f
o

r 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
n
d

 c
h
e

c
k
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
* 

o
 

F
in

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

 c
lo

s
e
 t

o
 t
h

e
ir
 h

o
m

e
 

•
 

T
h
e

 R
e

v
e

n
u
e

s
 &

 B
e

n
e
fi
ts

 C
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n
 C

ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 t

h
is

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

fr
o
m

 a
n

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 
9

.2
 d

a
y
s
 i
n

 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

 t
o
 2

.8
 d

a
y
s
 i
n

 Q
u
a

rt
e

r 
4

, 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 u
n

d
e
r 

th
e

 6
 d

a
y
 t

a
rg

e
t.

  
 

•
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

a
ll 

a
n

s
w

e
ri
n

g
, 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 8

0
%

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
a

n
s
w

e
ri
n

g
 c

a
lls

 w
it
h

in
 2

0
 s

e
c
o
n

d
s
 w

a
s
 n

a
rr

o
w

ly
 m

is
s
e

d
 i
n

 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

, 
th

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

a
s
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 m
e

t 
fo

r 
M

a
rc

h
, 

d
e
s
p

it
e
 i
t 

b
e

in
g
 t

h
e
 b

u
s
ie

s
t 
m

o
n

th
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
d

u
e

 t
o

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
b

ill
in

g
. 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

p
p
e

a
r 

to
 b

e
 s

e
tt

in
g
 t

h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

tr
a

je
c
to

ry
 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

. 
 A

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e

 t
h

e
 t

e
le

p
h
o

n
e
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

re
s
u

lt
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

o
 9

1
%

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 i
n

 Q
4

 (
o
f 
1
1

,0
6
8

 t
o

ta
l 
s
u

rv
e

y
s
) 

fr
o
m

 8
9

%
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 i
n
 Q

3
 (

o
f 
1

1
,7

0
0

 t
o
ta

l 
s
u

rv
e

y
s
).

 T
h

is
 i
s
 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 s
in

c
e
 a

ll 
c
u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

a
lls

 w
e

re
 m

o
v
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 h

a
n
d

le
d

 i
n
 C

o
v
e

n
tr

y
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
. 

  

77



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 (

n
o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
) 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

F
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 c
lo

s
u

re
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 o
n
 t

h
e

 1
1

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

, 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
n
 t

h
e

 3
 M

a
rc

h
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 t
e

rm
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

fo
r 

2
0
1

5
-2

0
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

u
t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

f 
£

5
1
.6

m
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
, 

le
a

v
in

g
 a

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 g

a
p

 o
f 
£

2
1

.9
m

. 
 A

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
b
ri
n

g
in

g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f
ro

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

in
to

 t
h
e

 c
e
n

tr
a
l 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
 t
o

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

la
n

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
m

e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 f
o

r 
a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 l
e

v
e

ls
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

•
 

T
h
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t’
s
 b

u
d
g
e

t 
2

0
1
5

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d

 a
 n

e
w

 o
v
e

rg
ro

u
n

d
 s

ta
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
B

re
n

t 
C

ro
s
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 f
u

n
d
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 
£

9
7
m

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
g
ra

n
t 

a
n

d
 r

in
g
 f
e
n

c
in

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

 g
ro

w
th

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 e

x
p

a
n

d
e
d

 s
h
o

p
p

in
g
 c

e
n

tr
e

 t
o
 p

a
y
 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e

r.
 

•
 

T
h
e

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
G

a
te

w
a

y
, 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

, 
w

e
n

t 
liv

e
 i
n

 e
a

rl
y
 M

a
rc

h
. 

In
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

tr
e

a
m

lin
e

d
 f
u

n
c
ti
o
n

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 u
p
d

a
te

 c
o

n
te

n
t 

to
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

in
te

ra
c
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il.

 T
h

e
 n

e
w

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 a
ls

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 M

y
A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
–

 a
 s

in
g
le

 l
o

c
a

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
in

te
ra

c
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 F
a
m
il
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 –
 7
0
%
 o
f 
ta
rg
e
ts
 m
e
t 

(7
 o

u
t 
o
f 

1
0
) 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 H
o

m
e

s
 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t 
b

o
th

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 a

 ‘
G

o
o

d
’ 
O

fs
te

d
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o
n

. 
P

a
rk

fi
e

ld
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

 a
ls

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

 ‘
G

o
o

d
’ 
O

fs
te

d
 r

a
ti
n

g
. 
 

•
 

1
8

 C
h

ild
re

n
 w

e
re

 a
d

o
p
te

d
 i
n
 1

4
/1

5
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 r
e

c
o

rd
 f
o

r 
B

a
rn

e
t 

F
a
m

ily
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

•
 

L
a

u
n

c
h

 o
f 
jo

in
t 
p

ro
je

c
t 
w

it
h

 A
c
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
C

h
ild

re
n

, 
p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
 f
u
n

d
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 t
o

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

c
h

ild
re

n
 e

n
te

ri
n

g
 c

a
re

 a
n
d

 m
o

v
e

 o
n
 f
ro

m
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
. 

H
B
 P
u
b
li
c
 L
a
w
 –
 1
0
0
%
 o
f 
ta
rg
e
ts
 m
e
t 

(1
3
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
) 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

L
a

w
y
e

rs
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 A

d
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 L
it
ig

a
ti
o
n

 t
e
a
m

 h
a

v
e

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 t

h
e

 A
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
’ 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 w
it
h

 p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 f
o

r 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
 C

a
re

 A
c
t.

  
 

•
 

In
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
4

 B
a

rn
e

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

d
e

 t
h

e
 f
ir
s
t 
o
f 
4

 C
o
m

p
u

ls
o

ry
 P

u
rc

h
a
s
e

 O
rd

e
rs

 (
C

P
O

) 
re

la
te

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 r
e

g
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 W

e
s
t 

H
e

n
d
o

n
 

E
s
ta

te
. 

D
u

e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

o
p

p
o

s
it
io

n
 a

n
 i
n

q
u

ir
y
 w

a
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

T
h

e
 i
n
q
u

ir
y
 s

a
t 

fo
r 

8
 d

a
y
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 i
s
 

a
w

a
it
e

d
. 

•
 

B
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
IP

F
A

 e
x
e

rc
is

e
 h

a
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 H
B

 P
u

b
lic

 L
a

w
 a

s
 r

a
te

d
 a

s
 a

 h
ig

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
r 

fo
r 

e
c
o
n

o
m

y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
, 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 b

e
tt
e

r 
th

a
n
 t

h
e

 r
a
ti
n

g
 f
o

r 
th

e
 L

B
B

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 P
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 –
 8
1
%
 o
f 
ta
rg
e
ts
 m
e
t 

(1
3
 o

u
t 
o
f 

1
6
) 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

78



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

•
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
s
o

rt
 a

n
d

 o
b

ta
in

e
d

 f
o

r 
n
e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 f
u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
s
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 n
e

w
ly

 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 P

a
rk

in
g
 P

o
lic

y
; 

th
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 f
o

rm
a

lis
in

g
 p

a
rk

in
g
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
n

d
 a

llo
w

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 r

o
ll 

o
u

t 
n

e
w

 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
; 

C
C

T
V

 d
e

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
M

o
v
in

g
 T

ra
ff

ic
 V

io
la

ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

u
ts

id
e

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

F
o

o
tw

a
y
 p

a
rk

in
g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

•
 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 F
o

o
tp

a
th

 L
E

D
 c

o
n

v
e

rs
io

n
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
u

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
e

rg
y
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
  

e
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
n

s
u
m

p
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 t
o

 a
 p

o
in

t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 t
a

rg
e

te
d
 s

a
v
in

g
 o

f 
£

2
0
0

k
 f
o

r 
th

e
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
Y

e
a

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 
s
lig

h
tl
y
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d
 

•
 

T
ri
a

ls
 o

f 
u

ti
lis

in
g
 t

h
e

 S
tr

e
e

t 
L

ig
h

ti
n

g
 C

M
S

 t
e

c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
 (

in
s
ta

lle
d

 t
o

 e
n
a

b
le

 d
im

m
in

g
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e

t 
lig

h
ts

) 
fo

r 
o
th

e
r 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
e

n
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 g
re

a
t 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 w

it
h

 f
a

u
lt
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 t

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
 e

n
a
b

lin
g
 f
a

u
lt
s
 t
o

 b
e

 r
e
c
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 s
h

o
rt

e
r 

ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
s
 a

n
d

 p
re

d
ic

ti
v
e

 f
a

ilu
re

s
 o

f 
la

m
p

s
 a

llo
w

in
g
 r

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ri
o

r 
to

 f
a

ilu
re

 a
n

d
 h

e
n

c
e

 m
in

im
is

in
g
 t
h
e

 n
e

e
d

 f
o
r 

a
 b

u
lk

 l
a
m

p
 c

h
a
n

g
e

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 

P
u
b
li
c
 H
e
a
lt
h
 –
 8
7
%
 o
f 
ta
rg
e
t 
m
e
t 

(1
4
 o

u
t 
o
f 

1
5
) 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

T
h
e

 P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
re

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
N

u
rs

in
g
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 M
is

u
s
e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 f
o

r 
B

a
rn

e
t 

a
n

d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

. 

•
 

A
 c

o
n
fe

re
n

c
e

 c
o
n

c
e

rn
in

g
 l
o

c
a

l 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f
o

r 
p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h

 a
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
y
 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t 
w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 2

5
th

 M
a

rc
h
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
tw

o
 n

e
w

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 
T

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 e

v
e
n

t 
w

a
s
 t

o
 e

n
g
a

g
e

 a
 r

a
n
g
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 n

e
w

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 a
g
re

e
 

a
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 f
u

rt
h
e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
T

h
e

 c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 w
a

s
 c

h
a

ir
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a

m
 f
o

r 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d
 a

tt
ra

c
te

d
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n

s
iv

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

in
te

re
s
te

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
. 

•
 

 B
a

rn
e
t 

c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 e
x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
a

lly
 w

e
ll 

in
 t
h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

y
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
L

o
n

d
o
n

 (
H

S
L

) 
a

w
a

rd
s
. 

 N
u
m

b
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 a
ll 

a
re

a
s
 

(f
ig

u
re

s
 i
n

 b
ra

c
k
e

ts
 g

iv
e

 t
h
e

 Q
3
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

ta
ls

. 
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 6

3
 (

4
8

) 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

w
a

rd
, 

o
f 
th

e
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 2

2
 

(2
0

) 
h

a
v
e

 t
h
e

 b
ro

n
z
e

 a
n

d
 6

 (
4

) 
h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 s

ilv
e

r 
a

w
a

rd
. 

 R
e
 –
 9
0
%
 o
f 
ta
rg
e
ts
 m
e
t 

(6
1
 o

u
t 

o
f 
6
8
) 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

A
n

n
o
u

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 C
h

a
n

c
e

llo
r 

o
f 

th
e

 E
x
c
h
e

q
u

e
r 

in
 t
h
e

 2
0

1
5

 B
u
d
g
e

t 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
o
f 
a

 £
9

7
 m

ill
io

n
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 b

o
o

s
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 B

re
n

t 
C

ro
s
s
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 f
o

r 
fu

n
d

in
g
 a

 n
e

w
 T

h
a
m

e
s
lin

k
 r

a
ilw

a
y
 s

ta
ti
o

n
. 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

e
r 

A
rg

e
n

t 
R

e
la

te
d

 w
a

s
 c

h
o
s
e

n
 f
ro

m
 a

 s
h
o

rt
 l
is

t 
o
f 

b
id

d
e

rs
 t
o

 b
e

c
o
m

e
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
P

a
rt

n
e

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 B

re
n

t 
C

ro
s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

 S
o
u

th
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 .
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 
a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 e
x
c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 a

ll 
p

a
rt

ie
s
 t
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
h

e
 B

re
n

t 
C

ro
s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

 N
o

rt
h

 s
c
h

e
m

e
. 
T

h
e

 B
re

n
t 
C

ro
s
s
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

to
 c

re
a

te
 2

7
,0

0
0

 n
e

w
 j
o

b
s
. 
 

•
 

F
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 r
is

e
 o

f 
a

 m
o

re
 a

g
g
re

s
s
iv

e
 t

a
rg

e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
, 

e
ig

h
t 

lo
n

g
 t
e

rm
 e

m
p

ty
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 w
e

re
 

re
n

o
v
a

te
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 £
1
0
4

,0
0
0

 o
f 
fu

n
d

in
g
 s

e
c
u

re
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 H

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 (

H
C

A
).

  

79



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

•
 

T
h
e

 G
ra

h
a
m

e
 P

a
rk

 r
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

ls
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
m

ile
s
to

n
e

 t
h

is
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 f
o

rm
a

l 
o

p
e

n
in

g
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 o
f 

L
a

n
a

c
re

 A
v
e

n
u
e

. 
  

•
 

In
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
, 

th
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

n
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 m

ix
e

d
 u

s
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
R

o
o

k
e

ry
 W

a
y
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 3

8
6

 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
u

n
it
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 h

u
b

, 
re

ta
il 

a
n
d

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

p
a
c
e

. 
T

h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

ls
o

 a
p
p

ro
v
e

d
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
l 
e

le
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 

B
e

a
u
fo

rt
 P

a
rk

 B
u

ild
in

g
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 2

3
7

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
u
n

it
s
 p

lu
s
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
fl
o

o
r 

s
p
a

c
e
. 
 

•
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
rv

iv
a

l 
ra

te
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 B

a
rn

e
t 
a

re
 7

2
.1

3
%

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 a

 4
.2

9
%

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
rv

iv
a

l 
ra

te
 i
n

 2
0
1

1
. 
  

S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 –
 6
9
%
 o
f 
ta
rg
e
ts
 m
e
t 

(9
 o

u
t 
o
f 

1
3
) 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

T
h
e

 G
re

e
n

s
p
a

c
e

s
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 T

e
a

m
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
a

ll 
th

e
ir
 p

la
n
n

e
d

 w
in

te
r 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 w
o

rk
s
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n
d

 o
f 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 p
a

in
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
fr

e
s
h

 o
f 
1
0

 P
la

y
g
ro

u
n

d
s
, 
2

 P
a

v
ili

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
p

re
a

d
in

g
 o

f 
2

,4
0

0
 c

u
b

ic
 m

e
te

rs
 o

f 
m

u
lc

h
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 

a
ll 

B
a

rn
e
t’
s
 P

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 O
p

e
n
 S

p
a

c
e

s
 l
o
o

k
e
d

 t
h

e
ir
 b

e
s
t 
re

a
d

y
 f
o

r 
th

e
 S

p
ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 S
u
m

m
e

r 
m

o
n

th
s
. 

•
 

T
h
e

 G
re

e
n

s
p
a

c
e

s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
ts

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o
f 

5
 A

d
o

p
t 
a

 P
la

c
e

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

w
it
h

 a
ll 

5
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 u

p
 a

n
d

 
ru

n
n

in
g
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 n

e
w

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
v
o

lu
n
te

e
ri
n

g
 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t 
P

a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 O

p
e

n
 S

p
a

c
e

s
, 

h
e

lp
in

g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 
th

e
ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

. 

•
 

P
a

s
s
e

n
g
e

r 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 P
a

n
e

ls
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 S

E
N

 t
e
a

m
 i
n

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

in
c
e

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
4

. 
 W

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

e
x
p

e
rt

 a
d

v
ic

e
 i
n

 d
e

te
rm

in
in

g
 t

h
e

 m
o

s
t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
t 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 w
a

y
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 t
o

 t
ra

v
e

l 
to

 s
c
h

o
o

l.
  

In
 t
h

e
 p

a
s
t 

s
ix

 m
o
n

th
s
 t
h

e
 

p
a

re
n

ts
 o

f 
3

4
 c

h
ild

re
n

 h
a

v
e

 o
p

te
d

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 p
e

rs
o

n
a
l 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
is

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

s
 o

p
p

o
s
e
d

 t
o
 t

ra
d

it
io

n
a

l 
h

o
m

e
 t
o

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
tr

a
n

s
p
o

rt
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 P

T
S

. 
 T

h
is

 h
a

s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 c
o

s
t 

a
v
o

id
a

n
c
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

o
f 

a
lm

o
s
t 
£

3
4

0
, 
0

0
0

. 
  

 Y
o
u
r 
C
h
o
ic
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
–
 5
5
%
 o
f 
ta
rg
e
ts
 m
e
t 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

W
h
ils

t 
s
e

lf
-r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 w

e
re

 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

t 
1

0
 (

2
0

) 
th

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

re
fe

rr
a

l 
ra

te
 i
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 f
u

ll 
y
e

a
r 

a
t 

6
7

 (
6

0
) 

•
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 U

ti
lis

a
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 f
u

ll 
y
e

a
r 

w
a

s
 9

0
%

 a
t 

B
IL

S
, 

9
7

%
 a

t 
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 S

p
a

c
e

 a
n

d
 F

lo
w

e
r 

L
a

n
e

, 
9
8

%
 a

t 
R

o
s
a
 M

o
ri
s
o

n
 a

n
d

 9
9

%
 i
n

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 L

iv
in

g
 

•
 

S
ta

ff
 S

ic
k
n

e
s
s
 h

a
s
 r

e
d
u

c
e

d
 f
ro

m
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

 w
h

ic
h

 w
a
s
 a

t 
1
4

.2
 d

a
y
s
 p

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 1

0
.5

 d
a

y
s
 

  

80



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

2
.6
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 U
n
it
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 -
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 

T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 P

le
a

s
e

 s
e

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 p
a

g
e

 f
o

r 
d
e

ta
ile

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 w

w
w

.b
a

rn
e

t.
g
o

v
.u

k
/p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 U
n
it
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T
it
le

 
R

e
le

v
a
n
t 
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg

e
t 

F
in

a
l 
O

u
tt
u
rn

 
D

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 
 

A
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

T
C
0
1
5
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 

p
e
rs
o
n
 c
ri
m
e
s
 –
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 B
a
s
e
lin
e
 

o
f 
1
2
.9
3
5
 p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

1
2
.9
0
 

8
.9
2
 

1
3
.5
0
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

E
D
0
0
2
 

T
h
e
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
p
a
re
n
ts
 o
ff
e
re
d
 

o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 t
o
p
 t
h
re
e
 p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
(p
ri
m
a
ry
) 

9
1
.9
%
 

9
2
.0
%
 

9
0
.9
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

E
D
0
0
3
 

T
h
e
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
p
a
re
n
ts
 o
ff
e
re
d
 

o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 t
o
p
 t
h
re
e
 p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
(s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
) 
  
  
  
  

9
0
.0
%
 

9
1
.0
%
 

8
8
.4
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

E
D
0
0
4
 

T
h
e
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
 

8
0
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

9
0
%
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

E
D
0
0
8
 

T
h
e
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 g
o
v
e
rn
o
rs
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 

v
a
c
a
n
t 
(v
a
c
a
n
t 
a
s
 a
t 
s
n
a
p
s
h
o
t 
in
 

ti
m
e
) 

2
8
.8
%
 

2
0
%
 

3
7
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

E
D
0
0
9
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 a
 

8
9
%
 

9
0
%
 

8
9
%
 

S
a
m
e
 

81



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 U
n
it
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T
it
le

 
R

e
le

v
a
n
t 
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg

e
t 

F
in

a
l 
O

u
tt
u
rn

 
D

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 
 

le
v
e
l 
2
 q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 a
g
e
 o
f 

1
9
  
 

E
D
0
1
0
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
1
6
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 

re
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
n
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

9
6
.2
%
 

9
8
.0
%
 

9
7
.2
%
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 

B
H
0
0
2
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 

a
p
p
e
a
ls
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 o
n
 t
im
e
 

1
0
0
.0
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

9
6
.9
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

B
H
0
0
8
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
rr
e
a
rs
 a
s
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 

d
e
b
it
 

3
.7
4
%
 

2
.8
3
%
 

3
.5
3
%
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

B
H
0
0
9
 

T
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
rr
e
a
rs
 

a
s
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
d
e
b
it
 

7
.7
8
%
 

4
.6
0
%
 

6
.3
3
%
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

P
u
b
li
c
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

P
H
0
0
7
  

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
la
rg
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
 s
ig
n
in
g
 

u
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 w
o
rk
p
la
c
e
 c
h
a
rt
e
r 

3
 

1
 

0
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

P
H
0
1
0
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 n
e
e
d
s
 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 S
T
Is
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 r
e
c
o
rd
 

o
f 
h
a
v
in
g
 a
n
 H
IV
 t
e
s
t 
a
t 
fi
rs
t 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 (
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 d
ia
g
n
o
s
e
d
 H
IV
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
) 

8
9
.5
%
 

8
0
%
 

7
9
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

C
S
G
 

C
S
0
0
3
  

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
c
a
lls
 a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 

w
it
h
in
 2
0
 s
e
c
o
n
d
s
 

7
4
.7
%
 

8
0
%
 

7
8
.6
%
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

82



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 U
n
it
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T
it
le

 
R

e
le

v
a
n
t 
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg

e
t 

F
in

a
l 
O

u
tt
u
rn

 
D

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 
 

H
R
0
1
0
  

A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

F
a
il 

P
a
s
s
 

F
a
il 

S
a
m
e
 

R
e
 

E
H
0
1
B
  

C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

H
e
a
lt
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 (
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

1
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
) 
 

 (T
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg
e
t/
T
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 w
it
h
 a
 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

8
3
.3
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

E
H
0
2
K
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 l
ic
e
n
s
e
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 a
 t
im
e
ly
 m

a
n
n
e
r 

1
0
0
%
 

9
5
%
 

9
4
.9
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

K
P
I 
2
.1
 N
M
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 

D
e
fe
c
ts
 R
e
c
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 o
n
 

ti
m
e
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

8
7
.4
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

K
P
I 
2
.3
 N
M
 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 2
 D
e
fe
c
ts
 R
e
c
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 o
n
 t
im
e
 

N
/A
 

1
0
0
%
 

8
8
%
 

N
/A
 

K
P
I0
0
2
 (
A
 &
 A
) 

Q
u
a
lit
y
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 o
f 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 (
%
 o
f 
A
p
p
e
a
ls
 

D
is
m
is
s
e
d
) 

 

7
3
.3
%
 

6
5
%
-8
0
%
 

5
2
.5
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

83



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 U
n
it
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T
it
le

 
R

e
le

v
a
n
t 
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

 
T
a
rg

e
t 

F
in

a
l 
O

u
tt
u
rn

 
D

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 
 

R
E
G
E
N
K
P
I0
3
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 (
%
 o
f 
in
v
o
ic
e
s
 

s
e
n
t 
w
it
h
in
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
) 

9
5
.5
%
 

8
5
%
 

6
0
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

P
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

N
S
L
 K
P
I0
0
9
 P
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

T
o
ta
l 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
it
e
m
s
 s
c
a
n
n
e
d
 v
s
 

to
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
it
e
m
s
 s
c
a
n
n
e
d
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
c
o
rr
e
c
t 
P
C
N
 r
e
c
o
rd
 

1
0
0
.0
%
 

1
0
0
.0
%
 

9
9
.9
8
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

N
S
L
 K
P
I0
1
0
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
ti
m
e
lin
e
s
s
) 

9
9
.9
%
 

1
0
0
.0
%
 

9
6
.3
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

N
S
L
 K
P
I0
1
4
  

F
O
I 
re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 v
s
 F
O
I 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

w
it
h
in
 t
im
e
  

1
0
0
.0
%
 

1
0
0
.0
%
 

8
2
.0
%
 

W
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 

84



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

2
.7
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 p
ro
je
c
t 
p
o
rt
fo
li
o
 

T
h
e
 b
e
lo
w
 t
a
b
le
 i
llu
s
tr
a
te
s
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 p
e
rf
o
rm

in
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
ll 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 w
it
h
in
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 b
u
ild
s
 a
n
d
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 t
a
b
le
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
a
ll 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
 t
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
, 
h

ig
h

lig
h

ti
n

g
 a

n
y
 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t.
 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 
G

re
e

n
 

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
m

b
e

r 
S

ta
tu

s
 

R
e

d
 

S
ta

tu
s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

3
 

4
 

- 

T
h
e

 D
e

p
o

t 
re

lo
c
a

ti
o
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 r

a
te

d
 a

s
 a

m
b

e
r.

 O
a

k
le

ig
h

 R
o

a
d

 S
o
u

th
, 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 W

in
te

rs
 s

it
e

 
a

d
ja

c
e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 f
o

rm
e

r 
A

b
b

o
tt

s
 D

e
p

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 h
a
d

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 d
ra

w
n

 u
p

 r
e

a
d

y
 f
o

r 
e

x
c
h

a
n

g
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 

F
u

ll 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
o
n

 t
h
e

 1
4

th
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

5
. 
T

h
e

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 f
ro

m
 A

m
b

e
r 

to
 

G
re

e
n

 r
a

g
 r

a
ti
n

g
 a

s
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 T
h

e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 

a
m

b
e

r 
ra

te
d

 a
s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 l
im

it
e

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

it
h

 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 e

x
p

e
rt

is
e

 /
 s

k
ill

 t
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

A
 n

e
w

 p
ro

je
c
t 
te

a
m

 a
n
d

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

o
lle

d
 

o
u

t 
a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
5

. 
T

h
e
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 S

k
ill

s
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 r
a

te
d

 a
s
 a

m
b
e

r 
ra

te
d

, 
C

o
m

p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 D
ia

lo
g
u

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 b

y
 a

 m
o
n

th
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 i
n

 M
a

y
 t

h
o

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

s
h
o

u
ld

 d
e

liv
e

r 
to

 a
g
re

e
d

 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
s
. 
  

C
a

p
it
a

l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

2
0
 

9
 

2
 

T
h
e

 N
o

rt
h

w
a

y
/F

a
ir

w
a

y
 i
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 r

e
d

 r
a

te
d

 d
u

e
 t
o

 i
s
s
u
e

 w
it
h

 K
ie

r 
s
ti
ll 

n
o

t 
p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
fe

c
ti
v
e

 g
a

b
io

n
 w

a
ll.

 T
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o
n

 A
c
a
d

e
m

y
 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 L

o
n
d

o
n

 A
c
a

d
e
m

y
 o

v
e

r 
d

e
ta

ile
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 t

im
e

s
c
a

le
s
. 
A

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 h
a

v
e

 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
e

d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

, 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a

l 
c
o

m
p
le

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 t
a

k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 a
t 

C
o

p
th

a
ll.
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 s

o
m

e
 

ti
m

e
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 o

n
 2

0
1
5

/1
6
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
it
h

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

t 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 A
c
a

d
e
m

y
 a

n
d
 M

o
n

k
fr

it
h

. 

 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n
 

1
0
 

3
 

1
 

B
re

n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

 h
a

s
 m

o
v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 a
n
 a

m
b
e

r 
to

 g
re

e
n

 r
a

ti
n

g
, 

a
s
 g

o
o

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

m
a

d
e

. 
In

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
th

e
 B

X
C

 S
o

u
th

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
le

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

rg
e

n
t 

R
e

la
te

d
 a

s
 t

h
e

 p
re

fe
rr

e
d

 b
id

d
e

r.
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 N
o

rt
h

 n
o

w
 e

x
c
h

a
n

g
e
d
 

a
n

d
 
th

e
 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 
e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 
to

 
th

e
 
a
m

o
u
n

t 
o
f 

£
9

7
 
m

ill
io

n
 
fo

r 
T

h
a
m

e
s
lin

k
. 

G
ra

n
v
ill

e
 
R

o
a

d
 
h

a
s
 
d
e

te
ri
o

ra
te

d
 
to

 
a

 
re

d
 
ra

ti
n

g
 
a

s
 
th

e
 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 
re

fu
s
e

d
 
p
la

n
n

in
g
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

 
o
n

 
2

5
th

 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 
2

0
1

5
. 

P
o

s
it
iv

e
ly

, 
it
 
is

 
n
o

te
d

 
th

a
t 

th
e

 
R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

is
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

le
v
e

l.
 

 

85



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 U

n
it

 T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 k
e

y
 c

ro
s

s
-c

u
tt

in
g

 p
ro

je
c

ts
  

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 (

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

, 
A

d
u

lt
s
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 S
tr

e
e

t 
S

c
e

n
e

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
) 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

m
e

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 

U
n

if
ie

d
 R

e
w

a
rd

 a
n

d
 S

m
a

rt
e

r 
W

o
rk

in
g
 (

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 s

ta
ff
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

) 
a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
 

 

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 U

n
it

 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

L
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
a

 f
u

tu
re

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 m

o
d

e
l 
fo

r 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 S
k
ill

s
. 

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 m

e
e

t 
fu

tu
re

 n
e

e
d

s
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 c

h
a
n

g
in

g
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
v
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
S

e
e

k
in

g
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
g
iv

in
g
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 g

o
o

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 b

y
 t

a
k
in

g
 a

n
 i
n

 d
e

p
th

 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 w
a

y
 w

e
 w

o
rk

. 

A
d

u
lt
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

D
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

v
o

lu
m

e
 o

f 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 f

o
u

r 
m

a
jo

r 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
: 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 
c
u

rr
e
n

t 
M

T
F

S
; 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 
to

 
c
o
m

p
ly

 
w

it
h

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 
o
f 

th
e
 

C
a

re
 A

c
t;

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
n

g
 i
n

 I
T

; 
a

n
d
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
n

te
g
ra

ti
o

n
. 

S
tr

e
e

t 
S

c
e

n
e

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

C
o

-o
rd

in
a

ti
n

g
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
r 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 P

a
rk

in
g
, 

P
a

rk
s
, 

W
a
s
te

, 
S

tr
e

e
ts

 a
n
d

 P
a
s
s
e

n
g
e

r 
T

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
. 

S
m

a
rt

e
r 

W
o

rk
in

g
 

T
h
e

 
e

n
a
b

le
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
 
A

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 
R

a
ti
o

n
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
c
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
n

g
 
a
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 /
 i

n
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
: 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

; 
th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 f
it
-

o
u

t 
o
f 

a
n

 
o

p
ti
m

is
e

d
 

o
ff

ic
e

 
e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t;

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

in
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

 
te

c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
 

a
n

d
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t;
 H

R
 p

o
lic

y
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
; 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it
 t

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
s
; 

a
n
d

 A
g
ile

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
. 

U
n

if
ie

d
 R

e
w

a
rd

 
T

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 s

in
g
le

, 
u

n
if
ie

d
 p

a
y
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
; 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
, 

n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o
n

 
a

n
d
 

c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 
o
n

 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

to
 

te
rm

s
 

a
n
d

 
c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 o

r 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 

 

86



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 3
. 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
E
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

 T
h

is
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

s
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

u
s

to
m

e
r 

e
x

p
e

ri
e

n
c

e
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t’

s
 r

e
s

id
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
. 

 
 T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
fo
r 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 –
 a
ll 
b
u
t 
tw
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 s
h
o
w
e
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 t
h
a
t 

d
id
 n
o
t 
im
p
ro
v
e
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 c
o
m
fo
rt
a
b
ly
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 S
e
e
 f
ig
u
re
 1
 b
e
lo
w
. 
 

 N
o
n
e
th
e
le
s
s
, 
th
e
s
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 f
ro
m
 l
o
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
, 
s
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
s
ti
ll 
o
n
ly
 m

e
t 
6
 o
f 
it
s
 1
2
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 a
 g
o
o
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
, 
B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
u
s
e
 w

a
it
 t
im
e
s
 a
n
d
 F
re
e
d
o
m
 o
f 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
e
s
ts
 r
e
m
a
in
 g
o
o
d
, 
b
u
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 o
n
 t
im
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
, 
c
a
lls
, 
e
m
a
ils
, 
w
e
b
fo
rm

s
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 b
e
lo
w
 t
a
rg
e
t,
 a
n
d
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 e
m
a
ils
 

a
n
d
 w
e
b
fo
rm

s
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 l
o
w
. 

 T
h
e
 o
n
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 e
n
o
u
g
h
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
s
in
c
e
 Q
3
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
w
a
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
iv
e
n
e
s
s
 t
o
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
’ 
e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 r
o
s
e
 f
ro
m
 7
8
%
 t
o
 9
3
%
 

in
 5
 w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s
. 
T
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
 i
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
im
e
ly
 c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
, 
a
s
 j
u
s
t 
6
9
%
 w
e
re
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 5
 d
a
y
s
, 
o
n
ly
 a
 2
 %

 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 s
in
c
e
 Q
3
. 

 T
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 g
a
p
s
 w
e
re
: 

 •
 
re
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 w
e
b
fo
rm

s
 a
n
d
 e
m
a
il
s
 b
y
 C
S
G
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 –
 7
4
%
 o
f 
w
e
b
fo
rm

s
 a
n
d
 8
1
%
 o
f 
e
m
a
ils
 w
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 w
it
h
in
 5
 w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
9
0
%

. 
T
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
w
e
b
fo
rm

s
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w
e
re
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &
 S
k
ill
s
 (
9
2
%
) 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
e
m
a
ils
, 
th
o
s
e
 f
o
r 
S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 D
ir
e
c
t 

(1
0
0
%
).
 T
h
e
 w
o
rs
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
n
 w
e
b
fo
rm

s
 w
e
re
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 p
a
rk
in
g
/a
s
s
is
te
d
 t
ra
v
e
l 
(C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
, 
6
2
%
) 
a
n
d
 o
n
 e
m
a
ils
 w
e
re
 t
h
o
s
e
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 (
7
3
%
).
 

 

•
 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 w
e
b
fo
rm

s
 a
n
d
 e
m
a
il
s
 b
y
 C
S
G
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 –
 a
t 
4
9
%
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 i
n
 Q

4
, 
a
s
 i
n
 Q
3
, 
th
is
 h
a
s
 l
a
g
g
e
d
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 

b
e
h
in
d
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
 s
in
c
e
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
4
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
c
a
u
s
e
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
 s
in
c
e
 i
t 
is
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 

w
e
b
 s
e
lf
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
la
ti
v
e
 t
o
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t.
 

 

•
 
c
a
ll
 
a
n
s
w
e
ri
n
g
 
b
y
 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 
s
ta
ff
 
–
 
o
n
ly
 
7
3
%
 
c
a
lls
 
to
 
d
e
s
k
 
p
h
o
n
e
s
 
w
e
re
 
a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 
w
it
h
in
 
2
0
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
s
, 
a
n
d
 
7
9
%
 
a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 
in
 
to
ta
l.
 
T
h
e
 
b
e
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w
a
s
 b
y
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 (
8
6
%
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
m
a
lle
s
t 
te
a
m
) 
th
e
 w
o
rs
t 
b
y
 R
e
 (
7
0
%
).
 

 
 T
h
e
 n
e
w
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
c
a
s
e
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 w
it
h
in
 S
L
A
 s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 g
a
p
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 a
n
d
 

th
o
s
e
 a
c
tu
a
lly
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 (
7
0
%
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
in
it
ia
l 
ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 
7
5
%
),
 w
h
ic
h
 l
e
a
d
s
 t
o
 d
is
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
e
a
t 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
b
y
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
. 
A
 n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 w
h
o
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 m

e
a
n
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
is
 c
o
h
o
rt
 i
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 a
b
o
v
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 a
t 
8
7
%
, 
b
u
t 
th
e
 c
o
h
o
rt
 w
a
s
 v
e
ry
 s
m
a
ll 
a
t 
ju
s
t 

2
0
9
 c
a
s
e
s
 o
u
t 
o
f 
a
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
2
5
,8
1
2
 c
a
s
e
s
. 

 

87



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

T
h
e
 n
e
w
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
b
s
it
e
 w
a
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 o
n
 1
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
5
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 f
e
w
e
r 
b
u
t 
b
e
tt
e
r 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 p
a
g
e
s
, 
a
 n
e
w
 ‘
F
A
Q
’ 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 a
 n
e
w
 ‘
M
y
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t’
 

fa
c
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
s
e
c
u
re
 o
n
lin
e
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
re
 b
e
n
e
fi
tt
in
g
 a
n
d
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
is
 c
h
a
n
n
e
l 
b
y
 

p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
y
e
a
r.
 

   F
ig

u
re

 1
: 
O
v
e
ra
ll 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 Q
4
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 Q
3
 

 
 

88



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

A
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
d
a
ta
, 
a
n
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
d
if
fe
rs
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 b
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 -
 s
e
e
 f
ig
u
re
 2
 b
e
lo
w
. 
In
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
, 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 S

k
ill
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w

it
h
 s
e
v
e
n
 o
f 
te
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 m

e
t.
 H

o
w
e
v
e
r,
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 u
n
it
 w
e
re
 l
e
s
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 g
e
t 
a
 g
o
o
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
 o
n
ly
 f
o
u
r 
o
u
t 
o
f 
te
n
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 m

e
t.
 M

e
a
n
w
h
ile
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 m

u
lt
ip
le
 a
re
a
s
 

w
h
e
re
 w
e
 d
o
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
b
le
 d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
R
E
 a
n
d
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 r
u
n
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
c
e
n
tr
e
s
; 
th
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 e
m
a
ils
 

a
n
d
 c
lo
s
in
g
 c
a
s
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
. 

 F
ig

u
e

 2
: 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 b
y
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
 i
n
 Q
4
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 b
y
 C
S
G
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
n
d
lin
g
 c
a
lls
, 
e
m
a
ils
 &
 w
e
b
fo
rm
s
, 
re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
D
U
s
 

 

89



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

S
ta
g
e
 1
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 1
7
%
 f
ro
m
 Q

3
, 
fr
o
m
 5
1
9
 t
o
 6
0
7
, 
d
ri
v
e
n
 b
y
 a
 d
o
u
b
lin
g
 f
o
r 
C
S
G
 f
ro
m
 6
1
 t
o
 1
3
0
 i
n
 Q

4
, 
a
n
d
 a
 9
%
 r
is
e
s
 f
o
r 
B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 (
to
 

3
0
3
) 
a
n
d
 S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 (
to
 8
1
).
  
O
n
ly
 t
h
re
e
 D
U
s
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
d
 8
0
%
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 w
it
h
in
 S
L
A
 –
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 S
k
ill
s
, 
F
a
m
ily
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
. 
L
a
c
k
 

o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
s
iv
e
n
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 c
a
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 r
e
p
e
a
t 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
a
n
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 e
s
c
a
la
te
d
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
. 

T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 2
9
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
m
b
u
d
s
m
a
n
 i
n
 Q
4
, 
w
h
ic
h
 s
h
o
w
s
 a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
tr
u
s
t 
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
, 
w
h
e
re
a
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
o
n
ly
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 1
9
 s
ta
g
e
 3
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
. 
T
h
e
 L
G
O
 w
ill
 u
s
u
a
lly
 o
n
ly
 c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
a
n
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 i
f 
th
e
 c
a
s
e
 h
a
s
 m

e
ri
t 
a
n
d
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
ll 
s
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 3
-s
ta
g
e
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
, 
s
o
 n
o
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
. 
S
im
ila
rl
y
, 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 o
n
ly
 c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
a
 s
ta
g
e
 3
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 

if
 i
t 
ju
d
g
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
a
s
e
 w
a
s
 n
o
t 
re
s
o
lv
e
d
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 a
t 
s
ta
g
e
 2
. 

S
ta
g
e
 3
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
e
re
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 h
ig
h
e
r 
in
 Q
4
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 w
it
h
 Q
3
, 
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 7
 t
o
 1
9
, 
b
u
t 
1
2
 w
e
re
 d
e
c
lin
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 L
G
O
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
w
o
 m

a
la
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 Q
4
, 
re
q
u
ir
in
g
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
o
m
p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
–
 o
n
e
 f
o
r 
H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
, 
a
n
d
 o
n
e
 f
o
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
. 

  1
. 
D
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 p
ro
m
is
e
d
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 

 O
v
e
ra
ll,
 7
0
%
 o
f 
re
c
o
rd
e
d
 c
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 Q
4
 w
e
re
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
m
is
e
d
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
, 
a
n
d
 9
3
%
 o
f 
‘C
A
S
 c
a
s
e
s
’ 
- 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
w
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 

re
q
u
ir
in
g
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 –
 w
e
re
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 o
n
 t
im
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
fr
o
m
 6
1
%
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 i
n
 Q
3
, 
a
n
d
 6
1
%
 f
o
r 
‘C
A
S
’ 
c
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 Q
3
, 
b
u
t 
s
ti
ll 

a
 w
a
y
 o
ff
 t
h
e
 7
5
%
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 

 ‘C
A
S
 c
a
s
e
s
’ 
a
re
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
e
re
 C
S
G
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
e
a
m
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
u
s
in
g
 a
 s
e
t 
o
f 
a
g
re
e
d
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 c
h
a
s
e
 f
o
r 
ti
m
e
ly
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
n
 

th
e
ir
 b
e
h
a
lf
. 
T
h
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 s
h
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
o
n
ly
 a
 t
in
y
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 n
e
e
d
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
b
u
t 
th
e
ir
 c
a
s
e
s
 a
re
 m
o
re
 o
ft
e
n
 

re
s
o
lv
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
. 
 

 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 d
e
s
p
it
e
 a
 v
e
ry
 s
m
a
ll 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
, 
th
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 o
f 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &
 S
k
ill
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
a
s
 p
o
o
r 
in
 Q
4
 w
it
h
 n
o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 7
 

C
A
S
 c
a
s
e
s
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 S
L
A
. 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
w
h
y
 t
h
is
 w
a
s
 i
s
 a
w
a
it
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 g
a
p
s
 i
n
 t
h
is
 d
a
ta
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 n
o
t 
a
ll 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
s
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 C
R
M
 s
y
s
te
m
 L
a
g
a
n
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
rd
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
s
e
s
. 
T
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
 d
a
ta
 b
e
lo
w
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
: 

•
 

a
ll 
C
S
G
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
a
s
e
s
 

•
 

a
ll 
S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 c
a
s
e
s
 

•
 

a
ll 
R
e
 c
a
s
e
s
 (
re
c
o
rd
e
d
 o
n
 a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 s
y
s
te
m
, 
n
o
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 d
a
ta
 o
n
 C
A
S
 c
a
s
e
s
) 

 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 c
a
s
e
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
D
U
s
 a
re
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
. 
B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 d
o
 n
o
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
b
le
 f
ig
u
re
s
. 
 

 

90



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

F
ig

u
re

 3
: 
C
a
s
e
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 o
n
 t
im
e
 (
w
it
h
in
 S
L
A
) 
b
y
 C
S
G
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
, 
a
n
d
 R
E
 -
 b
ro
k
e
n
 d
o
w
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 D
U
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
e
s
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 

M
o
n
th

 
D

U
 

T
o
ta

l 
C

a
s
e
s
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 C

A
S
 

C
a
s
e
s
) 

T
o
ta

l 
C

A
S
 

E
s
c
a
la

ti
o
n
s
 

m
a
d
e
 b

y
 C

S
G

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 

C
A

S
 c

a
s
e
s
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 

E
s
c
a
la

ti
o
n
s
 

p
e
r 
C

A
S

 c
a
s
e
 

%
 o

f 
C

A
S

 
c
a
s
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 

in
 S

L
A

 
%

 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 

c
lo

s
e
d
 i
n
 S

L
A

 

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 

A
d

u
lt

s 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
1

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
.0

 
0

%
 

6
0

%
 

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 

C
S

G
 

2
,2

8
7

 
7
 

1
4

 
0

.5
 

1
0

0
%

 
5

2
%

 

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 &

 S
k

il
ls

 
7

8
9

 
1
3
 

3
 

4
.3

 
0

%
 

2
1

%
 

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 

F
a

m
il

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
3

7
 

n
/a
 

0
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

3
8

%
 

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 
8

1
7

 
3
 

3
 

1
.0

 
1

0
0

%
 

5
3

%
 

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 

S
tr

e
e

t 
S

ce
n

e
 

2
,3

9
7

 
5
3
 

2
6

 
2

.0
 

9
2

.3
%

 
6

9
%

 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 
T
o
ta

l 
6
,3

3
7
 

7
6
 

4
7
 

1
.6

 
8
7
.2

%
 

5
4
%

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
C

S
G

 
4

,5
4

1
 

2
7

 
6

3
 

0
.4

 
8

4
.1

%
 

6
0

%
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 &
 S

k
il

ls
 

3
3

1
 

1
4

 
2

 
7

.0
 

0
%

 
7

7
%

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
F

a
m

il
y

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

3
4

 
n
/a

 
0

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
8

5
%

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 

5
4

0
 

n
/a

 
0

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
7

4
9

%
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
S

tr
e

e
t 

S
ce

n
e

 
3

,0
2

3
 

1
8

 
6

 
3

.0
 

5
0

%
 

6
7

%
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 
T
o
ta

l 
8
,4

6
9
 

5
9
 

7
1
 

0
.8

 
7
8
.9

%
 

6
5
%

 

M
a

rc
h

 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 

6
4

3
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

1
0

0
%

 
8

2
%

 

M
a

rc
h

 
C

S
G

 
6

,4
6

4
 

2
4

 
6

5
 

0
.4

 
9

9
%

 
7

2
%

 

M
a

rc
h

 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 &
 S

k
il

ls
 

5
2

7
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

0
%

 
2

9
%

 

M
a

rc
h

 
F

a
m

il
y

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

2
3

 
n
/a

 
0

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
3

0
%

 

M
a

rc
h

 
S

tr
e

e
t 

S
ce

n
e

 
3

,3
4

9
 

5
7

 
2

4
 

2
.4

 
8

3
%

 
6

8
%

 

M
a
rc

h
 

T
o
ta

l 
1
1
,0

0
6
 

8
2
 

9
1
 

0
.9

 
9
3
%

 
6
9
%

 

Q
4
 T
o
ta
l 

R
e
 

7
2
7
0
 

n
/a
 

n
/a
 

N
A
 

N
A
 

9
2
%
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

 
3
3
,0
8
2
 

 
2
0
9
 

 
8
7
%
 

7
0
%
 

 T
h
e
 d
a
ta
 b
e
lo
w
 i
s
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 t
o
 C
S
G
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
a
s
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
o
rm

s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 K
P
I 
ta
rg
e
t.
 I
t 
s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
n
 b
o
th
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 h
a
s
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 s
in
c
e
 i
t 
b
e
g
a
n
. 

 

91



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

F
ig

u
re

 4
: 
C
S
G
 K
P
I 
–
 r
e
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 w
it
h
 S
L
A
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
n
d
 C
A
S
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

 
  2

. 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 m
o
v
in
g
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
li
n
e
 

It
 i
s
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 C
S
G
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 h
a
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.
 S
in
c
e
 Q
4
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
, 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 c
a
lls
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 1
2
%
, 
w
h
ils
t 
fa
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
h
a
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 1
8
%
 (
s
e
e
 f
ig
u
re
 5
).
 A
t 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 t
im
e
 t
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
S
G
 e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 C
S
G
 w
e
b
fo
rm

 c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 –
 e
m
a
il 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 b
y
 8
2
%
 s
in
c
e
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 Q
4
. 
 

 W
e
 d
o
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
h
a
v
e
 a
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 p
ic
tu
re
 o
f 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
c
e
n
tr
e
s
 b
u
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
y
 n
e
x
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
fo
r 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 a
n
d
 w
e
b
fo
rm

s
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
re
 

is
 s
ti
ll 
a
 l
o
n
g
 w
a
y
 t
o
 g
o
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
s
h
if
ti
n
g
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
p
o
p
u
la
r 
b
u
t 
e
x
p
e
n
s
iv
e
 c
h
a
n
n
e
l 
o
f 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
, 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
lf
-s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
b
s
it
e
. 
 

 T
h
e
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in
 a
 n
e
w
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 s
e
lf
-s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
a
c
ili
ty
, 
M
y
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t,
 m

e
a
n
s
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 f
o
c
u
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 C
S
G
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 

y
e
a
r.
 

 

92



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

F
ig

u
re

 5
: 
D
e
m
a
n
d
 l
e
v
e
ls
 b
y
 c
h
a
n
n
e
l 
(C
S
G
 o
n
ly
) 

 
 O
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
a
s
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r,
 w
e
b
 p
a
g
e
 v
ie
w
s
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 b
y
 7
%
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
n
 Q

3
 (
2
,2
0
8
,4
1
2
),
 o
w
in
g
 t
o
 a
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
d
ip
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m
b
e
r.
 T
h
e
 

v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 p
a
g
e
 v
ie
w
s
 i
n
 M

a
rc
h
 w
a
s
 s
u
rp
ri
s
in
g
ly
 l
o
w
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 s
it
e
. 
A
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 i
n
te
rp
re
ta
ti
o
n
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
h
a
t 
v
is
it
o
rs
 a
re
 v
ie
w
in
g
 

fe
w
e
r 
p
a
g
e
s
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 f
in
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 q
u
ic
k
e
r.
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 f
e
w
e
r 
u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
ra
c
k
e
d
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
in
g
 

m
o
n
th
s
. 
 

93



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

F
ig

u
re

 6
: 
W
e
b
s
it
e
 v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 u
s
e
rs
 p
e
r 
m
o
n
th
 i
n
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 
2
0
1
4
-2
0
1
5
 

 
 T
h
e
 M

y
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
la
u
n
c
h
 o
n
 1
 M

a
rc
h
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 h
a
s
 h
a
d
 s
o
m
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
. 
In
 M

a
rc
h
, 
2
,8
7
2
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 c
re
a
te
d
 a
 s
e
c
u
re
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
(s
e
e
 f
ig
u
re
 7
 

b
e
lo
w
) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 w
e
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 a
n
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 
5
 t
im
e
s
 e
a
c
h
. 
T
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
p
o
p
u
la
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
e
n
ro
lm
e
n
ts
, 
w
h
e
re
 a
 u
s
e
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
h
e
ir
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
s
ta
tu
s
, 
w
a
s
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
ta
x
. 
T
h
is
 w

ill
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 b
o
o
s
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
ill
in
g
 l
e
tt
e
r.
 T
h
e
 l
e
a
s
t 
p
o
p
u
la
r 
is
 

p
a
rk
in
g
, 
b
u
t 
th
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 b
o
o
s
te
d
 i
m
m
in
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
rm

it
 r
e
n
e
w
a
l 
le
tt
e
rs
. 

 F
ig

u
re

 7
: 
M
y
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
u
s
a
g
e
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
5
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 M
y
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 

A
d
d
in
g
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
e
c
u
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 t
o
 M
y
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 

N
o
. 
o
f 
M

y
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t 

R
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

T
o
ta

l 
N

o
. 
o
f 
L
o
g
in

s
 

N
o
. 
o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 T

a
x
 

e
n
ro

lm
e
n
ts

 
N

o
. 
o
f 
B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 
e
n
ro

lm
e
n
ts

 
N

o
. 
o
f 
L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 

e
n
ro

lm
e
n
ts

 
N

o
. 
o
f 
P
a
rk

in
g
 

e
n
ro

lm
e
n
ts

 

2
,8
7
2
 

1
4
,5
5
0
 

7
7
8
 

1
2
2
 

8
7
 

3
2
 

 

94



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

3
. 
D
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 a
 g
o
o
d
 o
n
li
n
e
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

 F
ig

u
re

 8
 b

e
lo

w
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 w

e
b

s
it
e
 h

a
s
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n
tl
y
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 t

h
e

 w
o

rs
t 

ra
ti
n

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 c

h
a

n
n

e
ls

, 
w

h
ic

h
 m

u
s
t 
b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

th
is

 y
e

a
r 

if
 w

e
 a

re
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 o
u

r 
c
h
a

n
n
e

l 
s
h

if
t 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 F
ig

u
re

 8
: 
G
o
v
M
e
tr
ic
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
 b
y
 c
h
a
n
n
e
l 
s
in
c
e
 O
c
t 
2
0
1
3
 

 
 In

 Q
4

, 
fi
g
u

re
 9

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 D

U
s
 h

a
d

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t-

ra
te

d
 w

e
b

 c
o

n
te

n
t:
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 (

5
3

%
),

 F
a

m
ily

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

4
8

%
),

 a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
s
 

(4
7

%
) 

–
 b

u
t 

a
ll 

th
re

e
 s

c
o

re
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d

 s
h

o
rt

 o
f 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 6
5

%
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 T
h

re
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 u
n

it
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 l
o

w
 G

o
v
M

e
tr

ic
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 

s
c
o

re
s
 f

o
r 

w
e

b
 c

o
n

te
n

t.
 T

h
e

s
e

 w
e

re
: 

R
e

 (
2

2
%

),
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 (
2

3
%

),
 a

n
d

 C
S

G
 (

3
2

%
).

 T
w

o
 o

f 
th

e
 w

e
a

k
e

s
t 

a
re

a
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 f
o
u

n
d

 w
it
h

in
 R

e
: 

R
o

a
d

s
 

&
 T

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 (

1
3

%
) 

a
n

d
 S

tr
e

e
ts

 (
1

6
%

).
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
is

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 a

n
d

 F
e
b

ru
a

ry
 d

a
ta

 p
re

-d
a

te
s
 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 w
e

b
s
it
e

. 
      

95



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

F
ig

u
re

 9
: 
G
o
v
M
e
tr
ic
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
 o
v
e
r 
w
e
b
 p
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 Q
4
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

 
  A
 t
e
x
t 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
a
ll 
G
o
v
M
e
tr
ic
 S
u
rv
e
y
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 v
ia
 B
a
rn
e
t 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
b
s
it
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 
to
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
5
 (
fi
g
u
re
 1
0
 b
e
lo
w
),
 s
h
o
w
s
 

th
a
t 
w
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 t
h
e
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 
v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 m

o
s
t 
w
a
s
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 (
re
d
 m
a
rk
e
rs
),
 w
h
e
re
a
s
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 

h
ig
h
e
s
t 
o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 m

o
s
t 
w
a
s
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 (
g
re
e
n
 m
a
rk
e
rs
).
  

           

96



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

F
ig

u
re

 1
0

: 
S
e
n
ti
m
e
n
t 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
G
o
v
M
e
tr
ic
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 –
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
5
 

 
  

97



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 4
. 
R
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 w
e
b
fo
rm

s
 

 T
h
is
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 p
o
o
r 
a
re
a
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b
y
 C
S
G
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 i
n
h
ib
it
 t
h
e
 d
e
s
ir
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 c
h
a
n
n
e
l 
s
h
if
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
e
b
. 

T
h
e
 Q
4
 d
a
ta
 s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
a
t 
3
 o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 4
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
c
e
n
tr
e
 t
e
a
m
s
 d
id
 n
o
t 
re
a
c
h
 t
h
e
 9
0
%
 t
a
rg
e
t,
 w
it
h
 t
h
o
s
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
P
a
rk
in
g
 

a
n
d
 A
s
s
is
te
d
 T
ra
v
e
l)
 o
n
ly
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 6
2
%
 o
f 
5
0
 w
e
b
fo
rm

s
 w
it
h
in
 S
L
A
. 
T
h
e
 F
a
m
ily
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
e
a
m
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 1
8
 w
e
b
fo
rm

s
 b
u
t 
w
a
s
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 

9
0
%
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 T
h
e
 S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 t
e
a
m
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 7
8
7
 w
e
b
fo
rm

s
 (
7
9
%
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
to
ta
l)
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 7
2
%
 w
it
h
in
 S
L
A
. 
 

 T
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w
a
s
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 w
e
b
fo
rm

s
 p
e
rt
a
in
in
g
 t
o
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &
 S
k
ill
s
 w
h
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 9
2
%
 o
f 
w
e
b
fo
rm

s
 w
it
h
in
 S
L
A
, 
e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g
 

th
e
 9
0
%
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 

  F
ig

u
re

 1
1

: 
W
e
b
fo
rm
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 w
it
h
in
 S
L
A

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

 T
h
e
 d
a
ta
 s
h
o
w
s
 o
n
ly
 w
e
b
fo
rm

s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 b
y
 C
S
G
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 C
R
M
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
T
h
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
w
e
b
fo
rm

s
 a
re
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 

m
a
il 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 c
e
n
tr
a
lly
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 n
e
x
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r,
 o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 
th
e
 n
e
w
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 i
s
 c
o
n
fi
g
u
re
d
. 

 

98



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 5
. 
D
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 a
 g
o
o
d
 e
m
a
il
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

 In
 Q

4
, 
d
e
s
p
it
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 (
+
8
8
%
) 
in
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
e
m
a
ils
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 (
4
,4
9
7
),
 3
 o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 5
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
e
a
m
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
n
d
le
 e
m
a
ils
 f
o
r 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
D
U
s
 (
s
e
e
 b
e
lo
w
) 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 S
L
A
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 9
0
%
 i
n
 5
 d
a
y
s
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 Q
3
 w
h
e
re
 n
o
 t
e
a
m
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 

9
0
%
 S
L
A
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 d
e
s
p
it
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 7
6
1
 m
o
re
 e
m
a
ils
 t
h
a
n
 i
n
 Q
3
. 

  
  
  

  

 

F
ig

u
re

 1
2

: 
E
m
a
ils
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 w
it
h
in
 5
 d
a
y
s
 i
n
 Q
4
 

 
 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 a
 3
%
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 s
in
c
e
 Q

3
, 
G
o
v
M
e
tr
ic
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
 f
o
r 
C
S
G
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 e
m
a
ils
 r
e
m
a
in
 l
o
w
 (
5
1
%
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
).
 N
o
t 
a
ll 
ra
ti
n
g
s
 w
e
re
 a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
d
 b
y
 

e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
b
u
t 
th
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 c
it
e
d
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
q
u
e
ry
 r
e
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
im
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 a
s
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
d
is
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
. 
C
S
G
 h
a
s
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 t
h
is
 i
s
s
u
e
 a
n
d
 

a
re
 a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
, 
w
it
h
 a
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
fo
c
u
s
 o
n
 S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 w
h
ic
h
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 j
u
s
t 
3
8
%
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
. 

 W
h
e
n
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 Q
3
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
, 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 v
e
ry
 i
m
p
re
s
s
iv
e
 

g
a
in
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
e
a
m
s
 h
a
n
d
lin
g
 e
m
a
ils
. 
S
o
m
e
 

n
o
ta
b
le
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 

 F
ig

u
re

 1
3

: 
E
m
a
il 
G
o
v
M
e
tr
ic
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
  

  

•
 

8
0
%
 A
d
u
lt
s
: 
+
2
2
%
 Q
3
  

•
 

7
2
%
 F
a
m
ily
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 
+
1
0
%
 Q
3
 

•
 

6
8
%
 C
S
G
: 
+
2
2
%
 Q
3
 

     

99



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

6
. 
D
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 a
 g
o
o
d
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

 W
h
ils
t 
C
S
G
 h
a
s
 f
a
ile
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
it
s
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
8
0
%
 c
a
lls
 a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 w

it
h
 2
0
 s
e
c
o
n
d
s
 f
o
r 
s
e
v
e
ra
l 
q
u
a
rt
e
rs
, 
it
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm

s
 b
e
tt
e
r 
o
n
 t
h
is
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
tw
o
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
c
e
n
tr
e
s
 (
R
E
 a
n
d
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
),
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
a
n
s
w
e
ri
n
g
 d
e
s
k
 p
h
o
n
e
s
. 

 F
ig

u
re

 1
4

: 
%
 c
a
lls
 a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 i
n
 2
0
 s
e
c
o
n
d
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 3
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
d
e
s
k
 p
h
o
n
e
s
 

 
T
h
e
 G

o
v
M
e
tr
ic
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 f
ig
u
re
s
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 o
n
 a
 s
te
a
d
y
 u
p
w
a
rd
 t
re
n
d
 –
 9
1
%
 o
f 
1
1
,0
6
8
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 r
a
te
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
s
 g
o
o
d
 i
n
 Q

4
, 
th
e
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
 -
 s
e
e
 F
ig
u
re
 8
 a
b
o
v
e
. 
 

 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 R
e
 c
a
ll 
c
e
n
tr
e
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
 w
e
re
 o
v
e
r 
9
0
%
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 -
 s
e
e
 f
ig
u
re
 1
5
 b
e
lo
w
 -
 d
e
s
p
it
e
 o
n
ly
 m

a
n
a
g
in
g
 t
o
 a
n
s
w
e
r 
5
0
%
/6
1
%
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 c
a
lls
 w
it
h
in
 2
0
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
s
, 
im
p
ly
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
lo
n
g
e
r 
w
a
it
 t
im
e
s
 d
o
 n
o
t 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
ly
 a
ff
e
c
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
. 
S
in
c
e
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
re
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lly
 s
e
le
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
a
ll 

h
a
n
d
le
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
, 
th
e
s
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 t
re
a
te
d
 w
it
h
 s
o
m
e
 c
a
u
ti
o
n
. 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 v
ia
 o
th
e
r 
c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 a
re
 s
e
lf
-s
e
le
c
te
d
 b
y
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
. 

           

100



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 F
ig

u
re

 1
5

: 
T
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 G
o
v
M
e
tr
ic
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
 b
y
 D
U
. 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
L
B
B
 D
U
s
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
a
ll 
ta
k
e
n
 b
y
 C
S
G
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 
 W
h
e
n
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
c
o
u
n
c
ils
 u
ti
lis
in
g
 G

o
v
M
e
tr
ic
 f
ig
u
re
s
, 
w
e
 s
e
e
 t
h
a
t 
B
a
rn
e
t 
is
 p
e
rf
o
rm

in
g
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 m

e
d
iu
m
-l
o
w
 q
u
a
rt
ile
 f
o
r 
T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 (
0
.9
1
),
 s
o
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
to
r 
th
e
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 a
re
 e
x
tr
e
m
e
ly
 h
ig
h
. 

 F
ig

u
re

 1
6

: 
G
o
v
M
e
tr
ic
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
5
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
o
th
e
r 
s
u
b
s
c
ri
b
in
g
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

         

101



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

A
s
 i
n
 Q
3
, 
d
e
s
k
 p
h
o
n
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r
a
te
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
re
 b
e
lo
w
 t
a
rg
e
t 
(f
ig
u
re
 1
7
).
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 –
 a
n
 a
re
a
 o
f 
lo
w
 v
o
lu
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
c
a
lls
 –
 w
a
s
 

th
e
 o
n
ly
 D
U
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
a
n
d
 e
x
c
e
e
d
 t
h
e
 S
L
A
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 R
e
 h
a
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
w
e
s
t 
d
e
s
k
 p
h
o
n
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r
a
te
 (
7
0
%
).
 O
n
e
 e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
is
 l
o
w
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
h
e
 

h
ig
h
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
c
a
lls
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 (
a
s
 s
e
e
n
 i
n
 f
ig
u
re
 1
8
).
 H

o
w
e
v
e
r,
 F
a
m
ily
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 2
1
,2
9
1
 m

o
re
 d
e
s
k
 c
a
lls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
, 
a
n
d
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 

a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 7
5
%
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 w
it
h
in
 2
0
 s
e
c
o
n
d
s
 (
5
%
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 R
e
).
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
ly
, 
th
is
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
x
p
la
in
e
d
 b
y
 a
 f
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 u
p
d
a
te
 s
ta
ff
 l
is
ts
 (
le
a
v
e
rs
, 

jo
in
e
rs
, 
e
tc
) 
–
 B
T
S
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 m

a
y
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
p
h
o
n
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
u
s
e
d
 b
y
 R
e
. 
A
d
u
lt
s
 (
7
1
%
) 
a
n
d
 C
S
G
 (
7
1
%
) 
w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 o
ff
 t
a
rg
e
t;
 

h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
b
o
th
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 2
,0
0
0
 m
o
re
 c
a
lls
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r.
  

  
F

ig
u

re
 1

7
: 
P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
d
e
s
k
 c
a
lls
 a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 i
n
 2
0
 s
e
c
  

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
F

ig
u

re
 1

8
: 
V
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
d
e
s
k
 c
a
lls
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 

 

   
 

        
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

102



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 7
. 
D
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 a
 g
o
o
d
 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

 In
it
ia
l 
a
n
d
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 w
a
it
 t
im
e
s
 a
t 
B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
u
s
e
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 b
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 o
f 
5
 m

in
u
te
s
 f
o
r 
in
it
ia
l 
w
a
it
 a
n
d
 1
0
 m

in
u
te
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 w
a
it
. 
 

 W
a
it
 t
im
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 B
u
rn
t 
O
a
k
 c
e
n
tr
e
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 l
o
n
g
e
r,
 b
u
t 
d
a
ta
 f
la
w
s
 m

e
a
n
s
 t
h
is
 d
a
ta
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 u
n
re
p
o
rt
a
b
le
. 
A
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 d
u
e
 t
o
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
to
 c
o
rr
e
c
t 
th
is
. 
 

 F
a
c
e
 t
o
 F
a
c
e
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
n
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 q
u
a
rt
e
rs
 –
 8
1
%
 i
s
 t
h
e
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 
s
c
o
re
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
o
 d
a
te
, 
d
ri
v
e
n
 b
y
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
 f
o
r 
B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
, 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 &
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
, 
A
d
u
lt
s
, 
a
n
d
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &
 S
k
ill
s
. 

 

 F
ig

u
re

 1
9

: 
F
a
c
e
 t
o
 F
a
c
e
 G
o
v
M
e
tr
ic
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
 b
y
 D
U
 

               

103



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 8
. 
C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 

 S
ta
g
e
 1
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 b
y
 1
7
%
 i
n
 Q
4
 (
5
1
9
 t
o
 6
0
7
).
 T
h
is
 m
a
y
 b
e
 p
a
rt
ly
 d
u
e
 t
o
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 d
a
ta
 e
n
tr
y
 w
it
h
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
to
 C
S
G
 a
n
d
 S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
. 

 C
S
G
 s
ta
g
e
 1
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 d
o
u
b
le
d
 i
n
 Q
4
 (
6
1
 t
o
 1
3
0
) 
a
n
d
 3
7
%
 o
f 
th
e
 S
1
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 
u
p
h
e
ld
, 
a
 l
a
rg
e
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 d
e
c
re
a
s
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 9
5
%
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
n
 

Q
3
. 

 A
s
 h
a
p
p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 Q
3
, 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 S
1
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r,
 f
ro
m
 2
7
8
 t
o
 3
0
3
, 
th
e
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 
v
o
lu
m
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 t
o
 d
a
te
. 

B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 a
c
c
o
u
n
te
d
 f
o
r 
5
0
%
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 t
o
ta
l 
s
ta
g
e
 1
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
. 
5
0
%
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 w
e
re
 u
p
h
e
ld
 a
n
d
 1
3
%
 p
a
rt
ia
lly
 u
p
h
e
ld
 –
 t
h
is
 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 b
y
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 g
e
n
u
in
e
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
. 
 

 F
ig

u
re

 2
0

: 
S
ta
g
e
 1
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 i
n
 Q
4
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 w
it
h
 Q
3
, 
b
y
 D
U

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 
 A
ft
e
r 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
, 
S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 h
o
ld
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 n
o
t 
u
p
h
e
ld
 r
a
te
 –
 7
6
%
 o
f 
7
8
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 w
e
re
 d
is
m
is
s
e
d
 i
n
 Q
4
. 

 1
9
 s
ta
g
e
 3
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
, 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 7
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 i
n
 Q
3
. 
O
f 
th
e
s
e
, 
7
 w
e
re
 a
tt
ri
b
u
ta
b
le
 t
o
 C
S
G
 a
n
d
 8
 

to
 R
e
 (
8
).
 T
h
e
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 s
ta
g
e
 3
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 w
e
re
 d
e
c
lin
e
d
 (
1
2
) 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 n
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
. 
7
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
. 
 

104



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 In
 Q
4
 2
 C
S
G
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 w
e
re
 p
a
rt
ia
lly
 u
p
h
e
ld
, 
3
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 
u
p
h
e
ld
, 
2
 a
re
 y
e
t 
to
 b
e
 d
e
c
id
e
d
. 
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 2
9
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
m
b
u
d
s
m
a
n
 i
n
 Q
4
, 
w
h
ic
h
 s
h
o
w
s
 a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
tr
u
s
t 
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
. 
T
h
e
 L
G
O
 

w
ill
 u
s
u
a
lly
 o
n
ly
 c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
a
n
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 i
f 
th
e
 c
a
s
e
 h
a
s
 m

e
ri
t 
a
n
d
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
ll 
s
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 3
-s
ta
g
e
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
, 
s
o
 n
o
t 
a
ll 
o
f 

th
e
s
e
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
. 
T
h
e
 L
G
O
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
w
o
 m

a
la
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 Q

4
, 
re
q
u
ir
in
g
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
o
m
p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
–
 o
n
e
 f
o
r 
H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
, 
a
n
d
 o
n
e
 f
o
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
. 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 7
9
%
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 w
it
h
in
 S
L
A
 i
n
 Q
4
, 
a
 3
 %

 p
o
in
t 
ri
s
e
 f
ro
m
 Q
3
 a
n
d
 c
lo
s
e
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 8
0
%
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 F
a
m
ily
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm

e
d
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 w
e
ll 
in
 Q
4
, 
w
it
h
 s
c
o
re
s
 o
f 
8
9
%
 a
n
d
 8
7
%
 r
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 
A
re
a
s
 t
h
a
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
re
: 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 (
6
0
%
),
 

C
S
G
 (
6
2
%
),
 S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 (
7
0
%
),
 a
n
d
 A
d
u
lt
s
 (
7
2
%
).
 L
a
c
k
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
s
iv
e
n
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 c
a
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 r
e
p
e
a
t 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
a
n
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 e
s
c
a
la
te
d
 

c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
. 

 

105



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 4
. 
B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
- 
V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 (
L
G
A
) 
la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 t
h
e
 u
p
d
a
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
G
 I
n
fo
rm

 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 

to
o
l 
fo
r 
B
a
rn
e
t 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
. h

tt
p
:/
/l
g
in
fo
rm

.l
o
c
a
l.
g
o
v
.u
k
/ 
  

T
h
e
 b
e
lo
w
 t
a
b
le
 i
llu
s
tr
a
te
s
 h
o
w
 B
a
rn
e
t 
c
o
m
p
a
re
s
 t
o
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
s
 a
t 
th
e
 1
3
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
5
. 

 P
le
a
s
e
 n
o
te
: 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
a
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 d
o
 n
o
t 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
B
a
rn
e
t’
s
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
. 
T
h
e
 q
u
a
rt
ile
 

ra
ti
n
g
 a
p
p
lie
d
 i
s
 a
p
p
lie
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
u
n
it
a
ry
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
ty
 c
o
u
n
c
ils
 i
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
. 

 

L
G
 I
n
fo
rm

- 
Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

  
 

 
  

 

L
o
w
e
s
t 
2
5
%
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

e
rs
 

 
 

H
ig
h
e
s
t 
2
5
%
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

e
rs
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
o
ta
l 
re
v
e
n
u
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
n
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
e
r 
h
e
a
d
 o
f 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 (
2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

£
6
8
9
.9

7
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
5
 o
r 
m
o
re
 A
*-
C
 g
ra
d
e
s
 a
t 
G
C
S
E
 o
r 
e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t,
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 E
n
g
lis
h
 a
n
d
 M

a
th
s
 (
2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

6
7
.5

%
 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 f
ro
m
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
s
 a
 %

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils
 (
2
0
1
2
/1
3
) 

0
.0

0
 

P
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
d
 1
6
-6
4
 q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 t
o
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
le
v
e
l 
2
 o
f 
h
ig
h
e
r 
(2
0
1
3
) 

7
7
.2

%
 

C
h
il
d
re

n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
o
ta
l 
re
v
e
n
u
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
e
r 
h
e
a
d
 o
f 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 (
0
-1
7
) 
(2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

£
5
7
6
.5

1
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
c
h
ild
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 c
a
s
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
e
re
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 (
2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

9
8
.7

%
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
a
 c
h
ild
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
 a
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 o
r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
ti
m
e
 (
2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

1
1
.8

%
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
ra
te
, 
p
e
r 
1
0
,0
0
0
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
g
e
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
1
8
 (
2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

3
6
 

C
a
re
 l
e
a
v
e
rs
 i
n
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 (
2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

8
7
.3

%
 

C
a
re
 l
e
a
v
e
rs
 i
n
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m
p
lo
ym

e
n
t 
o
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 (
2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

4
9
.0

%
 

A
d
u
lt
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
o
ta
l 
re
v
e
n
u
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
n
 A
d
u
lt
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
e
r 
h
e
a
d
 o
f 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 (
2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

£
4
4
9
.8

7
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
-r
e
la
te
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
 (
2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

1
8
.7

 

O
v
e
ra
ll 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 u
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 (
2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

6
1
.8

%
 

D
e
la
y
e
d
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rs
 o
f 
c
a
re
 f
ro
m
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
p
e
r 
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 (
2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

6
.9

 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
o
ta
l 
re
v
e
n
u
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
G
F
R
A
 o
n
ly
) 
p
e
r 
h
e
a
d
 o
f 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 (
2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

£
7
7
.0

1
 

T
im
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 b
e
n
e
fi
t/
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
ta
x
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
n
e
w
 c
la
im
s
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 e
v
e
n
ts
 (
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 Q
4
) 

1
0
 

V
a
c
a
n
t 
d
w
e
lli
n
g
s
- 
a
ll,
 a
s
 a
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
a
ll 
d
w
e
lli
n
g
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 (
2
0
1
2
/1
3
) 

1
.8

%
 

T
o
ta
l 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
t 
a
s
 a
t 
1
s
t  A

p
ri
l 
(2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

1
,0

4
5
 

T
h
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 w
h
e
re
 B
a
rn
e
t 
is
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 a
s
 b
e
lo
w
 t
h
e
 u
n
it
a
ry
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
ty
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 i
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 a
re
 l
is
te
d
 b
e
lo
w
: 

•
 

T
o
ta
l 
re
v
e
n
u
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
G
F
R
A
 o
n
ly
) 
p
e
r 
h
e
a
d
 o
f 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 (
2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

•
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
-r
e
la
te
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
 (
2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

•
 

O
v
e
ra
ll 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 u
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 (
2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

 L
B
B
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
: 
B
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 e
x
tr
a
c
t 
o
f 
L
G
 I
n
fo
rm

 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e
  

 

106



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

5
. 
H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
/P
e
o
p
le
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 -
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 

 K
e

y
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 H

R
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 i

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

  

C
a
te

g
o
ry

 
P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

P
e
ri

o
d
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 

T
im
e
fr
a
m
e
 d
a
ta
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e

n
t 
le
v
e
l 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

R
e
s
u
lt
  

M
o
s
t 
re
c
e
n
t 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 

A
 c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
h
o
w
 f
a
r 

th
e
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg
e
t 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 
A
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

w
h
e
th
e
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 d

a
y
s
 p

e
r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 

(R
o
ll
in

g
 y

e
a
r)

 
A

p
r 

1
4
 –

 M
a
r 
1
5
 

6
 

8
.1

 
3
5
%

 
W

o
rs

e
n
in

g
 

9
 d

a
y
s
 

(C
IP

F
A

, 
A

ll
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
&

 o
th

e
r 
U

n
it
a
ry

 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 2

0
1
2
) 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

re
v
ie

w
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 

fo
r 
e
li
g
ib

le
 s

ta
ff
 o

n
ly

 
J
a
n
- 
M

a
r 
1
5
 

>
9
0
%
 

D
a
ta

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

 

C
o
s
t 

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
p
a
y
b
il
l 
to

 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

A
p
r 

1
4
 –

 M
a
r 
1
5
 

+
/-
 5
%
 

-9
.7

%
 

9
4
%

 
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
  

N
/A

 :
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 
a
p
p
li
c
a
b
le

 t
o
 L

B
B

 
o
n
ly

 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
 

H
ig

h
 R

is
k
 -
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 R

e
la

ti
o
n
s
 

c
a
s
e
s
 a

s
 %

 o
f 
to

ta
l 
c
a
s
e
s
 

A
s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
r 
1
5
 

N
/A
 

7
.5

%
 (
5
) 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 :
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 
a
p
p
li
c
a
b
le

 t
o
 L

B
B

 
o
n
ly

 

 A
s
 a

t
 3

1
 M

a
r
c
h

 2
0

1
5

 

E
S

T
A

B
LI

S
H

E
D

 

P
O

S
IT

IO
N

S
 A

S
 F

T
E

 

T
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
p

o
st

s;
 t

h
e

se
 

p
o

st
s 

m
a

y
 b

e
 

u
n

o
cc

u
p

ie
d

, 
d

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 

d
e

le
te

d
 o

r 
h

e
ld

 t
o

 b
e

 

fi
ll
e

d
 a

t 
a

 l
a

te
r 

d
a

te
 

E
M

P
LO

Y
E

E
S

 C
O

V
E

R
IN

G
 E

S
T

A
B

LI
S

H
E

D
 

P
O

S
IT

IO
N

S
 A

S
 F

T
E

 

T
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s,

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t,

 

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 a
n

d
 f

ix
e

d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 f
o

r 
B

a
rn

e
t 

a
n

d
 o

cc
u

p
y
in

g
 a

n
 e

st
a

b
li
sh

e
d

 p
o

st
 

M
S

P
  
R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
 A

S
 

H
E

A
D

C
O

U
N

T
 

T
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

a
g

e
n

cy
 s

ta
ff

, 
in

te
ri

m
s 

o
r 

co
n

su
lt

a
n

ts
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 o

u
r 

M
a

n
a

g
e

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

(n
o

n
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s)

 

N
O

N
 M

S
P

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

 A
S

 

H
e

a
d

co
u

n
t 

T
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

g
e

n
cy

 s
ta

ff
, 

in
te

ri
m

s 
o

r 
co

n
su

lt
a

n
ts

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 e

xt
e

rn
a

l 
a

g
e

n
ci

e
s 

o
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 B

a
rn

e
t’

s 
M

a
n

a
g

e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

 (
n

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s)

 

A
V

A
IL

A
B

LE
 C

A
S

U
A

L 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

 A
S

 F
T

E
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

w
o

rk
e

rs
 

w
h

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
 w

o
rk

 

o
n

 a
n

 a
d

 h
o

c 
b

a
si

s 

(C
o

u
n

ci
l 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s)

 

W
it

h
o

u
t 

C
S

G
 a

n
d

 R
e

 

T
o

ta
l 

E
st

a
b

li
sh

e
d

 

P
o

si
ti

o
n

s 

(F
T

E
) 

O
cc

u
p

ie
d

 

(F
T

E
) 

 
P

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 

F
ix

e
d

 T
e

rm
, 

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
, 

S
e

a
so

n
a

l 

T
O

T
A

L 
T

O
T

A
L 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

 

p
a

id
 i

n
 t

h
e

 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

C
o

n
su

lt
a

n
ts

 

p
a

id
 i

n
 t

h
e

 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

T
O

T
A

L 
T

o
ta

l 

 T
o

ta
l 

3
,0

8
0

 
1

,3
6

7
 

1
,1

3
8

 
1

0
2

 
1

,2
4

0
 

5
7

9
 

3
 

3
 

6
 

1
2

7
 

107



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 6
. 
M
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 

 3
.1

 T
h

re
s

h
o

ld
s

 f
o

r 
tr

a
ff

ic
 l

ig
h

t 
ra

ti
n

g
s

 o
n

 B
a

rn
e

t’
s

 b
a

la
n

c
e

d
 s

c
o

re
c

a
rd

 
T

h
e

 t
a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

s
 h

o
w

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 U
n

it
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 R

A
G

 r
a

ti
n
g
 i
s
 a

p
p

lie
d

. 

 

G
re

e
n

 
G

re
e

n
 A

m
b

e
r 

R
e

d
 A

m
b

e
r 

R
e

d
 

G
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

G
o
o
d
, 
w

it
h
 

s
o
m

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

S
o
m

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

S
e
ri

o
u
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 &
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
m
g
t 
 -
 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 %
 (
a
b
o
v
e
 a
n
d
 b
e
lo
w
) 

0
%
 

<
 0
.5
%
 

0
.5
 -
 1
%
 

M
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 1
%
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 &
 H
R
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

s
c
o
re
s
 

M
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 2
 

0
.5
 t
o
 2
 

-1
 t
o
 0
. 

L
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 -
1
 

 3
.2
 M
e
th
o
d
 f
o
r 
p
ro
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
, 
H
R
/P
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 P
ro
je
c
t 
h
e
a
lt
h
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
 

E
a
c
h
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
is
 t
ra
ff
ic
 l
ig
h
te
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 f
o
u
r 
p
o
in
t 
tr
a
ff
ic
 l
ig
h
t 
s
c
a
le
: 
G
re
e
n
, 
G
re
e
n
 A
m
b
e
r,
 R
e
d
 A
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 R
e
d
. 
P
o
in
ts
 

fo
r 
e
a
c
h
 a
re
 a
w
a
rd
e
d
, 
a
s
 s
h
o
w
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
a
b
le
 b
e
lo
w
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 a
d
d
e
d
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
h
e
a
lt
h
 r
a
ti
n
g
 s
c
o
re
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
. 
 

 
   F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
if
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 f
o
u
r 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 i
n
 a
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 a
n
d
 e
a
c
h
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

fo
u
r 
tr
a
ff
ic
 l
ig
h
ts
, 
th
e
 n
e
t 
re
s
u
lt
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 s
c
o
re
 o
f 
0
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
 R
e
d
 A
m
b
e
r 
o
v
e
ra
ll 

h
e
a
lt
h
 r
a
ti
n
g
, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 t
a
b
le
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

  
 3
.3
 M
e
th
o
d
 f
o
r 
p
ro
d
u
c
in
g
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
tr
a
ff
ic
 l
ig
h
t 
ra
ti
n
g
s
 

A
n
y
 t
a
rg
e
t 
th
a
t 
is
 m

e
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
s
 a
 G
re
e
n
 t
ra
ff
ic
 l
ig
h
t.
 T
a
rg
e
ts
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 m

e
t,
 b
u
t 
w
h
e
re
 8
0
%
 o
r 
m
o
re
 o
f 
th
e
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
, 
w
ill
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 a
 G
re
e
n
 A
m
b
e
r 
tr
a
ff
ic
 l
ig
h
t.

 
P
o
in
ts
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 

G
re
e
n
 

1
 

G
re
e
n
 A
m
b
e
r 

 0
.5
 

R
e
d
 A
m
b
e
r 

-0
.5
 

R
e
d
 

-1
 

108



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

If
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 b
e
lo
w
 8
0
%
 b
u
t 
a
b
o
v
e
 6
5
%
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
w
ill
 g
e
t 
a
 R
e
d
 

A
m
b
e
r 
ra
ti
n
g
. 

F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
if
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 i
s
 8
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
is
 1
0
0
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
th
e
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 2
0
. 
8
0
%
 o
f 
2
0
 i
s
 1
6
, 
s
o
 t
h
e
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 w
o
u
ld
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
9
6
 p
e
o
p
le
 

to
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 G
re
e
n
 A
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
9
3
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
 R
e
d
 A
m
b
e
r.
  

W
h
ils
t 
in
it
ia
l 
tr
a
ff
ic
 l
ig
h
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
is
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 c
ri
te
ri
o
n
, 
th
e
y
 m

a
y
 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
e
a
m
, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
s
p
e
c
ts
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 

ta
rg
e
t.
 W

h
e
re
 t
h
is
 h
a
s
 o
c
c
u
rr
e
d
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 c
le
a
rl
y
 s
ta
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 

g
iv
e
n
. 

T
h
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
re
d
 a
n
d
 a
m
b
e
r 
tr
a
ff
ic
 l
ig
h
ts
 f
o
r 
H
R
/P
e
o
p
le
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 d
if
fe
r 
fo
r 
e
a
c
h
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r;
 t
h
e
 a
m
b
e
r 
c
ri
te
ri
o
n
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 i
s
 s
h
o
w
n
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 

in
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
d
a
ta
 t
a
b
le
s
. 
  

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
b
o
v
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
, 
a
n
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
th
a
t 
is
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 1
0
%
 o
ff
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
n
d
 h
a
s
 a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
tr
a
v
e
l 
w
ill
 a
u
to
m
a
ti
c
a
lly
 q
u
a
lif
y
 

to
 b
e
 a
m
b
e
r 
ra
te
d
. 
B
o
th
 o
f 
th
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 m
e
t 
if
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 r
e
d
-r
a
te
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 e
it
h
e
r 
a
 g
re
e
n
-

a
m
b
e
r 
o
r 
a
 r
e
d
-a
m
b
e
r:
 

 
F
o
r 
a
n
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
to
 b
e
 r
a
te
d
 a
s
 G
re
e
n
 a
m
b
e
r:
 

1
. 
N
o
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 5
%
 o
ff
 t
a
rg
e
t,
 a
n
d
; 

2
. 
A
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
tr
a
v
e
l 

 F
o
r 
a
n
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
to
 b
e
 r
a
te
d
 a
s
 R
e
d
 a
m
b
e
r:
 

1
. 
B
e
tw
e
e
n
 >
5
%
 a
n
d
 n
o
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 1
0
%
 o
ff
 t
a
rg
e
t,
 a
n
d
; 

2
. 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
tr
a
v
e
l 
o
r 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
tr
a
v
e
l 
n
o
t 
in
 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
2
.5
%
 (
if
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 a
 c
le
a
r 
s
to
ry
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
) 

 3
.4
 M
e
th
o
d
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
 a
re
 q
u
a
lit
a
ti
v
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
s
. 

R
A
G

 
R

e
d

 
A

m
b

e
r 

 
G

re
e

n
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 
P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 

In
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 

N
e

e
d

s
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 o
n

 
tr

a
c
k
 

  T
ra
ff
ic
 L
ig
h
t 

%
 o
f 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

G
re
e
n
 

1
0
0
%
 o
r 
m
o
re
 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
r 
e
x
c
e
e
d
in
g
 t
a
rg
e
t 

G
re
e
n
 A
m
b
e
r 

>
8
0
%
 <
1
0
0
%
 

N
e
a
r 
ta
rg
e
t 
w
it
h
 s
o
m
e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

R
e
d
 A
m
b
e
r 

>
6
5
%
 <
8
0
%
 

P
ro
b
le
m
a
ti
c
 

R
e
d
 

<
6
5
%
 

S
e
ri
o
u
s
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

109



110

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B - Revenue Monitoring by Delivery Unit

Adults and Communities

Budget V1  Outturn Variation
Comments

£000 £000 £000

Births Deaths & Marriages (160) (12) 147 The overspend is in relation to a reduction in income as a result 

of a decrease in the number of citizenship ceremonies taking 

place in Barnet, due to a Home Office decision to move 

resources away from administration of citizenship ceremonies 

and onto processing of passport applications.

Care Quality 1,353 1,227 (125) Staffing costs lower than anticipated as some staff funded from 

Care Act Implementation Grant.

Community Safety 1,911 1,623 (288) Underspend as a result of the move to new CCTV contract. 

Some vacant posts during the year which have now been 

recruited to.

Community Well-being 212 (135) (348) Additional funding received for Care Act implementation in 

14/15 which will not be available in 15/16.

Dir Adult Soc Serv & Health 187 178 (8)

Integrated care - LD & MH 40,845 42,711 1,866 There is additional pressure resulting from  new Ordinary 

Residence clients and an increase in service users with Learning 

Disabilities compared to last year; this is mainly in relation to 

transitions clients where, over the last 4 years, there has been 

pressure on the service due to clients transitioning over from 

Childrens to Adults.  This is made up of 2 elements – (1) New 

clients coming through and (2) an increase in cost for existing 

clients where there is no change in client needs.  A&C do not 

receive any additional demographic growth for the pressure 

caused by the increase in Transitions clients.  There is also 

additional pressure due to an increases in MH Residential 

Placements.

Integrated care - OP & DP 38,595 41,145 2,550 The overspend is due to clients who were self funders whose 

funds have depleted and are now the responsibility of the LA;  

the number of self funders who come forward is difficult to 

predict but the LA has a legal duty to support clients unmet 

eligible needs.  EMI Nursing and Residential are both areas of 

pressure within this line where  client numbers are increasing 

reflecting Barnet's increasing older population.  The £800k 

demographic growth received by A&C is not sufficient to meet 

these additional demand on services.

Prevention & Well Being 6,471 5,175 (1,296) Underspend in relation to early achievement of savings on 

Housing related support contracts, over and above MTFS target 

for 14/15 (being used to partially offset MTFS savings pressures 

within Social Care); and additional Public Health funding 

secured in relation to the provision of Leisure Services.

Social Care Commissioning 936 987 52

Social Care Management 396 319 (77)

Total 90,746 93,218 2,472

Description

111



Appendix B - Revenue Monitoring by Delivery Unit

Assurance

Budget V1  Outturn Variation
Comments

£000 £000 £000

Assurance Management 529 634 105 Unanticipated costs relating to the departure of the Assurance 

Director in October 2014.

Governance 2,630 2,639 9

Internal Audit & CAFT 901 913 12

Total 4,060 4,186 126

Children's Education

Budget V1  Outturn Variation
Comments

£000 £000 £000

Edu Partnership & Commercial 949 740 (209) Underspend from managing the demand in the schools causing 

concern budget.

Education Management Team 196 (97) (293) Underspend mainly from the use of grants to offset against the 

Transport overspend below (part of the recovery plan).

High Needs Support 6,067 6,569 502 Budget reductions not fully realised in 2013/14 and the same 

underlying problems remain.  Projects in place in Streetscene 

and Education and Skills to identify possible ways to achieve 

further savings.

Schools Direct Management -                -                  -                    

Children's Education 7,211 7,211 0

Total (excluding SDM) 7,211 7,211 0

Children's Family Service

Budget V1  Outturn Variation
Comments

£000 £000 £000

Assesment & Children in Need 7,214 7,781 567 Overspend in Direct payments & Respite service, offset by 

underspend in short breaks. Overspend is also due to agency 

covers for permanent posts.

Children in Care - Provider Se 22,010 22,796 786 Overspend due to agency covers for permanent posts and also 

in the Looked After Children's budget.

Commissioning & Business Imp. 3,285 2,476 (809) Underspend arising from staff vacancies, substitution of 

funding sources and use of reserves to bring overall Family 

Service budget back in line as part of the recovery plan.

Early Years 4,697 5,039 342 Overspend mainly attributable to Children Centres.

Family Services Management 899 324 (575) Budget includes Inflation monies held here centrally. This is 

offset against spend in other areas.

Family Support & Early Interve 740 761 21

Safeguarding & Quality Assuran 1,937 2,092 155 Overspend on staffing due to the use of agency staff.

Social Care Management 1,716 1,678 (39) Underspend in legal costs and from part year vacancies.

Youth & Community 7,939 7,559 (380) Underspend partly from vacancies, sponsorship for training 

courses and further substitutions of funding sources.

Total 50,436 50,505 69

Description

Description

Description

112



Appendix B - Revenue Monitoring by Delivery Unit

Commissioning Group

Budget V1  Outturn Variation
Comments

£000 £000 £000

Commercial 1,229 1,235 6

Commissioning Group 639 508 (131)

Commissioning Strategy 406 413 7

Communications 895 882 (13)

Finance 1,930 1,963 33

Information Management 1,003 1,069 66 Underspend on Civil Protection off-set by over spends on 

Information Management due to Insufficient funding for 

iCasework licences and CLA licence, Archiving due to actual 

salary costs higher than budget and in SIRT.
Programme & Resources 754 773 19

Strategic Commissioning Board 904 917 13

Total 7,760 7,760 0

Streetscene

Budget V1  Outturn Variation
Comments

£000 £000 £000

Business Improvement 329 432 103 An overspend due to the employment of a consultant and data 

analyst to contribute to the delivery of the street scene 

efficiencies and service improvements.

Mortuary 142 259 117 Due to the shared service with LB Brent starting in 2015/16, 

there were a number of transformation costs. There were also 

some repairs and maintenance costs related keeping the 

mortuary fit for public use.

Parks, Street Cleaning & Groun 4,851 4,856 5

Recycling 61 147 86 A shortfall in co mingled recycling income from NLWA has 

occurred due to reduced prices per tonne. This income 

pressure due to market changes is expected to continue into 

2015/16. This has been partly reduced expenditure on supplies 

and services at the civic amenities site.

Street Cleansing 4,188 4,252 64 A small overspend has resulted due to the need to retain 

agency staff to maintain service standards whilst a new more 

efficient way of working was developed to commence in Apil 

2015.

Street Scene Management 652 616 (36) A saving has resulted due to reduced purchasing of supplies 

and services across the delivery unit.

Transport (40) (167) (127) There has been a reduction in the usage of fuel, materials and 

general transport usage due to service efficiencies. Low fuel 

inflation also contributed to the saving.

Waste 5,173 5,003 (170) Trade waste income has exceeded the budget set due to new 

business being generated. There has also a small staffing saving 

realised within domestic refuse collections.

Total 15,357 15,399 42

Commercial - Parking and Infrastructure

Budget V1  Outturn Variation
Comments

£000 £000 £000

Highway Inspection/Maintenance 478 353 (125) Staff savings and reduced equipment purchasing within the 

Highways DLO have helped to offset a shortfall in sign shop 

income.

Parking (438) (547) (109) There has been a slight increased usage in car parks against a 

revised realistic income budget.

Special Parking Account (7,311) (7,311) 0 PCN income and a review of the bad debt provision has helped 

to offset a shortfall in residents permit income.

Street Lighting 6,393 6,379 (14) The controlled management system has achieved its £200k of 

savings in full in 2014/15.

Total (878) (1,126) (247)

Public Health

Budget V1  Outturn Variation
Comments

£000 £000 £000

Public Health 14,335 14,335 0 Of the £14.335m PH allocation for 14/15, £14.044m was spent 

and the underspend of £0.291m was transferred to the Public 

Health Reserve.

Total 14,335 14,335 0

Description

Description

Description

Description

113



Appendix B - Revenue Monitoring by Delivery Unit

HB Public Law

Budget V1  Outturn Variation
Comments

£000 £000 £000

Legal Services 1,952 1,883 (69)

Total 1,952 1,883 (69)

Housing Needs Resources

Budget V1  Outturn Variation
Comments

£000 £000 £000

Housing Needs Resources 4,833 5,170 337 A combination of increasing temporary accomodation demand 

and private rental sector prices have combined to lead to a 

budget pressure. This is despite a number of mitgations 

implemented by Barent Homes in 2014/15.

Total 4,833 5,170 337

Re

Budget V1  Outturn Variation
Comments

£000 £000 £000

Managed Budgets 1,148 771 (377) This position has been driven by an overachievement of 

parking design income.

Management Fee (109) 486 595 There has been an overspend due to a higher number of staff 

transferring than budgeted for in the management fee.

Total 1,039 1,257 218

CSG

Budget V1  Outturn Variation
Comments

£000 £000 £000

CSG 23,341 23,341 0

Total 23,341 23,341 0

Central Expenses

Budget V1  Outturn Variation
Comments

£000 £000 £000

Capital Financing 22,616 22,616 0

Car Leasing 2 0 (2)

Central Contingency 5,339 5,334 (5)

Corporate Fees & Charges 399 283 (116)

Corporate Subscriptions 314 244 (70)

Early Retirement 5,427 3,892 (1,535) Under spend due lower then anticipated Early Retirement cost 

associated to pension strain.

Levies 31,252 31,252 0

Local Area Agreement 105 86 (19)

Miscellaneous Finance 765 644 (121)

Total 22,616 22,616 (1,868)

Description

Description

Description

Description

Description

114



Appendix B - Revenue Monitoring by Delivery Unit

Housing Revenue Account

Budget V1  Outturn Variation Comments

£000 £000 £000

LBB Retained 218 64 (154) Underspend due lower staff costs than originally expected.

HRA Regeneration 1,083 1,559 476 There have been been a higher than anticipated PDA costs that 

cannot be fully recovered

HRA Other Income and Expenditure (net)/ Support Service recharges 2,125 (1,592) (3,717) Lowert than expected debt mangement costs have combined 

with increased income for rents and leaseholder charges

Interest on Balances (80) (148) (68)

HRA Surplus/Deficit for the year (3,346) 117 3,463 A small surplus has resulted in the HRA, Leading to there not 

being a requirement to draw on the HRA reserve to fund the 

HRA capital programme.

Total 0 0 0

Dedicated Schools' Grant

Budget V1  Outturn Variation

£000 £000 £000

Children's Social Care (DSG) 427 433 6

Early Intervention & Prevention (DSG) 6,273 5,002 (1,271) Underspend mainly from the take up in the 2 year old offer.

Education (DSG) (6,699) (8,946) (2,247) Net underspend relates to top up funding in high needs due to 

more up to date information from out of borough schools and 

the reduction in the use of more expensive placements.

Schools Funding DSG 0 0 0

Total 0 0 (3,511)

Description

Description

115



116

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 -
 2
0
1
4
-1
5
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 O
u
tt
u
rn
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

S
u
b
-D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
2
0
1
4
-1
5
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

(i
n
c
l.
 S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

S
u
b
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
s
)

2
0
1
4
-1
5
 A
c
tu
a
l 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
( 
in
c
l.
 

A
c
c
ru
a
ls
) 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 R
e
v
is
e
d
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
2
0
1
4
-1
5
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

(i
n
c
l.
 S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

S
u
b
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
s
)

 E
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 i
f 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 U
n
d
e
r/
O
v
e
r 
£
5
0
,0
0
0
 

A
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

£
£

£

In
v
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 I
T

1
,4

6
6

2
7
9

(1
,1

8
7
)

T
h
e
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
s
ts

 w
e
re

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
; 
p
ro

je
c
t 
c
o
s
ts

 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 r

e
-p

ro
fi
le

d
 t
o
 a

ri
s
e
 i
n
 1

5
/1

6
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 d

e
la

y
s
 

to
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
  

C
a
p
it
a
l 
W

o
rk

s
0

0
0

C
C

T
V

 I
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

8
1
4

6
0
6

(2
0
8
)

T
h
e
 £

2
0
8
k
 s

u
m

 i
s
 e

a
r 

m
a
rk

e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 A

u
to

m
a
ti
c
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

P
la

te
 R

e
c
o
g
n
it
io

n
 (

A
N

P
R

) 
C

a
m

e
ra

s
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

B
a
rn

e
t’
s
 C

C
T

V
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
. 
S

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
te

c
h
n
ic

a
l 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

N
P

R
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

 v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
w

it
h
 O

C
S

 (
th

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

) 

th
e
s
e
 f
u
n
d
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
rd

w
a
re

. 

C
e
n
tr

e
 f
o
r 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
L
iv

in
g

2
9
0

4
9

(2
4
1
)

D
u
e
 l
e
g
a
lit

ie
s
 d

e
la

y
in

g
 s

it
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
, 
b
u
ild

in
g
 c

o
s
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 i
n
 

2
0
1
5
-2

0
1
6
 

P
S

S
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 G

ra
n
t

0
0

0

IT
0

0
0

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 C

a
re

 G
ra

n
t

0
5

5
A

ll 
it
e
m

s
 w

e
re

 p
ro

c
u
re

d
 a

t 
a
 l
o
w

e
r 

p
ri
c
e
, 
th

e
 D

e
p
t 
o
f 
H

e
a
lt
h
 h

a
s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 c

a
n
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

.

A
u
ti
s
m

 I
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 G

ra
n
t

0
1
6

1
6

A
ll 

it
e
m

s
 p

ro
c
u
re

d
 a

t 
a
 l
o
w

e
r 

p
ri
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ra
n
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 

re
tu

rn
e
d
.

A
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

2
,5
7
0

9
5
6

(1
,6
1
4
)

C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

M
o
d
e
rn

is
a
ti
o
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

  
&

 S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

4
,3

8
6

3
,4

8
8

(8
9
8
)

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
s
 s

ti
ll 

d
u
e
 o

n
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n
d
 s

o
m

e
 

S
P

IR
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 y

e
t 
to

 b
e
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
. 

M
o
d
e
rn
is
a
ti
o
n
 P
ri
m
a
ry
  
&
 S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

4
,3
8
6

3
,4
8
8

(8
9
8
)

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 -

 A
llo

c
a
te

d
 

1
,0

5
9

1
,0

4
2

(1
7
)

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 -

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 

0
0

0

U
rg

e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 -

 P
e
rm

B
ro

a
d
fi
e
ld

s
 (

P
e
rm

)
0

0
0

U
rg

e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 -

 P
e
rm

M
ill

b
ro

o
k
 P

a
rk

 (
M

H
E

)
4
,3

6
5

4
,6

3
6

2
7
1

J
o
u
rn

a
l 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 o

f 
£
4
4
0
k
 f
ro

m
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
in

g
 t
o
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 
a
n
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 e

rr
o
r 

in
 1

3
/1

4

P
ro

je
c
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 f
o
r 

d
e
fe

c
ts

O
ri
o
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l

8
0
3

5
7
7

(2
2
6
)

C
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
P

ro
je

c
t 
P

ro
fi
le

M
o
s
s
 H

a
ll 

7
3
6

7
3
7

1

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

5
6
2

5
5
7

(5
)

M
e
n
o
ra

h
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n

9
1
7

6
5
6

(2
6
1
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 
p
ro

je
c
t 
a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
-t

e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s

S
t 
M

a
ry

's
 a

n
d
 S

t 
J
o
h
n
s

2
,7

5
3

2
,8

9
7

1
4
4

R
e
p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 
th

e
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

h
a
s
e
 2

 a
n
d
 p

h
a
s
e
 3

M
a
rt

in
 P

ri
m

a
ry

5
3
2

5
7
0

3
8

R
e
p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 
p
h
a
s
e
 1

 c
o
s
ts

 

O
a
k
le

ig
h
 S

c
h
o
o
l

1
3
3

1
1
8

(1
5
)

B
e
is

 Y
a
k
o
v

3
4
8

2
9
7

(5
1
)

P
ro

je
c
t 
C

o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 f
o
r 

d
e
fe

c
ts

S
t 
J
o
s
e
p
h
's

 R
C

 J
u
n
io

r 
&

 S
t 
J
o
s
e
p
h
's

 R
C

 I
n
fa

n
ts

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
0
0

2
3
1

3
0

O
s
id

g
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

0
0

0

M
o
n
k
fr

it
h

4
0
0

2
9
5

(1
0
6
)

W
re

n
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y
1
,3

3
9

1
,9

7
1

6
3
2

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s

L
o
n
d
o
n
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y
1
,2

5
3

8
7
2

(3
8
2
)

D
e
la

y
s
 t
o
 p

ro
je

c
t 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

O
a
k
 H

ill
 C

a
m

p
u
s

0
0

0

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
0

0
0

U
rg
e
n
t 
P
ri
m
a
ry
 P
la
c
e
s

1
5
,4
0
0

1
5
,4
5
5

5
5

W
a
v
e
 1

 -
 W

h
it
in

g
s
 H

ill
 

2
0
1

0
(2

0
1
)

P
e
n
d
in

g
 c

lo
s
u
re

 r
e
p
o
rt

W
a
v
e
 1

 -
 N

o
rt

h
w

a
y
/F

a
ir
w

a
y

2
1
5

1
1

(2
0
4
)

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

c
o
s
ts

 p
e
n
d
in

g
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic

e

O
th
e
r 
P
ro
je
c
ts

4
1
5

1
1

(4
0
5
)

E
a
s
t 
B

a
rn

e
t 
&

 P
ro

je
c
t 
F

a
ra

d
a
y

4
1
4

5
0

(3
6
4
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 o

f 
c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 f
in

a
l 
o
u
td

o
o
r 

w
o
rk

s

E
a
s
t 
B
a
rn
e
t 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 R
e
b
u
il
d

4
1
4

5
0

(3
6
4
)

C
h
ri
s
t'
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

8
5
9

8
1
9

(4
1
)

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 f
o
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

lo
s
u
re

 

re
p
o
rt

C
o
p
th

a
ll

2
,9

3
4

2
,6

1
7

(3
1
7
)

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 f
o
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

lo
s
u
re

 

re
p
o
rt

C
o
m

p
to

n
3
,2

9
2

3
,0

7
8

(2
1
4
)

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 f
o
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

lo
s
u
re

 

re
p
o
rt

O
a
K

 L
o
d
g
e
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
S

c
h
o
o
l

8
9
7

6
4
1

(2
5
6
)

D
e
la

y
s
 t
o
 p

la
n
n
in

g

117



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 -
 2
0
1
4
-1
5
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 O
u
tt
u
rn
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

S
u
b
-D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
2
0
1
4
-1
5
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

(i
n
c
l.
 S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

S
u
b
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
s
)

2
0
1
4
-1
5
 A
c
tu
a
l 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
( 
in
c
l.
 

A
c
c
ru
a
ls
) 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 R
e
v
is
e
d
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
2
0
1
4
-1
5
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

(i
n
c
l.
 S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

S
u
b
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
s
)

 E
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 i
f 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 U
n
d
e
r/
O
v
e
r 
£
5
0
,0
0
0
 

B
is

h
o
p
 D

o
u
g
la

s
5
0
0

3
7
1

(1
2
9
)

S
c
h
o
o
l 
to

 p
ro

fi
le

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 b

u
d
g
e
t

N
e
w

 S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 1
4
-1

9
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

0
0

0

R
e
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

R
U

0
0

0

A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

5
3

5
3

0

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
0

0
0

P
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 
S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

8
,5
3
6

7
,5
7
9

(9
5
7
)

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

8
3
2

3
2
4

(5
0
8
)

P
ro

je
c
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 f
o
r 

d
e
fe

c
ts

T
a
rg

e
te

d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
1
4
-1

9
 S

E
N

(0
)

0
0

T
C

F
 -

 K
it
c
h
e
n
 &

 D
in

in
g

0
0

0

In
fa

n
t 
F

re
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
M

e
a
ls

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
F

u
n
d

6
0
0

3
5
9

(2
4
1
)

T
im

in
g
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

O
th
e
r 
S
c
h
e
m
e
s

1
,4
3
2

6
8
3

(7
4
9
)

C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

3
0
,5
8
3

2
7
,2
6
5

(3
,3
1
9
)

C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 F
a
m
il
ie
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e

S
h
o
rt

 B
re

a
k
s

5
6

5
6

(0
)

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

2
8
6

1
5
1

(1
3
5
)

E
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
2
3
7

2
3
7

0

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
s

3
6

2
7

(9
)

E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
2
9
8

2
5
2

(4
7
)

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
lib

ra
ri
e
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

5
7
2

1
7
8

(3
9
3
)

2
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 o
ff
e
r

4
4
0

3
3
8

(1
0
1
)

C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 F
a
m
il
ie
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e

1
,9
2
5

1
,2
4
0

(6
8
5
)

C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

3
2
,5
0
9

2
8
,5
0
5

(4
,0
0
4
)

C
a
p
it
a
l 
S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 S
c
h
o
o
ls

L
o
c
a
lly

 c
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 V

A
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
3
,9

1
8

3
,9

1
8

0

C
a
p
it
a
l 
S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 S
c
h
o
o
ls

3
,9
1
8

3
,9
1
8

0

T
o
ta
l 
- 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 S
c
h
o
o
ls

3
,9
1
8

3
,9
1
8

0

R
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 U
n
it

E
n
a
b
lin

g
 W

o
rk

s
0

(0
)

E
n
a
b
lin

g
 W

o
rk

s
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
0

0

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
0

0

P
ri
n
c
ip

le
 r

o
a
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

0
0

C
o
rr

id
o
rs

, 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 M

e
a
s
u
re

s
0

0

L
o
c
a
l 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 P

la
n

1
,4

8
9

1
,4

6
2

(2
6
)

T
F

L
 2

0
1
4
-1

5
0

0

T
F

L
 2

0
1
4
-1

5
L
o
c
a
l 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
5
,4

9
7

3
,7

5
0

(1
,7

4
7
)

D
e
la

y
s
 i
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

in
g
 m

it
ig

a
te

d
 b

y
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 T

fL

T
F

L
 2

0
1
4
-1

5
M

a
jo

r 
S

c
h
e
m

e
s

1
0

1
0

0

T
F

L
 2

0
1
4
-1

5
B

u
s
 s

to
p
 A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

2
1

(2
1
)

T
F

L
 2

0
1
4
-1

5
B

ri
d
g
e
 A

s
s
e
m

e
n
t

2
0

(2
0
)

T
F

L
 2

0
1
4
-1

5
A

ir
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 S

c
h
e
m

e
8
5

1
0
5

2
0

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
  
T
fL
 -
 L
o
c
a
l 
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

7
,1
2
1

5
,3
2
7

(1
,7
9
4
)

F
o
o
tw

a
y
 R

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

4
(4

)

T
ra

ff
ic

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

2
0
0
7
-8

 P
u
rs

le
y
 R

o
a
d
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n

0
(0

)

R
e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
R

a
ilw

a
y
 B

ri
d
g
e
s

0
(0

)

C
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 P

a
rk

in
g
 Z

o
n
e
s

0
0

C
o
lin

d
a
le

 S
ta

ti
o
n
 i
n
te

rc
h
a
n
g
e

0
0

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
&

 S
ig

n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
0

0

P
u
b
lic

 T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

0
0

P
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
0

0

C
o
lin

d
a
le

 C
P

Z
 P

a
rk

in
g
 R

e
v
ie

w
 F

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 S
tu

d
y
- 

C
o
lin

d
a
le

 H
o
s
p
it
a
l

0
0

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

5
6

(5
6
)

P
re

d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 d

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
e
x
te

n
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
rs

T
ra

v
e
l 
P

la
n
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

5
9

(5
9
)

T
ra

v
e
l 
P

la
n
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

a
 5

 y
e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 

fu
ll 

s
p
e
n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 y

e
a
r

C
o
lin

d
a
le

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
A

re
a

118



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 -
 2
0
1
4
-1
5
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 O
u
tt
u
rn
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

S
u
b
-D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
2
0
1
4
-1
5
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

(i
n
c
l.
 S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

S
u
b
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
s
)

2
0
1
4
-1
5
 A
c
tu
a
l 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
( 
in
c
l.
 

A
c
c
ru
a
ls
) 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 R
e
v
is
e
d
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
2
0
1
4
-1
5
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

(i
n
c
l.
 S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

S
u
b
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
s
)

 E
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 i
f 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 U
n
d
e
r/
O
v
e
r 
£
5
0
,0
0
0
 

C
a
rr

ia
g
e
w

a
y
 a

n
d
 F

o
o
tw

a
y
s
 

1
,9

6
0

2
,1

9
5

2
3
5

A
c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
 s

p
e
n
d
 a

n
d
 o

ff
s
e
t/
s
u
b
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
ts

C
a
rr

ia
g
e
w

a
y
 a

n
d
 F

o
o
tw

a
y
 (

P
h
a
s
e
 2

)
4
4
2

5
7
2

1
3
0

O
ff
s
e
t/
s
u
b
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 p
h
a
s
e
 2

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 C
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

 o
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s

3
(3

)

C
C

T
V

 P
ro

je
c
ts

 R
e
te

n
ti
o
n

0
0

C
a
rr

ia
g
e
w

a
y
 a

n
d
 F

o
o
tw

a
y

0
(0

)

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 W
O

R
K

S
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

4
0

(4
0
)

P
a
v
e
m

e
n
ts

1
,0

0
0

7
7
7

(2
2
3
)

A
c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
 s

p
e
n
d
 a

n
d
 o

ff
s
e
t/
s
u
b
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 c

a
rr

ia
g
e
w

a
y
s

P
a
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
p
h
a
s
e
 2

)
1
,8

7
0

1
,6

0
8

(2
6
2
)

O
ff
s
e
t/
s
u
b
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 p
h
a
s
e
 2

P
o
th

o
le

 F
u
n
d

3
1
4

3
1
3

(1
)

S
a
ra

c
e
n
s

3
8

3
8

(0
)

D
ra

in
a
g
e

1
1
2

(1
1
2
)

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

t 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 

D
e
fr

a

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 -
 n
o
n
-T
fL

5
,8
9
8

5
,5
0
2

(3
9
6
)

R
o
a
d
 T

ra
ff
ic

 A
c
t 
- 

C
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 P

a
rk

in
g
 Z

o
n
e
s

0
(0

)

P
a
rk

in
g

3
9

8
(3

0
)

L
in

e
s
 a

n
d
 S

ig
n
s

0
0

P
a
rk

in
g
 M

a
c
h
in

e
s
 

0
0

0
0

P
a
rk
in
g

3
9

8
(3
0
)

T
o
ta
l 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

1
3
,0
5
8

1
0
,8
3
8

(2
,2
2
0
)

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

0
0

0

M
ill

 H
ill

 E
a
s
t

1
7

2
5

8

O
u
te

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 F

u
n
d
 -

 C
ri
c
k
le

w
o
o
d

6
6
1

5
0
8

(1
5
3
)

N
o
 a

c
c
ru

a
ls

 n
e
e
d
e
d
 -

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 q
u
e
ry

 o
n
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
G

L
A

 

fu
n
d
in

g
.

O
u
te

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 F

u
n
d
 -

 N
o
rt

h
 F

in
c
h
le

y
7
5
5

5
3
5

(2
2
0
)

N
o
 a

c
c
ru

a
ls

 n
e
e
d
e
d
 -

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 q
u
e
ry

 o
n
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
G

L
A

 

fu
n
d
in

g
.

B
X

C
 -

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

la
n
d
 a

q
u
is

ti
o
n

8
,0

0
0

3
1

(7
,9

6
9
)

T
h
e
 £

8
m

 l
a
n
d
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
n
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
1
5
-1

6
 n

o
w

B
X

C
 -

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

0
0

0

G
ra

h
a
m

 P
a
rk

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

B
u
ild

in
g
 w

o
rk

s
5
,0

0
0

(5
,0

0
0
)

G
ra

h
a
m

 P
a
rk

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

2
5
0

2
9
0

4
0

C
o
lin

d
a
le

 -
 L

a
n
a
c
re

 A
v
e
/A

e
ro

d
ro

m
e
 r

d
 J

u
n
c
ti
o
n

0
0

0

C
o
lin

d
a
le

 -
 G

ra
h
a
m

e
 p

a
rk

 d
e
c
a
n
t 
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

0
0

0

W
e
s
t 
H

e
n
d
o
n
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

0
0

0

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

0
0

0

T
h
a
m

e
s
 L

in
k
 S

ta
ti
o
n

0
2
5
2

2
5
2

T
h
is

 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 h
a
s
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 f
ro

m
 1

5
-1

6
.

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
F
u
n
d
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

1
4
,6
8
3

1
,6
4
1

(1
3
,0
4
2
)

D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
t 
 

1
,7

5
0

1
,5

6
7

(1
8
3
)

D
is
a
b
le
d
 F
a
c
il
it
ie
s
 P
ro
je
c
ts

1
,7
5
0

1
,5
6
7

(1
8
3
)

H
e
n
d
o
n
 C

e
m

e
tr

y
 &

 C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t

5
7
7

5
8
2

5

E
m

p
ty

 P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

7
6

6
2
3

5
4
8

A
 C

P
O

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 t
o
 1

4
-1

5
. 
It
 w

a
s
 

o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
5
-1

6

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 N
e
w

 A
ff
o
rt

a
b
le

 

H
o
m

e
s
ic

a
t

0
0

0

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 C
a
ta

ly
s
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
0

0
0

D
E

C
C

 -
 F

u
e
l 
P

ro
v
e
ty

2
5

2
0

(4
)

O
th
e
r 
P
ro
je
c
ts

6
7
7

1
,2
2
6

5
4
9

T
o
ta
l 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 -
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
F
u
n
d

1
7
,1
1
1

4
,4
3
5

(1
2
,6
7
6
)

T
o
ta
l 
R
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 U
n
it

3
0
,1
6
9

1
5
,2
7
2

(1
4
,8
9
6
)

119



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 -
 2
0
1
4
-1
5
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 O
u
tt
u
rn
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

S
u
b
-D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
2
0
1
4
-1
5
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

(i
n
c
l.
 S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

S
u
b
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
s
)

2
0
1
4
-1
5
 A
c
tu
a
l 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
( 
in
c
l.
 

A
c
c
ru
a
ls
) 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 R
e
v
is
e
d
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
2
0
1
4
-1
5
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

(i
n
c
l.
 S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

S
u
b
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
s
)

 E
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 i
f 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 U
n
d
e
r/
O
v
e
r 
£
5
0
,0
0
0
 

L
in

e
s
 a

n
d
 S

ig
n
s

9
0

(9
0
)

P
a
rk

in
g
 M

a
c
h
in

e
s
 

0
0

P
a
rk
in
g

9
0

0
(9
0
)

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p

G
IS

0
(0

)

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

0
0

M
o
d
e
rn

is
in

g
 t
h
e
 W

a
y
 W

e
 W

o
rk

0
0

D
e
p
o
t 
re

lo
c
a
ti
o
n

9
7
3

8
8
9

(8
4
)

C
S

G
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

0
0

R
e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

0
0

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
1
1
2

1
2
2

1
0

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

1
,1

2
5

2
9
7

(8
2
8
)

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p

2
,2
1
0

1
,3
0
8

(9
0
2
)

C
S
G
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 U
n
it

A
rt

s
 D

e
p
o
t 
L
if
t

0
0

E
n
e
rg

y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 M

e
a
s
u
re

s
0

0

C
a
rt

w
ri
g
h
t 
M

e
m

o
ri
a
l,
 S

t 
M

a
ry

's
 C

h
u
rc

h
0

0

IS
 R

e
fr

e
s
h

0
0

C
S
G
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 U
n
it

0
0

0

S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

ix
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
's

 P
a
rk

1
4

9
(5

)

C
o
p
th

a
ll 

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

1
0
0

1
0
0

0

O
ld

 C
o
u
rt

 H
o
u
s
e
 -

 p
u
b
lic

 t
o
ile

ts
0

0

P
a
rk

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
2
4
5

5
2
8

2
8
3

E
x
tr

a
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e

P
e
rc

y
 R

o
a
d
, 
N

o
rt

h
 F

in
c
h
le

y
 P

a
rk

0
0

0

P
a
rk

s
 &

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 T

re
e
 P

la
n
ti
n
g

K
a
ra

 W
a
y
 P

o
c
k
e
t 
P

a
rk

2
4
5

3
1
2

6
7

E
x
tr

a
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e

P
a
rk

s
 &

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 T

re
e
 P

la
n
ti
n
g

C
o
p
th

a
ll 

P
it
c
h
 &

 C
a
r 

P
a
rk

 P
ro

je
c
t

6
8

2
8

(4
0
)

P
a
rk

s
 &

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 T

re
e
 P

la
n
ti
n
g

P
la

y
 &

 s
p
o
rt

s
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 S

to
n
e
g
ro

v
e
 o

r 

E
d
g
w

a
re

b
u
ry

 P
a
rk

0
0

P
a
rk

s
 &

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 T

re
e
 P

la
n
ti
n
g

C
h
ild

s
h
ill

 P
a
rk

 -
 F

O
G

 P
ri
o
ri
ty

 P
ro

je
c
t

5
0

5
0

(0
)

P
a
rk

s
 &

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 T

re
e
 P

la
n
ti
n
g

H
e
n
d
o
n
 P

a
rk

 F
O

G
 P

la
y
 A

re
a
 P

ro
je

c
t

5
2

5
2

0

P
a
rk

s
 &

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 T

re
e
 P

la
n
ti
n
g

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 f
e
n
c
in

g
 a

t 
O

ld
 C

o
u
rt

 

H
o
u
s
e
 3

8
5
c

0
0

P
a
rk

s
 &

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 T

re
e
 P

la
n
ti
n
g

E
d
g
w

a
re

b
u
ry

 P
a
rk

 T
e
n
n
is

 C
o
u
rt

s
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

2
3
7
a
 £

7
9
8
2
.9

6
 +

 2
4
0
b
 £

1
2
8
5
0

(0
)

0

P
a
rk

s
 &

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 T

re
e
 P

la
n
ti
n
g

S
tr

e
e
t 
T

re
e
s
 E

d
g
w

a
re

 T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 2

5
9
c

0
0

P
a
rk

s
 &

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 T

re
e
 P

la
n
ti
n
g

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
te

n
n
is

 c
o
u
rt

s
 &

 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fe
n
c
in

g
 2

6
2
b

0
0

P
a
rk

s
 &

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 T

re
e
 P

la
n
ti
n
g

N
e
w

 p
la

y
 e

q
u
ip

m
n
e
t 
W

a
tl
in

g
 P

a
rk

  
3
5
1
a

0
0

P
a
rk

s
 &

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 T

re
e
 P

la
n
ti
n
g

T
re

e
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
 B

e
v
e
rl
y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s

2
(2

)

G
re
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
7
6

1
,0
7
9

3
0
3

W
a
s
te

 
1
,3

4
0

1
,0

8
0

(2
5
9
)

tb
c

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
0

0
0

W
e
e
k
ly

 C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
c
h
e
m

e
9
0
7

3
6
5

(5
4
3
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 s

p
e
n
d
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 a

t 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l

A
u
tu

m
n
/S

p
ri
n
g
 C

le
a
n
 a

n
d
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

0
0

0

W
a
s
te

2
,2
4
7

1
,4
4
5

(8
0
2
)

L
in

e
s
 a

n
d
 S

ig
n
s

0
0

n
o
t 
S

tr
e
e
t 
S

c
e
n
e

P
a
rk

in
g
 M

a
c
h
in

e
s
 

0
0

n
o
t 
S

tr
e
e
t 
S

c
e
n
e

P
a
rk
in
g

0
0

0

F
u
e
l 
S

to
ra

g
e
 T

a
n
k

6
0

0
(6

0
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 s

p
e
n
d
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 a

t 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l

F
u
e
l 
S
to
ra
g
e
 

6
0

0
(6
0
)

T
o
ta
l 
S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e

3
,0
8
3

2
,5
2
5

(5
5
8
)

B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p

H
o
s
te

l 
R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
1
2
2

1
(1

2
1
)

120



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 -
 2
0
1
4
-1
5
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 O
u
tt
u
rn
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

S
u
b
-D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
2
0
1
4
-1
5
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

(i
n
c
l.
 S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

S
u
b
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
s
)

2
0
1
4
-1
5
 A
c
tu
a
l 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
( 
in
c
l.
 

A
c
c
ru
a
ls
) 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 R
e
v
is
e
d
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
2
0
1
4
-1
5
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

(i
n
c
l.
 S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

S
u
b
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
s
)

 E
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 i
f 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 U
n
d
e
r/
O
v
e
r 
£
5
0
,0
0
0
 

A
le

x
a
n
d
ra

 R
o
a
d

3
3

0
(3

3
)

H
o
u
s
in
g

1
5
5

1
(1
5
4
)

T
o
ta
l 
B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p

1
5
5

1
(1
5
4
)

T
o
ta
l 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 (
E
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 H
R
A
)

7
0
,7
8
6

4
8
,5
6
7

(2
2
,2
1
9
)

H
o
u
s
in
g
 -
 H
R
A

M
a
jo

r 
W

o
rk

s
 (

e
x
c
l 
G

ra
n
v
 R

d
)

7
,6

3
7

7
,6

6
3

2
6

G
ra

n
v
ill

e
 R

o
a
d

2
0

1
7

(3
)

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

3
,7

7
3

2
,4

1
0

(1
,3

6
4
)

M
is

c
 -

 R
e
p
a
ir
s

1
,3

1
6

1
,6

8
0

3
6
4

M
&

E
/ 
G

A
S

1
2
,5

4
3

1
0
,4

5
8

(2
,0

8
5
)

V
o
id

s
 a

n
d
 L

e
tt
in

g
s

1
,9

8
0

2
,3

2
7

3
4
8

N
e
w

 A
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 H
o
m

e
s

5
5
0

1
,0

1
7

4
6
7

H
o
u
s
in
g
 -
 H
R
A

2
7
,8
1
9

2
5
,5
7
2

(2
,2
4
7
)

T
o
ta
l 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 -
 H
R
A

2
7
,8
1
9

2
5
,5
7
2

(2
,2
4
7
)

T
o
ta

l 
C

a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
  
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b

y
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

)
9
8
,6
0
5

7
4
,1
3
9

(2
4
,4
6
6
)

T
o
ta
l 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
)

1
0
2
,5
2
2

7
8
,0
5
7

(2
4
,4
6
6
)

121



122

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

 -
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
t

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

Y
e
a
r

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

F
u
n
d
in
g
 T
y
p
e

 A
m
o
u
n
t 
£
'0
0
0
 

A
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

2
0

1
4

-1
5

T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 C
a
re
 G
ra
n
t

G
ra
n
ts

5
.2
4

A
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

2
0

1
4

-1
5

A
u
ti
s
m
 I
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 G
ra
n
t

G
ra
n
ts

1
6
.2
2

R
e
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it

2
0

1
4

-1
5

A
ir
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
c
h
e
m
e

G
ra
n
ts

2
0
.1
6

R
e
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it

2
0

1
4

-1
5

C
a
rr
ia
g
e
w
a
y
 a
n
d
 F
o
o
tw
a
y
s
 

B
o
rr
o
w
in
g

1
0
5
.0
2

R
e
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it

2
0

1
4

-1
5

C
a
rr
ia
g
e
w
a
y
 a
n
d
 F
o
o
tw
a
y
 (
P
h
a
s
e
 2
)

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 &
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s

1
2
9
.5
0

R
e
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it

2
0

1
4

-1
5

P
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts

B
o
rr
o
w
in
g

-1
0
5
.0
2

R
e
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it

2
0

1
4

-1
5

P
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 (
p
h
a
s
e
 2
)

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 &
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s

-1
2
9
.5
0

R
e

 D
e

li
v
e

ry
 U

n
it

2
0

1
4

-1
5

G
ra
h
a
m
 P
a
rk
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 -
 B
u
ild
in
g
 W
o
rk
s

B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 

-5
,0
0
0
.0
0

R
e
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it

2
0

1
4

-1
5

L
o
c
a
l 
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

G
ra
n
ts

-2
6
.4
1

R
e
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it

2
0

1
4

-1
5

D
ra
in
a
g
e

G
ra
n
ts

-3
7
.1
5

S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e

2
0

1
4

-1
5

P
a
rk
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 &
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s

2
8
3
.3
8

S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e

2
0

1
4

-1
5

P
a
rk
s
 &
 O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 T
re
e
 P
la
n
ti
n
g

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 &
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s

4
0
.0
0

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

2
0

1
4

-1
5

S
h
o
rt
 B
re
a
k
s

G
ra
n
ts

-0
.2
3

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

2
0

1
4

-1
5

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

G
ra
n
ts

0
.2
3

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

2
0

1
4

-1
5

M
ill
b
ro
o
k
 P
a
rk
 (
M
H
E
)

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s

4
4
0
.2
3

T
o
ta
l 

-4
,2
5
8
.3
3

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 T
y
p
e

A
m
o
u
n
t 
£
'0
0
0

B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 

-5
,0
0
0
.0
0

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
ts

0
.0
0

G
ra
n
ts

-2
1
.9
4

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s

4
4
0
.2
3

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 &
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
 C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s

3
2
3
.3
8

S
1
0
6

0
.0
0

T
o
ta
l

-4
,2
5
8
.3
3

123



124

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 E

 -
 T

ra
n

sf
o

ra
m

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

O
p
e
n
 P
ro
je
c
ts

T
o
ta
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t

P
ri
o
r 
y
e
a
r 
s
p
e
n
d
 

(2
0
1
3
/1
4
 a
n
d
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
)

A
c
tu
a
l 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5

T
o
ta
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 t
o
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

R
e
m
a
in
in
in
g
 t
o
 

b
e
 s
p
e
n
t 
in
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

,2
9
3
,9

6
1
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

,2
9
3
,9

6
1
 

  
  
  
  
1
,2

9
3
,9

6
1
 

0

E
a
rl
y 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
4
5
8
,8

9
5
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2
9
9
,8

5
2
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

5
9
,0

4
3
 

  
  
  
  
  
 4

5
8
,8

9
5
 

(0
)

B
u
d
g
e
t 
fu

lly
 s

p
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 £

5
1
k
 m

o
v
e
d
 t
o
 E

a
rl
y 

Y
e
a
rs

C
C

T
V

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2
8
1
,3

5
3
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2
4
3
,7

0
8
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

7
,6

4
5
 

  
  
  
  
  
 2

8
1
,3

5
3
 

(0
)

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
w

 e
n
d
e
d
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
6
8
,0

2
6
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

0
,4

2
5
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 9

8
,4

5
1
 

1
,5

4
9

B
u
d
g
e
t 
fu

lly
 s

p
e
n
t 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 M

o
rt
u
a
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
7
0
,0

0
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2
5
,4

1
5
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

8
,7

3
2
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 6

4
,1

4
7
 

5
,8

5
3

T
h
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 
fu

rt
h
e
r 
le

g
a
l 
fe

e
s
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
la

y 
in

 t
h
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 R

e
g
is

tr
a
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
5
8
,5

8
2
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
0
9
,4

0
5
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

9
,1

7
7
 

  
  
  
  
  
 1

5
8
,5

8
2
 

0
T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
w

 e
n
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 £

4
1
k
 m

o
v
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
g
e
n
c
y

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2
7
6
,4

4
9
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
6
9
,4

4
9
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

0
7
,0

0
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
 2

7
6
,4

4
9
 

(0
)

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
w

 e
n
d
e
d
 

S
tr
a
te

g
ic

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
S
p
o
rt
s
 &

 L
e
is

u
re

 A
c
ti
v
it
y

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
8
7
0
,4

0
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2
6
1
,0

1
1
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

2
2
,4

6
9
 

  
  
  
  
  
 5

8
3
,4

8
0
 

2
8
6
,9

2
0

O
n
 1

7
/0

2
/1

5
 P

&
R

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
£
4
4
0
k
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
p
h
a
s
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.
 P

&
R

 a
g
re

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
b
a
la

n
c
e
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

v
e
r 
to

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 
th

e
 

c
o
s
ts

 o
f 
p
ro

je
c
t 
d
e
liv

e
ry

. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill
 p

ro
fi
le

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
.

T
h
e
 P

&
R

 a
ls

o
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 £

2
3
.2

m
 f
o
r 
a
 r
e
-p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
C

h
u
rc

h
 F

a
rm

 

a
n
d
 C

o
p
th

a
ll,

 t
h
is

 w
ill
 b

e
 d

e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 s

e
p
e
ra

te
ly

. 

W
a
s
te

 &
 R

e
c
yc

lin
g
 -
 (
P
h
a
s
e
 1

)
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

,8
2
5
,5

1
9
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

,8
2
5
,5

1
9
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
- 

  
  
  
  
1
,8

2
5
,5

1
9
 

(0
)

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y 

- 
P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
5
0
,2

4
8
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
- 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -
  
 

5
0
,2

4
8

S
tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
 -
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
- 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
- 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -
  
 

0

S
tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
 -
 G

re
e
n
s
tr
e
e
ts

 a
n
d
 W

a
s
te

 (
P
h
a
s
e
 2

)
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
9
6
6
,4

8
1
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
- 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 8

5
2
,5

3
1
 

  
  
  
  
  
 8

5
2
,5

3
1
 

1
1
3
,9

5
1

T
h
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 p

a
rt
ia

lly
 W

a
s
te

 a
n
d
 

G
re

e
n
s
p
a
c
e
s
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 S

k
ill
s
 -
 C

o
m

p
le

x
 N

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 S

E
N

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
5
8
3
,2

0
1
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2
0
8
,9

2
3
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

7
4
,2

7
8
 

  
  
  
  
  
 5

8
3
,2

0
1
 

0

F
a
m

ily
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

,8
0
0
,0

9
9
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
4
9
0
,2

8
5
 

  
  
  
  
  
1
,1

9
1
,7

2
0
 

  
  
  
  
1
,6

8
2
,0

0
5
 

1
1
8
,0

9
4

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 f
ro

m
 L

A
C

 e
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
- 
to

 b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

E
X
P
E
N
D
IT
U
R
E

125



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 E

 -
 T

ra
n

sf
o

ra
m

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

O
p
e
n
 P
ro
je
c
ts

T
o
ta
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t

P
ri
o
r 
y
e
a
r 
s
p
e
n
d
 

(2
0
1
3
/1
4
 a
n
d
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
)

A
c
tu
a
l 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5

T
o
ta
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 t
o
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

R
e
m
a
in
in
in
g
 t
o
 

b
e
 s
p
e
n
t 
in
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

A
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
8
7
0
,7

1
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
6
4
,1

6
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 9

3
1
,5

5
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
 9

9
5
,7

1
0
 

(1
2
5
,0

0
0
)

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w

o
rk

 i
n
 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 
 S

h
o
rt
fa

ll 
w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t 

fr
o
m

 C
a
re

 A
c
t 
m

o
n
ie

s
 i
n
 1

5
/1

6

P
a
rk

in
g
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
3
0
2
,0

0
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
5
0
,5

0
6
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

8
3
,7

5
7
 

  
  
  
  
  
 3

3
4
,2

6
3
 

(3
2
,2

6
3
)

O
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
5
-1

6
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

Y
e
a
r.

C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 B

a
rn

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2
7
1
,0

0
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2
1
,2

0
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

1
3
,8

7
3
 

  
  
  
  
  
 2

3
5
,0

7
3
 

3
5
,9

2
7

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 S

p
e
n
d
in

g
 R

e
v
ie

w
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
3
1
4
,6

8
8
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2
4
8
,3

2
2
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 6

6
,3

6
7
 

  
  
  
  
  
 3

1
4
,6

8
8
 

(0
)

E
a
rl
y 

Y
e
a
rs

 (
p
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
9
7
,1

0
5
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
- 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 8

6
,0

4
4
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 8

6
,0

4
4
 

1
1
,0

6
1

E
a
rl
y 

Y
e
a
rs

 (
p
o
s
t 
B
u
s
in

e
s
 C

a
s
e
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
3
4
5
,2

9
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
- 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

1
2
,5

3
6
 

  
  
  
  
  
 1

1
2
,5

3
6
 

2
3
2
,7

5
4

P
ro

je
c
t 
o
n
 t
ra

c
k
 a

n
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
. 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 S

k
ill
s
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
3
0
0
,0

0
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
5
4
,5

1
3
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

6
7
,2

4
2
 

  
  
  
  
  
 3

2
1
,7

5
5
 

(2
1
,7

5
5
)

£
3
0
0
k
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 u

p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
a
n
. 
A
g
re

e
d
 a

 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
£
1
.3

m
 t
o
 b

e
 

ro
lle

d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 i
n
to

 n
e
w

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
ye

a
r.
 O

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
s
 F

e
b
- 
M

a
rc

h
 t
o
 b

e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 £

1
.3

m

P
o
rt
fo

lio
, 
P
M

O
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

,6
9
0
,0

1
7
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
9
,2

0
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
1
,6

4
1
,3

0
3
 

  
  
  
  
1
,6

6
0
,5

0
3
 

2
9
,5

1
5

S
m

a
rt
e
r 
W

o
rk

in
g

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
4
1
0
,0

0
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
- 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

2
4
,8

1
2
 

  
  
  
  
  
 2

2
4
,8

1
2
 

1
8
5
,1

8
8

A
d
u
lt
s
 S

w
if
t 
U

p
g
ra

d
e

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
8
2
,0

0
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
- 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 8

2
,3

2
3
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 8

2
,3

2
3
 

(3
2
3
)

L
ib

ra
ry

 S
tr
a
te

g
y

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2
0
0
,3

5
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
- 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

6
,0

8
5
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

6
,0

8
5
 

1
7
4
,2

6
5

P
ro

je
c
t 
o
n
 t
ra

c
k
 a

n
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
. 

N
u
rs

e
ri
e
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
7
0
,0

0
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
- 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

3
,9

9
3
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

3
,9

9
3
 

5
6
,0

0
7

P
ro

je
c
t 
o
n
 t
ra

c
k
 a

n
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
. 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 &
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
5
0
,0

0
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
- 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

,0
7
9
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

,0
7
9
 

1
4
5
,9

2
1

U
n
if
ie

d
 R

e
w

a
rd

 S
tr
u
c
tu

re
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
4
5
0
,0

0
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
- 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 8

4
,7

4
3
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 8

4
,7

4
3
 

3
6
5
,2

5
7

T
o
ta
l

1
4
,2
8
8
,3
4
8

5
,5
5
3
,4
5
6

7
,1
0
1
,7
2
5

1
2
,6
5
5
,1
8
1

1
,6
3
3
,1
6
8

126



Appendix F : Prudential Indicator Compliance 
 

Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable Interest Rate 
Exposure  

 
� These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is 

exposed to changes in interest rates.   
� The upper limit for variable rate exposure allows for the use of variable 

rate debt to offset exposure to changes in short-term rates on our 
portfolio of investments.    

 
 Limits for 2014/15 

% 

Upper Limit for Fixed Rate 
Exposure 

100 

Compliance with Limits: Yes 

Upper Limit for Variable Rate 
Exposure 

40 

Compliance with Limits: Yes 

 
Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Borrowing  

 
� This indicator is to limit large concentrations of fixed rate debt needing 

to be replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates.  
  

Maturity Structure of Fixed 
Rate Borrowing 

Upper 
Limit 
% 

Lower 
Limit 
% 

Actual 
Fixed Rate 
Borrowing 

as at 
31/03/15 

% Fixed 
Rate 

Borrowing 
as at 

31/03/15 

Compliance 
with Set 
Limits? 

Under 12 months  0 50 0 N/A  

12 months and within 24 
months 

0 50 0 0 N/A 

24 months and within 5 years 0 75 0 N/A 

5 years and within 10 years 0 75 0 0% N/A 

10 years and above 0 100 304,080,000 100% Yes 

 

 

 

127



128

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix G - Investments Outstanding as at 31 March 2015

DEPOSITS OUTSTANDING AS AT 31.03. 2015 FOR LONDON BOROUGH OF BARNET

Deal Number Counter Party Start Date Maturity Date

Rate of 

Interest %

Principal 

Outstanding

Local Authorities £

2000011438 Newcastle City Council 28-Jun-13 29-Jun-15 0.70 10,000,000

2000011442 LB Islington 02-Sep-13 02-Sep-15 0.70 5,000,000

2000011445 Greater London Authority 01-Apr-14 01-Apr-16 1.04 10,000,000

2000011463 Glasgow City Council 27-Nov-13 27-Nov-15 1.10 10,000,000

2000011488 Warrington Brough Council 15-Apr-14 15-Oct-15 1.00 5,000,000

2000011502 Gwent CC 01-Aug-14 03-Aug-15 1.10 3,000,000

2000011505 Lancashire CC 22-Jul-14 21-Jul-15 0.70 5,000,000

2000011506 Newcastle City Council 30-Jul-14 29-Jul-15 1.00 5,000,000

2000011512 Lancashire CC 05-Nov-14 05-May-15 0.60 5,000,000

2000011514 Corby Borough Council 02-Dec-14 01-Dec-15 0.67 5,000,000

63,000,000

Money Market Funds 

2000011284 Goldman Sachs 14-May-13 0.36 18,100,000

2000011251 Aviva 06-Sep-13 0.38 21,500,000

2000011482 Ignis Liqidity Fund 26-Mar-14 0.43 21,900,000

2000011482 Federated Prime Rate 16-Mar-15 0.38 2,400,000

0

63,900,000

Money Market Funds Non specified

2000112434 Federated Prime Rate Cash 15-May-13 15-May-15 0.70 10,000,000

UK Banks & Building Societies

2000010341 Bank  of Scotland 09-Sep-12 CALL A/C 0.40 12,500,000

2000011485 Lloyds  Bank PLC 09-Apr-14 09-Apr-15 0.95 5,000,000
2000011486 Lloyds  Bank PLC 10-Apr-14 10-Apr-15 0.95 5,000,000
2000011490 Lloyds  Bank PLC 15-Apr-14 15-Apr-15 0.95 2,500,000
2000011500 Lloyds  Bank PLC 03-Jun-14 03-May-15 0.95 2,500,000

2000011516 Nationwide Build Soc 23-Feb-15 29-May-15 0.51 6,200,000
2000011517 Nationwide Build Soc 20-Mar-15 26-Jun-15 0.55 8,800,000
2000011513 Nationwide Build Soc 14-Nov-14 14-May-15 0.66 10,000,000

2000011494 Standard Chartered 29-Apr-14 29-Apr-15 0.80 10,000,000

62,500,000

Non UK Banks & UK Building Societies

2000011499 Commonwealth Bank of Australia 30-May-14 29-May-15 0.67 7,700,000
2000011501 Commonwealth Bank of Australia 03-Jun-14 03-Jun-15 0.66 1,200,000
2000011503 Commonwealth Bank of Australia 17-Jun-14 17-Jun-15 0.82 5,400,000

2000011511 Australia and New Zealand Bank 03-Oct-14 02-Apr-15 0.57 5,000,000

19,300,000

31-Mar-15 0.64 218,700,000Average rate of return

129



130

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 H

: 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k

 R
e

g
is

te
r 

 T
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 r

is
k
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

re
p

re
s
e
n

ts
 t
h

o
s
e

 r
is

k
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
t 
th

e
 t

im
e

 o
f 

re
p
o

rt
in

g
 a

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

, 
th

e
 m

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
e
a

c
h

 r
is

k
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

e
a

c
h

 r
is

k
. 

  
 

PROBABILITY 

S
C

O
R

E
 

IM
P

A
C

T
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

N
e
g
li
g
ib
le
  

M
in
o
r 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

M
a
jo
r 

C
a
ta
s
tr
o
p
h
ic
 

5
 
A
lm
o
s
t 
C
e
rt
a
in
  

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

4
 
L
ik
e
ly
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

3
 
P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

6
 

0
 

2
 
U
n
li
k
e
ly
  

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

1
 
R
a
re
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  

R
is
k
 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
ili
ty
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
ili
ty
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

R
is
k
 U
p
d
a
te
 

H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 -
 O
R
G
0
0
3
9
  

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h

a
t 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e

s
s
 

a
n

d
 

th
e

 
s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
c
o

s
t 

o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 

e
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 

s
h

o
rt

 
te

rm
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 

w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 r

is
e

. 
 C
a
u
s
e
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

n
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

h
o

u
s
e

 
p

e
o
p

le
 

th
a

t 
a

re
 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 

a
n

d
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 

w
h

o
 

a
re

 
in

te
n

ti
o

n
a
lly

 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
. 

U
n
e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
d

o
w

n
tu

rn
 

e
x
a

c
e

rb
a

te
d

 
b

y
 

w
e

lf
a

re
 

a
n

d
 

b
e

n
e

fi
t 

re
fo

rm
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
 m

a
rk

e
t 

re
n

ts
 a

re
 

th
e

 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 
c
a

u
s
e

s
 

o
f 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
, 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

g
a

p
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 
te

m
p
o

ra
ry

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o
n

 s
u
b

s
id

y
 r

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
. 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

th
e
 

d
e

m
a
n

d
 f

o
r 

h
o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
u

tt
in

g
 p

re
s
s
u

re
 

M
a
jo
r 

4
 

L
ik
e
ly
 

4
 

H
ig
h
  

1
6
 

P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
: 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 p
la

n
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

re
e
 a

re
a
s
: 

•
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

p
re

v
e

n
ti
o
n

 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 
w

it
h
 

jo
b

 
c
e

n
tr

e
 p

lu
s
 

•
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

u
p

p
ly

 

•
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 
o
p

ti
o
n

s
 

o
f 

a
ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 
s
u

p
p
ly

 
in

 
m

o
re

 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 
lo

c
a
ti
o

n
s
 

 D
e
te
c
ti
v
e
: 

W
e
lf
a

re
 a

n
d

 B
e
n

e
fi
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

) 
in

 p
la

c
e
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t,
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 m
o
n

it
o

r 
im

p
a
c
t.

 
A

 
m

it
ig

a
ti
o
n

 
p

la
n

 
is

 
b

e
in

g
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 
B

a
rn

e
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 

a
s
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
  

3
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

2
 

L
o
w
 

6
 

0
6
.0
2
.1
5
 -
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
: 
 

 O
n

-g
o

in
g
 r

is
k
  

 T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 
ri

s
k
 

th
a

t 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 

a
n

d
 

th
e

 
s
u
b

s
e
q

u
e
n

t 
c
o

s
t 

o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
  

s
h

o
rt

 
te

rm
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o
n

  
w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 r

is
e

. 

131



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

R
is
k
 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
ili
ty
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
ili
ty
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

R
is
k
 U
p
d
a
te
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
ly

 o
f 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o
u

s
in

g
. 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
: 

S
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 
in

 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e

s
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

n
ti
o

n
a
l 

h
o

m
e
le

s
s
n
e

s
s
 

w
h

e
re
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
re

 
in

v
o

lv
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

u
b

s
e
q

u
e

n
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 

a
t 

a
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 c

o
s
t 

to
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.
 

 

b
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 

B
o

a
rd

. 
H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 

a
n

d
 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t 

B
o

a
rd

 
w

it
h

 B
a

rn
e

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 l
e
a

d
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r 
a

n
d

 
C

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
is

 
o

v
e

rs
e

e
in

g
 

th
e

 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 
o

f 
a

 
ra

n
g

e
 

o
f 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 

to
 

b
o
o

s
t 

s
u

p
p
ly

 
a

n
d

 
re

d
u
c
e
 

d
e

m
a
n

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
o

n
th

ly
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
. 

 

W
a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
il
it
y
 

O
R
G
0
0
1
1
: 

w
it
h

o
u

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 
o

f 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 
w

a
y
s
 

o
f 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 

a
n

d
 

c
h
a

n
g

in
g

 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
rs

 
a

ro
u

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
, 

c
o

s
ts

 
w

ill
 

e
s
c
a

la
te

 
in

 
th

e
 

fu
tu

re
. 

P
ro

c
u

ri
n
g

 
v
a

lu
e

 
fo

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 
w

a
s
te

 
d

is
p
o

s
a
l 

a
n

d
 
m

a
n

a
g
in

g
 
w

a
s
te

 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 
b

o
th

 
n

e
e
d

 
to

 
b
e

 
c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 
in

 
o

rd
e

r 
to

 
e
n

s
u

re
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

a
t 

a
n
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

p
ri
c
e

 
d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 

o
p

ti
m

u
m

 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

. 
 C
a
u
s
e
: 

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 m
it
ig

a
te

 r
is

in
g

 c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

w
a

s
te

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l.
 

 C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
: 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

c
o

s
ts

 
to

 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

e
x
a

c
e

rb
a
ti
n
g

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
p
re

s
s
u

re
s
. 

 

M
a
jo
r 
 

4
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

1
2
 

P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
: 

In
-h

o
u

s
e

 
d
e

liv
e

ry
 

w
it
h

 
s
tr

e
tc

h
 m

o
d

e
l 

u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
in

g
 f

ro
m

 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
. 

N
L
W

A
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 D
e
te
c
ti
v
e
: 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

fo
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

. 
W

a
s
te

 
p

ro
je

c
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 
c
o

m
m

e
n
c
in

g
 
A

p
ri
l 

2
0

1
4

 
- 

re
v
ie

w
 
o

f 
w

id
e

 
ra

n
g

e
 
o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 

a
n

d
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
to

 
d

e
liv

e
r 

P
S

R
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

. 

M
a
jo
r 
 

4
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

1
2
 

0
9
.0
1
.1
5
 -
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
: 

 A
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
a
c
t 

iv
ie

s
 

a
re

 
o

n
-g

o
in

g
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 

ro
u

te
 

o
p

ti
m

is
a

ti
o
n

 
to

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
, 

a
n
a

ly
s
is

 
to

 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
' 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
rs

 
a
n

d
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

o
p

ti
o

n
s
, 

a
n

d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 

c
o

m
m

u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

s
 

c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 
fo

r 
e

a
rl
y
 
2

0
1

5
. 
 

S
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 

w
it
h

 
th

e
 

re
fu

s
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

h
a

s
 

im
p

ro
v
e
d

 
fr

o
m

 
7
6

%
 

in
 

S
p

ri
n

g
 

2
0
1

4
 

to
 

7
7

%
 

in
 

A
u

tu
m

n
 2

0
1

4
. 

  

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 -
 O
R
G
0
0
2
5
: 

G
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 p

o
s
it
io

n
, 

it
 i

s
 

c
le

a
r 

th
a

t 
c
u
ts

 t
o

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 
u

n
ti
l 

a
t 

le
a

s
t 

2
0

1
8
 

a
n

d
 

m
o

re
 

lik
e
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e
c
a

d
e

. 
A

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 

th
is

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

n
o

w
 b

e
a

rs
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
ri
s
k
s
 

a
s
 

a
 

re
s
u
lt
 

o
f 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

ra
te

 
re

fo
rm

s
, 

w
h

e
re

b
y
 

a
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ti
o
n

 
in

 
e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 
in

 
B

a
rn

e
t 

w
ill

 
s
e

e
 
a
 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 
in

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

fu
n

d
in

g
. 

T
h

e
 

e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 

a
ls

o
 

im
p

a
c
ts

 
o

n
 

th
e

 
c
o

s
ts

 
o

f 
C

o
u
n

c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
p

re
s
s
u

re
 

o
n

 t
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 i
n

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

c
a

s
e
lo

a
d

s
. 

 

M
a
jo
r 
 

4
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

1
2
 

P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
: 

T
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

c
y
c
le

 
m

it
ig

a
te

s
 

th
e

 
ri

s
k
s
 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h

 r
e

d
u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 a
n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 i

n
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 f

o
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 

a
h

e
a

d
 e

n
a
b

le
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 m

it
ig

a
te

 
th

e
 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 

in
 

d
e

m
a
n

d
 

a
n
d

 
e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 

o
n

 
re

s
e

rv
e
s
 

a
n

d
 

c
o

n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
y
 

is
 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t.
 

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

p
e

ri
o

d
 

2
0
1

5
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
o

 2
0

2
0

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
g
re

e
d

 f
o
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 c

o
m

e
 b

a
c
k
 t

o
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h
 

£
5

0
m

 
o

f 
th

e
 

to
ta

l 
b
u

d
g
e

t 
g
a

p
 

o
f 

£
7
3

m
. 

W
o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 t

o
 i

d
e
n

ti
fy

 f
u
rt

h
e

r 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

3
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

9
 

3
0
.0
1
.1
5
 -
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
: 

B
u

d
g

e
t 
p

ro
p
o

s
a
ls

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

p
e

ri
o

d
 2

0
1

5
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
o

 
2

0
2

0
 a

n
d

 w
e

re
 r

e
p
o

rt
e
d

 t
o

 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
5

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 d

e
a

lt
 w

it
h

 £
5

0
m

 
o

f 
th

e
 t
o

ta
l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
g

a
p
 o

f 
£

7
3

m
. 
 

 W
o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 t

o
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 

to
 

c
lo

s
e
 

th
is

 
g
a

p
 

a
n

d
 

w
ill

 
c
o
m

e
 

b
a

c
k
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 

in
 d

u
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
.”

 

132



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

R
is
k
 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
ili
ty
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
ili
ty
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

R
is
k
 U
p
d
a
te
 

D
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
 

c
h
a

n
g

e
s
 

m
e
a
n

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

fa
c
e

s
 
a

 
g

ro
w

in
g

 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
, 

a
n
 

a
g

e
in

g
 

p
o

p
u
la

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

n
u

m
b
e

rs
 

o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e
o

p
le

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

a
d

d
s
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
to

 
th

e
 
p

re
s
s
u

re
 
a
n

d
 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 
o
n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 C
a
u
s
e
: 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
c
u

ts
, 

u
n

c
e

rt
a

in
ty

 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 

lo
c
a

l 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 

fo
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

ra
te

s
 

a
n
d
 

d
e

m
o
g

ra
p
h

ic
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
. 

 C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
: 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

re
s
s
u

re
 

a
n
d
 

b
y
 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

c
o
s
t 

in
 

th
e

 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 
o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
, 
c
o

u
p
le

d
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 
a

 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 p

o
s
it
io

n
. 

 

to
 c

lo
s
e

 t
h

is
 g

a
p

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 c

o
m

e
 

b
a

c
k
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 i
n

 d
u
e

 c
o
u

rs
e

. 
 D
e
te
c
ti
v
e
: 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 (

re
v
e

n
u

e
 a

n
d
 

c
a

p
it
a

l)
 

a
n
d

 
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

b
e

in
g
 

a
d
h

e
re

d
 

to
. 

R
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 

p
la

n
s
 
a
n

d
 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 
o

p
ti
o

n
s
 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 
in

 
a

re
a

s
 

w
it
h

 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 

c
a

p
it
a
l 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

p
ro

fi
lin

g
. 

V
a

lu
e
 

fo
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 
in

 
u
s
e

 
a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
. 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 

o
f 

M
e

d
iu

m
 

T
e

rm
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

   

R
e
s
id
e
n
t 
E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
- 
O
R
G
0
0
2
9
  

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o
 e

n
g
a

g
e

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 w

it
h

 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 C
a
u
s
e
: 

T
h

e
 

la
c
k
 

o
f 

a
n

 
e

n
g

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
o

lic
y
, 

c
o

m
p

re
h
e

n
s
iv

e
 

p
la

n
 

a
n
d
 

c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 
a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 
to

 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
in

g
 
w

it
h

 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 

 C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
: 

L
e

g
a

l 
C

h
a
lle

n
g

e
, 

la
c
k
 
o
f 

p
u

b
lic
 b

u
y
 i

n
, 

d
o

 n
o

t 
d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

re
s
id

e
n

t 
w

a
n

t,
 

C
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
s
 

n
o
t 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 
la

c
k
 o

f 
tr

a
n

s
p

a
re

n
c
y
 

o
n

 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 d

e
c
lin

e
s
 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

3
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

9
 

P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
: 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
a

n
d

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 
–

 
fe

e
d
in

g
 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
s
 

in
to

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

d
e

s
ig

n
. 

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 

is
 

e
m

b
e
d

d
e
d

 
w

it
h

in
 

th
e
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

. 
 

 C
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

in
 

p
la

c
e

 
a

n
d
 

tr
a

n
s
p

a
re

n
c
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

. 
3

rd
 

s
e

c
to

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
/ 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 r

e
s
ili

e
n

c
e
 

 S
o

c
ia

l 
m

e
d
ia

 
–

 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e
 

m
e

th
o

d
s
 

o
f 

e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 

w
it
h

 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 
to

 
b

e
 

e
x
p

lo
re

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 f
u

tu
re

 u
p

d
a

te
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 w
e

b
s
it
e
 

 D
e
te
c
ti
v
e
: 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 
o

f 
th

e
 

c
it
iz

e
n
 

e
n

g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h

in
 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

th
ro

u
g
h

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 d
a

ta
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 
a

n
d

 
p

ri
o

r 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 f
o

r 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 a
n
d
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
c
a
re

. 

 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

3
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

2
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

lo
w
 

6
 

3
0
.0
1
.1
5
 -
 S
u
m
m
a
ry

: 
 

A
 

N
e

w
 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 
in

 
p

la
c
e
 
a

n
d

 
M

y
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
to

 
la

u
n
c
h
e

d
 

in
 

M
a

rc
h

. 
  

133



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

R
is
k
 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
ili
ty
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
ili
ty
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

R
is
k
 U
p
d
a
te
 

D
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
 a
n
d
 P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 -
 

O
R
G
0
0
3
5
: 
 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 o

r 
a

b
le

 t
o
 r

e
s
p

o
n
d

 t
o
 

th
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
f 

d
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 (

e
.g

. 
g

e
n

d
e

r,
 

a
g
e

, 
e
th

n
ic

it
y
, 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

, 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t)
 

a
n

d
/o

r 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

g
ro

w
th

 
ra

te
 

(b
ir
th

, 
d

e
a

th
, 

im
m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
, 

e
m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
) 

w
it
h

 
in

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
s
o

c
ia

l 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

(s
c
h
o
o

ls
, 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

h
o
m

e
s
),

 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
n

d
 

g
re

e
n
 

s
p

a
c
e

s
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 
a

n
d

 
a

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 

to
 m

e
e

t 
d
e

m
a
n

d
 

 C
a
u
s
e
: 

U
n

c
e

rt
a

in
ty

 
o

f 
d

e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 
c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 

a
n

d
 

p
o

p
u
la

ti
o

n
 

g
ro

w
th

, 
in

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
, 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n
g

 a
n

d
 

m
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
d
e

m
a
n

d
 

in
te

rn
a

lly
 

a
n

d
 

e
x
te

rn
a

lly
 

w
h

e
re

 
re

lia
n

t 
o

n
 

p
a

rt
n
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

 C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
: 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 
d
e

m
a

n
d

 
fo

r 
p

u
b

lic
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

g
e

n
e
ra

lly
, 

c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 

d
e

m
a
n

d
 f
o

r 
ty

p
e

s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 
c
o

s
ts

 s
p

ir
a

l,
 

re
a

c
ti
v
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
, 

c
u

ts
 t

o
 f

ro
n

t 
lin

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 f
a

ilu
re

. 

M
a
jo
r 

4
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

1
2
 

P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
: 

T
e

s
t 

d
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h
ic

 
c
h
a

n
g

e
 
a
n

d
 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

g
ro

w
th

 
h

y
p

o
th

e
s
is

 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

in
s
ig

h
t 

o
n
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
p

ro
fi
le

, 
d

e
e

p
e

r 
in

te
rr

o
g

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
d

a
ta

 
s
e
ts

 
(i
n

/o
u

t 
m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
) 

a
n

d
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
g

a
p
s
 

in
 

d
a

ta
 

s
e

ts
 

(a
v
a

ila
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
d

a
ta

, 
d
e

fi
c
ie

n
c
y
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

d
a

ta
).

 
N

e
w

 
in

s
ig

h
t 

m
o

d
e
l 

w
h

ic
h

 
m

o
d

e
ls

 
im

p
a
c
ts

 
o

f 
g

ro
w

th
 

in
 

a
 

n
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
k
e

y
 

c
o

u
n
c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 T
h

e
 P

ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 S
p

e
n
d

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w
 (

P
S

R
) 

is
 

k
e

y
 

re
s
p
o

n
s
e

 
to

 
e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 

th
e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 f
o

r 
a
n

d
 

a
b

le
 t

o
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n

 
a

n
d

 
d

e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 
c
h

a
n
g

e
s
. 

U
n

c
e

rt
a
in

ly
 
is

 
b

e
in

g
 

re
d
u

c
e

d
 

a
s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 

a
n
d
 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

re
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
 

a
re

 
b

e
in

g
 

a
n

a
ly

s
e
d
 

a
n

d
 u

n
d

e
rl

y
in

g
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o

n
s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 

re
fi
n

e
d

 t
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

y
 r

e
m

a
in

 v
a

lid
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 

p
re

p
a

re
s
 

to
 

re
s
p

o
n

d
 

to
 

th
is

 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
. 

 5
 

y
e

a
r 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 

d
e

m
o
g

ra
p
h

ic
 

c
h
a

n
g

e
 

fu
n
d

in
g

 
a

c
ro

s
s
 

k
e

y
 

c
o

u
n
c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 
a

re
a

s
. 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 
s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 

a
n

n
u

a
l 

re
v
ie

w
 

a
s
 

p
a

rt
 

o
f 

fi
n

a
n
c
e

 
a

n
d
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

. 
U

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 

a
n

d
 

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
ie

s
 

w
it
h

 
re

s
id

e
n

t 
e

n
g

a
g
e

m
e

n
t,

 
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 

a
n

d
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 
a

n
d
 

w
e

llb
e

in
g

 
im

p
a

c
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
. 

G
ro

w
th

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
. 

 D
e
te
c
ti
v
e
: 

T
h

e
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
s
 

th
e
 

s
e

tt
in

g
 

o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

a
n
d

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 

w
it
h

 
a

 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

fo
c
u
s
 

o
n

 
c
ro

s
s
 

c
u

tt
in

g
 

th
e

m
e

s
 

a
n

d
 

ri
s
k
s
. 

T
h

e
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

B
o

a
rd

 w
ill

 r
e

v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
rp

in
n
in

g
 r

is
k
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 
a

t 
re

g
u
la

r 
in

te
rv

a
ls

 t
o

 c
o
n

s
id

e
r 

d
a

ta
, 

re
v
is

it
 

M
a
jo
r 

4
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

 2
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

8
 

2
9
.1
.2
0
1
5
- 
S
u
m
m
a
ry

. 
 

 U
p

d
a

te
s
 

to
 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 
in

s
ig

h
t 

m
o

d
e
l 

o
n
 

im
p

a
c
ts

 
o

f 
g

ro
w

th
 

a
n
d

 
5
 

y
e

a
r 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

p
la

n
 i

n
c
lu

d
e

s
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 

fo
r 

d
e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 
c
h

a
n
g

e
. 
 

 T
h

e
re

fo
re

 
ri

s
k
 

h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n
 

re
d

u
c
e

d
 i

n
 l

in
e

 w
it
h

 t
a

rg
e

t 
ra

ti
n

g
 o

f 
p
o

s
s
ib

le
/m

a
jo

r.
  
 

  

134



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

R
is
k
 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
ili
ty
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
ili
ty
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

R
is
k
 U
p
d
a
te
 

a
s
s
u

m
p
ti
o

n
s
, 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 

a
n

d
 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

. 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

S
C

B
 

h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 
in

tr
o

d
u
c
e

d
 

to
 

e
n

h
a

n
c
e

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 
w

o
rk

in
g

 
in

 
o

rd
e

r 
to

 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
 

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 

fa
c
in

g
 

th
e
 

p
u

b
lic

 
s
e
c
to

r 
a

n
d

 
c
o

lla
b
o

ra
te

 
o
n

 
th

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

fu
tu

re
 p

la
n

s
 t
o
 b

o
th

 d
e

liv
e

r 
tr

a
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 -
 O
R
G
0
0
3
6
 :

 T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
’s

 p
e

o
p
le

 (
c
o

m
p

e
te

n
c
e

, 
s
k
ill

s
, 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

) 
a

n
d

 c
u
lt
u

re
 a

re
 

n
o

t 
a
lig

n
e

d
 w

it
h

 i
ts

 m
e

d
iu

m
 a

n
d

 
lo

n
g

 t
e

rm
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 d
ir

e
c
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 

n
o

t 
b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
a

n
d

 o
n

-g
o
in

g
 c

h
a
n

g
e

 a
n

d
 i
n

n
o
v
a

ti
o

n
 

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 i
ts

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 

g
o

a
ls

. 
 C
a
u
s
e
: 

T
h

e
 

c
o

n
te

x
t 

in
 

w
h

ic
h

 
th

e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 o

p
e

ra
te

s
 i

s
 r

a
p

id
ly

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 

a
n

d
 

d
e

m
a
n

d
s
 

c
o
n

ti
n
u

a
l 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

is
 

re
q
u

ir
e
s
 

th
e

 
ri

g
h
t 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a
n

d
 

d
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

ta
l 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
e

te
n

c
e

, 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e
 a

n
d

 s
k
ill

s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a
ry

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

F
a
ilu

re
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
e

 
ri

g
h
t 

le
a

rn
in

g
, 

k
n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 

s
h

a
ri
n

g
, 

c
a

re
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t,
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 

a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n
t 

to
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
n

g
 n

e
w

 i
d

e
a

s
 w

ill
 

c
a

u
s
e

 t
h
e

 r
is

k
 t

o
 e

s
c
a

la
te

 a
n
d

 n
e

g
a
ti
v
e

ly
 

im
p

a
c
t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
 C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
: 

T
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
e
q

u
e

n
c
e

 
o
f 

fa
ilu

re
 i

n
 t

h
is

 r
e
s
p

e
c
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 e
s
c
a
la

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

ri
s
k
 

w
ill

 
b

e
 

a
 

s
k
ill

s
/k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
/c

o
m

p
e

te
n

c
e

 
g

a
p

 
in

 
th

e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 

th
a
t 

w
ill

 
re

s
u

lt
 

in
 

p
o

o
re

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 t
e

rm
 

a
n

d
/o

r 
lo

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 f
a
ilu

re
. 

M
a
jo
r 

4
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

1
2
 

P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
: 

 
T

o
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
c
a
p

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 

a
n

d
 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
a
n

d
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
u

n
it
 

p
la

n
s
 

to
 

re
s
p

o
n

d
 
to

 
g

a
p
s
, 

re
c
o

g
n
is

in
g
 
th

e
 
n

e
e

d
 
to

 
c
re

a
te

 
a

n
 

in
te

rn
a
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

fa
c
ili

ta
te

s
 t

h
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 i
d

e
a

s
 a

n
d
 

e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
rs

h
ip

. 
T

o
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
c
h

a
n
g

e
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 l
e
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 p
e

o
p
le

 e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
(i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

),
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

re
s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
, 

it
s
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

n
d
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
. 

 D
e
te
c
ti
v
e
: 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 
th

e
 
ri
s
k
 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

a
n
d

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
o
u

s
 r

is
k
 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 u
n

it
 r

is
k
 

p
ro

fi
le

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

to
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

 r
ig

h
t 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

s
 

a
n

d
 

to
 

id
e
n

ti
fy

 
‘e

a
rl

y
 

w
a

rn
in

g
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
’ 

w
h

e
re

 
fa

ilu
re

 
in

 
th

is
 
re

s
p

e
c
t 

is
 
im

p
a

c
ti
n

g
 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

ly
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 
c
h

a
n
g

e
. 

 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

3
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

9
 

N
o
 u
p
d
a
te
  

135



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

R
is
k
 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
ili
ty
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
ili
ty
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

R
is
k
 U
p
d
a
te
 

A
 p
ro
s
p
e
ro
u
s
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 -
  
O
R
G
0
0
3
8
: 

B
a

rn
e

t’
s
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

s
p

e
ro

u
s
 s

u
b

u
rb

 
is

 
u
n

d
e

r 
th

re
a

t 
fr

o
m

 
w

id
e

r 
th

re
a

ts
 

to
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
s
 a

 w
o

rl
d

 c
it
y
 a

n
d

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
n

n
e
c
ti
n

g
 m

o
re

 a
n

d
 n

e
w

 
p

la
c
e

s
 t
o

 L
o

n
d

o
n

. 
 C
a
u
s
e
: 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

n
e

a
r 

c
a

p
a
c
it
y
, 

o
th

e
r 

p
la

c
e
s
 

b
e

n
e

fi
ti
n

g
 

fr
o
m

 
n

e
w

 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 d

ig
it
a

l 
te

c
h
n
o

lo
g

y
 

m
a

k
in

g
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

p
ro

x
im

it
y
 l

e
s
s
 i

m
p
o

rt
a

n
t 

w
id

e
r 

th
re

a
ts

 t
o

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
s
 a

 w
o

rl
d

 c
it
y
 

 C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
: 

B
a

rn
e

t 
b

e
c
o

m
e
s
 

le
s
s
 

d
e

s
ir
a

b
le

 a
s
 a

 p
la

c
e

 t
o
 l
iv

e
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 

 

M
a
jo
r 

4
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

2
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

8
 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
p

la
n

 
a

n
d

 
M

a
y
o

ra
l 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 2

0
5
0

 E
n

tr
e
p

re
n
e
u

ri
a

l 
B

a
rn

e
t 
- 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

fo
r 

m
a

k
in

g
 

B
a

rn
e

t 
th

e
 

b
e

s
t 
p

la
c
e

 t
o

 b
e
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

m
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 s
u

rv
e

y
s
 W

e
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 

A
lli

a
n

c
e

: 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 
W

e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 
A

lli
a

n
c
e

 
jo

b
s
, 

s
k
ill

s
 

a
n

d
 

g
ro

w
th

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 
 

M
a
jo
r 

4
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

2
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

8
 

1
2

.0
3

.1
5

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

. 
 

 C
h

a
n

g
e
d

 r
is

k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
to

 u
n
lik

e
ly

 a
n

d
 m

a
jo

r.
  

 A
g

re
e

d
 

in
h

e
re

n
t 

ri
s
k
 

m
e

a
n
s
 

th
a

t 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

re
 

th
e

 s
a

m
e
. 

  

 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 I
n
c
id
e
n
t 
 -
 O
R
G
0
0
4
0
: 

If
 

th
e
re

 
w

e
re

 
a
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h
ild

re
n

’s
 

s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 

in
c
id

e
n

t 
th

e
n

 
th

e
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 m
a

y
 b

e
 

d
e

s
ta

b
ili

s
e

d
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rm
in

e
d

. 
 If

 
a

n
 
in

c
id

e
n
t 

w
e

re
 
to

 
o

c
c
u

r 
th

e
 
im

p
a
c
t 

w
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 
c
ro

s
s
-c

u
tt

in
g

: 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 
o

r 
a
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
b

re
a

c
h
 

o
f 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

d
u

ty
, 

re
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
a

l 
w

it
h

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 m
e

d
ia

 c
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 

a
n

d
 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 
w

it
h

 
s
ta

ff
 

m
o

ra
le

 
b

e
in

g
 

im
p

a
c
te

d
 a

n
d

 p
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
lo

s
s
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
. 

M
a
jo
r 

4
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

1
2
 

P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
: 

•
 S

C
B

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

•
 S

a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 P

ro
to

c
o
l,
 

•
 A

c
c
o
u

n
ta

b
ili

ty
 P

ro
to

c
o

l 

•
 R

e
g

u
la

r 
m

e
e

ti
n
g

 a
n
d

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n
g
 

•
 F

a
m

ily
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

•
 C

h
ild

re
n

's
, 

E
d
u

c
a
ti
o
n

, 
L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 a

n
d

 
S

a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 n
e

w
 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 m
o

d
e

l 

•
 L

o
c
a
l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 B
o

a
rd

 
(L

S
C

B
),

 n
e

w
 c

h
a

ir
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 D
e
te
c
ti
v
e
: 

M
o

c
k
 O

F
S

T
E

D
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 

P
e

e
r 

R
e

v
ie

w
 

 

M
a
jo
r 

4
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

2
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

8
 

3
0
.0
1
.1
5
 -
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
: 

 
 A

d
d

e
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 

p
ro

to
c
o

l 
to

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

, 
a

ll 
o

th
e

r 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 r
e
m

a
in

 t
h

e
 

s
a

m
e

. 
 

 R
is

k
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
d

e
c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

t 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 L
e

v
e

l,
 a

s
 s

u
c
h

 n
o

 
c
h

a
n
g

e
 i
n

 p
ro

fi
le

 a
t 
th

is
 

le
v
e

l.
  

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 a

t 
S

C
B

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

. 
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 A
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 -
 O
R
G
0
0
4
1
 

If
 t

h
e

re
 i

s
 n

o
t 

a
 c

le
a

rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 

to
 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 
in

 
p
la

c
e

 
th

a
t 

e
n

s
u

re
s
 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

C
y
c
le

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
e

n
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 b

e
c
o

m
e
s
 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o

r 
o

r 
a
c
h

ie
v
e

. 

M
a
jo
r 

4
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

1
2
 

T
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

P
la

n
s
 

a
n
d

 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 2

0
2

0
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 

w
ill

 g
o

 t
o

 P
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 R
e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

o
n

 
2
 

D
e

c
e

m
b
e

r 
a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 

th
e

 
C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 

d
ra

ft
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
P

la
n

 
a

n
d
 

M
e

d
iu

m
 

T
e

rm
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

 F
o

llo
w

in
g

 a
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

ts
 

w
ill

 
b

e
 

M
a
jo
r 

4
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

2
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

8
 

3
0
.0
1
.1
5
 -
 S
u
m
m
a
ry

: 
 

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

C
a

p
a

c
it
y
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o

n
s
o

lid
a

ti
n

g
 

a
n

d
 

e
n

h
a

n
c
in

g
 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 

D
ir

e
c
to

rs
. 
 

  

136



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

R
is
k
 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
ili
ty
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
ili
ty
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

R
is
k
 U
p
d
a
te
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 w

h
ic

h
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 l

o
n

g
e

r-
te

rm
 

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

o
f 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
ils

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
la

n
 

w
ill

 
b

e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 

w
it
h

 
m

e
a

n
in

g
fu

l 
q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 
th

a
t 

a
re

 
lin

k
e

d
 t
o

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

 T
h

e
 m

e
a

n
s
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

w
ill

 
b

e
 

ta
k
e
n

 
fo

rw
a

rd
 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 

n
e

x
t 

6
 m

o
n

th
 a

s
 n

e
w

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 P

la
n
s
 

a
n

d
 

M
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 

a
re

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
. 

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
fa

c
ili

ta
to

rs
 

h
a

v
e
 

b
e

e
n

 
b

ro
u

g
h

t 
in

 
to

 
h
e

lp
 

fa
c
ili

ta
te

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

D
ir
e

c
to

rs
 

a
n

d
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 U
n

it
s
. 
 

  

 

137



138

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX I - Capita Payments (January - March 2015)

SUMMARY

CSG Invoice 1 3,396,920.13£    

CSG Invoice 2 17,009.60£         

CSG Invoice 3 4,277,556.80£    

Re Invoice 1 94,865.92£         

Re Invoice 2 960,585.23£       

Re TFL Highways Programme 11,500.01£         

Grand Total 8,758,437.69£   

PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Invoice Date Value (ex vat) Commentary

22/01/15 27,461.41£         CSG Services Contract Payment - Postage, Print and Courier Jan 15

19/01/15 813,936.34£       CSG Services Contract Payment - Special Projects (Initiation Request) Dec 14

19/01/15 73,335.00£         CSG Services Contract Payment - Special Projects (Resource) Dec 14

11/12/14 14,480.80£         CSG Services Contract Payment - DBS checks Sept 14

11/12/14 21,178.30£         CSG Services Contract Payment - DBS checks Nov 14

19/12/14 86,623.26£         CSG Services Contract Payment - Postage, Print and Courier Nov and Dec 14

19/11/14 16,488.55£         CSG Services Contract Payment - DBS checks Oct 14

26/09/14 88,000.00£         Empty Properties Scheme

29/10/14 23,212.62£         Empty Properties Scheme

23/12/14 9,428.04£            Re Contract Request - preperation of housing needs assessment

23/12/14 4,640.00£            Re Contract Request - Hendon Carpark Construction

26/01/14 16,671.60£         Re Contract Request - Crematoria Abatement of Mercury

23/12/14 2,830.00£            Re Contract Request - CDM project

12/09/14 5,334.00£            Re Contract Request - Public Health Commissioning

23/12/14 1,027.43£            Re Contract Request - DECC - Energy efficiency

23/12/14 5,750.00£            Re TFL Highways Programme

23/12/14 27,401.42£         Empty Properties Scheme

17/02/15 1,916.67£            Re TFL Highways Programme

27/01/15 1,916.67£            Re TFL Highways Programme

23/12/14 32,615.00£         Re's implementation of Extra Resurfacing work for 2013/14 capital 

16/06/15 15,410.25£         CSG Services Contract Payment - DBS checks Feb 15

11/03/15 54,992.14£         CSG Services Contract Payment - Postage, Print and Courier Feb 15

16/03/15 79,684.49£         CSG Services Contract Payment - IS Service Requests

16/03/15 666,664.92£       CSG Services Contract Payment - Special Projects (Initiation Request) Feb 15

16/03/15 144,404.00£       CSG Services Contract Payment - Special Projects (Resource) Feb 15

10/03/15 26,163.02£         Misc payments - Schools IT kit purchases

24/02/15 91,793.19£         Misc payments - Schools IT kit purchases

10/03/15 968.01£               CSG Services Contract Payment - Daisy Phone recharges

10/03/15 242,616.00£       Amendement for additional contract (Non IS & IS items) - Jan 15 - Mar 15

19/01/15 14,268.00£         CSG Invoice Occupational Health Assessments Sept - Oct 14

16/12/14 3,063,392.13£    CSG Services Contract Payment

25/02/15 14,075.80£         CSG Services Contract Payment - DBS checks Jan 15

25/02/15 11,619.00£         CSG Services Contract Payment - DBS checks Dec 14

23/02/15 90,912.00£         CSG Contract Indexation - 1st Jan 15 - 31st Mar 15

16/02/15 680,375.70£       CSG Services Contract Payment - Special Projects (Initiation Request) Jan 15

16/02/15 113,584.00£       CSG Services Contract Payment - Special Projects (Resource) Jan 15

23/02/15 8,635.77£            Re Contract Request - Colindale Primary Care / Grahame Park

23/12/14 10,200.00£         Re Contract Request - Barnet Network Recovery Plan

30/03/15 78,908.00£         CSG Services Contract Payment - Special Projects (Resource) Mar 15

30/03/15 1,141,670.72£    CSG Services Contract Payment - Special Projects (Initiation Request) Mar 15

10/03/15 1,916.67£            Re TFL Highways Programme

30/01/15 702,317.00£       Re Income Adjustment Contract Year 1 - Additional Service Provider Costs

23/03/15 17,009.60£         CSG Invoice - Procurement Mobile Phones

24/03/15 18,000.00£         Re Service Request - Corporate Parks Strategy

27/03/15 14,466.70£         CSG Services Contract Payment - DBS checks Mar 15

25/03/15 75,005.20£         CSG Services Contract Payment - Postage, Print and Courier Mar 15

31/03/15 94,865.92£         Re Contract Indexation - 1st April 14 - 31st Mar 15

31/03/15 10,272.35£         Re Contract Request - Colindale Primary Care / Grahame Park

139



140

This page is intentionally left blank



C
o
r
p

o
r
a
te

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0

A
p

r
il

 2
0
1
5

©
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 A
g
e
n
c
y
 

B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s
 C
ri
c
k
le
w
o
o
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs

141



In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 f
r
o
m

 t
h

e
 L

e
a
d

e
r
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

B
a
rn
e
t 
is
 a
 w
o
n
d
e
rf
u
l 
p
la
c
e
. 
I 
a
m

 p
ro

u
d

 t
o
 li

ve
 

a
n
d

 r
e
p

re
s
e
n
t 

lo
c
a
l p

e
o
p

le
 in

 a
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
L
o
n
d

o
n
 

w
it
h
 s

u
c
h
 h
e
ri
ta
g
e
, 
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 a

n
d

 w
it
h
 s

u
c
h
 g

re
a
t 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
. 
A

s
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

L
e
a
d

e
r,
 p

e
o
p

le
 o

ft
e
n
 

a
s
k
 m

e
 w

h
a
t 

m
y 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
. 
It
’s

 q
u
it
e
 s

im
p

le
 

–
 I
 w
a
n
t 
to
 m
a
k
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
e
v
e
n
 b
e
tt
e
r.

 A
n
d

 I
 

w
a
n
t 

to
 m

a
k
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

m
o
re

 in
 t

u
n
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 t
im
e
s
. 
W

e
 h

a
ve

 m
a
d

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 b

u
t 

th
e
re

 is
 m

u
c
h
 t

o
 d

o
.

L
o
c
a
l G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d

 f
o
re

ve
r.
 A

ll 
p

a
rt

s
 

o
f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
fa

c
e
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 o

f 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 b
u
d
g
e
ts

 a
n
d

 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 s

c
a
le

 o
f 
th

is
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 is

 h
u
g
e
. 

F
o
r 

B
a
rn

e
t,

 it
 m

e
a
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
’ll

 h
a
ve

 r
o
u
g
h
ly
 h
a
lf
 

th
e
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 p
o
w
e
r 
a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 d
e
c
a
d
e
 

th
a
n
 w
e
 h
a
d
 a
t 
th
e
 s
ta
rt

. 
T
h
is

 m
a
k
e
s
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 

fo
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 –

 in
 b

o
th

 h
o
w

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

o
p

e
ra

te
s
 

a
n
d

 h
o
w

 p
u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d

 –
 n

o
t 

o
n
ly

 a
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
it
y 

b
u
t 

a
 m
a
tt
e
r 
o
f 
fa
c
t.

C
h
a
n
g
e
 c

a
n
 s

o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 b

e
 c

o
n
tr

o
ve

rs
ia

l 

a
n
d

 d
iffi

c
u
lt
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
p

t,
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y 

w
h
e
n
 it

 a
ff
e
c
ts

 t
h
in

g
s
 t

h
e
y 

h
o
ld

 d
e
a
r.
 B

u
t 

th
e
re

 

is
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 b
u
t 
to
 d
o
 t
h
in
g
s
 d
if
fe
re
n
tl
y
. 
I 

w
o
u
ld

 r
a
th

e
r 

fa
c
e
 u

p
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 a

n
d

 h
a
ve

 

a
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 i
t 

–
 e

ve
n
 if

 t
h
a
t 

m
e
a
n
s
 

ta
k
in

g
 t

o
u
g
h
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 n

o
t 

e
ve

ry
o
n
e
 

a
g
re

e
s
 w

it
h
. 

W
h
a
t 

I 
a
m

 c
le

a
r 

a
b

o
u
t 

is
 t

h
a
t,

 a
s
 w

e
 e

m
b

ra
c
e
 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

h
e
a
d

, 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 r

e
m

a
in

 

a
b
s
o
lu
te
ly
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
’s
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 a
d
u
lt
s
. 
T
h
is

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

w
ill
 

n
o
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
.

D
o
n
e
 in

 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

w
a
y,

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
. 
It
 

d
ri
ve

s
 in

n
o
va

ti
o
n
; 
it
 o

p
e
n
s
 n

e
w

 d
o
o
rs

; 
it
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ts

 

p
e
o
p

le
; 
it
 a

llo
w

s
 p

e
o
p

le
 t

o
 e

m
b

ra
c
e
 n

e
w

 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
, 
a
n
d

 it
 c

a
n
 m

a
k
e
 li

fe
 s

im
p

le
r.
 W

e
 s

e
e
 

it
 in

 o
u
r 

e
ve

ry
d

a
y 

liv
e
s
 –

 in
 h

o
w

 w
e
 n

o
w

 s
h
o
p

, 

tr
a
ve

l a
n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

. 
M

o
s
t 

o
f 
u
s
 a

re
 u

s
e
d

 

to
 m

o
d

e
rn

 li
fe

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fit

s
 it

 b
ri
n
g
s
.

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 

h
a
b
it
s
 o
f 
o
u
r 
re
s
id
e
n
ts

. 
It
 is

 n
o
w

 m
u
c
h
 e

a
s
ie

r 

to
 in

te
ra

c
t 

w
it
h
 u

s
 –

 t
o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
 p

ro
b

le
m

; 
to

 p
a
y 

a
 b

ill
; 
to

 s
e
e
 h

o
w

 t
a
x
p

a
ye

r 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 s

p
e
n
t;

 

a
n
d

 t
o
 fi

n
d

 o
u
t 

w
h
a
t’s

 g
o
in

g
 o

n
 in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

T
h
is

 m
a
k
e
s
 p

e
o
p

le
's

 li
ve

s
 e

a
s
ie

r 
a
n
d

 s
a
ve

s
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

m
o
n
e
y.

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 v

is
io

n
 is

 t
h
a
t,

 b
y 

2
0
2
0
, 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 j
o
in
tl
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 –

 

b
y 

p
o
o
lin

g
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
rt

is
e
 f
ro

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il,

 N
H

S
, 
J
o
b

c
e
n
tr

e
, 
p

o
lic

e
, 
e
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

vi
d

e
rs

 a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

lic
, 

p
ri
va

te
 a

n
d

 v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

rs
 -

 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 t
ru
ly
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
F
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
th

is
 w

ill
 

m
e
a
n
 m

o
re

 in
tu

it
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

, 
fo

r 
th

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d

 it
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
it
 w

ill
 s

a
ve

 m
o
n
e
y 

a
n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 b

u
re

a
u
c
ra

c
y.

W
h
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g

. 

M
o
s
t 

p
e
o
p

le
 d

o
 n

o
t 

w
o
rr

y 
a
b

o
u
t 

w
h
o
 p

ro
vi

d
e
s
 

th
e
ir
 lo

c
a
l c

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b

a
c
k
 o

ffi
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

r 
if 

th
e
 

p
e
rs

o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

e
n
d

 o
f 
th

e
 p

h
o
n
e
 w

o
rk

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

o
r 

fo
r 

o
n
e
 o

f 
it
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
T
h
e
y 

c
a
re

 

a
b

o
u
t 

th
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
. 

T
h
a
t 

is
 w

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
, 

w
h
ils

t 
b

e
in

g
 o

p
e
n
 t

o
 d
o
in
g
 t
h
in
g
s
 d
if
fe
re
n
tl
y
 –

 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
a
t 

is
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 b

in
s
 a

re
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
; 
w

h
o
 

re
p

a
ir
s
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d

s
; 
o
r 

h
o
w

 s
o
c
ia

l c
a
re

 is
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d

.

I 
a
m

 c
e
rt

a
in

 t
h
a
t,

 b
y 

2
0
2
0
, 
th
o
s
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
u
b
lic
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 n
e
e
d
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

th
e
re

. 
W

h
a
t 

w
ill
 h

a
ve

 c
h
a
n
g
e
d

 is
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

o
r 

n
o
t 

th
o
s
e
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 t

h
e
m

 w
o
rk

 d
ir
e
c
tl
y 

fo
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il.

M
u
c
h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

a
id

 a
b

o
u
t 

B
a
rn

e
t’s

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 

–
 s

o
m

e
 p

e
o
p

le
 t

e
ll 

m
e
 it

’s
 t

o
o
 r

a
d

ic
a
l, 

s
o
m

e
 

te
ll 

m
e
 it

 d
o
e
s
n
’t

 g
o
 f
a
r 

e
n
o
u
g
h
. 
B

a
rn

e
t 

is
 a

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

2 142



‘C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 C
o
u
n
c
il’

. 
W

h
a
t 

d
o
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
e
a
n
?
 I
t 

is
 q

u
it
e
 s

im
p

le
 –

 it
 m

e
a
n
s
 w
e
’r
e
 o
p
e
n
 

to
 n
e
w
 w
a
y
s
 o
f 
d
o
in
g
 t
h
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 w
e
’r
e
 n
o
t 

c
a
p
tu
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
s
 q
u
o

. 
P

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r;
 

p
ri
va

te
 s

e
c
to

r;
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r;
 a

 c
o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
: 

W
e
 a

re
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d

 le
s
s
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 ‘
w

h
o
’ 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
 

‘h
o
w

’ 
–
 w

h
o
 p

ro
vi

d
e
s
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 h
o
w

 it
 is

 

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 –
 t

h
a
n
 w

e
 a

re
 a

b
o
u
t 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

e
a
c
h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 is

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

; 
th

a
t 

it
 m
e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 

re
s
id
e
n
ts

; 
a
n
d

 t
h
a
t 

it
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
. 

T
h
is

 e
th

o
s
 d

ri
ve

s
 o

u
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
.

B
y 

2
0
2
0
, 
B
a
rn
e
t’
s
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
o
re
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

In
e
vi

ta
b

ly
, 
w

it
h
 le

s
s
 m

o
n
e
y,

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 h

a
ve

 

to
 w

it
h
d

ra
w

 f
ro

m
 s

o
m

e
 a

c
ti
vi

ti
e
s
 b

u
t 

w
e
 w

ill
 

w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

g
ro

u
p

s
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 m

o
re

 

re
s
id

e
n
t 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 in

 lo
c
a
l i

s
s
u
e
s
 t

o
 fi

ll 
th

e
 g

a
p

. 

B
a
rn

e
t 

is
 a

ls
o
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 p

h
ys

ic
a
lly

 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 e

m
b

ra
c
in

g
 t

h
is

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

g
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
’s
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re

. 
M

ill
io

n
s
 o

f 
p

o
u
n
d

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 in

ve
s
te

d
 

o
ve

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

fiv
e
 y

e
a
rs

 in
 n

e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
, 
o
ffi

c
e
s
, 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
h
o
s
p

it
a
ls

 a
n
d

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 n
e
tw

o
rk

s
. 
T
h
is

 

is
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l f

o
r 

s
o
 m

a
n
y 

re
a
s
o
n
s
, 
n
o
t 

ju
s
t 

to
 c

o
p

e
 

w
it
h
 a

n
 in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
 b

u
t,

 u
lt
im

a
te

ly
, 
s
o
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 p
la
c
e
 w
h
e
re
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
s
p
ir
e
 t
o
 l
iv
e
.

G
ro

w
th

 h
e
lp

s
 u

s
 p
a
y
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
n
d

 c
re
a
te
s
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il.

 F
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
it
 w

ill
 r

e
vi

ta
lis

e
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 

o
u
r 

m
o
s
t 

d
ila

p
id

a
te

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
; 
c
re

a
te

 t
h
o
u
s
a
n
d

s
 

o
f 
jo

b
 a

n
d

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
; 
p

ro
vi

d
e
 p

e
o
p

le
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 a

b
ili
ty

 t
o
 a

c
q

u
ir
e
 n

e
w

 s
k
ill
s
; 
a
n
d

 a
llo

w
 

u
s
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 n
e
w

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 g

iv
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

s
ta

rt
 in

 li
fe

.

G
ro
w
th
 i
s
 a
n
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
a
s
 w

e
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 le

s
s
 r

e
lia

n
t 

o
n
 

G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

fu
n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 m
o
re
 fi
n
a
n
c
ia
lly
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

b
y 

g
ro

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 le

ve
l o

f 
in

c
o
m

e
 w

e
 

g
e
n
e
ra

te
 lo

c
a
lly

. 
T
h
is

 is
 n

o
t 

a
 ‘
n
ic

e
 t

o
 h

a
ve

,’
 it

 is
 a

 

n
e
c
e
s
s
it
y 

–
 w

e
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 s

ta
n
d

 o
n
 o

u
r 

o
w

n
 

tw
o
 f
e
e
t 

b
e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
e
y 

fr
o
m

 G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

ru
n
s
 

o
u
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
ly

.

M
o
s
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
ill
 b

e
n
e
fit

 f
ro

m
 t

h
is

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
y,

 

b
u
t 

s
o
m

e
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d

 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 h
e
lp
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
y
 

d
o
n
’t
 m
is
s
 o
u
t 

–
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
m

 h
e
lp

 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 b

y 

e
n
te
ri
n
g
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.

 O
u
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 t

h
is

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 s

tr
o
n
g
 in

 r
e
c
e
n
t 

ye
a
rs

.

G
ro

w
th

 a
ls

o
 b

e
n
e
fit

s
 a

ll 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 b
y 

a
llo

w
in

g
 

u
s
 t
o
 b
e
a
r 
d
o
w
n
 o
n
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
Ta
x
. 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

Ta
x
 

in
 B

a
rn

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
ro

ze
n
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
 a

n
d

 w
a
s
 

c
u
t 
b

y 
1
%

 in
 2

0
1
4
-1

5
. 
W

e
 p

la
n
 t
o
 f
re

e
ze

 it
 f
o
r 

a
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

 t
o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t,

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
 a

n
d

 2
0
1
6
-1

7
, 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
ill
 

b
e
n
e
fit

 f
ro

m
 a

 r
e
a
l 
te
rm
s
 c
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
ir
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
Ta
x
 

o
f 
o
v
e
r 
2
0
%

.

I 
u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

 t
h
a
t 

s
o
m

e
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

re
 w

o
rr

ie
d

 a
b

o
u
t 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
a
t 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 d
e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 

m
ig

h
t 

b
ri
n
g
. 
I 
a
m

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
n
a
g
e
s
 i
t 
p
ro
p
e
rl
y
, 
s
o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 g
re

e
n
 

s
p

a
c
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 a

ll 
e
n
jo

y 
a
re

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 a

n
d

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
 k

e
e
p

 w
h
a
t 

is
 g

o
o
d

 a
b

o
u
t 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 

a
n
d

 r
e
p

la
c
e
 w

h
a
t 

n
e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
p

la
c
e
d

.

I 
h
o
p

e
 t

h
is

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 h

e
lp

s
 y

o
u
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

 

m
o
re

 a
b

o
u
t 

h
o
w

 B
a
rn

e
t 

is
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
in

g
 t

h
e
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

n
e
x
t 
fi
v
e
 y
e
a
rs

 a
n
d

 h
o
w

 w
e
 w

ill
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
 o
u
r 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
.

Y
o
u
rs

,

C
llr
 R
ic
h
a
rd
 C
o
rn
e
liu
s
, 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

3

143



!
"
#
$%
#
&
'$
(
)
#
$*
#
+
,
-
$.
%
$/
+
,
%
#
'0
$1
"
+
22
#
%
3
#
$

+
%
4
$5
6
6
5
,
'7
%
.'
*

C
o

u
n

c
il
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 w

il
l 
fa

c
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s
 u

n
ti

l 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 

d
e

c
a

d
e

…

•
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
ve

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 h

a
s
 m

e
a
n
t 

th
a
t 

B
a
rn

e
t 

h
a
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d

 t
h
e
 fi

rs
t 

fiv
e
 y

e
a
rs

 

o
f 
b

u
d

g
e
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

a
 s

ig
n
ifi

c
a
n
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n
 lo

c
a
l s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
w

it
h
 n

e
a
rl
y 

8
0
%

 o
f 

s
a
vi

n
g
s
 a

c
h
ie

ve
d

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 e

ffi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s

•
 
o
u
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 h

a
s
 b

e
n
e
fit

te
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 

th
ro

u
g
h
 lo

w
e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

Ta
x
 b

ill
s
 

a
n
d

 h
a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d

 u
s
 a

vo
id

 s
h
o
rt

-t
e
rm

, 
in

-

ye
a
r 

c
u
ts

 a
n
d

 m
a
s
s
 r

e
d

u
n
d

a
n
c
ie

s
 s

e
e
n
 

in
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

•
 
h
o
w

e
ve

r,
 d

e
s
p

it
e
 a

 g
ro

w
in

g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y,
 

th
e
 U

K
 is

 s
ti
ll 

ru
n
n
in

g
 a

 s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 

b
u
d

g
e
t 

d
e
fic

it
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
a
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

p
u
b

lic
 s

p
e
n
d

in
g
 

w
ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 n

o
 m

a
tt

e
r 

w
h
o
 is

 

in
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t.

A
n

d
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 o

n
 l
o

c
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

il
l 

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 r

is
e

…

•
 
d

e
m

a
n
d

 is
 d

ri
ve

n
 b

y 
a
 g

ro
w

in
g
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y 

yo
u
n
g
 a

n
d

 o
ld

e
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

. 

T
h
is

 is
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
is

s
u
e
 f
o
r 

B
a
rn

e
t,

 w
h
ic

h
 

in
 2

0
1
5
 w

ill
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
’s

 m
o
s
t 

p
o
p

u
lo

u
s
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
, 
w

it
h
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 

3
9
3
,0

0
0
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

.

A
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
, 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il
 f

a
c

e
s
 a

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

g
a

p
 o

f 
£

9
0

.8
 m

il
li
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 2

0
1

5
 

a
n

d
 2

0
2

0
…

•
 
th

is
 is

 in
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 £

7
5
 m

ill
io

n
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

g
a
p

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 d

e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
1
0
 

–
 2

0
1
5

A
t 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 t
im

e
, 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 f

a
c

in
g

 

w
id

e
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

re
s
s
u

re
s
…

•
 
fr

o
m

 e
n
e
rg

y 
b

ill
s
, 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

c
o
s
ts

, 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

 w
a
g
e
 r

e
s
tr

a
in

t,
 

a
n
d

 b
e
n
e
fit

 r
e
fo

rm
s
.

A
n

d
 e

x
p

e
c

ta
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 

a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
…

•
 
d

ri
ve

n
 b

y 
a
d

va
n
c
e
s
 in

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 p

ri
va

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
–
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
 g

re
a
te

r 

fle
x
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
t 

o
n
lin

e
 –

 p
e
o
p

le
 e

x
p

e
c
t 

b
e
tt

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 m
o
re

 p
ro

m
p

t 
re

s
p

o
n
s
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

4 144



H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 d

e
s
p

it
e

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s
, 

th
e

re
 

a
re

 b
ig

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
…

R
e

s
id

e
n

t 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 h
a

s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 

s
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

c
a

d
e

 

a
n

d
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 h

ig
h

…

•
 
re

s
id

e
n
t 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 B

a
rn

e
t 

a
s
 a

 p
la

c
e
 

to
 li

ve
; 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il;

 a
n
d

 w
it
h
 lo

c
a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
s
 in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 in
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

ye
a
rs

, 

d
e
s
p

it
e
 fi

n
a
n
c
ia

l c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
. 
B

e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
1
2
 

a
n
d

 2
0
1
4
, 
re

s
id

e
n
t 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

ru
n
s
 t

h
in

g
s
 in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 b
y 

n
in

e
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 

to
 7

2
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t,

 w
it
h
 n

e
a
rl
y 

8
0
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 f
e
e
lin

g
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 d

o
in

g
 a

 

g
o
o
d

 jo
b

•
 
re

s
id

e
n
t 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 lo

c
a
l a

re
a
 a

s
 

a
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 li

ve
 h

a
s
 in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 s
in

c
e
 2

0
1
0
 

a
n
d

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 a

t 
c
lo

s
e
 t

o
 9

0
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t

•
 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

–
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
 le

is
u
re

 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
, 
s
o
c
ia

l s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n
 -

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 in

c
re

a
s
e
d

, 

w
h
ic

h
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

o
u
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 is

 

p
a
yi

n
g
 d

iv
id

e
n
d

s
.

B
a

rn
e

t 
is

 a
 s

u
c

c
e

s
s
fu

l,
 t

h
ri

v
in

g
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 s

u
c

c
e

s
s
fu

l,
 t

h
ri

v
in

g
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

. 
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 w
il
l 
d

ri
v
e

 

p
ro

s
p

e
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 b
ri

n
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 

to
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
; 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
; 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

c
o

u
n

c
il
…

•
 
th

e
 U

K
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y 
is

 n
o
w

 o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f
a
s
te

s
t 

g
ro

w
in

g
 in

 t
h
e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 w
o
rl
d

 a
n
d

 L
o
n
d

o
n
, 

in
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r,
 w

ill
 g

ro
w

 s
tr

o
n
g
ly

 o
ve

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

fiv
e
 y

e
a
rs

•
 
w

e
 a

re
 s

e
e
in

g
 t

h
e
 b

e
n
e
fit

s
 o

f 
th

a
t 

g
ro

w
th

 

in
 B

a
rn

e
t,

 w
it
h
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 u
n
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

a
n
d

 m
o
re

 p
e
o
p

le
 o

n
 b

e
n
e
fit

s
 m

o
vi

n
g
 

in
to

 w
o
rk

•
 
a
 g

ro
w

in
g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y 
c
re

a
te

s
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y 

fo
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 -

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 s

e
iz

e
 t

h
e
s
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
 

m
o
re

 in
c
o
m

e
 t

o
 f
u
n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 k
e
e
p

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

Ta
x
 d

o
w

n
; 
p

ro
vi

d
e
 in

n
o
va

ti
ve

 

w
a
ys

 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
; 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

th
e
 J

o
b

c
e
n
tr

e
 t

o
 im

p
le

m
e
n
t 

n
e
w

 s
k
ill
s
 

a
n
d

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
; 
a
n
d

 in
ve

s
t 

in
 t

h
e
 in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

145



M
o

s
t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

il
l 
b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

is
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
d

ir
e

c
t 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il
…

•
 
o
u
r 

ro
le

 is
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 e

n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

a
 

th
ri
vi

n
g
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

p
e
o
p

le
 c

a
n
 g

e
t 

o
n
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 li

ve
s
.

B
u

t 
a

 r
e

la
ti

v
e

ly
 s

m
a

ll
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 

w
il
l 
n

e
e

d
 s

h
o

rt
-t

e
rm

, 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 h
e

lp
 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

y
 d

o
n

’t
 m

is
s
 o

u
t.

..

•
 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
o
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 n
e
w

 

s
k
ill
s
 a

n
d

 h
e
lp

 t
o
 o

ve
rc

o
m

e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 

to
 e

m
p

lo
ym

e
n
t.

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
o

lu
ti

o
n

 f
ro

m
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 

c
re

a
te

s
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 f

o
r 

g
re

a
te

r 

re
g

io
n

a
l 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
to

n
o

m
y
…

•
 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l d
e
vo

lu
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 t

h
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l t

o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 c
o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 d

e
a
l 

w
it
h
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 o
n
 b

u
d

g
e
ts

. 
T
h
e
 

fin
a
n
c
ia

l s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 o
f 
L
o
c
a
l G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

w
ill
 in

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 b
e
 a

 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
it
s
 a

b
ili
ty

 

to
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 a

n
d

 s
h
a
re

 fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l r
is

k
 w

it
h
 

o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d

, 
in

 s
o
 d

o
in

g
, 
re

fo
rm

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
h
ie

ve
 s

a
vi

n
g
s
.

•
 
L
o
n
d

o
n
 c

a
n
 le

a
rn

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 e

x
p

e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 

o
th

e
r 

re
g
io

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
ve

 d
e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 

‘C
it
y 

D
e
a
l’ 

ty
p

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 lo

c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
. 
T
h
is

 h
a
s
 s

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 

s
e
c
to

r 
w

o
rk

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 p

o
o
l r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

a
n
d

 e
x
p

e
rt

is
e
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 m

o
re

 in
te

g
ra

te
d

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
; 
c
o
m

e
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

a
s
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 in

c
re

a
s
e
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 p

o
w

e
rs

 

a
n
d

 in
ve

s
t 

in
 lo

c
a
l i

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

h
a
t 

s
p

a
n
s
 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 o

n
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
re

a
; 
a
n
d

 jo
in

tl
y 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 m

a
jo

r 
re

fo
rm

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
.

A
n

d
, 

a
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il
’s

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

w
il
l 
re

d
u

c
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r,
 i
t 

w
il
l 
o

v
e

rs
e

e
 t

h
e

 

a
ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

ro
u

n
d

 £
2

7
0

 m
il
li
o

n
 o

f 

ta
x
p

a
y
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 b
y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
e

c
a

d
e

…

•
 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

a
re

 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d

 e
ff
e
c
ti
ve

ly
, 
in

 a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

; 
th

a
t 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

d
u
ti
e
s
 a

re
 m

e
t;

 a
n
d

 t
h
a
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 is

 

tr
a
n
s
p

a
re

n
t 

a
n
d

 r
e
p

re
s
e
n
ts

 v
a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y.

T
h

is
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 

B
a

rn
e

t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
’s

 a
p

p
ro

a
c

h
 t

o
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 

c
h

a
ll
e

n
g

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
a

x
im

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

fi
v
e

 y
e

a
rs

.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

6 146



/
+
,
%
#
'8
-
$2
5
1
+
2$
-#
,
)
.1
#
-
$.
%
$9
:
9
:
$;
$+
$)
.-
.5
%

W
h

a
t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

ld
 u

s
…

•
 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 d

ra
w

n
 o

n
 f
e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 

fr
o
m

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 
m

e
a
n
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 R

e
s
id

e
n
t 

P
e
rc

e
p

ti
o
n
 S

u
rv

e
ys

; 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 

B
a
rn

e
t 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 S
p

e
n
d

in
g
 R

e
vi

e
w

; 

a
n
d

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

a
n
d

 M
e
d

iu
m

 T
e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l S
tr

a
te

g
y

•
 
b

y 
c
o
m

b
in

in
g
 t

h
is

 e
vi

d
e
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 o

u
r 

u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 

a
n
d

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

h
e
a
d

, 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

d
e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 a
 v

is
io

n
 f
o
r 

w
h
a
t 

a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 lo

o
k
 li

k
e
 in

 2
0
2
0
, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 h

o
w

 

th
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 it

s
e
lf 

w
ill
 e

vo
lv

e
.

B
a

rn
e

t’
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 w
il
l 

d
ri

v
e

 o
u

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
…

•
 
B

a
rn

e
t 

is
 a

 ‘
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

. 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 is

 n
o
t 

o
u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g
 -

 it
 is

 

a
n
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d

 it
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 id

e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

a
va

ila
b

le
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
o
 a

llo
c
a
te

 

th
e
m

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

ve
 a

 s
e
t 

o
f 
s
h
a
re

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
in

g
 a

s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

•
 
w

e
 w

ill
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
ro

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 m

a
rk

e
t,

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
y 

a
re

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 ‘
in

 h
o
u
s
e
’ 
o
r 

b
y 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
O

u
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 f
o
c
u
s
 is

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 o

f 
g
o
o
d

 q
u
a
lit

y,
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n
t 

va
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y 

a
n
d

 a
c
h
ie

ve
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
a
n
t

•
 
e
le

c
te

d
 c

o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs

 m
a
k
e
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
, 

b
a
s
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
h
e
y 

s
e
rv

e
. 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili
ty

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d

 t
h
o
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 

e
x
te

rn
a
lly

 a
re

 s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 s

tr
ic

t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 

a
n
d

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

•
 
o
ve

r 
ti
m

e
, 
w

e
 h

a
ve

 d
e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 a
 v

a
ri
e
d

 

m
ix

 o
f 
p

ro
vi

d
e
rs

: 
s
o
m

e
 in

-h
o
u
s
e
 (
w

a
s
te

 

a
n
d

 r
e
c
yc

lin
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
);
 s

o
m

e
 c

h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 

(m
u
s
ic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

);
 s

o
m

e
 p

ri
va

te
 

(b
a
c
k
 o

ffi
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
);
 s

o
m

e
 s

h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 

o
th

e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
s
h
a
re

d
 le

g
a
l s

e
rv

ic
e
);
 

a
n
d

 s
o
m

e
 jo

in
t 

ve
n
tu

re
s
 (
w

it
h
 C

a
p

it
a
, 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
ta

l a
n
d

  

R
e
g
u
la

to
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
)

•
 
th

is
 p

ro
vi

d
e
r 

m
ix

 a
n
d

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 

m
o
d

e
ls

 w
ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 e

vo
lv

e
 in

 t
h
e
 

ye
a
rs

 a
h
e
a
d

.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

7

147



T
h

e
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
F

a
ir

n
e

s
s
, 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 a

re
 a

t 

th
e

 h
e

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

…

•
 
B

a
rn

e
t’s

 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs

 t
a
k
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

c
ro

s
s
-p

a
rt

y 
‘T

h
e
m

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
’ 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
ve

 

re
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

d
iff

e
re

n
t 

p
o
lic

y 
a
re

a
s
. 
E

a
c
h
 

T
h
e
m

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
s
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 a
 fi

ve
-

ye
a
r 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

la
n
, 
s
e
tt

in
g
 o

u
t 

th
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 it

 w
ill
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
. 
T
h
is

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 s

e
ts

 t
h
e
 o

ve
ra

ll 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 

fo
r 

e
a
c
h
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
’s

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

la
n

•
 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

la
n
s
 c

o
ve

r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

vu
ln

e
ra

b
le

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
r 

u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e
 e

n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 w
a
s
te

, 

th
e
re

 a
re

 a
 s

e
t 

o
f 
c
o
re

 p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

u
n
d

e
rp

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 -

 

th
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
F
a
ir
n
e
s
s
, 
R

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 

a
n
d

 O
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
y.

F
a

ir
n

e
s
s

•
 
fa

ir
n
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 a

b
o
u
t 

s
tr

ik
in

g
 t

h
e
 

ri
g
h
t 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 f
a
ir
n
e
s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 m

o
re

 

fr
e
q

u
e
n
t 

u
s
e
rs

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 f
a
ir
n
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

w
id

e
r 

ta
x
p

a
ye

r,
 m

a
k
in

g
 s

u
re

 a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 

b
e
n
e
fit

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 o

f 
g
ro

w
th

•
 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

m
u
s
t 

‘g
e
t 

th
e
 b

a
s
ic

s
 r

ig
h
t’

 t
o
 le

t 

p
e
o
p

le
 g

e
t 

o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 li

ve
s
 –

 d
is

p
o
s
in

g
 

o
f 
w

a
s
te

; 
k
e
e
p

in
g
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 c
le

a
n
; 
a
llo

w
in

g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 t

o
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
t 

in
 m

o
re

 c
o
n
ve

n
ie

n
t 

w
a
ys

; 

a
n
d

 r
e
s
o
lv

in
g
 is

s
u
e
s
 p

ro
m

p
tl
y

•
 
m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

is
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 o
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 a

 s
te

p
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 in

 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 t

o
 e

a
rl
y 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d

 p
re

ve
n
ti
o
n
, 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 

s
e
c
to

r 
a
n
d

 w
it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 p

re
ve

n
t 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 ju

s
t 

tr
e
a
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 s

ym
p

to
m

s
.

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y

•
 
a
ll 

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

ys
te

m
 m

u
s
t 

p
la

y 
th

e
ir
 p

a
rt

 in
 h

e
lp

in
g
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

ve
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

it
h
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

•
 
in

 d
o
in

g
 s

o
, 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 it

s
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
w

it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 

ta
k
in

g
 o

n
 m

o
re

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
l a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

re
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

k
e
e
p

in
g
 B

a
rn

e
t 

a
 

g
re

a
t 

p
la

c
e

•
 
in

 s
o
m

e
 c

a
s
e
s
, 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
ill
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

 

to
 p

a
y 

m
o
re

 f
o
r 

c
e
rt

a
in

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
s
 it

s
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
.

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y

•
 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 c

a
p

it
a
lis

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

o
f 
a
 g

ro
w

in
g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y 
b

y 
p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
in

g
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 
g
ro

w
th

 a
n
d

 m
a
x
im

is
in

g
 in

c
o
m

e

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

8 148



•
 
w

e
 w

ill
 r

e
d

e
s
ig

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
m

 d
iff

e
re

n
tl
y

•
 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

h
e
a
d

 is
 c

ru
c
ia

l –
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

d
e
a
lt
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 fi

rs
t 

w
a
ve

 o
f 
b

u
d

g
e
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

b
y 

fo
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 lo

n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 a
n
d

 w
e
 a

re
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t

h
is

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 b

y 
e
x
te

n
d

in
g
 o

u
r 

p
la

n
 t

o
 2

0
2
0
.

/
+
,
%
#
'<
-
$)
.-
.5
%
$

fo
r
 2

0
2
0

R
e

d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 -

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
, 

in
tu

it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 e
ffi

c
ie

n
t…

•
 
L
o
c
a
l G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 lo
c
a
l p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

w
ill
 lo

o
k
 v

e
ry

 d
iff

e
re

n
t 

b
y 

2
0
2
0
. 
P

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 m

o
re

 in
te

g
ra

te
d

 

in
 t

h
e
ir
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 -

 p
o
o
lin

g
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 s

ta
ff
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e
ts

, 
a
n
d

 d
e
ve

lo
p

in
g
 jo

in
t 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 -

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 a
n
d

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 

q
u
a
lit

y 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

•
 
b

y 
2
0
2
0
, 
B

a
rn

e
t’s

 p
u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 jo
in

tl
y 

fo
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 b

y 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
o
rk

in
g
 in

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

N
H

S
, 
J
o
b

c
e
n
tr

e
, 
p

o
lic

e
, 
e
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
vi

d
e
rs

 

a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l p

a
rt

n
e
rs

•
 
fo

r 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

, 
th

is
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 w

ill
 m

e
a
n
 e

a
s
ie

r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
e
y 

n
e
e
d

 w
it
h
o
u
t 

h
a
vi

n
g
 t

o
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
te

 w
it
h
 d

iff
e
re

n
t 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s

•
 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il,

 it
 w

ill
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 b

u
re

a
u
c
ra

c
y 

a
n
d

 c
re

a
te

 e
ffi

c
ie

n
c
ie

s
, 
w

it
h
 in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 d

ri
vi

n
g
 in

n
o
va

ti
o
n
 in

 t
h
e
 

w
a
y 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 a
n
d

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
. 

W
e
 h

a
ve

 a
lr
e
a
d

y 
d

o
n
e
 t

h
is

 e
ff
e
c
ti
ve

ly
 in

 a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
re

a
s
:

•
 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 W
e
lf
a
re
 

R
e
fo
rm
 T
a
s
k
 F
o
rc
e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 o

ffi
c
e
rs

, 

J
o
b

c
e
n
tr

e
 s

ta
ff
 a

n
d

 h
e
a
lt
h
 a

d
vi

s
e
rs

 

in
to

 a
 s

in
g
le

 t
e
a
m

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t

h
o
s
e
 

im
p

a
c
te

d
 b

y 
W

e
lfa

re
 R

e
fo

rm
. 
T
h
is

 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 t
e
a
m

 h
a
s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d

 w
it
h
 9

6
%

 

o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y 
th

e
 B

e
n
e
fit

 

C
a
p

 a
n
d

 h
e
lp

e
d

 o
ve

r 
a
 t

h
ir
d

 o
f 
th

e
m

 

in
to

 w
o
rk

•
 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 M
u
lt
i-

A
g
e
n
c
y
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 H
u
b
 (
M
A
S
H
) 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 

a
 s

in
g
le

 p
o
in

t 
fo

r 
a
ll 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 f
o
r 

a
 c

h
ild

 o
r 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

9

149



T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 w

il
l…

•
 
o
ve

rs
e
e
 a

 s
te

p
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 in

 it
s
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 

to
 e

a
rl
y 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 p
re

ve
n
ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

 

m
e
a
n
s
 o

f 
m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

•
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 it
s
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

W
e
lfa

re
 R

e
fo

rm
 T

a
s
k
 F

o
rc

e
 a

n
d

 b
u
ild

 o
n
 

th
is

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 b

y 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 J

o
b

c
e
n
tr

e
 

to
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 

U
n
iv

e
rs

a
l C

re
d

it
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

•
 
im

p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

‘J
o
b

s
 

Te
a
m

’ 
in

 B
u
rn

t 
O

a
k
 –

 w
h
e
re

 le
ve

ls
 o

f 

u
n
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

a
re

 h
ig

h
e
s
t 

–
 t

o
 p

ilo
t 

a
 

n
e
w

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 ‘
p

la
c
e
-b

a
s
e
d

 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
’ 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 o

f 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
g
re

a
te

s
t 

n
e
e
d

.

M
o

re
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
il
ie

n
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
…

•
 
g
re

a
te

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
, 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 in
vo

lv
e
m

e
n
t 

w
ill
 b

e
 a

n
 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 a

c
h
ie

ve
 o

ve
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

fiv
e
 y

e
a
rs

. 
T
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 in

c
re

a
s
e
 

s
e
lf-

s
u
ffi

c
ie

n
c
y,

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d

 m
a
k
e
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 u

s
e
 

o
f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

s
 t

o
 t

a
ilo

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

to
 n

e
e
d

•
 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 v

is
io

n
 is

 t
o
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 a
 n

e
w

 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

e
n
a
b

le
s
 

th
e
m

 t
o
 b

e
 in

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 r
e
s
ili
e
n
t 

a
n
d

 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 o

n
 g

re
a
te

r 
re

s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 lo

c
a
l 

a
re

a
s
. 
T
h
is

 is
 n

o
t 

a
b

o
u
t 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
ift

in
g
 

it
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 –
 it

 is
 a

b
o
u
t 

re
c
o
g
n
is

in
g
 t

h
a
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
a
n
t 

to
 b

e
 m

o
re

 in
vo

lv
e
d

 in
 w

h
a
t 

h
a
p

p
e
n
s
 in

 t
h
e
ir
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y.

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 w

il
l…

•
 
im

p
le

m
e
n
t 

it
s
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y 

a
n
d

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

ve
 it

s
 

vi
s
io

n
 o

f 
g
re

a
te

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 

a
n
d

 r
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e

•
 
b

u
ild

 s
tr

o
n
g
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

g
ro

u
p

s

•
 
c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 a
n
d

 im
p

ro
ve

 t
h
e
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 it
 g

iv
e
s
 

to
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
.

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

li
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
, 

w
it

h
 m

o
re

 

p
e

o
p

le
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

in
 t

h
e

ir
 

o
w

n
 h

o
m

e
s
…

•
 
b

y 
2
0
2
0
, 
s
o
c
ia

l c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

a
d

u
lt
s
 

w
ill
 b

e
 r

e
m

o
d

e
lle

d
 t

o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 

d
e
m

a
n
d

 a
n
d

 p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 in

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
c
e
, 
w

it
h
 

a
 g

re
a
te

r 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 e

a
rl
y 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
is

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
, 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

1
0 150



a
n
d

 h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
w

ill
 e

n
a
b

le
 m

o
re

 p
e
o
p

le
 

to
 s

ta
y 

in
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 li
ve

 f
o
r 

lo
n
g
e
r 

in
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
s

•
 
s
o
c
ia

l c
a
re

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
u
lly

 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 w
it
h
 h

e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
h
e
lp

in
g
 

th
e
 N

H
S

 m
a
n
a
g
e
 t

h
e
 h

u
g
e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 
A

&
E

 

a
n
d

 h
o
s
p

it
a
l a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 g

re
a
te

r 

p
ro

vi
s
io

n
 o

f 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

c
a
re

 

a
n
d

 im
p

ro
vi

n
g
 t

h
e
 e

x
p

e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 u

s
in

g
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l c
a
re

•
 
m

o
re

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 

w
ill
 s

ta
y 

in
 B

a
rn

e
t,

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
y 

g
re

w
 u

p
, 

a
n
d

 li
ve

 in
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
s
, 
w

it
h
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 h

e
lp

in
g
 t

h
e
m

 

to
 g

ro
w

 in
 in

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
c
e

•
 
p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l h
e
a
lt
h
 is

s
u
e
s
 w

ill
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 

s
u
p

p
o
rt

 in
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

to
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
m

 

s
ta

y 
w

e
ll,

 g
e
t 

a
 jo

b
 a

n
d

 r
e
m

a
in

 a
c
ti
ve

, 
w

it
h
 

s
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
c
u
s
e
d

 o
n
 h

e
lp

in
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 

w
h
o
le

 li
fe

, 
n
o
t 

s
im

p
ly

 p
ro

vi
d

in
g
 a

 d
ia

g
n
o
s
is

•
 
B

a
rn

e
t’s

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
ill
 b

e
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

m
o
s
t 

a
c
ti
ve

 a
n
d

 h
e
a
lt
h
y 

in
 L

o
n
d

o
n
, 

b
e
n
e
fit

ti
n
g
 f
ro

m
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 le
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d

 m
a
k
in

g
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 p
a
rk

s
 

a
n
d

 o
p

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
.

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 w

il
l…

•
 
im

p
le

m
e
n
t 

it
s
 v

is
io

n
 f
o
r 

a
d

u
lt
 s

o
c
ia

l c
a
re

, 

w
h
ic

h
 is

 f
o
c
u
s
e
d

 o
n
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d

, 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 c
a
re

 w
it
h
 m

o
re

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 

s
u
p

p
o
rt

e
d

 t
o
 li

ve
 in

 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e

•
 
in

ve
s
t 

in
 e

ff
e
c
ti
ve

 t
e
le

c
a
re

, 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
d

a
p

ta
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

s
u
p

p
o
rt

 

to
 a

c
h
ie

ve
 t

h
is

•
 
in

ve
s
t 

in
 n

e
w

, 
m

o
d

e
rn

 le
is

u
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 

to
 r

e
p

la
c
e
 o

ld
e
r 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 

lo
c
a
l s

p
o
rt

s
 c

lu
b

s
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

g
ro

u
p

s
 

to
 in

c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 in

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n
d

 le
is

u
re

.

P
u

b
li
c

 H
e

a
lt

h
 w

il
l 
b

e
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 a

s
 a

 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 t

h
e

m
e

 a
c

ro
s
s
 a

ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
…

•
 
th

e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

e
n
s
u
re

s
 t

h
a
t 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d

 w
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

in
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 is

 a
 c

e
n
tr

a
l t

h
e
m

e
 t

o
 a

ll 
a
c
ti
vi

ti
e
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

b
y 

2
0
2
0
 –

 n
o
t 

o
n
ly

 

in
 h

o
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d

 

a
n
d

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 t

h
e
 p

h
ys

ic
a
l 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

•
 
p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a
lt
h
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l t

o
 f
u
tu

re
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
, 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 

‘b
u
ilt

 e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t’

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 p
e
o
p

le
 

k
e
e
p

 fi
t 

a
n
d

 a
c
ti
ve

.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

1
1

151



T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 w

il
l…

•
 
im

p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
 n

e
w

 H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 W
e
ll-

B
e
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y,

 w
it
h
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d

 it
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 im

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d

 w
e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 a
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 

fo
r 

a
c
h
ie

vi
n
g
 t

h
is

.

B
a

rn
e

t’
s
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 w

il
l 
b

e
 a

m
o

n
g

s
t 

th
e

 

b
e

s
t 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

tr
y,

 w
it

h
 e

n
o

u
g

h
 p

la
c

e
s
 

fo
r 

a
ll
, 

a
n

d
 w

it
h

 a
ll
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 a
c

h
ie

v
in

g
 

th
e

 b
e

s
t 

th
e

y
 c

a
n

…

•
 
in

 2
0
2
0
, 
B

a
rn

e
t 

w
ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 h

a
ve

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 

a
n
d

 s
e
c
o
n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

th
e
 b

e
s
t 

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y,
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

re
c
o
g
n
is

in
g
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 is
 w

h
y 

m
a
n
y 

p
e
o
p

le
 

c
h
o
o
s
e
 t

o
 li

ve
 h

e
re

•
 
th

e
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

in
 B

a
rn

e
t 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
ill
 b

e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t

o
p

 1
0
%

 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

d
is

a
d

va
n
ta

g
e
d

 p
u
p

ils
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
.

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 w

il
l…

•
 
in

ve
s
t 

in
 e

x
tr

a
 s

c
h
o
o
l p

la
c
e
s
, 
b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 

th
e
 £

1
1
6
 m

ill
io

n
 in

ve
s
te

d
 o

ve
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 

fiv
e
 

ye
a
rs

, 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

re
m

a
in

 a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

th
e
 b

e
s
t 

a
n
d

 t
h
a
t 

d
e
m

a
n
d

 

is
 m

e
t

•
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 in
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 a

ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 A

c
a
d

e
m

ie
s
, 
to

 r
a
is

e
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 c
lo

s
e
 t

h
e
 a

c
h
ie

ve
m

e
n
t 

g
a
p

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 d

is
a
d

va
n
ta

g
e
d

 p
u
p

ils
 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

.

B
a

rn
e

t’
s
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 

w
il
l 
re

c
e

iv
e

 a
 g

re
a

t 
s
ta

rt
 i
n

 l
if

e
…

•
 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 g

re
a
t 

s
ta

rt
 in

 li
fe

 f
o
r 

e
ve

ry
 c

h
ild

 a
n
d

 t
h
a
t 

yo
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 a

re
 w

e
ll 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 f
o
r 

a
d

u
lt
h
o
o
d

•
 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

vu
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
ve

 

a
n
d

 r
o
b

u
s
t,

 w
it
h
 g

re
a
te

r 
in

te
rf

a
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 S
o
c
ia

l C
a
re

 

a
n
d

 Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d

in
g
 t

e
a
m

s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 id

e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 

m
ig

h
t 

b
e
 a

t 
ri
s
k

•
 
th

e
re

 w
ill
 b

e
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 id

e
n
ti
fy

 

a
n
d

 a
d

d
re

s
s
, 
a
t 

a
n
 e

a
rl
y 

s
ta

g
e
, 
a
n
y 

is
s
u
e
s
 

th
a
t 

m
a
y 

im
p

e
d

e
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l c
h
ild

h
o
o
d

, 

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 w
e
ll-

tr
a
in

e
d

, 
h
ig

h
 

q
u
a
lit

y 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
.

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 w

il
l…

•
 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 b

ir
th

 o
f 
a
 c

h
ild

, 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
 in

te
g
ra

te
d

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 –

 in
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
, 
e
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

1
2 152



a
n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l c
a
re

 -
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 
lo

c
a
lly

 b
a
s
e
d

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 

c
h
ild

re
n
 g

e
t 

th
e
 b

e
s
t 

s
ta

rt
 t

o
 li

fe

•
 
w

h
e
re

 c
h
ild

re
n
 m

a
y 

b
e
 a

t 
ri
s
k
, 
m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

re
s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

h
a
t 

b
ri
n
g
s
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

d
iff

e
re

n
t 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 t
o
 s

h
a
re

 in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

q
u
ic

k
ly

 a
n
d

 e
ff
e
c
ti
ve

ly

•
 
p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
c
h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y 

lo
c
a
l p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
va

ila
b

le
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

w
h
o
 c

a
n
n
o
t 

re
m

a
in

 a
t 

h
o
m

e
, 
b

y 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
B

a
rn

e
t 

fo
s
te

r 
c
a
re

rs
 w

it
h
 

a
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

n
e
w

 h
o
m

e
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

a
d

o
p

ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

re
tu

rn
 h

o
m

e
.

T
h

e
re

 w
il
l 
b

e
 a

 b
ro

a
d

 o
ff

e
r 

o
f 

s
k
il
ls

 

a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 

a
g

e
s
…

•
 
b

y 
2
0
2
0
, 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 e

ff
e
c
ti
ve

ly
 t

ra
c
k
 

a
n
d

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

a
n
d

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 J

o
b

c
e
n
tr

e
, 
s
k
ill
s
 p

ro
vi

d
e
rs

 

a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

im
e
d

 a
t 

s
u
p

p
o
rt

in
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

in
to

 w
o
rk

 a
n
d

 e
n
a
b

lin
g
 t

h
e
m

 t
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

w
h
ils

t 
in

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t.

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 w

il
l…

•
 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 t

ra
c
k
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 ‘
N

E
E

T
 ’
 a

n
d

 w
o
rk

 

w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 b

ro
a
d

 s
k
ill
s
 

o
ff
e
r 

fo
r 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
, 
e
n
c
o
m

p
a
s
s
in

g
 a

 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
o
p

ti
o
n
s
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

p
p

re
n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
 

a
n
d

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

•
 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 J

o
b

c
e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
, 
B

a
rn

e
t 

a
n
d

 S
o
u
th

g
a
te

 C
o
lle

g
e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

vi
d

e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 

G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t’s

 W
o
rk

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

it
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

a
im

e
d

 a
t 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 

u
n
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t,

 w
it
h
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

in
g
 

vu
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d

 h
a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 p

e
o
p

le
 

in
to

 w
o
rk

; 
d

e
ve

lo
p

in
g
 c

a
re

e
r 

p
a
th

w
a
ys

 

in
to

 h
ig

h
e
r 

le
ve

l j
o
b

s
 in

 t
h
e
 c

a
re

 s
e
c
to

r;
 

a
n
d

 m
a
x
im

is
in

g
 r

e
ta

il 
a
n
d

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t

h
a
t 

d
e
ri
ve

 f
ro

m
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

a
c
ti
vi

ty
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

B
a

rn
e

t’
s
 l
o

c
a

l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

w
il
l 
b

e
 

c
le

a
n

 a
n

d
 a

tt
ra

c
ti

v
e

, 
w

it
h

 w
e

ll
-

m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 r

o
a

d
s
 a

n
d

 p
a

v
e

m
e

n
ts

, 

fl
o

w
in

g
 t

ra
ffi

c
, 

in
c

re
a

s
e

d
 r

e
c

y
c

li
n

g
 

a
n

d
 l
e

s
s
 w

a
s
te

 s
e

n
t 

to
 l
a

n
d

fi
ll
…

•
 
B

a
rn

e
t’s

 s
tr

e
e
ts

 w
ill
 b

e
 k

e
p

t 
c
le

a
n
 a

n
d

 t
id

y,
 

b
e
n
e
fit

ti
n
g
 f
ro

m
 in

ve
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 m

o
re

 e
ffi

c
ie

n
t 

m
e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l s

w
e
e
p

e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

c
le

a
n
 t

o
w

n
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l s

tr
e
e
ts

•
 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 r
o
a
d

s
 a

n
d

 p
a
ve

m
e
n
ts

 w
ill
 

b
e
 in

 a
 g

o
o
d

 c
o
n
d

it
io

n
, 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

re
c
o
g
n
is

in
g
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 h
a
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y 

b
e
e
n
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

1
3

153



th
e
 t

o
p

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 

fe
w

 y
e
a
rs

•
 
tr

a
ffi

c
 fl

o
w

 o
n
 B

a
rn

e
t’s

 r
o
a
d

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d

 t
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 c

o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
, 
w

it
h
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

re
a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 e
ff
e
c
ti
ve

ly
 

to
 k

e
e
p

 t
ra

ffi
c
 m

o
vi

n
g

•
 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
ill
 r

e
c
yc

le
 m

o
re

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 

w
a
s
te

, 
w

it
h
 le

s
s
 w

a
s
te

 s
e
n
t 

to
 la

n
d

fil
l.

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 w

il
l…

•
 
M

a
in

ta
in

 a
 c

le
a
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 b

y 
im

p
ro

vi
n
g
 

c
le

a
n
s
in

g
 r

o
u
te

s
 a

n
d

 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

to
w

n
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l s

w
e
e
p

in
g
 b

e
a
ts

 a
re

 

re
g
u
la

rl
y 

re
vi

e
w

e
d

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 o
f 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s

•
 
in

ve
s
t 

a
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

£
5
0
 m

ill
io

n
 in

 r
o
a
d

 

a
n
d

 p
a
ve

m
e
n
t 

n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 o

ve
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

fiv
e
 

ye
a
rs

, 
o
n
 t

o
p

 o
f 
th

e
 £

1
1
 m

ill
io

n
 in

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 

in
ve

s
tm

e
n
t 

s
in

c
e
 2

0
1
1

•
 
re

m
o
d

e
l i

ts
 w

a
s
te

 a
n
d

 r
e
c
yc

lin
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 

m
a
k
in

g
 it

 e
a
s
ie

r 
fo

r 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 r

e
c
yc

le
 

m
o
re

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
n
e
fit

 t
h
e
 e

n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 s
a
ve

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

m
o
n
e
y 

in
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d

 d
is

p
o
s
a
l c

o
s
ts

.

B
a

rn
e

t’
s
 p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 g
re

e
n

 s
p

a
c

e
s
 w

il
l 

b
e

 a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

th
e

 b
e

s
t 

in
 L

o
n

d
o

n
…

•
 
re

s
id

e
n
t 

fe
e
d

b
a
c
k
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y 

s
h
o
w

s
 

th
a
t 

B
a
rn

e
t’s

 p
a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

re
 

a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

it
s
 b

ig
g
e
s
t 

a
s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d

 a
 s

tr
o
n
g
 

in
flu

e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 d

e
c
id

in
g
 t

o
 li

ve
 h

e
re

•
 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
s
 t

h
is

, 
a
n
d

 w
ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 p
a
rk

s
 

a
n
d

 g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

re
 lo

o
k
e
d

 a
ft
e
r.

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 w

il
l…

•
 
d

e
ve

lo
p

 m
o
re

 in
n
o
va

ti
ve

 w
a
ys

 o
f 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 

it
s
 p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 g

re
a
te

r 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 u

s
in

g
 p

a
rk

s
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

ve
 

w
id

e
r 

p
u
b

lic
 h

e
a
lt
h
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

B
a

rn
e

t 
w

il
l 
b

e
 a

m
o

n
g

s
t 

th
e

 s
a

fe
s
t 

p
la

c
e

s
 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

, 
w

it
h

 h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
, 

a
n

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

fe
e

li
n

g
 s

a
fe

…

•
 
B

a
rn

e
t 

w
ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 o

n
e
 o

f 
L
o
n
d

o
n
’s

 

s
a
fe

s
t 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
, 
w

it
h
 e

ff
e
c
ti
ve

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d

 p
o
lic

e
 d

ri
vi

n
g
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 in

 c
ri
m

e
 r

a
te

s

•
 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

c
o
h
e
s
io

n
 in

 B
a
rn

e
t 

w
ill
 r

e
m

a
in

 

h
ig

h
, 
w

it
h
 p

e
o
p

le
 f
ro

m
 d

iff
e
re

n
t 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d

s
 

g
e
tt

in
g
 o

n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e
th

e
r.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

1
4 154



T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 w

il
l…

•
 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 

to
 a

c
h
ie

ve
 lo

n
g
-t

e
rm

 s
u
s
ta

in
e
d

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

in
 c

ri
m

e
. 
B

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

c
h
ie

ve
d

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
1
1
 a

n
d

 2
0
1
4
, 
o
u
r 

a
im

 is
 

to
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
d

u
c
e
 o

ve
ra

ll 
c
ri
m

e
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e
 ‘
7
 K

e
y 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d

 C
ri
m

e
 T

yp
e
s
’ 
- 

B
u
rg

la
ry

, 
V

io
le

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 I
n
ju

ry
, 
R

o
b

b
e
ry

, 
T
h
e
ft
 

fr
o
m

 P
e
rs

o
n
, 
C

ri
m

in
a
l D

a
m

a
g
e
, 
T
h
e
ft
 o

f 

M
o
to

r 
V
e
h
ic

le
 a

n
d

 T
h
e
ft
 F

ro
m

 M
o
to

r 
V
e
h
ic

le
 

•
 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 S

a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 

to
 im

p
le

m
e
n
t 

n
e
w

 2
0
1
4
 A

n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l 

B
e
h
a
vi

o
u
r 

le
g
is

la
ti
o
n
 t

o
 p

re
ve

n
t 

a
n
d

 d
e
te

r 
a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l b
e
h
a
vi

o
u
r 

a
n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 

re
p

e
a
t 

vi
c
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n

•
 
w

o
rk

 in
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 u

n
d

e
r-

re
p

o
rt

in
g
 o

f 
h
a
te

 c
ri
m

e

•
 
ta

k
e
 a

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 p

re
ve

n
ti
n
g
 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
n
g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
vi

s
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
o
s
e
 a

t 
h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 o

f 

re
p

e
a
t 

vi
c
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
.

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

il
l 
s
e

e
 a

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c

h
 t

o
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
, 

w
it

h
 

th
o

u
s
a

n
d

s
 o

f 
n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s
 b

u
il
t 

a
n

d
 j
o

b
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 c

re
a

te
d

…

•
 
B

a
rn

e
t 

w
ill
 g

o
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d

 

o
f 
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

ve
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

d
e
c
a
d

e
 

a
n
d

 b
e
yo

n
d

, 
w

it
h
 s

e
ve

n
 m

a
jo

r 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 

b
e
in

g
 p

la
n
n
e
d

 a
n
d

 im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
 in

 a
re

a
s
 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 C

o
lin

d
a
le

, 
D

o
lli
s
 V

a
lle

y 
a
n
d

 B
re

n
t 

C
ro

s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o
o
d

•
 
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

in
 a

 r
e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 w

a
y,

 w
it
h
 

B
a
rn

e
t’s

 g
re

e
n
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

s
o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

n
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
ve

 

p
la

c
e
 t

o
 li

ve

•
 
B

a
rn

e
t’s

 t
o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 v

ib
ra

n
t 

a
n
d

 e
n
ti
c
in

g
, 
w

it
h
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
 r

e
ta

il 

a
n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

o
ff
e
r 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y 

a
re

 a
t 

th
e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 
o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

C
e
n
tr

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
n
e
fit

 f
ro

m
 in

ve
s
tm

e
n
t 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
n
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
ve

 e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 
s
h
o
p

p
e
rs

 a
n
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

.

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 w

il
l…

•
 
d

e
liv

e
r 

it
s
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 £

1
1
 m

ill
io

n
 

in
 r

e
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 b

y 
2
0
2
5
 a

n
d

 £
5
0
 m

ill
io

n
 

in
 o

n
e
-o

ff
 in

c
o
m

e
 b

y 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
th

e
 d

e
c
a
d

e
 –

 

to
 b

e
 in

ve
s
te

d
 in

 in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 –

 a
n
d

 c
re

a
te

 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 2

0
,0

0
0
 n

e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 

fo
r 

u
p

 t
o
 3

0
,0

0
0
 n

e
w

 jo
b

s

•
 
id

e
n
ti
fy

 a
 f
u
tu

re
 ‘
p

ip
e
lin

e
’ 
o
f 
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

s
it
e
s
, 
to

 b
u
ild

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 

n
e
e
d

 a
n
d

 in
c
re

a
s
e
 lo

c
a
l r

e
ve

n
u
e
 s

tr
e
a
m

s

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

1
5

155



•
 
im

p
le

m
e
n
t 

it
s
 E

n
tr

e
p

re
n
e
u
ri
a
l B

a
rn

e
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y 

w
h
ic

h
 a

im
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

th
e
 

b
e
s
t 

p
la

c
e
 in

 L
o
n
d

o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

•
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 lo
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

B
a
rn

e
t’s

 t
o
w

n
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 b

e
n
e
fit

 f
ro

m
 g

ro
w

th
, 
w

it
h
 a

 t
a
ilo

re
d

 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 o

f 
s
u
p

p
o
rt

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
m

 a
d

a
p

t 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 t

o
 a

 c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 w

o
rl
d

.

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 i
n

tu
it

iv
e

 

a
n

d
 fl

e
x
ib

le
, 

w
it

h
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 u

s
e

r 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti

o
n

…
•
 
b

y 
2
0
2
0
, 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

in
te

ra
c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 b

e
 v

ia
 t

h
e
 w

e
b

 a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

s
e
lf-

s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
n
n
e
ls

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 q

u
ic

k
e
r 

a
n
d

 m
o
re

 fl
e
x
ib

le

•
 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 w
ill
 e

x
p

e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y 
p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
, 
fo

c
u
s
s
e
d

 

o
n
 a

c
h
ie

vi
n
g
 f
a
s
t 

a
n
d

 e
ff
e
c
ti
ve

 r
e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 o

f 

q
u
e
ri
e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
q

u
e
s
ts

. 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 

b
e
 in

tu
it
iv

e
, 
re

c
o
g
n
is

in
g
 t

h
e
 in

te
re

s
ts

 o
f 
u
s
e
rs

 

a
n
d

 s
ig

n
-p

o
s
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
m

 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
e
y 

m
ig

h
t 

re
q

u
ir
e

•
 
re

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 o

f 
is

s
u
e
s
 r

a
is

e
d

 a
t 

th
e
 fi

rs
t 

p
o
in

t 
o
f 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 o

c
c
u
r 

o
ve

r 
8
0
%

 

o
f 
th

e
 t

im
e
 a

n
d

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

p
e
o
p

le
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y 

e
x
c
e
e
d

 9
0
%

.

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 w

il
l…

•
 
in

ve
s
t 

in
 it

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e
 a

n
d

 im
p

le
m

e
n
t 

th
e
 

‘M
y 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t’

 p
o
rt

a
l t

o
 m

a
k
e
 it

 e
a
s
ie

r 
fo

r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
lin

e
 –

 s
u
c
h
 

a
s
 p

a
yi

n
g
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

Ta
x
 o

r 
re

n
e
w

in
g
 a

 p
a
rk

in
g
 

p
e
rm

it
 –

 r
e
p

o
rt

 a
 p

ro
b

le
m

, 
a
n
d

 fi
n
d

 o
u
t 

w
h
a
t 

is
 g

o
in

g
 o

n
 lo

c
a
lly

.

B
a

rn
e

t 
w

il
l 
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 

a
s
 a

 t
ra

n
s
p

a
re

n
t 

a
n

d
 o

p
e

n
 c

o
u

n
c

il
…

•
 
B

a
rn

e
t 

w
ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 s

e
e
n
 a

s
 a

 

le
a
d

e
r 

in
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

tr
a
n
s
p

a
re

n
c
y 

a
n
d

 w
ill
 b

u
ild

 o
n
 o

u
r 

g
ro

u
n
d

 b
re

a
k
in

g
 m

o
ve

 

to
 p

u
b

lis
h
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 m

a
jo

r 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
it
h
 

C
a
p

it
a
 o

n
lin

e
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 m

o
re

 in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
va

ila
b

le
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

.

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 w

il
l…

•
 
b

u
ild

 o
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 t

ra
n
s
p

a
re

n
c
y 

a
c
ti
vi

ti
e
s
 -

 

w
h
ic

h
 in

c
lu

d
e
 in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 

it
e
m

s
 o

f 

s
p

e
n
d

in
g
 o

ve
r 

£
5
0
0
, 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n
d

 t
e
n
d

e
r 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

, 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 m

in
u
te

s
, 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

d
a
ta

, 
p

o
lic

y 
d

e
c
is

io
n
s
, 
a
n
d

 F
re

e
d

o
m

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
s
 –

 a
n
d

 id
e
n
ti
fy

 w
a
ys

 

to
 b

e
 m

o
re

 t
ra

n
s
p

a
re

n
t

•
 
d

e
ve

lo
p

 it
s
 O

p
e
n
 D

a
ta

 P
o
rt

a
l t

o
 m

a
k
e
 m

o
re

 

d
a
ta

 a
n
d

 in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

va
ila

b
le

, 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

m
p

o
w

e
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 g

e
t 

m
o
re

 in
vo

lv
e
d

 

in
 t

h
e
ir
 lo

c
a
l a

re
a
s
.

A
n

d
, 

fo
r 

s
ta

ff
, 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il
 w

il
l 
o

ff
e

r 
a

 

m
o

re
 fl

e
x
ib

le
 a

n
d

 m
o

d
e

rn
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e

…
•
 
b

y 
2
0
2
0
, 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 b

e
 a

 m
o
re

 m
o
d

e
rn

 

a
n
d

 fl
e
x
ib

le
 e

m
p

lo
ye

r,
 h

a
vi

n
g
 im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

1
6 156



a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t 

to
 b

e
tt

e
r 

m
e
e
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 

it
s
 s

ta
ff
.

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 w

il
l…

•
 
b
y 

2
0
1
7
, 
re

lo
c
a
te

 it
s 

h
e
a
d
 o

ffi
c
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
lo

c
a
tio

n
 a

t 
N

o
rt

h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 B

u
si

n
e
ss

 

P
a
rk

 t
o
 a

 n
e
w

 H
Q

 in
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 

la
rg

e
st

 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra

tio
n
 a

re
a
s 

–
 C

o
lin

d
a
le

 –
 p

u
tt
in

g
 

th
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
tio

n
 a

n
d
 it

s 
st

a
ff 

a
t 
th

e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 

g
ro

w
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ity

•
 
in

ve
s
t 

in
 n

e
w

 I
T
 t

o
 e

n
a
b

le
 s

ta
ff
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 m
o
re

 

fle
x
ib

ly
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
llo

w
in

g
 

th
e
m

 t
o
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e
r 

to
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
h
e
y 

w
o
rk

 w
it
h
.

=
#
2.
)
#
,
.%
3
$5
7
,
$

)
.-
.5
%
$;
$.
%
4
.1
+
'5
,
-
$

>5
,
$-
7
1
1
#
--

A
c

h
ie

v
in

g
 i
ts

 v
is

io
n

 t
o

 2
0

2
0

 -
 B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
’s

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b

je
c

ti
v
e

s
..

.
•
 
th

e
 c

o
re

 p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
F
a
ir
n
e
s
s
, 
R

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 

a
n
d

 O
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

h
a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 in
to

 

a
 s

e
t 

o
f 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
ve

s
 w

h
ic

h
 f
ra

m
e
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

vi
n
g
 it

s
 v

is
io

n
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
ve

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
a
re

 a
s
 f
o
llo

w
s
:

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
, 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l,
 

re
g

io
n

a
l 
a

n
d

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
, 

w
il
l 

s
tr

iv
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
B

a
rn

e
t 

is
 a

 p
la

c
e

:

1
. 

o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y,

 w
h
e
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 c
a
n
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
th

e
ir
 

q
u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
lif
e
…

2
. 

w
h
e
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 h
e
lp

e
d
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
m

se
lv

e
s,

 

re
c
o
g
n
is

in
g
 t
h
a
t 
p
re
ve
n
ti
o
n
 is

 b
e
tt
e
r 
th

a
n
 

c
u
re

…

3
. 

w
h
e
re

 r
e
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty

 is
 s

h
a
re

d
, 
fa
ir
ly

…

4
. 

w
h
e
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
re

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 e
ffi
c
ie
n
tl
y 

to
 g

e
t 

va
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y 

fo
r 
th

e
 t
a
xp

a
ye

r.

•
 
a
 b

a
s
k
e
t 

o
f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

 

to
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
la

n
, 
s
e
t 

o
u
t 

b
e
lo

w
. 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d

 C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

e
a
c
h
 q

u
a
rt

e
r,
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 p

u
b

lic
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 

a
n
d

 s
c
ru

ti
n
y

• 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
s 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 

a
re

 in
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 t
ra

n
sl

a
te

 t
h
e
se

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
in

to
 

a
c
tio

n
. 
T
h
e
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f e
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

a
re

a
 w

ill 
b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’s

 

w
e
b
si

te
 e

a
c
h
 q

u
a
rt
e
r 
a
n
d
 k

e
y 

se
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 s
u
c
c
e
ss

e
s 

a
n
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s 

w
ill 

a
ls

o
 

b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 

M
o
n
ito

rin
g
 C

o
m

m
itt

e
e
.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

1
7

157



T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
, 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l,
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 
a

n
d

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
, 
w

il
l 
s
tr

iv
e

 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
B

a
rn

e
t 

is
 a

 p
la

c
e

:

1
. 
O
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y,
 w
h
e
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 c
a
n
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
th
e
ir
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e

•
 

B
a
rn

e
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

 g
re

a
t 
p
la

c
e
, 
w

ith
 o

ve
r 
9
0
%

 o
f 
re

si
d
e
n
ts

 s
a
tis

fie
d
 w

ith
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 

a
s 

a
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 li

ve

•
 

w
e
 w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 
o
u
r 
re

g
e
n
e
ra

tio
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 
c
re

a
tin

g
 3

0
,0

0
0
 jo

b
s 

a
n
d
 2

0
,0

0
0
 n

e
w

 

h
o
m

e
s 

b
y 

2
0
2
5
. 
B

y 
2
0
2
0
, 
th

e
re

 w
ill
 b

e
 1

0
,8

4
0
 a

d
d
iti

o
n
a
l n

e
w

 h
o
m

e
s 

in
 B

a
rn

e
t

•
 

a
ll 

B
a
rn

e
t 
sc

h
o
o
ls

 w
ill
 b

e
 r
a
te

d
 a

s 
g
o
o
d
 o

r 
b
e
tt
e
r 
b
y 

O
fs

te
d
, 
g
iv

in
g
 o

u
r 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
h
e
 f
o
u
n
d
a
tio

n
 f
o
r 
fu

tu
re

 s
u
c
c
e
ss

•
 

B
a
rn

e
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 t
h
e
 b

e
st

 o
u
te

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

b
u
si

n
e
ss

, 
w

ith
 

5
%

 m
o
re

 b
u
si

n
e
ss

e
s 

su
rv

iv
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
in

g
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

ith
 o

th
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s

•
 

B
a
rn

e
t’s

 e
xc

e
p
tio

n
a
l p

a
rk

s 
a
n
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s 

w
ill
 b

e
 w

e
ll 

u
se

d
 f
o
r 
le

is
u
re

, 

e
n
jo

ym
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

p
o
rt

. 
O

ve
r 
7
5
%

 o
f 
re

si
d
e
n
ts

 w
ill
 b

e
 s

a
tis

fie
d
 w

ith
 B

a
rn

e
t’s

 p
a
rk

s
 

a
n
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s.

 B
a
rn

e
t 
w

ill
 c

o
n
tin

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 c
le

a
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
, 
ra

te
d
 s

ig
n
ifi

c
a
n
tly

 

h
ig

h
e
r 
th

a
n
 t
h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

ve
ra

g
e
 f
o
r 
h
a
vi

n
g
 c

le
a
n
 s

tr
e
e
ts

•
 

th
e
 r
e
p
a
ir 

o
f 
ro

a
d
s 

a
n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
p
a
ve

m
e
n
ts

 w
ill
 im

p
ro

ve
, 
w

ith
 r
e
si

d
e
n
ts

’ 

sa
tis

fa
c
tio

n
 in

c
re

a
si

n
g
 t
o
, 
a
t 
le

a
st

, 
th

e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

ve
ra

g
e

•
 

a
n
d
 w

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 le
a
d
e
r 
in

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 f
o
r 
re

c
yc

lin
g
; 
o
ve

r 
5
0
%

 o
f 
w

a
st

e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 w

ill
 

b
e
 r
e
u
se

d
, 
re

c
yc

le
d
 o

r 
c
o
m

p
o
st

e
d
.

2
. 
 W
h
e
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 h
e
lp
e
d
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
, 
re
c
o
g
n
is
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 c
u
re

•
 

w
e
 w

ill
 t
a
rg

e
t 
E

a
rly

 Y
e
a
rs

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

so
 t
h
a
t 
fa

m
ili
e
s 

w
h
o
 m

o
st

 n
e
e
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
re

 

a
b
le

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
ss

 it
, 
e
n
su

rin
g
 t
h
a
t 
8
5
%

 o
f 
fa

m
ili
e
s 

w
ith

 t
w

o
 y

e
a
r 
o
ld

s 
w

h
o
 m

o
st

 n
e
e
d

 

a
d
d
iti

o
n
a
l s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
ss

 t
h
e
m

•
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 in

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ith

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
w

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
tin

u
e
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

ve
m

e
n
t 

g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
o
se

 c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 f
re

e
 s

c
h
o
o
l m

e
a
ls

, 
o
r 
a
re

 in
 c

a
re

, 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir 

p
e
e
rs

. 
O

u
r 
a
im

 is
 t
o
 b

e
 in

 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
st

 p
e
rf
o
rm

in
g
 1

0
%

 o
f 
a
ll 

lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

ve
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p

•
 

w
e
 w

ill
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 h

e
a
lth

y 
c
h
o
ic

e
s,

 w
ith

 a
n
 in

c
re

a
se

 in
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
u
lts

 t
a
k
in

g
 p

a
rt

 in
 r
e
g
u
la

r 
sp

o
rt

s 
a
c
tiv

ity
 o

r 
e
xe

rc
is

e
 t
o
 5

5
.6

%

•
 

w
e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is

e
 t
h
e
 im

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 r
e
q
u
ire

 m
o
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 b
e
in

g
 a

b
le

 

to
 li

ve
 w

ith
 in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 a

b
le

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
ss

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t.
 W

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 in

 t
h
e
 t
o
p

 

1
0
%

 o
f 
a
ll 

lo
c
a
l a

u
th

o
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
u
lts

 w
ith

 le
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili
tie

s 
w

h
o

 

a
re

 in
 e

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t

•
 

o
u
r 
vi

si
o
n
 is

 t
h
a
t 
o
ld

e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 li

ve
 s

a
fe

ly
 a

n
d
 m

a
xi

m
is

e
 t
h
e
ir
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
. 
A

ll 
o
ld

e
r 
a
d
u
lts

 w
ith

 e
lig

ib
le

 a
d
u
lt 

so
c
ia

l c
a
re

 n
e
e
d
s 

w
ill
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

w
h
ic

h
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 li

ve
 a

s 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tly

 a
s 

p
o
ss

ib
le

.

3
. 
W
h
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 i
s
 s
h
a
re
d
, 
fa
ir
ly

•
 

o
u
r 
a
m

b
iti

o
n
 f
o
r 
re

si
d
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 g
ro

u
p
s 

is
 f
o
r 
th

e
m

 t
o
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
, 
w

ith
 

m
o
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
g
u
la

rly
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rin

g
 in

 t
h
e
ir 

c
o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s 

–
 a

n
d
 o

ve
r 
3
5
%

 o
f 

re
si

d
e
n
ts

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
rin

g
 e

a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

•
 

B
a
rn

e
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

 p
la

c
e
 o

f 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
ity

, 
w

ith
 lo

w
 r
a
te

s 
o
f 
u
n
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
(4

.2
%

) 

a
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 g
re

a
t 
st

a
rt

 in
 li

fe
 –

 b
e
in

g
 in

 t
h
e
 t
o
p

 

1
0
%

 in
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 f
o
r 
h
ig

h
e
st

 n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
yo

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 in
 e

d
u
c
a
tio

n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g

 

o
r 
w

o
rk

.

4
. 
 W
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 e
ffi
c
ie
n
tl
y
 t
o
 g
e
t 
v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 t
a
x
p
a
y
e
r

•
 

B
a
rn

e
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 in

 t
h
e
 lo

w
e
st

 2
5
%

 o
f 
a
ll 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 (
B

o
ro

u
g
h
s 

a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
ils

) 

fo
r 
e
xp

e
n
d
itu

re
 p

e
r 
h
e
a
d
 o

f 
p
o
p
u
la

tio
n
 a

s 
w

e
 k

e
e
p
 o

u
r 
c
o
st

s 
u
n
d
e
r 
c
o
n
tr
o
l.

•
 
w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 a

ll 
o

th
e
r 

c
o

u
n
c
ils

 (
B

o
ro

u
g

h
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n
c
ils

),
 a

ll 

o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

a
te

d
 a

b
o

ve
 a

ve
ra

g
e
.

A
n
d
 w
it
h
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 t
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y

•
 

w
e
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 c

u
st

o
m

e
r 
se

rv
ic

e
, 
w

ith
 9

0
%

 o
f 
c
u
st

o
m

e
rs

 s
a
tis

fie
d

 

w
ith

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
h
e
y 

re
c
e
iv

e
 f
ro

m
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

se
rv

ic
e
s.

•
 

c
u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
ill
 e

xp
e
rie

n
c
e
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
l s

e
rv

ic
e
, 
m

e
a
n
in

g
 8

0
%

 o
f 
a
ll 

in
q
u
iri

e
s
 

fr
o
m

 c
u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
ill
 b

e
 r
e
so

lv
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 fi

rs
t 
p
o
in

t 
o
f 
c
o
n
ta

c
t.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

1
8 158



?
#
#
'.
%
3
$'
"
#
$@
7
A
2.
1
$B
#
1
'5
,
$C
D
7
+
2.
'*
$=
7
'*

•
 
in

 d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t

h
is

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
, 
th

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 it

 t
a
k
e
s
 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
m

 w
ill
 r

e
fle

c
t 

o
u
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

E
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 O

b
je

c
ti
ve

 (
S

E
O

),
 w

h
ic

h
 is

:

T
h

a
t 

c
it

iz
e

n
s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 t

re
a

te
d

 e
q

u
a

ll
y,

 

w
it

h
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p

e
c

t,
 

a
n

d
 w

il
l 
h

a
v
e

 e
q

u
a

l 
a

c
c

e
s
s
 t

o
 q

u
a

li
ty

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
 v

a
lu

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

ta
x
 p

a
y
e

r:

•
 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 t

o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 is

 

e
m

b
e
d

d
e
d

 in
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 w

e
 m

a
k
e
 a

s
 a

n
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 is
 f
u
lly

 in
te

g
ra

te
d

 in
to

 o
u
r 

a
n
n
u
a
l b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
C

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

to
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d

 in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 im

p
a
c
ts

 

a
n
d

 r
is

k
s
 b

e
fo

re
 fi

n
a
l d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

re
 t

a
k
e
n

•
 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 

S
E

O
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 b
a
s
k
e
t 

o
f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 T

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l A

p
p

e
n
d

ix
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 u

s
e
 t

h
e
 in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w

e
 h

o
ld

 a
b

o
u
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 b

re
a
k
 

th
is

 d
o
w

n
 b

y 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

w
h
e
re

ve
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

le

•
 
in

 a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
, 
w

e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 in

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 w

a
s
te

 a
n
d

 r
e
c
yc

lin
g
; 

p
a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
; 
a
tt

a
in

m
e
n
t 

ra
te

s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

B
a
rn

e
t’s

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

in
 c

a
re

; 
a
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

fo
r 

vu
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 

le
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 p
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 is

s
u
e
s
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 lo

o
k
 a

t 
R

e
s
id

e
n
t 

P
e
rc

e
p

ti
o
n
 S

u
rv

e
y 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 

to
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

c
o
h
e
s
io

n
; 
a
n
d

 li
fe

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y 

ra
te

s
 in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

•
 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 b

a
s
k
e
t 

o
f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

u
s
e
d

 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 S

E
O

 in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 w

ill
 

b
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 p
u
b

lic
ly

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

E
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 t
o
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

1
9

159



E
6
6
#
%
4
.&
$F
0$
/
+
,
%
#
'$
G
5
7
%
1
.2
<-
$(
%
+
%
1
.+
2$
6
5
-.
'.
5
%
$9
:
F
H
$I
$9
:
9
:

T
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 o

n
 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il
’s

 fi
n

a
n

c
e

s

•
 
in

 B
a
rn

e
t,

 t
h
e
 im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
fa

lli
n
g
 p

u
b

lic
 s

p
e
n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 

fo
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
s
 m

e
a
n
t 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

e
e
d

e
d

 t
o
 s

a
ve

 £
7
5
m

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

2
0
1
1
 a

n
d

 2
0
1
5
 –

 2
6
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 
it
s
 b

u
d

g
e
t

•
 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

fa
c
e
s
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

b
u
d

g
e
t 

g
a
p

 o
f 
£
9
0
.8

 m
ill
io

n
 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
5
 

to
 2

0
2
0
, 
w

h
ic

h
 m

e
a
n
s
 w

e
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 o

u
r 

ru
n
n
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 b
y 

a
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

£
9
0
.8

m
 b

y 
2
0
1
9
/2

0

•
 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l s
a
vi

n
g
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

 e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

to
 2

0
2
0
 a

re
:

2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7
2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
8
/1

9
2

0
1

9
/2

0
T
o

ta
l

£
1
7
.2

6
9
m

£
2
2
.4
1
9
m

£
1
8
.3

2
4
m

£
1
6
.5

6
7
m

£
1

6
.2

7
0

m
£

9
0

.8
4

9
m

•
 
th

e
 im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
a
 d

e
c
a
d

e
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

t 
o
n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 fi

n
a
n
c
e
s
 

a
n
d

 in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

e
a
n
s
 t

h
a
t,

 in
 r

e
a
l t

e
rm

s
, 
b

y 
th

e
 

e
n
d

 o
f 
th

e
 d

e
c
a
d

e
, 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 t

o
ta

l s
p

e
n
d

in
g
 p

o
w

e
r 

w
ill
 b

e
 n

e
a
rl
y 

h
a
lf 

w
h
a
t 

it
 w

a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

2
0 160



T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
’s

 M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 t

o
 2

0
2

0

•
 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 p

u
b

lis
h
e
d

 a
 M

e
d

iu
m

 T
e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l S
tr

a
te

g
y 

(M
T
F
S

) 
to

 2
0
2
0
, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 

h
o
w

 it
 w

ill
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 fi

n
a
n
c
ia

l c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e
 d

e
c
a
d

e

•
 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 t

o
ta

l b
u
d

g
e
t 

a
t 

th
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 is

 £
2
9
3
.8

m
, 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

p
lit

 b
y 

th
e
 m

a
in

 c
o
u
n
c
il 

‘T
h
e
m

e
’ 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 a

s
 f
o
llo

w
s
:

To
ta

l 
B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

B
u
d

g
e
t 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
: 
£
2
9
3
.8

m

3
0
%

1
%

1
1
%

1
%

2
0
%

2
%

3
5
%

P
o
lic
y
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

H
o
u
s
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

A
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s

A
s
s
e
ts
, 
R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 G
ro
w
th
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

C
h
ild
re
n
, 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 &
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

2
1

161



•
 

a
s
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

, 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 h

a
ve

 a
g
re

e
d

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
ta

lin
g
 £

6
8
.9

m
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 t

o
ta

l s
a
vi

n
g

s
 g

a
p

 o
f 
£
9
0
.8

 m
ill
io

n

•
 

th
e
 t

a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
 o

u
tl
in

e
s
 t

h
e
 s

a
vi

n
g
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 o

ve
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

fiv
e
 y

e
a
rs

:

T
h

e
m

e
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 –

 2
0

1
9
/2

0
T
o

ta
l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 £

0
0

0

A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

2
1
,0

3
1

A
s
s
e
ts
, 
R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 &
 G
ro
w
th
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

1
0
,3

7
7

C
h
ild
re
n
, 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 &
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

1
3
,2

6
9

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

8
5

2

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e

7
,7

2
1

H
o
u
s
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

3
0

0

P
o
lic
y
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

1
5
,3

7
7

T
o

ta
l

6
8
,9

2
7

•
 

th
is

 le
a
ve

s
 a

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g

 b
u
d

g
e
t 

g
a
p

 o
f 
£
2
1

.9
 m

ill
io

n
 b

y 
2
0
1
9

/2
0
, 
w

h
ic

h
 f
a
lls

 la
rg

e
ly

 in
 t

h
e
 fi

n
a
l t

w
o
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 d

e
c
a
d

e
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 u

s
e
 it

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

it
 a

c
h
ie

ve
s
 a

 b
a
la

n
c
e
d

 b
u
d

g
e
t 

b
y 

2
0
2
0
.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
 –

 2
0
2
0
 

A
p
ril

 2
0
1
5

2
2 162



163



F
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
le
a
s
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t:
  

To
m
 P
ik
e
, 
H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
  

te
l:
 0

2
0

 8
3
5
9

 7
0
5
8
 
e
m
a
il:
 t

o
m

.p
ik

e
@

b
a

rn
e

t.
g

o
v.

u
k

Ref: 008942_Corporate Plan A4 Booklet 16/04/2015

164



Corporate!Plan!2015!–!2020:!Technical!Appendix!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

LONDON!BOROUGH!OF!BARNET!!

CORPORATE!PLAN!2015!"2020!

DELIVERING!THE!PLAN!–!TECHNICAL!APPENDIX!

!

! !

165



Corporate!Plan!2015!–!2020:!Technical!Appendix!

!

COUNCIL!COMMITTEE!COMMISSIONING!PRIORITIES!AND!OUTCOMES

In! June!2014,! the!Council!moved! to!a!Committee! system!of!governance,!with!elected!Councillors!

taking!decisions!through!a!range!of!cross"party!Committees.! !These!Committees!have!responsibility!

for! the! entire! range! of! statutory! duties,! service! areas! and! policy! responsibilities! relating! to! the!

Council.!!

!

This!section!sets!out!the!priorities!for!each!Committee;!what!each!Committee!will!focus!on!in!order!

to!achieve!those!priorities;!and!what!the!desired!results!–!or!outcomes!–!are! intended!to!be.! !The!

final! section!of! the! appendix!provides! a! table! showing!measures!of! success!which!we!will!use! to!

track!the!delivery!of!effective!services!to!residents.!Monitoring!of!progress!is!reported!every!three!

months!to!the!Performance!and!Contract!Management!Committee.!

!

ADULTS!AND!SAFEGUARDING!COMMITTEE!

The!Committee’s! remit! includes! social! care! services! for! adults!with! a! learning!disability;!mental!

health!needs;!physical!disability!or!sensory!impairment;!older!people!and!carers;!information!and!

advice!about!social!care!support!and!community!based!preventative!services;!and!leisure!services!

provided!by!the!Council.!

!

Our!priorities:!

1. That!all!adults!are!given!the!opportunity!to!live!well,!age!well!and!stay!well,!with!people!feeling!

safe;!

2. That! social! care! outcomes! are! delivered! through! a! partnership! with! NHS,! Job! Centre! Plus,!

housing!providers!and!local!communities;!

3. That!people!are!able!to!plan!for!the!future,!but!are!supported!to!get!back!on!their!feet! if!crises!

occur;!and!

4. That! those!with! longer! term!need!have!access! to! support!which! is!creative,! individual! to! their!

needs!and!local.!

!

Outcomes:!

The!Committee!will!focus!on!achieving!the!following!outcomes:!

1. Planning!for!life! Working!age!adults!and!older!people!live!a!healthy,!full!and!active!life.!

They! live! in! homes! that! respond! to! their! changing! requirements! and!

have!sufficient!finances!to!meet!their!needs.!

2. Early! intervention!

and!prevention!

Older!people!have!timely!access!to!diagnosis!and!are!helped!to!manage!

their! condition.! !All! residents! know!what! is! available! to! increase! and!

maintain!their!well"being!and!independence.!

3. Integrated!support! Working!age!adults!and!older!people!have!timely!access!to!health!and!

social! care! support! that! avoids! hospital! admission! or! admission! to!

residential!care.!

4. Safeguarding! Working! age! adults! and! older! people! are! supported! to! live! safely,!

maximising!their!independence!and!minimise!risk.!!!

5. Supporting!carers! Carers!are!supported!to!continue!caring!for!as!long!as!they!wish.!Carers!

are!valued!as!expert!partners!in!supporting!people!to!live!independent!

lives.!!

!

!

!

166



Corporate!Plan!2015!–!2020:!Technical!Appendix!

!

!

In!achieving!this,!the!Committee!will!focus!on:!

1. Integrating!social!care!and!NHS!health!services!to!deliver!better!results.!

2. Introducing! a! joined! up! disabilities! service! for! young! people! and! adults,! from! birth! to!

adulthood!(0!–!25!years!old).!

3. Providing! better! support! for! individuals! with! mental! health! issues! to! retain! or! regain!

employment!and!suitable!housing!that!supports!their!well"being.!

4. Joining!up!with!public!health!to!help!people!better!self"manage!their!care.!

5. Working!with!the!NHS!to! implement!the!Care!Act,! including! improved!advice!and!advocacy!

services!for!residents!and!greater!support!to!enable!carers!to!continue!in!their!caring!role.!

6. Going!further!with!personalisation!of!care,! including!more!creative!support!plans!for!those!

who!receive!care!and!a!shift!to!support!in!community!settings!and!at!home.!

!

CHILDREN,!EDUCATION,!LIBRARIES!AND!SAFEGUARDING!COMMITTEE!

The!Children,!Education,!Libraries!and!Safeguarding!Committee!covers!education!services;!support!

to!children!with!disabilities;!looked!after!children;!children!in!need;!family!and!youth!support;!and!

libraries.!

!

Compared!with!the!rest!of!the!country,!Barnet’s!children!do!well!at!school,!have!good!health,!benefit!

from!low!crime!rates,!live!their!lives!safely!and!have!access!to!high!quality!open!spaces.!!The!Council!

needs! to!ensure! this! success! is!maintained! and! that! those!who! are! at! risk!of!missing!out!have! a!

better!start!in!life.!

!

Our!priorities:!

1. To!ensure!that!Barnet!remains!one!of!the!best!places!in!the!country!for!children!to!grow!up;!

2. To! support!children!and! families!who!currently!do! less!well! in! life! to!overcome!barriers! to!

success!allowing!all!children!the!opportunity!to!thrive;!and!

3. To! ensure! children! and! young! people! are! safe! in! their! homes,! schools! and! around! the!

borough.!

!

Outcomes:!

The!Committee!will!focus!on!improving!the!following!outcomes:!

1. Safeguarding! Children!and!young!people!are! safe! in! their!homes!and,!when!children!

are!at! risk,! to! intervene!early! to! improve!outcomes! for!children,!young!

people!and!families.!

2. Education! Continuing!to!maintain!excellent!school!standards.!Working!with!schools,!

we!will!continue!to!reduce!the!achievement!gap!between!those!children!

who!receive!free!school!meals,!or!are!in!care,!and!their!peers.!!Our!aim!is!

to!be! in!the!highest!performing!10%!of!all! local!authorities!for!reducing!

the!achievement!gap.!

3. Health! and! well"

being!

Every!child!in!Barnet!has!a!great!start!in!life,!with!the!security!and!safety!

to!grow!in!a!nurturing!environment!

4. Preparation!for!

adulthood!

All!young!people!are!ambitious! for! their! future,! ready! to!contribute! to!

society!and!have!the!ability!to!plan!for!the!future.!

5. Parenting! All!parents!and!carers!are!able!to!develop!high!quality!relationships!with!

their!children,!establishing!effective!boundaries!and!support!physical!and!

emotional!well"being.!

6. Libraries! Children!and!adults!benefit!from!reading!and!learning!opportunities!and!

community!groups!are!supported!to!support!a!range!of!outcomes!

167



Corporate!Plan!2015!–!2020:!Technical!Appendix!

!

through!library!facilities.!

In!achieving!this,!the!Committee!will!focus!on:!

!

1. Redesigning!services,!including!a!new!delivery!model!for!education!services!to!schools,!with!

schools!setting!the!direction;!an!early!years!service!which!is!more!targeted,!collaborative!and!

with!greater!community!involvement;!and!a!modernised!library!service!which!uses!the!latest!

technology,! maximises! commercial! opportunities! and! promotes! literacy! and! access! to!

information.!

2. Targeting!support!early!to!those!who!do!less!well,!working!with!schools!to!help!children!and!

young!people!overcome!barriers!to!wellbeing!and!success.!

3. Continuing!to!invest!in!preventive!services,!such!as!children’s!centres,!to!improve!outcomes!

for!families!and!achieve!medium!to!long!term!savings.!

4. Working!with!partners! to! improve!outcomes! for!disabled!children! through!a!0"25!year!old!!

disability!service.!

5. Allowing!more!people!to!have!personalised!budgets,!with!spend!proportionate!to!individual!

needs.!

!

ENVIRONMENT!COMMITTEE!

The! Environment! Committee! covers! environmental! services,! including! waste! collection! and!

disposal;! parks! and! green! spaces;! parking;! regulatory! services;! highways;! and! cemetery! and!

crematorium.! !Barnet!has!a!high!quality!natural!and!urban!environment! that! is!appealing! to!both!

residents!and!visitors.! !However,!we!need!to!go!further!by! looking!at!different!ways!of!maintaining!

the! quality! of! our! parks! and! green! spaces;! increasing! how!much!waste! is! recycled;! and! reduce!

pollution.!

!

Our!priorities:!

1. To!drive!an! increase! in!overall!resident!satisfaction!with!Barnet!as!a!place!to! live!to!among!

the!highest!of!any!outer!London!borough;!and!

2. To!create!the!environment!for!economic!growth!and!the!success!of!residents,!ensuring!high!

quality!infrastructure!is!in!place,!and!removing!any!barriers!or!unnecessary!costs!of!growth!to!

successful!businesses.!

!

Outcomes:!

The!Committee!will!focus!on!improving!the!following!outcomes:!

1. Recycling! Increasing!recycling!rates!and!minimising!waste!sent!to!landfill!to!the!

best!10%!compared!with!similar!boroughs! in!London!and!nationally,!

focusing!on!encouraging!behaviour!change!and!waste!minimisation.!

2. Parks! and! green!

Spaces!

Protecting,! conserving! and! enhancing! green! space! and! the! leafy!

character!of!Barnet! for!current!and! future!generations,!so! that! they!

can!support!and!improve!the!health!and!well"being!of!the!population.!

3. Highways,!

pavements! and!

parking!

Ensuring!that!highway!services! in!the!borough!–! including!roads!and!

pavements!–!are!maintained!to!a!high!quality,!and!improvements!are!

focused!on!areas!with!highest!use!or!growth.!

4. Regulatory!services! Making! regulatory! services,! like! licencing! and! environmental! health!

high! quality! and! efficient,!while! prioritising! key! risks! to! health! and!

safety.!

5. Cemeteries! and! Delivering!a!service!that!is!high!quality!and!efficient,!and!responds!to!

168



Corporate!Plan!2015!–!2020:!Technical!Appendix!

!

Crematoria! changing!resident!preferences.!

In!achieving!this,!the!Committee!will!focus!on:!

!

1. Redesigning!services,! including!a!new!delivery!model! for!waste! removal!services! from!homes!

and! businesses,! giving! residents! a! range! of! options! about! how! their!waste! is! collected;! and!

providing!businesses!with!access!to!premium!regulatory!services! if!they!want!their!application!

dealt!with!in!a!more!speedy!way.!

2. Managing! parks! and! green! spaces! differently,! including! working! with! communities! to! run!

activities!and!help!manage!some!parks.!

3. Working!with! our! delivery! partner! Regional! Enterprise! (Re)! to! deliver! high! quality! regulatory!

services,!ensuring! that! services! such!as!environmental!health!and! licencing!are!easy! to!access!

and!efficient.!

4. Continuing!to!deliver!highways!services!that!make!it!as!easy!as!possible!for!people!to!get!around!

by!car!and!on!foot.!

5. Using! encouragement,! behaviour! change! and,! where! necessary,! enforcement! to! persuade!

people!to!not!drop!litter!in!the!borough.!

!

! !

ASSETS,!REGENERATION!AND!GROWTH!COMMITTEE!

The! Assets,! Regeneration! and! Growth! Committee! oversees! a! number! of! areas! including!

regeneration;!development;!economic!growth;!Town!Centres;!Community!Assets,!and!Council!assets!

and! accommodation.! ! Barnet’s! growth! and! regeneration! programme! covers! three! core! areas! of!

work:!

!

! The!borough’s!physical!regeneration!scheme.!

! Economic!development!and!growth.!

! Wider!programmes!to!make!the!council!estate!operate!in!a!more!efficient!and!cost"effective!

way.!

!

Our!priorities:!

1. Providing!new!and!replacement!community,!leisure,!education!and!health!facilities,!as!well!as!

housing,!infrastructure!and!parks!for!residents;!

2. Increasing! the!prospect!of!better!paid! employment!by! generating!new! jobs! and! providing!

residents!and!businesses!with!the!tools!and!support!to!prosper;!

3. Supporting!the!growth!of!businesses!by!reducing!red!tape!and!bureaucracy,!helping!residents!

of!all!ages!to!succeed!in!the!labour!market;!

4. Implementing!a! range!of!activity! to!make!Barnet!an!attractive!place! to!operate!a!business,!

including!to!invest!and!recruit!people!locally;!and!!

5. Managing! the! Council’s! land! and! property! assets! so! that! they! deliver! operational! and!

financial!benefits.!

!

Outcomes:!

To!achieve! these!priorities!within! the!resources!available!up! to!2020,! the!committee!will! focus!on!

delivering!the!following!outcomes:!

1. Regeneration! Regeneration!schemes!completed!to!a!high!standard,! including!the!new!

communities! in!Brent!Cross!and!Colindale.!Success!will!be!measured!by!

good!quality!homes,!safe!attractive!environments!and!integration!of!new!

developments!and!the!people!who! live,!work!and!visit!them! integrating!

169



Corporate!Plan!2015!–!2020:!Technical!Appendix!

!

with!existing!areas.!

2. Economy! Barnet!is!established!as!the!best!place!in!London!to!be!a!small!business.!

3. Thriving! town!

centres!

Key! town! centres! are! thriving,! creating! pleasant! places! for! people! to!

shop,!live,!work!and!socialise!in.!

4. Council!assets! Continue!to! improve!the!management!of!the!council’s!assets!to!achieve!

savings,!maximise!income!and!support!longer!term!growth.!

5. Housing!growth! New! developments! meet! housing! need,! contribute! to! Barnet’s!

reputation! as! a! desirable! place! to! live! and!maximise! benefits! to! the!

council.!

In!achieving!this,!the!Committee!will!focus!on:!

!

1. Successful! delivery! of! the! existing! regeneration! programme,! including! Brent! Cross! and!

Colindale,!and!identification!of!future!development!opportunities!across!the!borough.!

2. More!effective!use!of!community!assets,!with!discounts!on!full!market!rent!and!development!

of!a!“community!hub”!approach!for!community!assets!with!community!groups! identified!to!

run!these.!

3. Developing! stronger! relationships! with! local! businesses,! through! business! training! and!

mentoring,!and!by!improving!access!to!council!contracts.!

4. Increasing! the! prospect! of! better! paid! employment! by! creating! new! jobs! and! providing!

residents!and!businesses!with!the!tools!and!support!to!prosper!and!grow.!

5. Streamline!planning,!regulation!and!customer!access!for!businesses.!

6. Identifying!major,! district! and! local! town! centres! and! develop! a! tailored! offer! to! support!

each.!

7. Reducing! council! office! accommodation! costs,! through! relocation! and! selling! vacant! sites,!

using!the!public!sector!estate!in!a!more!efficient!and!joined!up!way.!

!

COMMUNITY!LEADERSHIP!COMMITTEE!

The! Community! Leadership! Committee! covers! community! safety;! community! participation! and!

involvement;!and!emergency!planning.!The!Committee!is!not!a!large!consumer!of!council!resources,!

but!rather!supports!co"ordination!of!a!range!of!public!sector!activities!in!the!borough.!

!

Barnet! is!a!safe!borough!with!strong,!cohesive!communities! "!87%!of!respondents! to! the!council’s!

Residents’!Perception!Survey!agree!that!people!from!different!backgrounds!get!on!well!together! in!

the!borough!and!78%!feel!that!people!treat!each!other!with!respect!and!consideration.!

!

The! Council! aims! to! build! on! these! strengths,! encouraging! well"being,! acting! early! when! giving!

support! to! the!most! vulnerable! or! at! risk,! and!mobilising! community! capacity! and! resources! to!

support!the!priorities!of!the!borough.!!

!

Our!priorities:!

1. To!ensure!safe!communities,!supporting!the!police!to!address!anti"social!behaviour!and!crime;!

2. To! reduce! the! fear! of! crime! and! anti"social! behaviour,! especially! for! the! most! vulnerable!

members!of!the!community;!

3. To!facilitate!the!council’s!community! leadership!role,!encouraging!community!participation!and!

supporting!residents!and!communities!to!become!more!active,!independent!and!resilient;!and!

4. To!ensure!the!borough!is!well!prepared!for!any!emergency!that!may!arise.!

!

170



Corporate!Plan!2015!–!2020:!Technical!Appendix!

!

!

Outcomes:!

The!committee!will!focus!on!improving!the!following!outcomes:!

1. Safe!communities! Crime!levels!remain!low!and!people!feel!safe!to!live!and!work!in!Barnet;!

victims! of! crime! and! anti"social! behaviour! are! well! supported;! and!

reoffending! reduces!and! fewer!areas!experience!persistent!crime!and!

anti"social!behaviour.!

2. Strong!communities! Residents! and! community! groups! are! independent,! resilient! and! take!

on! responsibility! for! their! local! areas;! and! communities! are! more!

cohesive.!

3. Active,!involved!

communities!

Residents!and! community!groups!are!more! involved! in!designing!and!

delivering! services;! there! are!more!options! to! get! things!done! in! the!

borough.!

4. Emergency!

preparedness!

The! borough! is!well! prepared! for! emergencies! and! responds! quickly!

and!appropriately!when!any!arise.!

In!achieving!this,!the!Committee!will!focus!on:!

!

1. Improving!community!safety!through!strong,!co"ordinated!partnership!approaches!to!crime,!

anti"social! behaviour,! domestic! violence;! violence! against! women! and! girls;! and! hate!

crime.!

2. Co"ordinated!offender!management,!to!reduce!reoffending.!

3. Moving! the! CCTV! service! to! a! revenue! neutral! position,! preferably! by! finding! alternative!

funding!sources!so!that!the!service!continues!to!benefit!Barnet.!

4. Improving!levels!of!community!participation!and!involvement!in!council!services,!including!

by!bringing!together!resources,!such!as!grants!and!funding!and!our!community!buildings,!to!

support!community!groups!who!help!deliver!our!outcomes.!

5. Providing! strategic! and! operational! direction! for! emergency! planning,! preparedness! and!

response,!making!the!public!more!aware!of!how!agencies!respond!to!emergency! incidents!

and!engaging!with!faith!and!community!leaders!to!make!sure!they!can!play!a!part!in!planning!

for,!and!responding!to,!large!scale!emergency!situations.!

!

HOUSING!COMMITTEE!

The!Housing!!Committee!covers!all!aspects!of!housing!including!maintaining!and!managing!the!stock!

of!social!housing;! temporary!accommodation;!housing!advice;!homelessness!and!housing!needs;!

and!the!regulation!of!private!sector!housing.!

!

Barnet! has! one! of! the! largest! housing! stocks! of! any! London! borough,! reflecting! its! large! and!

relatively! affluent! population.! !However,!we! can! do!more! to! ensure! that! high! quality! housing! is!

accessible!to!as!wide!a!range!of!people!as!possible,!including!younger!people!and!those!facing!more!

difficult!circumstances.!

!

Our!priorities:!

1. To! enable! those!who! add! to! the! economic,! civic! or! cultural! life! of! the! borough! to! have! the!

opportunity!to!live!in!Barnet;!and!

2. To! facilitate!growth!and!the!success!of!residents!by!delivering!a!sufficient! long"!term!supply!of!

new!housing!of!all!types!and!tenures;!

171



Corporate!Plan!2015!–!2020:!Technical!Appendix!

!

!

!

Outcomes:!

The!committee!will!focus!on!improving!the!following!outcomes:!

1. Housing!Supply! Prioritise! increasing! the! housing! supply,! including! the! use! of! our! own!

resources!to!build!new!homes.!

2. Affordable!Housing! The!delivery!of!homes!that!people!can!afford,! including!homes!for!rent!

at!local!housing!allowance!levels!and!low!cost!home!ownership.!

3. High! quality! private!

rented!sector!

The! increased! level! of! private! renting! means! that! we! will! focus! on!

quality! in! the!Private!Rented!Sector,! including! the!use!of!discretionary!

powers!to!improve!poorly!managed!houses!in!multiple!occupation.!

4. Homelessness! Continue! to!help! those! that!need!assistance!by! tackling!homelessness,!

with!a! focus!on!prevention!as!well!as!making!best!use!of!our!existing!

housing!stock.!

5. Vulnerable!residents! Providing! suitable! housing! to! support! vulnerable! people! will! be! a!

priority,! including! older! residents,! those! with! disabilities! and!mental!

health!problems!and!young!people!leaving!care.!

6. Delivering! new!

homes!

Ensure!that!housing!finances!are!optimised!to!maximise!the!amount!of!

money!available!to!invest!in!delivering!new!homes,!including!a!review!of!

our!rents!policy.!

7. An! efficient,!

effective!service!

Work!with!Barnet!Homes,!our!Arm’s!Length!Management!Organisation,!

to!review!housing!services!to!ensure!that!they!are!fit!for!the!future,!able!

to! deliver! our! wider! objectives! and! deliver! efficient! and! effective!

services!to!tenants!and!leaseholders.!

In!achieving!this,!the!Committee!will!focus!on:!

!

1. Ensuring! that! new! developments! on! council! land!meet! the! borough’s! housing! need! and!

maximise!benefits!to!the!Council.!

2. Developing!priorities!for! investment! in!new!and!existing!council!homes!and!bringing!empty!

properties!back!in!to!use.!

3. Delivering!affordable!housing!in!the!borough!in!a!way!that!meets!the!needs!and!aspirations!

of!the!population.!

4. Creating!a!new!Homelessness!and!Temporary!Accommodation!Action!Plan!to!support!those!

with!the!greatest!need!benefit.!

5. Implementing!a!supported!housing!pathway!for!children!leaving!care.!

6. Improving! the! quality! of! the! private! rented! sector,! by! supporting! good! landlords! and!

intervening!where!necessary,!including!houses!in!multiple!occupation!(HMOs).!

7. Providing! specialist! housing! including! extra! care! accommodation! and! homes! that! are!

wheelchair! accessible! and! creating! a! supported! housing! pathway! for! people!with!mental!

health!needs!which!promotes!independence!and!recovery.!

!

PUBLIC!HEALTH!AND!HEALTH!&!WELL"BEING!BOARD!

Public!Health!is!about!the!promotion!of!good!health!and!the!prevention!of!ill"health,!rather!than!the!

cure! of! illness.! Barnet’s! Health! &!Well"Being! Board! is! the! Commissioning! Committee! for! public!

172



Corporate!Plan!2015!–!2020:!Technical!Appendix!

!

health,!and!decides!how! the!public!health!grant! is! spent! to! improve! the!health!and!well"being!of!

Barnet’s!population.!

!

Barnet’s! residents! live! longer!and!are! in!better!health! than! in!many!parts!of!London!and!England.!

Nevertheless,! there! are! also! worsening! health! trends! in! the! borough,! a! number! of! which! are!

connected! to! lifestyle! choices! made! by! individuals,! such! as! whether! they! smoke,! take! regular!

exercise,!eat!healthily,!or!misuse!alcohol!or!drugs.!

!

Promoting! good! health! and! healthy! behaviours,! particularly! in! the! early! years! of! life,! and!

empowering!individuals!to!take!responsibly!for!their!own!health,!are!priority!actions.!

!

Outcomes:!

To! achieve! the! Health! and!Well"being! Board’s! priorities,! the! Board!will! focus! on! improving! the!

following!outcomes:!

1. Give!every!child!the!best!start!

in!life!

Children,! young! people! and! families! are! supported! to! be!

physically,!mentally!and!emotionally!healthy.!

2. Enable! all! children,! young!

people! and! adults! to! have!

control!over!their!lives!

People!are!discouraged! from!adopting!unhealthy!behaviours,!

and!encouraged!to!make!healthier!choices.!

3. Create! fair! employment! and!

good!work!for!all!

Those! furthest! from! the! labour! market! are! supported! to!

access! training! and! employment! opportunities,! retain! job!

opportunities,!and!return!to!employment.!

4. Create! and! develop! healthy!

and! sustainable! places! and!

communities!

The!built!environment!is!conducive!to!healthy!and!active!living!

choices!such!as!walking,!active!travel,!sports!and!recreation.!

5. Strengthen! the! impact! of! ill!

health!prevention!

Older!people!are!supported!to!stay!well!during!winter.!People!

at!risk!of,!or! living!with,!a! long!term!condition!are!supported!

to! manage! these! risks! or! self"manage! their! condition,!

resulting!in!fewer!crisis!responses.!

In!achieving!this,!the!Health!&!Well"Being!Board!will!focus!on:!

1. Maintaining!investment!in!activities!that!promote!physical!activity.!

2. More!investment!in!preventive!services,!such!as!children’s!centres,!to!improve!outcomes!for!

families!and!achieve!medium"term!savings;! retaining!current!early!years’! investments,!and!

reviewing!school!nursing!arrangements!while!maintaining!current!investment.!

3. Retaining!investment!in!the!community"based!Ageing!Well!programme!and!develop!a!

targeted!prevention!offer!for!elderly!residents!with!long!term!conditions.!

4. Reviewing!drug!and!alcohol!services!to!improve!treatment!outcomes,!while!maintaining!the!

current!level!of!investment,!redesigning!the!model!for!sexual!health!services!provision!and!

targeting!smoking!cessation!services!toward!at"risk!populations.!!

5. Extending! the! employment! support! programme,! to! improve! support! for! clients! with!

motivational,!mental!health,!and!alcohol!or!substance!misuse!issues.!

6. Develop!a!comprehensive!weight!management!offer!with!the!NHS.!

7. Developing!an!emotional!well"being!programme!in!the!community!to!compliment!Child!&!

Adolescent!Mental!Health!Services!(CAMHS),!adult!mental!health!and!community!resilience!

plans.

173



C
o
rp
o
ra
te
!P
la
n
!2
0
1
5
!–
!2
0
2
0
:!
T
e
ch
n
ic
a
l!
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
!

! D
e
li
v
e
ri

n
g

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
  

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ta
rg

e
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 w

ill
 u

s
e
 t

o
 t

ra
c
k
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

2
0
2
0
; 

a
n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 w

ill
 u

s
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
.

A
d

u
lt

s
 a

n
d

 S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
li

fe
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
  

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 
2
0
2
0
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 
o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 
w

h
o
 
u
s
e
 
a
d
u
lt
 
s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 
s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

T
o
p
 2

5
%

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

T
o

p
 2

5
%

 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
h
o
 f

in
d
 i
t 

e
a
s
y
 t

o
 g

e
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
  

E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 

T
o

p
 2

5
%

 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 

P
e

rs
o

n
-c

e
n

tr
e

d
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
2
0
 t

a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 
o
f 

a
d
u

lt
s
 

w
it
h

 
le

a
rn

in
g

 
d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 

w
h
o

 
liv

e
 

in
 

s
ta

b
le

 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

6
0
%

 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 p

a
id

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

1
0
.6

%
 

T
o
p
 1

0
%

 i
n
 E

n
g
a
ln

d
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e

d
s
 i
n
 p

a
id

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

 
7
%

 
T

o
p
 2

5
%

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

a
d

u
lt
s
 w

it
h

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 w

h
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 s

ta
b
le

 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

7
5
%

 
T

o
p
 2

5
%

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

w
h
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 h

a
d
 

a
s
 m

u
c
h
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
  

T
o
p
 2

5
%

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

T
o
p
 2

5
%

 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

n
e

w
 c

lie
n

ts
, 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 e

n
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 

5
0
%

 
7
0
%

 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 n

u
rs

in
g
 c

a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
, 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
 6

5
+

3
9
9
.0

 
T

o
p
 1

0
%

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

174



C
o
rp
o
ra
te
!P
la
n
!2
0
1
5
!–
!2
0
2
0
:!
T
e
ch
n
ic
a
l!
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
!

! E
a
rl

y
 i

n
te

rv
e
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
re

v
e
n

ti
o

n
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
2
0
 t

a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 f

e
e
l 
in

 c
o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 

th
e
ir
 o

w
n
 l
iv

e
s

T
o
p
 2

5
%

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

T
o
p
 2

5
%

 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
 9

1
 d

a
y
s
 a

ft
e
r 

d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
8
7
.9

%
 

T
o
p
 2

5
%

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

C
a

re
rs

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
2
0
 t

a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
a
re

rs
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 s

o
c
ia

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

3
5
.7

%
 

T
o
p
 2

5
%

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

C
a
re

rs
’ 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
  

7
.8

%
 

T
o
p
 2

5
%

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt
 c

a
re

rs
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

s
 m

u
c
h

 s
o

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

a
s
 t

h
e

y
 

w
o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
3
6
.5

%
 

T
o
p
 2

5
%

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
2
0
 t

a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
o
 f

e
e
l 
s
a
fe

 
T

o
p
 2

5
%

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

T
o
p
 2

5
%

 o
f 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

175



C
o
rp
o
ra
te
!P
la
n
!2
0
1
5
!–
!2
0
2
0
:!
T
e
ch
n
ic
a
l!
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
!

! A
s

s
e

ts
, 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 G

ro
w

th
 

R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
  

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 
2
0
2
0
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 

T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

n
e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

1
,4

2
3
 

5
,4

5
7

1

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s

2
4
8
 

1
,7

9
5

1

E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 

T
B

C
 –

 b
a
s
e
lin

in
g
 

T
B

C
  

T
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 

o
f 

n
e
w

 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

w
h
ic

h
 

s
u
rv

iv
e
 

in
 

B
a
rn

e
t,

 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

2
2

%
p

ts
 

m
o

re
 

th
a

n
 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

5
%

p
ts

 
m

o
re

 
th

a
n
 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

U
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
4

.9
%

 (
M

o
n

it
o

r 
o
n
ly

) 
 

4
.2

%
 (

M
o
n
it
o
r 

o
n
ly

) 

Y
o
u
th

 U
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

0
.5

%
p
ts

 
le

s
s
 

th
a
n
 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

2
%

p
ts

 
le

s
s
 

th
a

n
 

c
o

m
p

a
ra

b
le

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

S
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t,
 

a
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 

b
y
 

th
e

 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

A
llo

w
a
n
c
e
 (

E
S

A
) 

c
la

im
a
n
t 

c
o
u
n
t 

(0
-6

5
 w

e
e
k
s
) 

o
r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 

b
e
n

e
fi
t 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 b

y
 5

%
 (

7
,6

8
6
) 

5
%

 y
e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
t’
 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 b

y
 5

%
 (

3
4
7
) 

5
%

 y
e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

T
h

ri
v
in

g
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

V
a
c
a
n
c
y
 r

a
te

s
 o

n
 h

ig
h
 s

tr
e
e
t 

E
q
u
a
l 

to
 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

2
.5

%
 

b
e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!

1
!E
xc
lu
d
in
g
!B
re
n
t!
C
ro
ss
!a
n
d
!C
o
li
n
d
a
le
!

2
!M

e
a
su
re
!T
B
C
!

176



C
o
rp
o
ra
te
!P
la
n
!2
0
1
5
!–
!2
0
2
0
:!
T
e
ch
n
ic
a
l!
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
!

! H
o

u
s
in

g
 g

ro
w

th
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

n
e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
n
 B

a
rn

e
t 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

(n
e
t)

 
1
,2

5
3
 

1
0
,8

4
0
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

, 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g

M
e
a
s
u

re
  

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 
2
0
2
0
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 

C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
s
 b

a
s
k
e
t:
  

!
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 m

a
d
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

s
;

!
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 m

a
d
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 C

h
ild

re
n

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
fo

r 
a
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 o

r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

ti
m

e
; 

a
n
d

!
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 C

h
ild

re
n
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
s
 f

o
r 

tw
o
 o

r 
m

o
re

 y
e
a
rs

 

!
 

M
o

n
it
o

r 

!
 

M
o

n
it
o

r 
 

!
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
 

in
 

lin
e

 
w

it
h

 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 
(c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 5

%
) 

!
 

M
o

n
it
o

r 

!
 

M
o

n
it
o

r 

!
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
  

M
o

n
it
o

r 
M

o
n

it
o

r 
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 

2
0
 

2
0
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t 

fo
s
te

r 
c
a
re

 
3
9
%

 
5
3
%

 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 a
g
e
 1

9
 –

 2
1
 i

n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

T
o
p
 1

0
%

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 

T
o
p
 1

0
%

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 o
r 

m
o

re
 A

*-
C

 G
C

S
E

’s
 i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 

6
8
%

 
T

o
p
 1

0
%

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
- 

tw
o
 l
e
v
e
ls

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 k

e
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 1

 a
n
d
 2

 i
n
:

!
 

R
e
a
d
in

g
, 

a
n
d
  

!
 

R
e
a
d
in

g
 9

4
%

 
!
 

T
o
p
 1

0
%

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 

177



C
o
rp
o
ra
te
!P
la
n
!2
0
1
5
!–
!2
0
2
0
:!
T
e
ch
n
ic
a
l!
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
!

! M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

!
 

W
ri
ti
n
g
  

!
 

W
ri
ti
n
g
 9

4
.5

%
 

!
 

T
o
p
 1

0
%

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
  

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

u
p
ils

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o

r 
F

S
M

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 p

e
e

rs
 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 e

n
d
 o

f 
k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 
s
u
b
je

c
ts

 (
R

e
a
d
in

g
 W

ri
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
) 

a
t 

K
e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

3

1
3
%

p
ts

 
T

o
p
 1

0
%

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 
o

f 
lo

o
k
e

d
 
a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 
m

a
k
in

g
 
th

e
 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 
le

v
e
l 

o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
s
 2

 a
n
d
 4

 i
n
 :

o
 

E
n

g
lis

h
, 

a
n

d
 

o
 

M
a

th
s
  

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

T
o
p
 1

0
%

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 r

a
te

d
 a

s
 ‘
g

o
o

d
’ 
o

r 
b

e
tt

e
r

!
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

, 
a
n
d
  

!
 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

  

!
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 9
2

%
 

!
 

S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 8
7

.5
%

 

!
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 1
0
0
%

 

!
 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 1
0
0
%

 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
 e

d
u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 (

1
6
 t

o
 1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
)

2
.3

%
 

T
o
p
 1

0
%

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

fr
e
e
 

e
n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n
t 

e
a
rl

y
 

y
e
a
rs

 
p
la

c
e
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 

u
p
 

b
y
 

p
a
re

n
ts

/ 
c
a
re

rs
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

a
 p

la
c
e
. 

5
0
%

8
5
%

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 
o

f 
1

7
 

y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 

in
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

(p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 
ra

te
s
 
1

7
 
y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
) 

(i
n

c
l 

p
a

rt
 
ti
m

e
) 

a
n

d
 
w

o
rk

 
b

a
s
e

d
 

le
a

rn
in

g
.

9
1
%

 
T

o
p
 1

0
%

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

: 
A

 n
e

w
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

re
g
im

e
 f

o
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 b

e
g
in

s
 f

ro
m

 2
0
1

5
/1

6
. 

T
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

1
5
/1

6
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n
 t

h
e

 a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

1
4
/1

5
, 

re
s
u
lt
s
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1

5
. 

P
a
re

n
ti

n
g

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 r
e
g
is

te
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

6
5
%

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
s
e

t 
ta

rg
e

t 
(s

e
t 

b
y
 O

fs
te

d
) 

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!

3
!A
!n
e
w
!a
ss
e
ss
m
e
n
t!
re
g
im

e
!f
o
r!
e
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
a
l!
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s!
b
e
g
in
s!
fr
o
m
!2
0
1
5
/1
6
.!
T
h
e
!t
a
rg
e
ts
!f
o
r!
1
5
/1
6
!r
e
la
te
!t
o
!a
ss
e
ss
m
e
n
ts
!u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
!i
n
!t
h
e
!a
ca
d
e
m
ic
!y
e
a
r!
1
4
/1
5
,!
re
su
lt
s!
re
p
o
rt
e
d
!i
n
!

2
0
1
5
.!

178



C
o
rp
o
ra
te
!P
la
n
!2
0
1
5
!–
!2
0
2
0
:!
T
e
ch
n
ic
a
l!
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
!

! c
e
n
tr

e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 i
t 

s
e
rv

e
s
 

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s

L
ib

ra
ry

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 l
ib

ra
ry

 r
e

v
ie

w
, 

d
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 C

h
ild

re
n

, 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

L
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
5
. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 L

e
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
  

S
a
fe

M
e
a
s
u

re
  

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 
2
0
2
0
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 

L
e
v
e
l 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 f

o
r 

P
o

lic
in

g
 A

n
d

 C
ri

m
e

 s
e

t 
o
f 

c
ri
m

e
s
: 

!
 

B
u

rg
la

ry
, 

!
 

V
a

n
d

a
lis

m
, 

 

!
 

C
ri
m

in
a
l 
d
a
m

a
g
e
, 
 

!
 

T
h
e
ft
 o

f 
m

o
to

r 
v
e
h
ic

le
, 

 

!
 

T
h

e
ft

 f
ro

m
 m

o
to

r 
v
e

h
ic

le
, 

 

!
 

V
io

le
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 i
n
ju

ry
, 

 

!
 

R
o
b
b
e
ry

, 
a
n
d
 

!
 

T
h
e
ft
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

e
rs

o
n

2
0
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

T
B

C
4

P
u

b
lic

 
c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

 
in

 
p

o
lic

e
 
a

n
d

 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

in
 
d
e
a
lin

g
 
w

it
h

 
a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 c

ri
m

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
tt
e
r 

in
 t

h
e
ir
 a

re
a
 

6
8
%

 
6
8
%

 

S
tr

o
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 
o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 

w
h

o
 

re
p

o
rt

 
fe

e
lin

g
 

th
e
y
 

b
e
lo

n
g
 

to
 

th
e
ir

 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d

7
4

%
  

7
7

%
  

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!

4
!T
a
rg
e
ts
!a
re
!y
e
t!
to
!b
e
!s
e
t!
fo
r!
th
e
!M

a
y
o
r’
s!
O
ff
ic
e
!f
o
r!
P
o
li
ci
n
g
!A
n
d
!C
ri
m
e
!i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
!f
o
r!
2
0
1
6
/1
7
!t
o
!2
0
1
9
/2
0
;!
th
is
!m

a
y
!b
e
!p
o
st
!t
h
e
!m

a
y
o
ra
l!
e
le
ct
io
n
s!
ta
k
in
g
!p
la
ce
!i
n
!M

a
y
!2
0
1
6
!

179



C
o
rp
o
ra
te
!P
la
n
!2
0
1
5
!–
!2
0
2
0
:!
T
e
ch
n
ic
a
l!
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
!

! A
c
ti

v
e
, 

in
v
o

lv
e
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

a
t 

le
a
s
t 

o
n
c
e
 a

 m
o
n
th

 
2
9
%

 
 

3
5
%

 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

g
re

e
 t

h
a
t 

p
e
o
p
le

 p
u
ll 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 h

e
lp

 
im

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 a

re
a
 

5
1
%

 
5
6
%

 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

P
a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 g
re

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e
s
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
  

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 
2
0
2
0
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 
o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 

w
h

o
 

a
re

 
s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 

w
it
h
 

p
a
rk

s
 

a
n
d
 

o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 

7
2
%

 
7
5
%

 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 u

s
e
d
 p

a
rk

s
, 

p
la

y
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 o

r 
o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
8
6
%

9
0
%

R
e

c
y
c

li
n

g
 a

n
d

 w
a

s
te

 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 
w

a
s
te

 
s
e

n
t 

fo
r 

re
u

s
e

, 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 

a
n

d
 

c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g

4
2
%

 
5
0
%

 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 a
re

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 r
e

fu
s
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

8
0
%

 
8
5
%

 

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 (

b
lu

e
 b

in
) 

7
5
%

 
T

B
C

 

180



C
o
rp
o
ra
te
!P
la
n
!2
0
1
5
!–
!2
0
2
0
:!
T
e
ch
n
ic
a
l!
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
!

! H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
, 

p
a
v
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 p
a
rk

in
g

 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
: 

!
 

R
e
p
a
ir
 o

f 
ro

a
d
s
, 

a
n
d
  

!
 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
p

a
v
e

m
e

n
ts

  

!
 

3
5

%
 R

o
a

d
s
 

!
 

3
5

%
 P

a
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

!
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

 

!
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 s

tr
e
e
t 

c
le

a
n
in

g
 

5
8
%

 
7
0
%

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 c

a
rr

ia
g
e
w

a
y
 r

e
s
u
rf

a
c
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

1
0
0
%

 
1
0
0
%

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 f

o
o
tw

a
y
 r

e
la

y
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

1
0
0
%

 
1
0
0
%

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 d

e
fe

c
ts

 m
a
d
e
 s

a
fe

5
1
0
0
%

  
1
0
0
%

  

S
tr

e
e
t 

c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 –

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
ls

 
o

f 
lit

te
r 

 a
n

d
 d

e
tr

it
u

s
!
 

L
it
te

r 
3
%

 

!
 

D
e

tr
it
u

s
 1

4
%

 

!
 

L
it
te

r 
3
%

 

!
 

D
e

tr
it
u

s
 1

0
%

 

C
a

rb
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 (

T
B

C
) 

T
B

C
 

T
B

C
 

T
ra

ff
ic

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

(T
B

C
)

T
B

C
 

T
B

C
 

P
a
rk

in
g

 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

P
a
rk

in
g
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 o

n
 s

tr
e
e
t 

 
1
,6

5
0
,3

2
6
 

1
,7

1
5
,8

6
5
  

P
a
rk

in
g
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
 

2
7
8
,0

3
6
 

2
8
9
,0

4
7
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 p

a
rk

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
8
%

 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

 

R
e
g

u
la

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
  

7
5
%

 
7
5
%

 

M
e
e
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
  

9
4
%

 
9
4
%

 

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!

5
!T
h
is
!i
n
cl
u
d
e
s!
d
e
fe
ct
s!
cl
a
ss
e
d
!e
m
e
rg
e
n
cy
!(
2
!h
o
u
rs
!f
ix
!t
a
rg
e
t)
,!
ca
te
g
o
ry
!1
!–
!i
n
cl
u
d
e
s!
p
o
th
o
le
s!
a
n
d
!o
th
e
r!
se
ri
o
u
s!
d
e
fe
ct
!(
4
8
!h
o
u
rs
!f
ix
!t
a
rg
e
t)
!a
n
d
!C
a
te
g
o
ry
!2
!d
e
fe
ct
s!
(7
!d
a
y
s!
fi
x!
!t
a
rg
e
t)
!

181



C
o
rp
o
ra
te
!P
la
n
!2
0
1
5
!–
!2
0
2
0
:!
T
e
ch
n
ic
a
l!
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
!

! M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
  

(P
ri
o

ri
ty

 
2
)

9
5
%

 
9
5
%

 

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
  

(P
ri
o

ri
ty

 
1
)

1
0
0
%

 
1
0
0
%

 

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g

G
iv

e
 e

v
e
ry

 c
h

il
d

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

s
ta

rt
 i
n

 l
if

e
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
  

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 
2
0
2
0
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 

S
m

o
k
in

g
 s

ta
tu

s
 a

t 
ti
m

e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 
5
%

 
3
%

 

E
x
c
e
s
s
 w

e
ig

h
t 

in
 4

-5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 (

o
v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
o

r 
o

b
e

s
e

) 
2

1
.0

%
 

2
0

.0
%

 

E
x
c
e
s
s
 w

e
ig

h
t 

in
 1

0
-1

1
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 (

o
v
e
rw

e
ig

h
t 

o
r 

o
b
e
s
e
) 

3
4
.4

%
 

3
3
.4

%
 

E
n

a
b

le
 a

ll
 c

h
il

d
re

n
, 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
ir

 l
iv

e
s

 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

R
a
te

 o
f 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
 

4
5

8
.7

6
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 
4

5
8

.7
6

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

,0
0

0
 

S
m

o
k
in

g
 P

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 

1
5
%

 
1
3
.5

%
 

C
re

a
te

 f
a
ir

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 g

o
o

d
 w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
a
ll
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

P
ilo

t 
T

o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 

182



C
o
rp
o
ra
te
!P
la
n
!2
0
1
5
!–
!2
0
2
0
:!
T
e
ch
n
ic
a
l!
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
!

! C
re

a
te

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 h

e
a
lt

h
y
 a

n
d

 s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 p

la
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

P
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

5
4
%

 
5
5
.6

%
 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

il
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 p

re
v
e
n

ti
o

n
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

lig
ib

le
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 4

0
-7

4
 w

h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
 N

H
S

 H
e
a
lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
 

9
,0

0
0

 
(8

%
 

o
f 

e
lig

ib
le

 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
) 

1
0
%

 o
f 

e
lig

ib
le

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

H
o

u
s
in

g

H
o

u
s
in

g
 s

u
p

p
ly

 a
n

d
 a

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
  

 

M
e
a
s
u

re
  

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 
2
0
2
0
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

n
e

w
 b

u
ild

 h
o

m
e

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

  
 

4
0
%

 
4
0
%

 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 l
is

t 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

s
 a

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
 

M
o

n
it
o

r 
M

o
n

it
o

r 
 

H
ig

h
 q

u
a

li
ty

 p
ri

v
a

te
 r

e
n

te
d

 s
e

c
to

r 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

lic
e
n
s
in

g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n

ts
 

fo
r 

H
o

u
s
e

s
 

in
 

M
u

lt
ip

le
 

O
c
c
u

p
a

ti
o

n
6
0
%

 
9
0
%

 

H
o

m
e

le
s

s
n

e
s

s

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

7
0
0

T
B

C
 v

ia
  

B
a
rn

e
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

N
u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

5
0
0
 

T
B

C
 v

ia
 B

a
rn

e
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

183



C
o
rp
o
ra
te
!P
la
n
!2
0
1
5
!–
!2
0
2
0
:!
T
e
ch
n
ic
a
l!
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
!

! V
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 r

e
s

id
e

n
ts

 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

x
tr

a
 c

a
re

 
5
2
 u

n
it
s
 

1
5
0
 u

n
it
s
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w

h
e
e
lc

h
a
ir
 h

o
u
s
in

g
  

1
0
%

 o
f 

n
e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

1
0

%
 o

f 
n

e
w

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 

A
n

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t,

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 
o

f 
re

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 
v
e

ry
 
o

r 
fa

ir
ly

 
s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
ir
 s

o
c
ia

l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

(B
a
rn

e
t 

H
o
m

e
s
) 

8
1
%

T
B

C
 v

ia
  

B
a
rn

e
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 a
s
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
d
e
b
it
 

T
o
p
 2

5
%

6
 

T
o
p
 2

5
%

 

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 a
s
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
d

e
b

it
 

5
.5

%
 

4
.6

%
 

L
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

s
ta

y
 i
n
 E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 

M
o

n
it
o

r 
M

o
n

it
o

r 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s

e
rv

ic
e

P
ro

v
id

in
g

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a
li
ty

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
  

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 
2
0
2
0
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 a
re

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e
d

 w
it
h
 t

h
e

 w
a
y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

ru
n
s
 t

h
in

g
s
 

7
3

%
  

7
5

%
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i

s
 e

a
s
y
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

7
0

%
  

7
5

%
 

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!

6
!A
s!
m
e
a
su
re
d
!t
h
ro
u
g
h
!H
o
u
se
m
a
rk
!–
!a
!h
o
u
si
n
g
!b
e
n
ch
m
a
rk
in
g
!c
lu
b
!

184



C
o
rp
o
ra
te
!P
la
n
!2
0
1
5
!–
!2
0
2
0
:!
T
e
ch
n
ic
a
l!
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
!

! R
e
a
c
ti

v
e
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
’ 

c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

T
h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 

a
n

d
 

c
o

n
ta

c
ts

 
w

h
ic

h
 

a
re

 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
 
a
t 

th
e
 
fi
rs

t 
p
o
in

t 
o
f 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 

(a
n
d
 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 
o
f 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 

T
B

C
) 

T
B

C
 

8
0

%
 

P
ro

v
id

in
g

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y

 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

S
p

e
n

d
 (

to
ta

l 
n

e
t 

s
p

e
n

d
 p

e
r 

h
e

a
d

) 
 

L
o

w
e

s
t 

2
5

%
 

o
f 

c
o

m
p

a
ra

b
le

 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

L
o

w
e

s
t 

2
5

%
 

o
f 

c
o

m
p

a
ra

b
le

 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

A
b
o
v
e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

o
f 

c
o

m
p

a
ra

b
le

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

A
b
o
v
e

 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

o
f 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

B
a
rn

e
t 

a
s
 a

 g
re

a
t 

p
la

c
e
 t

o
 l

iv
e
 

M
e
a
s
u

re
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 B

a
rn

e
t 

a
s
 a

 p
la

c
e
 t

o
 

liv
e

9
0
%

 
9
0
%

 

185



186

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Members Item - Councillor  Patel - Councils Key Performance Indicators
	6 Members Item - Councillor Cooke - Customer Complaint
	Appendix (i)
	Appendix (ii)

	7 Quarter Four and Year End 2014/15 Monitoring Report
	Appendix A - Performance Report Quarter 4 201415
	Appendix B - Revenue Monitoring
	Appendix C - Capital Monitoring Programme Outturn
	Appendix D - Capital Programme Funding Adjustments
	Appendix E - Transformation Programme
	Appendix F - Prudential Indicator Compliance to March 2015
	Appendix G -  Investments outstanding as at 31 March 2015
	Appendix H - Corporate Risk Register
	Appendix I - Capita Payments
	Appendix Ja - CORPORATE PLAN
	Appendix Jb - CORP PLAN TECHNICAL ANNEX


